
City Council

City of Grand Prairie

Meeting Agenda

City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

City Hall - Council Chambers

300 West Main Street

5:00 PMTuesday, September 15, 2020

Call to Order

Staff Presentations

1 20-10328 COVID-19 Update - Presented by Steve Dye, Deputy City Manager/Chief 

Operating Officer

2 20-10326 Fire Budget Presentation - Presented by Robert Fite, Fire Chief

3 20-10355 FallSweepGP Proposal - Presented by Patricia Redfearn, Solid Waste Manager

Agenda Review

Executive Session

The City Council may conduct a closed session pursuant to Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the 

Government Code, V.T.C.A., to discuss any of the following:

(1) Section 551.071 “Consultation with Attorney”

(2) Section 551.072 “Deliberation Regarding Real Property”

(3) Section 551.074 “Personnel Matters”

(4) Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic Development Negotiations”

Recess Meeting

Invocation: Council Member Mike Del Bosque

Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and to the Texas Flag led by Council Member Mike 

Del Bosque

Presentations

4 20-10255 Presentation of a $10,000 grant from Atmos to Grand Prairie libraries - Presented by 

Amy Sprinkles, Marketing, Communications and Libraries Director

5 20-10337 Recognition of Landfill Employees for assistance to injured citizen: Rigo Saavedra 

Olivera; Nadia Cedillo-Clark; Rose Chavez;and  Jose Saucedo

Page 1 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

Consent Agenda

The full agenda has been posted on the city's website, www.gptx.org, for those who may want 

to view this agenda in more detail. Citizens may speak for five minutes on any item on the 

agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

6 20-10377 Minutes of the September 1, 2020 Meeting

09-01-2020 Council MinutesAttachments:

7 20-10358 Price agreement for Agenda Management Software from Municode (up to $9,800 

annually and a one-time fee of $1,500.00) for three years with the option to renew for 

one additional three-year period totaling $60,300 if all extensions are exercised and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options with aggregate price 

fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so 

long as sufficient funding is appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City's 

obligation during the renewal terms

20148 - CC EXHIBIT.docxAttachments:

8 20-10323 Emergency Mosquito Control Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for 

one year at $185 per hour of work

FIS 2021 DC Ground Mosquito.docAttachments:

9 20-10324 Contract with Trinity River Authority Laboratory Services for analysis of water and 

wastewater in an amount not to exceed $273,000 for one year

TRA 2021 FIS.docAttachments:

10 20-10321 Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for FY 2020/2021 health services 

at an annual cost of $38,854

DC 2021.docxAttachments:

11 20-10338 Construction contract with LaBanda, LLC of Dallas, for the rehabilitation and repairs 

to bridges at three different locations within the City of Grand Prairie located at South 

Carrier Parkway Culvert, Corn Valley Bridge and Shady Grove Bridge, in the 

amount of $673,497, plus a 5% contingency amount of $33,675, for a total project 

cost of $707,172

20-10338 - LA BANDA LLC BRIDGE REP CIO BUDGET SUMM.xlsx

20-10338 BID #20158 TABULATION.pdf

Attachments:

12 20-10342 Authorize Sale of Surplus City-Owned Lot at 1413 Avenue B to Juana Villegas and 

Francisco Villegas in the amount of $39,500

EXHIBIT A FOR AGENDA SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 2 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

13 20-10345 Purchase of Transportation network equipment from Flair Data Systems in the 

amount of $59,962.44 to replace discontinued switches through a national interlocal 

with DIR

20-10345 - Flair Data Systems Quotes

20-10345 - Capital Projects Budget Summary

Attachments:

14 20-10350 Professional Service Agreement with Halff Associates Inc. for the Grand Prairie 

Landfill - West Fork Trinity River Erosion Protection Improvements Analysis, 

Report, and Design in the amount of $154,900 

20-10350 LandfillAttachments:

15 20-10352 Peninsula PID Change Order/Amendment No.1 for Lake Management Services, 

L.P. for pond management services and chemicals in the total amount of $80,000 

(Council Districts 4 and 6).

Exhibit A PNPID Budget Peninsula FY21.pdfAttachments:

16 20-10353 Award bid for the completion of one residential reconstruction project as part of the 

HOME Reconstruct Program to Symone Construction Services in the amount of 

$129,300.25, and reject all bids from Attachment A and reject the contract awarded 

to Johnson Construction

Contractors Bid Attachment A

Reconstruct Procedures Attachment B

Attachment C.pdf

Attachments:

17 20-10354 Contract for auctioneering services with Rene Bates Auctioneers, through a national 

interlocal agreement with BuyBoard, and authorize the vendor to charge a 10% 

Buyer's Premium on all City property auctioned off (anticipated between $50,000 - 

$70,000 annually) for one year with the option to renew for two additional one-year 

periods and authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options

18 20-10356 Change Order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting, LP for Cottonwood Creek 

Drainage Improvements at Marshall Drive and Robinson Road, in the total net 

amount of $48,211.62

WO 615.60.xlsxAttachments:

19 20-10359 Final reconciliation amendment/ Change Order No. 6 to construction contract with 

Texas Standard Construction in the net negative amount of (-$61,762.02) for 

Miscellaneous Wastewater Replacements in Windsor Place and SE 10th/SE 11th 

Streets 

W.O. 618.122.xlsx

Recommendation -(signed) Acceptance letter-Windsor- SE 10-SE 11 WW.pdf

Attachments:

Page 3 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

20 20-10373 Supplemental Agreement for Lease Audit No. TL 22749, Covering Use of Railroad 

Property at Grand Prairie, Texas for one year with four one-year renewals; effective 

September 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021, rent is $6,500; Effective March 1, 2021, 

rent is $36,000 annually with a 2% increase cumulative and compounded, for a total 

cumulative cost of $154,880

1182-80 Supplement City of Grand Prairie (006).pdf

20-10373 Expenditure Form

Attachments:

21 20-10381 Appointment/Reappointment of Crime Control Board Members

22 20-10343 Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; and 

authorizing the City Manager to enter into an interlocal agreement with Dallas County 

for aerial spraying for mosquitoes for a one-year term

20-10343 2021 Aerial Spraying xlsx.xlsxAttachments:

23 20-10371 Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; Street 

Maintenance Sales Tax Program as outlined for Grand Prairie streets, alleys, roadway 

resurfacing, pavement markings. pavement leveling, professional services, and 

engineering, utilizing approved price agreements and service contracts

2021 SALES TAX STREET PROGRAM.xlsx

CIP BUDGET SUMMARY FY21 SALES TAX.xlsx

Attachments:

24 20-10319 Ordinance amending Chapter 25, "Traffic", of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

Grand Prairie by adding new Section 25-6 "Unreasonable Acceleration" and Section 

25-7 "Prohibited Uses of a Motor Vehicle in a Parking Lot"; Providing a penalty; 

Providing a savings clause and a severability clause; and providing an effective date 

upon passage and publication  

25 20-10374 Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 10864 to define the Police Department's 

authorized positions in each classification for Fiscal Year 2021

26 20-10369 Ordinance amending Chapter 5 "Animal Services," of the Code of Ordinances of the 

City of Grand Prairie, Texas, through the amendment of Sections 5-1 "Definitions," 

and 5-57 "Breeding of Cats and Dogs" and the addition of Section 5-65 "Prohibited 

Sale of Cats or Dogs"; providing a Penalty Clause, a Savings Clause and a 

Severability Clause; and providing an effective date of October 1, 2020 and after 

publication 

27 20-10320 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of 

Understanding / Interlocal Agreement (MOU/ILA) with the Bureau of Alcohol, 

Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) as it relates to the Mid-Cities Violent 

Crime Task Force

MOU Grand Prairie Police Department GPPD July 22 2020.pdfAttachments:

Page 4 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

28 20-10344 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement 

with the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power ("TCAP") and a Commercial Electric 

Service Agreement with Gexa Energy, and providing an effective date

29 20-10357 Resolution ratifying and authorizing the acceptance of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and 

Economic Security Act (CARES) Funding and authorizing $211,860.04 to be 

expended for the purpose of purchasing Public Safety Equipment (28 self-contained 

breathing apparatus); Approve the one time purchase for the 28 SCBA's from 

Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. through a national interlocal with BuyBoard.

Exhibit A- Sept 15.docxAttachments:

30 20-10367 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a master interlocal purchasing 

agreement between the City of Grand Prairie and the City of Celina, TX

20-10367 Resolution form CelinaAttachments:

31 20-10375 Resolution in support of a Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application to the United 

States Department of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Justice Assistance for $36,300 in total 

funding with an agreement for $10,890 to be allocated to funding Dallas County 

projects and $1,778.70 to be allocated to the City of Dallas for fiscal administration 

fees and expenditures leaving a net amount of $23,631.30 to the City of Grand 

Prairie 

32 20-10317 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement 

(STEP) grant from the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the 

enforcement of safety belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control, 

distracted driving and DWI laws in the amount of $317,105.87

2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102  Salaries.pdf

2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102.pdf

Attachments:

33 20-10376 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant from the U.S. 

Department of Transportation, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, for the 

Grand Prairie Police Department's Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Unit to conduct 

commercial motor vehicle inspections, conduct public awareness campaigns, in the 

amount of $401,122.38

2020 HP Grant Narrative - Signed.pdf

HP Grant 080120-093022.pdf

Copy of 2020 HP Grant Budget - REVISED.xlsx

Attachments:

Page 5 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

Planning and Zoning Items to be Tabled

34 20-10287 SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & 

Trinity (City Council District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop 

with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The subject property is zoned Light Industrial (LI) 

District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor District. 

Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas County, the 

4.188-acre property is generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard 

and Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at 3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd. (On 

August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a vote of 

9-0)

PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdfAttachments:

35 20-10281 CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  

Concept Plan for the Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a 

mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn 

Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned 

PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the 

northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.

(On August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a vote 

of 9-0)

PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdfAttachments:

Planning and Zoning Items for Individual Consideration

36 20-10284 S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an 

industrial contractor shop and office space on 3.705 acres.  Lot 2, Block A, 

R.E.S.Subdivision, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-371, and 

addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway. (On August 24, 2020, the Planning 

and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this request by a vote of 9-0).

Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B S200803 SP

S200803 Exhibit C Landscape Plan

Exhibit D S200803 Elev

PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdf

Attachments:

Items for Individual Consideration

37 20-10259 Ordinance Amending the FY 2019/2020 Operating Budgets

38 20-10257 Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets

39 20-10258 Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets 

Page 6 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

40 20-10260 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and acquire right-of-way for the 

FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects

41 20-10261 Resolution Accepting the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan 

2021 Proposed CIP FinalAttachments:

42 20-10346 Public hearing seeking citizen comments on proposed tax rate of $0.669998 per 

$100 assessed valuation in accordance with the Texas Property Tax Code

City of Grand Prairie Notice_of_Tax_Rate.pdfAttachments:

43 20-10347 Ordinance adopting and levying the ad valorem tax for the Fiscal Year (FY) 

2020/2021 at a rate of $.669998 per $100 of assessed value on all taxable property 

within the corporate limits of the city on January 1, 2020, not exempt by law; 

providing revenues for payment of current municipal expenses for interest and sinking 

fund on outstanding City of Grand Prairie debt; providing for enforcement of 

collections; providing for a severability clause; and providing an effective date

City of Grand Prairie Adoption_of_Tax_Rate_Steps.pdf

City of Grand Prairie Notice_of_Tax_Rate.pdf

signed TNT.pdf

Attachments:

44 20-10348 Ordinance approving the 2020 tax roll resulting in a tax levy in the amount of 

$109,630,740 based on the Certified Appraisal Rolls approved by the 

Dallas,Tarrant, and Ellis County Appraisal Districts

2020 City of Grand Prairie Signed Certified ESTIMATE.pdf

038_julycert.pdf

GRAND-PRAIRIE-CERTIFICATION-LETTER-ESTIMATE.pdf

Attachments:

45 20-10351 Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance, Chapter 26, "Utilities and Services" 

relating to fees for water and wastewater services

46 20-10262 Fairway Bend PID (City Council District 1)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Fairway Bend PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-FB.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members FBPID.pdf

Attachments:

Page 7 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

47 20-10263 Parkview PID (City Council District 1)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Parkview PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-PV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members PVPID.pdf

Attachments:

48 20-10264 Southwest Village PID (City Council District 1).  

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate 

b. Adoption of the Southwest Village PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-SWV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members SVPID.pdf

Attachments:

49 20-10265 Whispering Oaks PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Whispering Oaks PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WO.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WOPID.pdf

Attachments:

50 20-10266 Brookfield PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate 

b. Adoption of the Brookfield PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan Brookfield-FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members BRPID.pdf

Attachments:

51 20-10267 Silverado Springs PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Silverado Springs PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-SS.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members SSPID.pdf

Attachments:

Page 8 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

52 20-10268 Country Club Park PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Country Club Park PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-CCP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members CCPID.pdf

Attachments:

53 20-10269 Lone Star Meadows PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Lone Star Meadows PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan FY21 LSM.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members LSPID.pdf

Attachments:

54 20-10270 Berkshire Park PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Berkshire Park PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-Berkshire..pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members BKPID.pdf

Attachments:

55 20-10271 Walingford Village PID (City Council District 3)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Walingford Village PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WVPID.pdf

Attachments:

56 20-10272 Monterrey Park PID (City Council District 3)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Monterrey Park PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-MP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members MPPID.pdf

Attachments:

Page 9 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

57 20-10273 Forum Estates PID (City Council District 4)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Forum Estates PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-FR.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members FRPID.pdf

Attachments:

58 20-10274 Westchester PID (City Council District 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Westchester PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WC.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WCPID.pdf

Attachments:

59 20-10275 High Hawk PID (City Council District 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the High Hawk PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-HH.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members HHPID.pdf

Attachments:

60 20-10276 Lake Parks PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate; 

b. Adoption of the Lake Parks PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-LP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members LPPID.pdf

Attachments:

61 20-10277 Peninsula PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Peninsula PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;

d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Exhibit A PNPID Budget Peninsula FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members.pdf

Attachments:

Page 10 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

62 20-10278 Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate; 

d. PID Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-OHSV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board List-OHSV PID.pdf

Attachments:

63 20-10279 Crescent Heights PID (City Council District 2)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Crescent Heights PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate; 

d. PID Board Membership

Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-Crescent Heights..pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members CHPID.pdf

Attachments:

64 20-10280 Greenway Trails PID (City Council District 6)

a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;

b. Adoption of the Greenway Trails PID 5-year Service Plan; 

c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate; 

d. PID Board Membership

Exhibit A-Greenway Trails - Budget FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members GTPID.pdf

Attachments:

65 20-10306 Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, 

Texas, amending Chapter 26, Utilities and Services,” of the Code of Ordinance of the 

City of Grand Prairie, Texas by amendment of Article VI, “Garbage Collection and 

Disposal,” Sections 26-113 Residential Fees, 26-115 Commercial Fees, and 26-117 

Hauling By Individual; permit; making this amendment cumulative; repealing all 

ordinances in conflict herewith; providing a savings clause, severability clause, and a 

penalty clause; and providing for an effective, after publication, of October 1, 2020

66 20-10237 Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance modifying the solid waste 

collection franchise agreement with Republic Waste Services of Texas Ltd., dba 

Republic Services of Arlington to include a $0.22 rate increase to residential service, 

per household, per month, and an increase to industrial charges limited to increasing 

the roll-off and packer delivery fee to $71.00, increasing the roll-off and packer haul 

rate to $154.50, and increasing the roll-off and packer disposal rate to $37.65

67 20-10117 Public Hearing and adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Crime Control and Prevention 

District (CCPD) Budget

CCPD 2020-21 BudgetAttachments:

Citizen Comments

Page 11 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



September 15, 2020City Council Meeting Agenda

Citizens may speak during Citizen Comments for up to five minutes on any item not on the 

agenda by completing and submitting a speaker card.

Adjournment

Certification

In accordance with Chapter 551, Subchapter C of the Government Code, V.T.C.A, the City 

Council agenda was prepared and posted September 11, 2020.

                                                             _______________________________

                                                             Catherine E. DiMaggio, City Secretary

The Grand Prairie City Hall is accessible to people with disabilities. If you need assistance in 

participating in this meeting due to a disability as defined under the ADA, please call 

972-237-8018 or email Mona Lisa Galicia (mgalicia@gptx.org) at least three (3) business 

days prior to the scheduled meeting to request an accommodation.

Page 12 City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10328 Name: COVID Update

Status:Type: Presentation Staff Presentations

File created: In control:8/25/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: COVID-19 Update - Presented by Steve Dye, Deputy City Manager/Chief Operating Officer

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
COVID-19 Update - Presented by Steve Dye, Deputy City Manager/Chief Operating Officer

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10326 Name: Fire Budget Presentation

Status:Type: Presentation Staff Presentations

File created: In control:8/25/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Fire Budget Presentation - Presented by Robert Fite, Fire Chief

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Fire Budget Presentation - Presented by Robert Fite, Fire Chief

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10355 Name: FallSweepGP

Status:Type: Presentation Staff Presentations

File created: In control:9/3/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: FallSweepGP Proposal - Presented by Patricia Redfearn, Solid Waste Manager

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
FallSweepGP Proposal - Presented by Patricia Redfearn, Solid Waste Manager

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10255 Name: $10,000 Atmos grant to libraries

Status:Type: Presentation Presentations

File created: In control:8/13/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Presentation of a $10,000 grant from Atmos to Grand Prairie libraries - Presented by Amy Sprinkles,
Marketing, Communications and Libraries Director

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Presentation of a $10,000 grant from Atmos to Grand Prairie libraries - Presented by Amy Sprinkles,
Marketing, Communications and Libraries Director

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10337 Name: Recognition of Landfill Employees

Status:Type: Presentation Presentations

File created: In control:8/26/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Recognition of Landfill Employees for assistance to injured citizen: Rigo Saavedra Olivera; Nadia
Cedillo-Clark; Rose Chavez;and  Jose Saucedo

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

Title
Recognition of Landfill Employees for assistance to injured citizen: Rigo Saavedra Olivera; Nadia Cedillo-
Clark; Rose Chavez;and  Jose Saucedo

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10377 Name: 9-1-2020 Minutes

Status:Type: Minutes Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/8/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Minutes of the September 1, 2020 Meeting

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 09-01-2020 Council Minutes

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cathy DiMaggio

Title
Minutes of the September 1, 2020 Meeting

Presenter
Cathy DiMaggio, City Secretary

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Minutes are attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall

300 W. Main Street 

Grand Prairie, Texas

City of Grand Prairie

Minutes - Final

City Council

5:00 PM City Hall - Council Chambers

300 Main Street

Tuesday, September 1, 2020

Call to Order

Mayor Jensen called the meeting to order at 5:08 p.m.

Mayor Ron Jensen

Mayor Pro Tem Jorja Clemson

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Jim Swafford

Council Member Jeff Copeland

Council Member Greg Giessner

Council Member Cole Humphreys

Council Member John Lopez

Council Member Jeff Wooldridge

Present 8 - 

Council Member Mike Del BosqueAbsent 1 - 

Staff Presentations

1 COVID-19 Update - Presented by Steve Dye, Deputy City Manager/Chief 

Operating Officer

Steve Dye, Deputy City Manager/Chief Operating Officer, updated Council on 

COVID-19 testing and infection rates.

Presented

2 2021 Police Budget Summary - Chief Daniel Scesney

Daniel Scesney, Police Chief, stated there were no budgetary increases in the police 

budget.  Chief Scesney updated Council on strategies and initiatives the department 

has implemented.

Presented

3 Legislative Update and Agenda Review - Presented by Andrew Fortune, Manager 

of Legislative Affairs

Andrew Fortune, Manager of Legislative Affairs, stated there would be a new Speaker 

of the House in the upcoming legislative session.  He added there would be a Special 

Session on redistricting.  Mr. Fortune stated that Council would be acting on a 

legislative resolution in the fall.

Presented

Page 1City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

Agenda Review

Mayor Pro Tem Clemson asked if Council had any questions on Consent Agenda 

items.  There were no questions.  Mayor Pro Tem Clemson stated that Items 33 and 

34 on the Public Hearing Consent Agenda would be removed for individual 

consideration.

Executive Session

Mayor Jensen convened a closed session at 5:59 p.m. pursuant to Chapter 551, 

Subchapter D of the Government Code, V.T.C.A., Section 551.072 “Deliberation 

Regarding Real Property” and Section 551.087 “Deliberations Regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations.”  Mayor Jensen adjourned the closed session at 6:31 p.m.

Mayor Jensen reconvened the meeting at 6:31 p.m.

The Invocation was given by Gerald Hodges, Community Inclusion Coordinator.  

The Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag and to the Texas Flag were led by Council 

Member Jeff Copeland.

Presentations

4 TACVB Awards  (Tourism Information Center) - Presented by Amy Sprinkles, 

Marketing, Communications and Libraries Director

Sara Dedeluk, Tourism Manager, announced that the tourist information center had 

received three First Place Awards from the Texas Association of Visitor Bureaus.  

They also received a Cooperative Marketing Award for  a marketing program with 

Waxahachie, Ennis, Cedar Hill and Mansfield.

Presented

Consent Agenda

5 Minutes of the August 18, 2020 Council Meeting

Approved on the Consent Agenda

6 Ratify and approve previous equipment purchase from Itron, Inc. in the amount of 

$150,000; award a new agreement to Itron, Inc., a sole source provider, for 

ongoing annual maintenance to the Automated Metering Infrastructure (AMI) 

System, and the purchase of AMI modules and meter reading equipment; this new 

agreement will be for 15 months in the amount of $509,151.22, with the option to 

renew for four additional one-year periods, with a 5% annual increase on the 

maintenance, totaling $2,346,620.99 if all extensions are exercised; authorize the 

Page 2City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

City Manager to execute the renewal options with aggregate price fluctuations of the 

lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so long as sufficient 

funding is appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City’s obligation during the 

renewal terms

Approved on the Consent Agenda

7 Ratify a two week extension of the three previous COVID-19 testing agreements in 

the amount not to exceed $318,250; award a Price Agreement for COVID-19 

Testing Services from TopCare Medical Group, Inc. (up to $600,000 monthly) for 

four weeks with the option to renew for four additional four-week periods totaling 

$3,000,000 if all extensions are exercised; and authorize the City Manager to 

execute the renewal options with aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to 

$50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so long as sufficient funding is 

appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City’s obligation during the renewal 

terms.

Approved on the Consent Agenda

8 Reject all Bids from RFB# 20157 for COVID-19 Testing Services

Approved on the Consent Agenda

9 Reject all bids for construction contract for the North Dallas Water Utilities (DWU) 

Water Vault Replacement (W.O. #619.108)

Approved on the Consent Agenda

10 Price Agreement for Thermal Temperature Screening Kiosks from RaptorPPE in 

the one-time amount of $54,395

Approved on the Consent Agenda

11 Price Agreement for sanitizing and disinfecting services from All Clean Services, 

LLC (up to $50,000 annually) for one year with the option to renew for four 

additional one year periods totaling $250,000 if all extensions are exercised and 

authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options with aggregate price 

fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so 

long as sufficient funding is appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City’s 

obligation during the renewal terms

Approved on the Consent Agenda

12 Purchase agreement with Unique Digital Technology, Inc. for  DellEMC VxRail 

P570f- 5 Node hyper converged infrastructure computer system for the City Hall 

data center in the amount of $383,336.35 through a state interlocal agreement with 

DIR 

Approved on the Consent Agenda

Page 3City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

13 Purchase Agreement with Lantana Communications for Telecom Equipment, to 

include upgrades, installation services, training, and one year of support of the 

Avaya CMS Call Management System for Water Revenue Agent call center, and 

other City Departments in the amount of $100,673.90, through a state interlocal 

agreement with DIR

Approved on the Consent Agenda

14 Purchase Agreement with SHI Government Solutions Inc. for 1300 Microsoft 

Windows Server 2019 Client Access Licenses, 110 Microsoft Windows Server 

2019 Datacenter Licenses, and 216 Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Standard 

Licenses in the amount of $106,740.90 through a state interlocal agreement with 

DIR 

Approved on the Consent Agenda

15 Professional Engineering Contract with Freese and Nichols, Inc. for the South 

Sector and Robinson Road Pump Station Resident Project Representative in the 

total amount of $390,176

Approved on the Consent Agenda

16 Agreement with GolfNow, LLC for credit card processing and merchant services 

for an estimated annual amount of $37,313 for one year with the option to renew 

for nine additional one-year periods totaling approximately $373,130 if all 

extensions are exercised

Approved on the Consent Agenda

17 Agreement for Solid Waste and Recycling Hauling Cost of Service Study from 

NewGen Strategies & Solutions in the amount of $72,500 through a national 

interlocal agreement with HGAC

Approved on the Consent Agenda

18 Change Order/Amendment No. 2 with AUI Partners, LLC for Fire Station 3 in the 

amount of $13,259.01 for owner contingency reimbursement, utility revisions, 

simplified electrical controls, natural gas line rerouting, site debris removal, electrical 

outlet labeling, plumbing revisions, structural concrete credit, concrete pier casing 

reconciliation and adjustment of the initial construction budget to align with funding 

available

Approved on the Consent Agenda

19 Purchase and installation of U.S. Digital Design Fire Alerting System for new Fire 

Station 3 from DFW Communications, Inc. DBA Crosspoint Communications in 

the amount of $52,255.56 through a national interlocal agreement with BuyBoard

Page 4City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

Approved on the Consent Agenda

20 Professional Contract with Priority Group, Inc. for engineering services for Texas 

Department of Transportation (TxDOT) coordination on City Projects with the 

combined costs not to exceed $35,000; the contract will be for one year with the 

option to renew for four additional one-year periods, not to exceed $175,000.00 

cumulatively if all extensions are exercised and authorize the Manager to execute the 

renewal options with aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 

25% of the original maximum price so long as sufficient funding is appropriated by 

the City Council to satisfy the City's obligation during the renewal terms

Approved on the Consent Agenda

21 Purchase of one (1) new Kenworth T440 6x4 truck ($133,389.82) with dump 

body, and one (1) new Kenworth T270 truck ($93,407.50) with dump body from 

Texas Kenworth Co dba MHC Kenworth-Dallas, respectively for a combined total 

of $226,797.32 through national interlocal agreements with BuyBoard and 

Sourcewell

Approved on the Consent Agenda

22 Replacement of exterior security cameras at the City's Auto Pound facility: fiber 

optic labor will be procured through Gardner Telecommunications, Inc., (GTI) in 

the amount of $25,350; electrical labor will be procured through Ed's Electric 

Service, in the amount of $15,000; and camera parts and labor will be procured 

from Siemens Industry, Inc., in the amount of $38,100, for an overall project cost 

of $78,450

Approved on the Consent Agenda

23 Change Order/Amendment No. 6 in the net amount of $14,116 with Axis 

Contracting, Inc. for Intersection Improvements at three locations (Lone Star 

Parkway/S. Belt Line Road, Great Southwest Parkway/Lake Ridge Parkway, and 

Jefferson Street/ South Carrier Parkway intersections)

Approved on the Consent Agenda

24 2021 City Council Meeting Schedule

Approved on the Consent Agenda

25 Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance modifying the solid waste 

collection franchise agreement with Republic Waste Services of Texas Ltd., dba 

Republic Services of Arlington to include a $0.22 rate increase to residential 

service, per household, per month, and an increase to industrial charges limited to 

increasing the roll-off and packer delivery fee to $71.00, increasing the roll-off and 

packer haul rate to $154.50, and increasing the roll-off and packer disposal rate to 

Page 5City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

$37.65

Approved on First Reading

26 Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, 

Texas, amending Chapter 26, Utilities and Services,” of the Code of Ordinance of 

the City of Grand Prairie, Texas by amendment of Article VI, “Garbage Collection 

and Disposal,” Sections 26-113 Residential Fees, 26-115 Commercial Fees, and 

26-117 Hauling By Individual; permit; making this amendment cumulative; repealing 

all ordinances in conflict herewith; providing a savings clause, severability clause, 

and a penalty clause; and providing for an effective, after publication, of October 1, 

2020

Approved on First Reading

27 Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a master interlocal purchasing 

agreement between the City of Grand Prairie and Denton County, Texas

Adopted

Enactment No: RES 5104-2020

28 Ordinance amending the FY 2019/2020 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

Construction design-build contract with The Nay Company for the construction of 

Water Utilities Metal Fabrication Shop in the amount of $1,120,715, plus a 5% 

contingency amount of $56,036, for a total project cost of $1,176,751

Adopted

Enactment No: ORD 10873-2020

29 Ordinance approving a Negotiated Settlement between the Atmos Cities Steering 

Committee ("ACSC") and Atmos Energy Corp., Mid-Tex Division regarding the 

Company's 2020 Rate Review Mechanism filing 

Adopted

Enactment No: ORD 10874-2020

30 Ordinance amending the FY 2019/2020 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

Construction Contract with Scott Dennett Construction, LC in the amount of 

$277,409.62 for HVAC upgrades associated with The Warehouse event space 

located in The Epic along with a 5% construction contingency of $13,870.38 for a 

total funding request of $291,280

Adopted

Enactment No: ORD 10875-2020

31 Ordinance amending the FY 2019/2020 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

Construction contract with La Banda, LLC for Dickey Road Storm Drain 

Page 6City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

Improvements West of S.W. 3rd Street in the total amount of $2,139,761; material 

testing with Team Consultants in the amount of $53,494; in-house engineering in the 

amount of $106,988; and 5% construction contract contingency in the amount of 

$106,988 for a total project cost of $2,407,231

Adopted

Enactment No: ORD 10876-2020

32 Ordinance amending the FY 2019/2020 Capital Improvement Projects Budget; 

Construction Contract with Scott Dennett Construction, LC in the amount of 

$268,822.60 for expansion of the existing parking at Warmack Library through a 

national interlocal agreement with TIPS; a 5% construction contingency of 

$13,440.40 and a third-party construction testing allowance of $6,000.00 for a 

total funding request of $288,263

Adopted

Enactment No: ORD 10877-2020

Public Hearing Consent Agenda

33 Z200701/CP200701 - Zoning Change/Concept Plan - January Hill (City Council 

District 5).  Zoning Change and Concept Plan for January Hill, a proposed 

development with Single Family Townhouse, Multi-Family, and General Retail Uses 

on 22.5 acres. Tracts 3.1, 3.4, 3.6 P H Ford Survey, Abstract No. 1711, Tracts 

4.1, 4.2, 4.7, and 4.9, Joseph C Reed Survey, Abstract No. 1729, City of Grand 

Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-108, PD-196, SF-4, and GR, within the 

SH-161 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located west of SH-161 on the 

south side of January Ln. (On August 10, 2020, the Planning and Zoning 

Commission recommended approval of this request by a vote of 8-0).

Savannah Ware, Chief City Planner, reviewed Case Z200701/CP200701.  She stated 

there were three components:  General Retail; Multi-Family and Townhomes.  Ms. 

Ware said there was a variance for a perimeter fence with a gated entry along January 

Lane.  The applicant will be preserving trees and natural buffers to the Single Family to 

the west.

Ms. Ware said the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval with the 

condition that the townhome and multi-family buildings step up in height moving away 

from the existing single family development.

Discussion took place regarding drainage, walkability and connections between the 

Multi-Family and Retail and whether the variance for the fence should be decided at 

site plan approval rather than zoning.

Hamilton Peck, 2507 Craft Creek, stated the he would be moving forward with Alamo 

Draft House and expects to open in early 2022.  He said Dalworth Creek runs through 

this site and drainage would drain to the creek to SH161. Mr. Peck said he did not 

think a gate would work.  

Page 7City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

Council Member Giessner asked Mr. Peck if he could put the gate near the leasing 

office.  Mr. Peck replied he did not have a problem doing that.

Mayor Pro Tem Clemson asked Mr. Peck about the square footage of the townhomes. 

Mr. Peck said the two-story are 1800-2200 sq. ft; the three-story are 2500-2800 sq. ft.

Council Member Lopez asked who would keep up the grounds. Mr. Peck replied each 

townhome will have their own yard and they will maintain it, but greenspace will be kept 

up by the HOA.  Mr. Lopez asked Mr. Peck if he had  any ideas for the retail space. 

Mr. Peck said  brokers want to see the development built then they come.  

Council Member Humphreys said he envisioned apartments which are high crime and a 

convenience store on the corner. He asked Mr. Peck what would happen if he did not 

have time to do this development and he were to sell the property. Mr. Peck replied he 

had spent a lot of money putting together renderings and so he would  go through with 

the development. Mayor Jensen added if Council approves this case and he cannot 

build it, any future development would have to be what is shown.  Ms. Ware said any 

changes would have to be approved in an amended Concept Plan.

Mayor Pro Clemson asked if the multi-family near the Alamo Draft House compare to 

this. Mr. Peck said the prices for those are higher than this because the cost of land 

is higher.  Council Member Humphreys asked about amenities.  Mr. Peck said there 

would be a community center, pool, and gym.

Council Member Humphreys moved, seconded by Council Member Lopez, to 

close the public hearing and approve per the Planning and Zoning 

recommendation and defer the gate variance to the site plan.  The motion 

carried unanimously.

Enactment No: ORD 10878-2020

34 SU200802/S200802 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Jack In The Box (City 

Council District Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a 2,765 sq. ft. restaurant with 

a drive-through on 1.19 acres.  Lot 4, Block B, Epic West Towne Crossing Phase 

1, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-364, within the SH 161 

Corridor Overlay District, and addressed as 3146 S HWY 161. (On August 10, 

2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this request 

by a vote of 8-0).

Ms. Ware reviewed Case SU200802/S200802 for a Jack in the Box Restaurant with a 

drive-thru at Epic west/Town Crossing with access from Esplanade.  She said the case 

meets landscape and screening requirements.  The applicant has requested two 

variances: 1) 30% windows on street-facing facades is required; the applicant wishes 

to have 21% windows on the east facade and no windows on the west facade; 2) the 

applicant requested a variance from the required 50% to 35% of windows along the 

length of all facades.

Ms. Ware said the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended plantings west of 

the building as a compensatory measure for 0% windows on the west facade.

Council Member Giessner asked Ms. Ware if this was the same size as Olive Garden. 

Ms. Ware said it was a little smaller.  Council Member Giessner asked if it could be 

Page 8City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

developed as a sitdown restaurant. Ms. Ware said it would depend on parking.  Council 

Member Lopez asked Ms. Ware if this was the first 24-hour drive through on this site.  

Ms. Ware said she believed it was. Council Member Humphreys said he was surprised 

to see a fast food restaurant on Epic West. Council Member Wooldridge asked if they 

would use the same entrance as all other restaurants.  Ms. Ware replied they would.  

Council Member Copeland asked if Council had discussed there would be 

drive-through restaurants here.  Ms. Ware said Taco Bell has been approved.  

David Gregory, 1668 Keller Parkway, Suite 100, Keller, TX, said this site would not 

typically be big enough for a sit down restaurant and, parking would be an issue. He 

said there would be improved landscaping on the back in lieu of required windows.  Mr. 

Gregory said there would be as much window space on the eastern façade as 

possible.  

Council Member Copeland asked Ms. Ware to go over the variance request.  Ms. Ware 

said they were required to have 30% windows on the east facade and they are 

requesting 21%.  The west facade is at 0% vs. 21% with compensatory enhanced 

landscaping.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Swafford moved, seconded by Council Member Lopez, 

to close the public hearing and approve Case SU200802/S200802 per the 

Planning and Zoning Commission recommendation.  The motion carried.

Ayes:  Mayor Ron Jensen; Mayor Pro Tem Jorja Clemson; Deputy Mayor Pro 

Tem Jim Swafford; Council Member Jeff Copeland; Council Member John 

Lopez  

Nays:  Council Member Giessner, Council Member Humphreys; Council 

Member Wooldridge

Enactment No: ORD 10879-2020

Items for Individual Consideration

35 Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Swafford thanked the members of the Finance and 

Government Committee and the Finance and Budget staff for their work on the 

FY20-21 budgets.

Mayor Jensen opened a public hearing on the FY 2020/21 Operating Budgets and the 

FY 2020/21 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets.  There were no citizens who 

wished to speak.

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem Swafford moved, seconded by Council Member 

Giessner, to close the public hearing on Item 35 and 36 and postpone the 

adoption of both budgets to the next Council meeting.  The motion carried 

unanimously.

Ayes: Mayor Ron Jensen; Mayor Pro Tem Jorja Clemson; Deputy Mayor Pro Tem 

Jim Swafford; Council Member Jeff Copeland; Council Member Greg 

Giessner; Council Member Cole Humphreys; Council Member John Lopez 

and Council Member Jeff Wooldridge

8 - 

Page 9City of Grand Prairie



September 1, 2020City Council Minutes - Final

36 Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets 

Note:  see Item 35 for the vote on this item.

Citizen Comments

There were no citizen comments.

Adjournment

Mayor Jensen adjourned the meeting at 7:46 p.m.

The foregoing minutes were approved at the September 15, 2020 Council meeting.

_______________________________

Catherine E. DiMaggio, City Secretary

Page 10City of Grand Prairie



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10358 Name: Price Agreement for Agenda Management Software

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Purchasing

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Price agreement for Agenda Management Software from Municode (up to $9,800 annually and a one-
time fee of $1,500.00) for three years with the option to renew for one additional three-year period
totaling $60,300 if all extensions are exercised and authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal
options with aggregate price fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the original
maximum price so long as sufficient funding is appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City's
obligation during the renewal terms

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20148 - CC EXHIBIT.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Angi Mize

Title
Price agreement for Agenda Management Software from Municode (up to $9,800 annually and a one-time fee
of $1,500.00) for three years with the option to renew for one additional three-year period totaling $60,300 if
all extensions are exercised and authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options with aggregate price
fluctuations of the lesser of up to $50,000 or 25% of the original maximum price so long as sufficient funding
is appropriated by the City Council to satisfy the City's obligation during the renewal terms

Presenter
Cathy DiMaggio, City Secretary

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
This agreement will be for a new agenda management software. We have used the current system for 11 years
and recognized the need for an upgrade that would benefit all users and agenda management administrators. All
responses received were evaluated and the top two, Agenda Quick by Destiny Software and Municode
Meetings Solution, were asked to provide demonstrations of their products. Both systems performed well, but
Municode seemed to be a better fit for the City. The City also has a long standing relationship with Municode
and feel this is the best value for the City.

Notice of RFP #20148 was advertised in the Fort Worth Star Telegram and Public Purchase; it was distributed
to 44 vendors, including three historically underutilized business (HUBs). There were no Grand Prairie vendors

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10358, Version: 1

available for this commodity.  Eight responses were received as shown on attachment A.

The award was based on best value criteria set up in the specification, including experience, references, price,
past relationship with the city and other municipalities, if they were local, and other relevant criteria as listed in
the specification.

Municode meets specifications and is recommended for award.

Financial Consideration
Funding for a price agreement for Agenda Management Software from Municode, is available in the FY
2020/2021 General Fund Budget, Information Technology budget (151010-63165) for Computer Software
Maintenance and will be charged accordingly on orders through the end of the current fiscal year.  Funding for
future fiscal years will be paid from that year’s approved budgets.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



AGENDA MANAGEMENT SOFTWARE 
RFB #20148   -   TABULATION 
 

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

Sofware/SaaS 1 EA 2,625.00$   2,625.00$        7,500.00$ 7,500.00$        9,995.00$          9,995.00$        199.00$      199.00$           

Implementation 1 EA -$                 2,750.00$ 2,750.00$        2,500.00$          2,500.00$        24,000.00$ 24,000.00$      

Training 1 EA 9,502.00$   9,502.00$        3,500.00$ 3,500.00$        -$                 2,000.00$   2,000.00$        

Annual Maintenance 2 EA 10,080.00$ 20,160.00$      7,500.00$ 15,000.00$      9,995.00$          19,990.00$      12,000.00$ 24,000.00$      

32,287.00$      28,750.00$      32,485.00$      50,199.00$      

Category Qty Uom

Related Services Public Records 3,500.00$        Voting 3,435.00$        

Related Services Contract TrackerTBD Webcasting 12,600.00$      

Related Services Form Traxx TBD Public Comments 2,950.00$        

Related Services Board Manager 4,125.00$        

Related Services Records Mgnt 3,800.00$        

Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price Unit Price Extended Price

Sofware/SaaS 1 EA 19,613.48$ 19,613.48$      9,800.00$ 9,800.00$        14,000.00$        14,000.00$      12,500.00$ 12,500.00$      

Implementation 1 EA -$                 -$                 9,000.00$          9,000.00$        -$                 

Training 1 EA -$                 -$                 2,000.00$          2,000.00$        6,000.00$   6,000.00$        

Annual Maintenance 2 EA 19,613.48$ 39,226.96$      9,800.00$ 19,600.00$      14,000.00$        28,000.00$      12,500.00$ 25,000.00$      

58,840.44$      29,400.00$      53,000.00$      43,500.00$      

Category Qty Uom

Related Services Web Tele 200.00$           Server 1,200.00$        

Related Services Onsite Training 1,500.00$        Doc Conversion 6,200.00$        

Related Services Import data TBD Video Streaming 795.00$           

Related Services Video Time Stamp 2,520.00$        Meeting App 2,750.00$        

Related Services Board Mgmt 3,000.00$        Hosting 420.00$           

Manhattan, KS La Conner, WA Markham, O Canada Old Bridge NJ

Provox Systems

McKinney, TX

Bid Tabulation

Civic Plus Agenda Quick by Destiny Software eScribe Software

Granicus Municode Prime Gov

Agenda Management Software

RFB # 20148 Front Desk Helpers

St. Paul, MN Tallahassee, FL Scottsdale, AZ

Recommended

Evaluation Score Card

Agenda Management Software

RFB # 20148

Manhattan, KS La Conner, WA
Markham, O 

Canada
Old Bridge NJ St. Paul, MN Tallahassee, FL Scottsdale, AZ McKinney, TX

Evaluation Criteria Maximum Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score Score

Price 50.00 44.52 50.00 44.25 28.64 24.43 48.89 27.12 33.05 

The extent to which the goods or services 

meet the municipality's needs 25.00 22.50 25.00 25.00 10.00 17.50 25.00 22.50 22.50 

Experience 10.00 7.00 10.00 7.00 2.00 6.00 10.00 6.00 6.00 

References 10.00 8.80 10.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 10.00 9.07 8.47 

Local Business Presence 5.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 100.00 82.82 95.00 86.25 40.64 57.93 93.89 64.69 70.01

Demo Evaluations 5.00 4.25 5.00 

P P P P P P P P

Bid Tabulator: Angi Mize

Bid Open Date: Monday, August 3, 2020

Provox Systems

Bids were publically opened and read at the City of Grand Prairie Office of the Purchasing Division at the time 

indicated above.  The bid tabulation has been verified, by tabulator, as accurate based on the Unit Cost presented 

by each bidder.

Complete and accurate bid

Prime Gov

Notes

Civic Plus
Agenda Quick by 

Destiny Software
eScribe Software

Front Desk 

Helpers
Granicus Municode

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SCORECARD 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10323 Name: Emergency Mosquito Contract

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/25/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Emergency Mosquito Control Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for one year at $185
per hour of work

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: FIS 2021 DC Ground Mosquito.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Title
Emergency Mosquito Control Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for one year at $185 per hour
of work

Presenter
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The City of Grand Prairie currently has a limited mosquito control program consisting primarily of educational
efforts, the distribution of larvicide to areas of standing water, and limited spraying upon confirmation of a
mosquito or human West Nile Virus/Fever or other mosquito borne disease such as Zika Virus positive sample.
If a situation arises that involves multiple confirmed human cases of mosquito-related diseases (West Nile
Fever, Zika Virus, Chikungunya, or Saint Louis Encephalitis) within the city, additional resources may be
needed for meeting this threat.  State resources may not be available if aerial spraying or additional resources
for ground spraying are needed.

Local cities have worked with the Dallas County Health and Human Service Department to develop a plan for
meeting these threats. This plan includes contingencies for the ground application of adulticide (spray for adult
mosquitoes) and larvicide (treatment of standing water breeding mosquitoes), to control any outbreak of
diseases associated with mosquitoes.  In the event of a serious outbreak, the plan provides for the development
of a separate contract for aerial spraying of adulticide.

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, also known as the Inter-local Cooperation Contracts Act,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10323, Version: 1

authorizes all local governments to contract with each other to perform governmental functions or services
including administrative functions normally associated with the operation of government such as these needed
mosquito control services.

Financial Consideration
Funding for the Emergency Mosquito Control Interlocal Agreement with Dallas County is available in the
Proposed FY 2020/2021 Water Wastewater Fund, Environmental Quality budget, the County charges a rate of
$185.00 per hour.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

OPERATING BUDGET EXPENDITURE INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

FUND:   Water Fund 

     

 

AGENCY:   Environmental Quality 

     

 

ACCOUNTING UNIT: 303010 

     

AVAILABLE:  61080, Vector Program Expenses, $72,342 

     

 

STAFF CONTACT:  Cindy Mendez 

 

VENDOR NUMBER:  528 

 

VENDOR NAME:  Dallas County Health and Human Services 

 

CONTINGENCY:  ___________________________________________ 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10324 Name: Trinity River Authority Lab Contract

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/25/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Contract with Trinity River Authority Laboratory Services for analysis of water and wastewater in an
amount not to exceed $273,000 for one year

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: TRA 2021 FIS.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Title
Contract with Trinity River Authority Laboratory Services for analysis of water and wastewater in an amount
not to exceed $273,000 for one year

Presenter
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The Trinity River Authority (TRA) plant in Grand Prairie has conducted water and wastewater analysis for
Grand Prairie for several decades. The proposed initial term of the contract is for October 1, 2020 through
September 30, 2021. The proposed contract continues the City’s current relationship with TRA as it relates to
water and wastewater sample analysis and the purchase of supplies for sampling.   An estimated average of 600
samples per month will be submitted to the TRA laboratory, including industrial waste, drinking water,
groundwater, and stream samples. The cost of these samples range from $13.00 per sample to over $1,000 per
sample.  Most of these samples are required to be collected due to federal mandates under the Clean Water Act
and the Safe Drinking Water Act.  The TRA is state-approved, always reliable, and due to its proximity and
price structure, offers cost effective services.

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, also known as the Interlocal Cooperation Contracts Act,
authorizes all local governments to contract with each other to perform governmental functions or services
including administrative functions normally associated with the operation of government such as these needed
laboratory services.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10324, Version: 1

Financial Consideration
Funding for the Trinity River Authority Laboratory Services contract is available in the Proposed FY 2020/2021
Water Wastewater Operating Fund, Environmental Services Department.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

OPERATING BUDGET EXPENDITURE INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

FUND:   Water Wastewater Fund 

    Name of Fund (i.e. General Fund) 

 

AGENCY:   Environmental Services Department 

    Name of Department 

 

ACCOUNTING UNIT: 303010 (WINS) 

     

AVAILABLE:  61485 Miscellaneous Services, $394,071 

Account Code, Description, and amount available 

 

STAFF CONTACT:  Cindy Mendez 

 

VENDOR NUMBER:  4562 

 

VENDOR NAME:  Trinity River Authority 

 

CONTINGENCY:  N/A 

 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10321 Name: Interlocal Agreement with Dallas County for Health
Services

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/24/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for FY 2020/2021 health services at an annual cost
of $38,854

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: DC 2021.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Title
Interlocal Agreement Renewal with Dallas County for FY 2020/2021 health services at an annual cost of
$38,854

Presenter
Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Our current contract with Dallas County Health and Human Services Department expires September 30, 2020.
Services provided under the contract include tuberculosis control, sexually transmitted disease control,
laboratory services, and communicable disease control. In addition, the County conducts health screening
examinations, immunizations, and well-child services. Over 7,000 Grand Prairie resident services were
provided last fiscal year.

As in previous years, cost is allocated according to services rendered in the program areas noted above. The
cost of $38,854 is being expended for residents of Grand Prairie to receive treatment for health services in FY
2020/2021. The contract cost of $38,854 for FY 2020/2021 reflects no change to the contract cost from FY
2019/2020.

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, also known as the Inter-local Cooperation Contracts Act,
authorizes all local governments to contract with each other to perform governmental functions or services
including administrative functions normally associated with the operation of government such as these needed
health services.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10321, Version: 1

Financial Consideration
Funds are included as part of the Proposed FY 2020/2021 General Fund, Environmental Services Department.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

OPERATING BUDGET EXPENDITURE INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

FUND:   General Fund 

    Name of Fund (i.e. General Fund) 

 

AGENCY:   Environmental Services 

    Name of Department 

 

ACCOUNTING UNIT: 301010 (PBHL) 

     

AVAILABLE:  61220 Dallas County Health Contract $38,854 

    Account Code, Description, and amount available 

 

STAFF CONTACT:  Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager 

 

VENDOR NUMBER:  528 

 

VENDOR NAME:  Dallas County Health and Human Services 

 

CONTINGENCY:  N/A 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10338 Name: Construction contract with LaBanda, LLC of Dallas,
for the rehabilitation and repairs to bridges at three
different locations within the City of Grand Prairie
located at South Carrier Parkway Culvert, Corn
Valley Bridge and Shady Grove Bridge, in the amou

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/26/2020 Public Works

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Construction contract with LaBanda, LLC of Dallas, for the rehabilitation and repairs to bridges at
three different locations within the City of Grand Prairie located at South Carrier Parkway Culvert,
Corn Valley Bridge and Shady Grove Bridge, in the amount of $673,497, plus a 5% contingency
amount of $33,675, for a total project cost of $707,172

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20-10338 - LA BANDA LLC BRIDGE REP CIO BUDGET SUMM.pdf

20-10338 BID #20158 TABULATION.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Glenda C. Peterson, Street Operations Supervisor

Title
Construction contract with LaBanda, LLC of Dallas, for the rehabilitation and repairs to bridges at three
different locations within the City of Grand Prairie located at South Carrier Parkway Culvert, Corn Valley
Bridge and Shady Grove Bridge, in the amount of $673,497, plus a 5% contingency amount of $33,675, for a
total project cost of $707,172

Presenter
Gabriel Johnson, Public Works Director

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The project will consist of providing repairs at three separate locations under one contract:

1. The  South Carrier Parkway Box Culvert location consists of providing erosion protection measures
(concrete riprap and grouted stone riprap), repairs to the box culvert headwalls and wingwalls, and installation
of guardrails.
2. The Corn Valley Bridge location consists of replacing the bridge approach pavement and storm drain inlets,
making improvements and repairs to a pedestrian bridge, and the installation of guardrails.
3. The Shady Grove Bridge rehabilitation location consists of removing and replacing the bridge approach slab

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10338, Version: 1

and concrete sidewalks, and the installation of concrete riprap and guardrails.

Cobb, Fendley & Associates, Inc. will provide the Professional Engineering services for the project and
LaBanda, LLC or Dallas will provide all phases of construction such as, site preparation, traffic control,
structure repair, concrete paving and sidewalk repair, slop and riprap repair, guardrail repair/installation and
pavement markings.

Notice of bid #20158 was advertised and distributed to 25 vendors. There were no Grand Prairie vendors
available for this commodity. Five bids were received as shown on Attachment A, of which three were
disqualified.

The low bid received from LaBanda, LLC of Dallas, meets specifications and is recommended for award.

Financial Consideration
Funding for a construction contract with LaBanda, LLC of Dallas, in the amount of $673,497, plus a 5%
contingency amount of $33,675, for a total project cost of $707,172, is available in the Streets Capital Projects
Fund (400192) WO #02006703 (FY20 City Bridges).

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Engineering/Design (68450) $188,118 $5,419 $5,419 $188,118

Construction (68540) $1,326,121 $1,326,121 $1,326,121 $1,326,121

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $1,514,239 $1,331,540 $0 $1,331,540 $1,514,239

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

400192-02006703

FY20 City Bridges







City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10342 Name: Authorize Sale of Surplus City-Owned Lot at 1413
Ave B to Juana Villegas and Francisco Villegas in
the amount of $39,500

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/27/2020 Engineering

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Authorize Sale of Surplus City-Owned Lot at 1413 Avenue B to Juana Villegas and Francisco Villegas
in the amount of $39,500

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: EXHIBIT A FOR AGENDA SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Dwayne Tyner

Title
Authorize Sale of Surplus City-Owned Lot at 1413 Avenue B to Juana Villegas and Francisco Villegas in the
amount of $39,500

Presenter
Gabe Johnson, Director of Public Works

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
This lot was acquired by the City by Warranty Deed in 1973 (see attached map for location). This lot was
declared surplus by the City Council on the June 16, 2020, agenda and authorized advertising for bids to the
highest bidder. The City advertised this lot for sale by sealed bids with a bid opening on August 19, 2020, at
10:00 am.  Responsive bids were received, as follows:

1413 Avenue B: ($30,000 Minimum Bid) ---Vacant

· Juana Villegas and Francisco Villegas  $39,500.00           High Bidder of 2

· Kingsland Property Holding, Inc.              $33,975.00

TIMES OFFERED FOR SALE:   1

This item will authorize the City Manager or his designee to execute a Deed Without Warranty to the successful
bidders, Juana Villegas and Francisco Villegas, at the respective purchase price. City will reserve all of the
oil, gas and other minerals in and under the lot, but will waive any right of access, ingress or egress to the lot

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10342, Version: 1

for the purpose of exploration or development of its reserved mineral estate.

Financial Consideration
The property is currently off the tax rolls.  After the sale, it will return to the tax rolls and the new owner will be
responsible for maintenance.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™





City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10345 Name: Transportation Network Equipment - Flair Data
Systems

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/31/2020 Transportation

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Purchase of Transportation network equipment from Flair Data Systems in the amount of $59,962.44
to replace discontinued switches through a national interlocal with DIR

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20-10345 - Flair Data Systems Quotes

20-10345 - Capital Projects Budget Summary

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Anda Upchurch

Title
Purchase of Transportation network equipment from Flair Data Systems in the amount of $59,962.44 to replace
discontinued switches through a national interlocal with DIR

Presenter
Walter Shumac, P.E., Director of Transportation

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Purchase of Cisco switches for the existing wireless communication network.  This network provides
communication from the Traffic Management Center (TMC) to 211 traffic signals, changeable message signs,
CCTV and video detection cameras at signalized intersections.  The switches being upgraded now have not
been updated since their initial installation and are either at the end of their service life or have been
discontinued and are no longer supported.  This equipment will provide continued connectivity to for the
Transportation network.

Chapter 271.102 of the Local Government Code authorizes local governments to participate in a cooperative
purchasing program with another local government or local cooperative organization. In lieu of competitive
bidding, items and services may be purchased through such agreements as the agreements have already been
bid by the sponsoring entity or agency.  The City of Grand Prairie has master inter-local cooperative agreements
with various entities including DIR.

DIR provides statewide leadership and oversight for management of government information and
communications technology. DIR has served in a leadership role to facilitate the state’s economic
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10345, Version: 1

communications technology. DIR has served in a leadership role to facilitate the state’s economic
competitiveness through its ability to deliver quality information resources commodities and services at the
lowest prices and best value for state and local government as well as the K-12 public and higher education
systems.

The Cisco products the City requires are available under DIR contract# DIR-TSO-4167 through Flair Data
Systems, an authorized reseller. This contract was effective July 3, 2018 and set to expire July 20, 2021 with
two additional one-year renewals remaining.

Financial Consideration
Funding for the Purchase of network equipment from Flair Data Systems, in the amount of $59,963, for the
Transportation network wireless communication is available in the Capital Reserve Fund (402590) WO
#02012403 (FY20 Transportation) Communication Equipment (63105).

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Jeff Bitting

Flair Data Systems

214.445.3530

972.672.1752 cell

214.445.3571 fax

jbitting@flairdata.com

Date: August 27, 2020 Quote Number COGP-195720-IE-IE-4010-4S24P-Layer 3 license-01 Valid For: 60 days

To: Pete Joyce Warranty: 90 Days/3 year Smartnet

City of Grand Prairie Shipping & Tax: N/A

DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-4167

SIGNED: Total: $38,961.70

DESCRIPTION:

Qty Part Description Price Disc. Extended Price

5 IE-4010-4S24P IE4010 with 24GE Copper PoE+ ports and 4GE SFP uplink ports $7,656.13 45% $21,245.76

5 CON-SNT-IE40104S SNTC-8X5XNBD IE4010 4x 1G SFP, 24 $1,982.88 14% $8,526.38

5 SIE40UK9T-15206E Cisco IE4010 UNIVERSAL WITH WEB BASED DEV MGR $0.00 45% $0.00

5 IE4010-DNA-A-H IE 4010 DNA Advantage $0.00 45% $0.00

5 IE4010-DNA-A-H-3Y IE 4010 DNA Advantage, 3 Year Term license $1,906.65 45% $5,290.95

10 PWR-RGD-AC-DC-H IE4010/5000 Hazloc Pwr Supply High AC/DC 85-264VAC/88-300VDC $702.45 45% $3,898.60

$38,961.70

Quote

Cisco IE-4010-4S24P layer 3 switch with 24 GE ports and 4 gigabit GE/SFP ports



Jeff Bitting

Flair Data Systems

214.445.3530

972.672.1752 cell

214.445.3571 fax

jbitting@flairdata.com

Date: August 27, 2020 Quote Number COGP-195720-C9300-48P-A-Layer 3 license-02 Valid For: 60 days

To: Pete Joyce Warranty: 90 Days/3 year Smartnet

City of Grand Prairie Replacement switch for WS-C3750E-48PD Shipping & Tax: N/A

DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-4167

SIGNED: Total: $12,890.14

DESCRIPTION:

Qty Part Description Price Disc. Extended Price

1 C9300-48P-A Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage $10,063.21 45% $5,585.08

1 CON-SNTP-C93004PA SNTC-24X7X4 Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Adva $3,465.57 14% $2,980.39

1 C9300-NW-A-48 C9300 Network Advantage, 48-port license $0.00 45% $0.00

1 S9300UK9-1612 Cisco Catalyst 9300 XE 16.12 UNIVERSAL $0.00 45% $0.00

1 PWR-C1-715WAC-P 715W AC 80+ platinum Config 1 Power Supply $0.00 45% $0.00

1 PWR-C1-715WAC-P/2 715W AC 80+ platinum Config 1 SecondaryPower Supply $1,254.38 45% $696.18

2 CAB-TA-NA North America AC Type A Power Cable $0.00 45% $0.00

1 STACK-T1-50CM 50CM Type 1 Stacking Cable $100.35 45% $55.69

1 CAB-SPWR-30CM Catalyst Stack Power Cable 30 CM $95.33 45% $52.91

1 C9300-DNA-A-48 C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port Term Licenses $0.00 45% $0.00

1 C9300-DNA-A-48-3Y C9300 DNA Advantage, 48-Port, 3 Year Term License $3,783.20 45% $2,099.68

1 C9300-NM-8X Catalyst 9300 8 x 10GE Network Module $2,558.93 45% $1,420.21

$12,890.14

Quote

Cisco Catalyst 9300 48-port PoE+, Network Advantage



Jeff Bitting

Flair Data Systems

214.445.3530

972.672.1752 cell

214.445.3571 fax

jbitting@flairdata.com

Date: August 27, 2020 Quote Number COGP-195720-C9300-24P-A-Layer 3 license-03 Valid For: 60 days

To: Pete Joyce Warranty: 90 Days/3 year Smartnet

City of Grand Prairie Replacement switch for WS-C3750G-24PS Shipping & Tax: N/A

DIR Contract No. DIR-TSO-4167

SIGNED: Total: $8,110.60

DESCRIPTION:

Qty Part Description Price Disc. Extended Price

1 C9300-24P-A Catalyst 9300 24-port PoE+, Network Advantage $5,939.28 45% $3,296.30

1 CON-SNTP-C93002PA SNTC-24X7X4 Catalyst 9300 24-port PoE+, Network Adva $2,058.84 14% $1,770.60

1 C9300-NW-A-24 C9300 Network Advantage, 24-port license $0.00 45% $0.00

1 S9300UK9-1612 Cisco Catalyst 9300 XE 16.12 UNIVERSAL $0.00 45% $0.00

1 PWR-C1-715WAC-P 715W AC 80+ platinum Config 1 Power Supply $0.00 45% $0.00

1 PWR-C1-715WAC-P/2 715W AC 80+ platinum Config 1 SecondaryPower Supply $1,254.38 45% $696.18

2 CAB-TA-NA North America AC Type A Power Cable $0.00 45% $0.00

1 STACK-T1-50CM 50CM Type 1 Stacking Cable $100.35 45% $55.69

1 CAB-SPWR-30CM Catalyst Stack Power Cable 30 CM $95.33 45% $52.91

1 C9300-DNA-A-24 C9300 DNA Advantage, 24-port Term Licenses $0.00 45% $0.00

1 C9300-DNA-A-24-3Y C9300 DNA Advantage, 24-Port, 3 Year Term License $2,017.04 45% $1,119.46

1 C9300-NM-8X Catalyst 9300 8 x 10GE Network Module $2,558.93 45% $1,119.46

$8,110.60

Quote

Cisco Catalyst 9300 24-port PoE+, Network Advantage



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Communication 

Equipment Maintenance 
$70,000 $61,157 $0 $61,157 $70,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $70,000 $61,157 $0 $61,157 $70,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

402590 / 02012403

FY20 Transportation

$0.00



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10350 Name: Grand Prairie Landfill - Trinity River Erosion Project

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/2/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Professional Service Agreement with Halff Associates Inc. for the Grand Prairie Landfill - West Fork
Trinity River Erosion Protection Improvements Analysis, Report, and Design in the amount of
$154,900

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20-10350 Landfill

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Bryce Davis, Purchasing Manager

Title
Professional Service Agreement with Halff Associates Inc. for the Grand Prairie Landfill - West Fork Trinity
River Erosion Protection Improvements Analysis, Report, and Design in the amount of $154,900

Presenter
Patricia D. B. Redfearn, Ph.D., Solid Waste and Recycling Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The City of Grand Prairie owns and operates a Type I landfill in the immediate vicinity of the Trinity River at
MacArthur Boulevard.  For years, the boundary of the neighboring horse farm has been gradually eroding due
to normal river activity.  Since 2015, the rate of erosion has accelerated, potentially threatening the solitary
access road to the landfill.

The Grand Prairie Landfill - West Fork Trinity River Erosion Protection Improvements will include
development of a preliminary engineering report and a 30% schematic design to inform the City of Grand
Prairie on the needed erosion protection measures along the south bank of the West Fork Trinity River near the
landfill access road to prevent the migration of the river further south.  The project will include necessary
surveys to determine the current extents of the river migration from previous available topography,
environmental permitting analysis to determine the appropriate USACE permits needed, geotechnical analysis,
floodplain analysis, and civil and structural engineering analysis up to a 30% plan level.  This project is
anticipated to take 15 weeks from Council award.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10350, Version: 1

Chapter 252, Section 22 of the Local Government Code allows for the exemption to competitive bidding when
the expenditure is for Professional Services such as engineering services.  Halff Associates, Inc. engineering
firm was selected as the most qualified professional due to their previous work for the City of Grand Prairie
along Kirby Creek, Cedar Creek, Prairie Creek, Johnson Creek, Warrior Creek, Cottonwood Creek, and Fish
Creek.

Financial Consideration
Funding for a Professional Service Agreement with Halff Associates Inc. for the Grand Prairie Landfill - West
Fork Trinity River Erosion Protection Improvements Analysis, Report, and Design, in the amount of $154,900,
is available in the Solid Waste Capital Projects Fund (502792) WO #01910201 (Trinity River at Landfill Road
Design).

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Professional Services (61039) $200,000 $200,000 $200,000 $200,000

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $200,000 $200,000 $0 $200,000 $200,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

502792/01910201

Trinity River at Landfill Road Design



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10352 Name: Change Order/Amendment No.1 for Lake
Management Services for Peninsula PID

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/2/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Peninsula PID Change Order/Amendment No.1 for Lake Management Services, L.P. for pond
management services and chemicals in the total amount of $80,000 (Council Districts 4 and 6).

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A PNPID Budget Peninsula FY21.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Lee Harriss

Title
Peninsula PID Change Order/Amendment No.1 for Lake Management Services, L.P. for pond management
services and chemicals in the total amount of $80,000 (Council Districts 4 and 6).

Presenter
Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On September 17, 2019, a contract was awarded to Lake Management Services, L.P. in the amount of $87,000

for Peninsula PID pond management services and chemicals.  Because the total of this amendment is over

$50,000, this change cannot be implemented without City Council authorization.

This proposed Change Order No. 1 is for pond management services and chemicals in Peninsula PID.

This change order will not change the term of this contract. The expiration date will be December 31, 2020.

Financial Consideration
Funds for this contract are available from annual assessments adopted by the City Council on September 15,
2020, which are estimated to generate $1,758,771 for the fiscal year.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.12 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value 1,465,642,854   0.12$            1,758,771$  

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 742,574$           180,668$      66,663$       10,928$       19,349$        

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 1,758,771$        1,821,067     1,884,432    1,948,883    2,014,434     

Developer Participation (L V) 46110 5,000                 5,000            5,000           5,000           5,000            

City Contribution 49780 81,830               81,830          81,830         81,830         81,830          

TOTAL INCOME 1,845,601$        1,907,897$   1,971,262$  2,035,713$  2,101,264$   

Amount Available 2,588,175$        2,088,565$   2,037,925$  2,046,641$  2,120,613$   

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Supplies 60020 500$                  500$             500$            500$            500$             

Decorations 60132 70,000               70,000          70,000         70,000         70,000          

Beautification 60490 50,000               50,000          40,000         40,000         40,000          

Wall Maintenance 60776 160,000             160,000        160,000       160,000       160,000        

Professional Engineering Services 61041 -                     -                -               -               -                

Banners 61601 15,000               15,000          15,000         15,000         15,000          

Mowing 61225 715,000             715,000        715,000       715,000       715,000        

Collection Service 61380 11,807               12,102          12,397         12,692         12,987          

Misc. 61485 600                    600               600              600              600               

Accounting/Audit -                     -                -               -               -                

Admin./Management 61510 26,000               26,000          26,000         26,000         26,000          

Postage 61520 100                    100               100              100              100               

Electric Power 62030 42,000               44,100          46,300         46,300         48,600          

Water Utility 62035 240,000             252,000        264,600       264,600       277,800        

Bldgs And Grounds Maint. 63010 -                     -                -               -               -                

Pond Maint-Aquatic 63038 85,000               85,000          85,000         85,000         85,000          

Pond Maint-Equipment 63039 50,000               50,000          50,000         50,000         50,000          

Water Well Maintenance 63045 5,000                 5,000            5,000           5,000           5,000            

Irrigation System Maintenance 63065 70,000               70,000          70,000         70,000         70,000          

Decorative Roadway Signs Maint 63115 15,000               15,000          15,000         15,000         15,000          

Playgrounds/Picnic Area Maint. 63135 3,500                 3,500            3,500           3,500           3,500            

Decorative Lighting Maint. 63146 25,000               25,000          25,000         25,000         25,000          

Property Insurance Premium 64080 3,500                 3,500            3,500           3,500           3,500            

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 3,500                 3,500            3,500           3,500           3,500            

Pond Improvement 68206 800,000             400,000        400,000       400,000       400,000        

Landscaping 68250 -                     -                -               -               -                

Irrigation Systems 68635 -                     -                -               -               -                

Water Wells (Tr To Wter, 5005) 90009 16,000               16,000          16,000         16,000         16,000          

-                     -                -               -               -                

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,407,507$        2,021,902$   2,026,997$  2,027,292$  2,043,087$   

Ending Balance 180,668$           66,663$        10,928$       19,349$       77,526$        

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $120

$200,000 $240 Avg. Property Value: 365,224$      

$300,000 $360 Avg. Property Assessment: 438$             

$400,000 $480 No. of Properties: 4,013            

$500,000 $600

$600,000 $720

$700,000 $840

GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 8

Peninsula
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Peninsula 3218\2021\1  21 PID Budget Peninsula FY21 Detail 20 08-10-20.xlsm budget-CC-FY21 8/26/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10353 Name: Re-Bid Reconstruction project, 1658 Oak St.

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Housing and Neighborhood Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Award bid for the completion of one residential reconstruction project as part of the HOME
Reconstruct Program to Symone Construction Services in the amount of $129,300.25, and reject all
bids from Attachment A and reject the contract awarded to Johnson Construction

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Contractors Bid Attachment A

Reconstruct Procedures Attachment B

Attachment C.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Patrick Cornelius, Neighborhood Services Manager

Title
Award bid for the completion of one residential reconstruction project as part of the HOME Reconstruct
Program to Symone Construction Services in the amount of $129,300.25, and reject all bids from Attachment A
and reject the contract awarded to Johnson Construction

Presenter
Esther Coleman, Director, Housing and Neighborhood Services

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The family residing at the location in attachment C, has met all of the eligibility requirements of the HOME
Reconstruct Program as described below; therefore the City Council is requested to award the bid for one
residential reconstruction project as part of the HOME Reconstruct Program to the low bidder for the project,
Symone Construction Services in the amount of $129,300.25, and reject all bids from Attachment A and reject
the contract awarded to Johnson Construction.

The Housing and Neighborhood Services Department, as part of the Housing rehabilitation program, takes
applications from citizens of Grand Prairie for assistance in the rehabilitation of their homes.  All HNS
rehabilitation programs are federally funded, with the reconstruction program being the most comprehensive
rehabilitation effort.  The detailed procedures and guidelines for the reconstruction program can be found in
attachment B.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10353, Version: 1

The HOME Reconstruct Program has specific eligibility requirements.  The applicant must be 60 years of age
or older, or have a long-term disability supported statement; the home must be owner occupied with a valid
Deed of Trust; the property must be located in the city limits of Grand Prairie; the applicant must have owned
the property at least 3 years; the current taxes must be paid (county, city, and schools); the insurance must be
current (minimum value of the home); and the property must be more than 75% deteriorated from its appraised
value, as provided by the appropriate appraisal district.  To qualify for the program, the applicant's income must
not exceed 80% of the median income for the City of Grand Prairie, as determined by the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  This program is a Deferred Payment Loan (DPL), not a grant, and a
lien is placed on the property for the total amount of reconstruction with a 0% to 3% interest rate, based on the
applicant's income.

Financial Consideration
The bid sheet for the project is attached (Attachment C). We received two (2) competitive bids from our
contractors after sending the bid packet to all 3 eligible bidders.  Sufficient funding is available and was
approved in the PY19 CDBG/HOME program budget to complete the projects using 302092 HOME Grant
Funding.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



--T X A s--

D r e a m  Bia Pla 1.J lia r d  

HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 

CONTRACTOR'S BID FOR PLAN # 1267 

PROPERTY: 1658 Oak St. Grand Prairie, TX 75050 

Date Bids 1/22/2020 Bid Deadline 1/31/2020 Bid Opening 2/6/2020 

# of Bids Faxed or Emailed_!L 

BIDDING CONTRACTORS 

Add-on Construction 

Keown Builders 

Nation Wide Contractors 

K. Tillman Construction

Johnson Construction Services

Symone Construction Services

DSCI, Inc.

Herdon Services

B & R Contractor Services

GTO

# of Bids Returned..1._ 

BID AMOUNT 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 
-------

__ $_12�

$129,300.25 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

No Bid 

� 
AN �IEWING 

)ft 

Attachment A



Attachment B 

RECONSTRUCT PROCEDURES 

 

I. Potential clients fill out the qualification questions form. 
Property must be owner occupied and client must fall in the income range. 
 

II. When client comes up on waiting list, client fills out application and provides qualifying 
documents. 
 

III. We determine income and whether rehab will be paid back or not. 
 

IV. Rehab Coordinator does the Work Write Up (WWUP) and determines if the property is more 
than 75% deteriorated. 

 
V. If the property is more than 75% deteriorated, will need to be reconstructed. 

 
VI. Obtain Land Records 

Property must be in owner’s name. If any liens were found, they will need to be cleared 
before demolition. 
 

VII. Obtain Survey 
Determine if building over the common lot line and if house will be over, we need to obtain 
paperwork from zoning and get it signed before demolition. 

 

VIII. Check zoning to determine the square footage of the house. 
  

IX. Obtain site plan 
 

X. Obtain foundation letter. 
 

XI. Obtain MEC check. 
 

XII. Project out for bid (5-10 days). 
 

a. Site Plans 
b. Building Materials List 
c. Floor Plans 
d. 3 elevations 

 
XIII. Award Bid to winning contractor. 

 
XIV. Client moves out to a relocation house, apartment or relatives. 



 
 

 
 
 
 
 

                    HOUSING AND NEIGHBORHOOD SERVICES 
                         
                                                    CONTRACTOR BIDS 

                                     DEPARTMENT ESTIMATE 
 

PROPERTY:      1658 Oak St Grand Prairie, TX 75050 
 

HOMEOWNER: Brenda Aguilar 
 
Bid Opening ______08/18/2020___________Bid Closing   _______08/24/2020__________           

 
# of Bids  _3_   # of Bids Returned_2_  

 
                        

BIDDING CONTRACTORS   BID AMOUNT     
 
Symone Construction Services, LLC  $129,300.25       
 
Johnson Construction Services   $131,197.85 
 
B&R Construction Services    No Bid 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

____________________________________             _______________________ 
REHAB COORDINATOR REVIEWING   MANAGER REVIEWING 

 
____________________________ 
DIRECTOR REVIEWING      



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10354 Name: Rene Bates Auctioneering Services (2020)

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Purchasing

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Contract for auctioneering services with Rene Bates Auctioneers, through a national interlocal
agreement with BuyBoard, and authorize the vendor to charge a 10% Buyer's Premium on all City
property auctioned off (anticipated between $50,000 - $70,000 annually) for one year with the option
to renew for two additional one-year periods and authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal
options

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Bryce Davis, Purchasing Manager

Title
Contract for auctioneering services with Rene Bates Auctioneers, through a national interlocal agreement with
BuyBoard, and authorize the vendor to charge a 10% Buyer's Premium on all City property auctioned off
(anticipated between $50,000 - $70,000 annually) for one year with the option to renew for two additional one-
year periods and authorize the City Manager to execute the renewal options

Presenter
Bryce Davis, Purchasing Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Rene Bates Auctioneers has been utilized by the City since 2004 for auctioning city-wide surplus property,
seized and abandoned property, and retired fleet vehicles and equipment through their cooperative contract.
Auctions are conducted through the internet and live auction. This contract would allow Rene Bates
Auctioneers to charge a 10% Buyer's Premium that is passed off onto the successful buyer resulting in zero cost
to the City. Anticipated gross profits off commission for Rene Bates averages about $50,000-$70,000 annually,
depending on the quantity of surplus being auctioned each year.

Chapter 271.102 of the Local Government Code authorizes local governments to participate in a cooperative
purchasing program with another local government or local cooperative organizations for the performance of
governmental functions or services including administrative functions normally associated with the operations
of governments. The competitive bid process is conducted by the sponsoring entity or agency such as the State
of Texas, BuyBoard entities, etc. and saves money by pooling the impressive purchasing power numbers of
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10354, Version: 1

of Texas, BuyBoard entities, etc. and saves money by pooling the impressive purchasing power numbers of
their members (school districts, municipalities, counties, other local governments, and non-profits across
Texas).

BuyBoard contract 620-20 was effective 09/01/2020 and set to expire 08/31/2021 with two possible one-year
renewals.

Financial Consideration
No cost to the City. Rene Bates Auctioneers will charge a 10% Buyer' Premium passed off onto the successful
bidder of City property.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10356 Name: Change Order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting, LP
for Cottonwood Creek Drainage Improvements at
Marshall Drive and Robinson Road (W.O. #615.60)
in the total amount of $48,211.62

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Engineering

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Change Order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting, LP for Cottonwood Creek Drainage Improvements at
Marshall Drive and Robinson Road, in the total net amount of $48,211.62

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: WO 615.60.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
max

Title
Change Order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting, LP for Cottonwood Creek Drainage Improvements at
Marshall Drive and Robinson Road, in the total net amount of $48,211.62

Presenter
Gabe Johnson, Director of Public Works, and Romin Khavari, City Engineer

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On Tuesday, February 18, 2020, the City of Grand Prairie awarded a contract for Cottonwood Creek Drainage
Improvements at Marshall Drive and Robinson Road (W.O. #615.60 for $3,341,969.01.

This proposed change order No. 1 will increase the Section I contract amount for removal of two abandoned TRA
manholes, installation of 145 linear feet of 4-foot high chain link fence along the retaining wall and addition of two
more connections to the existing 42-inch storm drain pipe in Robinson Road and deletion of 51 linear feet of 42-inch
RCP storm drain replacement to address TRA comments. This proposed change order No. 1 will also increase the
Section IV and Section V contract amounts to upgrade the approach slab reinforcing steel for the Marshall Drive
and Robinson Road bridges to provide an epoxy coating to extend the life of the bridge approach slabs. The total
change order amount is a contract increase of $48,211.62 for a revised contract amount of $3,390,180.63.

State statutes require City Council approval of a change order when the cumulative cost of change orders
exceeds $50,000. With approval of this change order, the City Manager will be able to approve the change
order to a cumulative value of $50,000 without additional Council approval. Also, the City, as an owner,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10356, Version: 1

order to a cumulative value of $50,000 without additional Council approval. Also, the City, as an owner,
reserves the right to increase the amount of the work to be performed in a given construction contract by an
amount not to exceed twenty-five (25%) percent of the original bid. The amount of the original contract was $3
,341,969.01 and 25% value of this contract is $835,492.25. Cumulative amount of Change Orders is $63,260.02
which requires council approval.

The total net amount of $48,211.62 for Change order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting L.P. consist of
$55,735.82 increases and $7,524.20 decreases for a cumulative amount of $63,260.02.

Construction completion of the project will remain unchanged, anticipated to be complete in June 2021.

Financial Consideration
Funding for Change Order No. 1 with McMahon Contracting, LP, in the total net amount of $48,211.62, is
available in the Storm Drainage Capital Projects Fund (401592) WO #01506003 (Marshall & Robinson @
Cottonwood Creek).

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

61405 Surveys and Studies $825 $0 $0 $0 $825

68091 Easement Title Purch $94,924 $0 $0 $0 $94,924

68540 Construction $1,724,256 $25,161 $0 $25,161 $1,724,256

68560 Eng/Con/Geo $348,289 $730 $0 $730 $348,289

68999 Labor $73,454 $50,854 $0 $50,854 $73,454

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $2,241,748 $76,745 $0 $76,745 $2,241,748

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

401592 / 01506003

Marshall & Robinson @ Cottonwood Crk

$0.00



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10359 Name: Final reconciliation amendment/change order No. 6
with Texas Standard Construction for Misc WWST
Replacements

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Engineering

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Final reconciliation amendment/ Change Order No. 6 to construction contract with Texas Standard
Construction in the net negative amount of (-$61,762.02) for Miscellaneous Wastewater
Replacements in Windsor Place and SE 10th/SE 11th Streets

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: W.O. 618.122.pdf

Recommendation -(signed) Acceptance letter-Windsor- SE 10-SE 11 WW.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
max

Title
Final reconciliation amendment/ Change Order No. 6 to construction contract with Texas Standard
Construction in the net negative amount of (-$61,762.02) for Miscellaneous Wastewater Replacements in
Windsor Place and SE 10th/SE 11th Streets

Presenter
Gabe Johnson, Director of Public Works and Romin Khavari, City Engineer

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On May 15, 2018 City Council approved a construction contract with Texas Standard Construction in the
amount of $668,648 for Miscellaneous Wastewater Replacements in Windsor Place and SE 10th/SE 11th
Streets; Material testing with Team Consultants in the amount of $7,166; In-house labor distribution in the
amount of $33,342; 5% contract contingency in the amount of $33,342; for a total project cost of $742,498.

Current Change order/Amendment No.6 provides for final quantity adjustments of 35,961.56 overruns and -
$97,723.58 underruns for a net negative amount of (-$61,762.02)

Change order/Amendment No.1 in a net negative amount of (- $29,000.53) provided for open-cut replacement
of 866 linear feet of 8”wastewater main in Windsor Place in lieu of trenchless installation.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10359, Version: 1

Change order/Amendment No.2 provided for time extension

Change order/Amendment No.3 in a net increase of $3,409.32 provided for sewer service and manhole
adjustments.

Change order/Amendment No. 4 in a net increase of $27,125.63 provided for sanitary sewer point repairs and
service adjustments.

Change order/Amendment No.5 provided for time extension

Construction of this project is complete

Financial Consideration
State statues require City Council approval of a change order when the cumulative cost of change orders
exceeds $50,000.00. No funding is required for this negative net change order/amendment No. 6 in the amount
of (-$61,762.02). Project funding was available in the Wastewater Capital Projects Fund (500692) WO #
01812203 (FY18 WWMP-POP)

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

60040 Books, Maps,Records $2,000 $1,166 $0 $1,166 $2,000

68540 Construction $1,073,079 $816 $0 $816 $1,073,079

68560 Eng/Con/Geo $56,261 $1 $0 $1 $56,261

68999 Labor $23,342 $0 $0 $0 $23,342

$0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

TOTAL $1,154,682 $1,983 $0 $1,983 $1,154,682

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

500692 / 01812203

FY18 WWMP-POP

$0.00



September 4, 2020 

Mr. Romin Khavari, P.E., CFM 
City Engineer 
City of Grand Prairie – Engineering Division 
300 W. Main Street 
Grand Prairie, Texas 75050 

RE: SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Wastewater Replacements in Windsor Palace and S.E 10th 
and 11th Street Work Order # 617.120 

Dear Mr. Khavari: 

As a follow up to the project walk through and completion of the punch list items for the 
above referenced project, we have performed an on-site walk through inspection of the project 
site.   

Based on the contractor’s information and my personal visits to the project site, they are in 
general conformance of the design plans prepared under my direction and seal.   The as-built 
plan set containing both CAD and pdf files have been provided for the City’s records. 

With this letter, I hereby request that the final letter of acceptance be issued for this project. 

Sincerely, 

George Fanous, P.E, 
Project Engineer 

cc:       Gabe Johnson, Public Works Director  
            Robert Barron Chief Engineering Inspector 
            David Watson Project Inspector  
            Maxine Snow, Financial analyst 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10373 Name: Supplemental Agreement for Lease of Railroad
Property for Parking

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Engineering

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Supplemental Agreement for Lease Audit No. TL 22749, Covering Use of Railroad Property at Grand
Prairie, Texas for one year with four one-year renewals; effective September 1, 2020 to February 28,
2021, rent is $6,500; Effective March 1, 2021, rent is $36,000 annually with a 2% increase cumulative
and compounded, for a total cumulative cost of $154,880

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 1182-80 Supplement City of Grand Prairie (006).pdf

20-10373 Expenditure Form

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Max

Title
Supplemental Agreement for Lease Audit No. TL 22749, Covering Use of Railroad Property at Grand Prairie,
Texas for one year with four one-year renewals; effective September 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021, rent is
$6,500; Effective March 1, 2021, rent is $36,000 annually with a 2% increase cumulative and compounded, for
a total cumulative cost of $154,880

Presenter
Gabe Johnson, Director of Public Works

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On May 19, 1999, the City of Grand Prairie and Union Pacific Railroad Company entered into a lease
agreement TL22749, folder 1182-80 for the lease of property along the railroad tracks for public parking. In the
past, the lease has been executed on a year to year basis.

At the current time, Staff is recommending a Supplemental Agreement with Union Pacific Railroad Company
allowing for a multi-year agreement for the current year and four additional years.

The current year effective September 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021, will be for $6,500.

Effective March 1, 2021, the City will pay $36,000 annually with a 2% increase cumulative and compounded.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10373, Version: 1

Approximate total of current request of $6,500 plus four additional years will be $154,880.

Not more than once every three years thereafter Union Pacific Railroad Company may re determine the rent. In
the event that they do re determine the rent, the City will be contacted of such change.

Financial Consideration
Funding for the current year's payment of $6,500 is available in the FY 2020/2021 Storm Water Utility Fund
(233010) 61630 (Rent/Land, Bldg, Facilities). Future year payments will be appropriated from approved
Operating Fund budgets.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



March 23, 2020 
Folder:  01182-80 

DWAYNE TYNER
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
1821 W. FREEWAY
GRAND PRAIRIE TX 75051 

RE:  Supplemental Agreement for Lease Audit No. TL22749, Covering Use of Railroad Property at 
Grand Prairie, Texas 

Dear Mr. Tyner: 

Pursuant to your request, enclosed please find the above-referenced Supplemental Agreement for your 
execution. 

Please return the following directly to my attention at the address below: 

1. TWO (2) ORIGINALS of the Agreement signed by the appropriate party.  If approved by the
Railroad Company, a fully-executed original will be returned to you for your records.

2. CHECK, with Folder No. 01182-80 written on the front, in the amount of Six Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($6,500.00) for prorated rental.

Thank you for working with us.  Please contact me with any questions.  

Sincerely, 

John S. Hertzler 
Senior Manager - Real Estate 
(402) 544-8558 
jshertzler@up.com 

Union Pacific Railroad    Real Estate    1400 Douglas Street    Stop 1690    Omaha, Nebraska 68179-1690    fx. (402) 501-0340 



 

 
 

Audit:   TL22749 
Folder: 01182-80 

 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT 

 
THIS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT is entered into on the _____ day of 

________________, 2020, between UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY (“Lessor”) and CITY 
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, a Texas corporation, whose address is 1821 W. Freeway, Grand Prairie, Texas 
75051 (“Lessee”). 
 
RECITALS: 
 
  By instrument dated May 19, 1999, Lessor and Lessee, or their predecessors in interest, entered 
into an agreement (“Basic Agreement”), identified as Audit No. TL22749, at Grand Prairie, Texas. 
 
AGREEMENT: 
 

IT IS AGREED between Lessor and Lessee to modify the Basic Agreement as follows: 
 
Article 1. EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
  This Supplemental Agreement is effective September 01, 2020. 
 
Article 2. SUBSTITUTION OF PRINT. 
 

The print dated January 16, 2020, attached as Exhibit 'A', shall be substituted for the print dated 
March 15, 1999, attached to the Basic Agreement. 
 
Article 3. RENT. 
 

A. Effective September 01, 2020, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor Six Thousand Five 
Hundred Dollars ($6,500.00) for the rental period from September 01, 2020 to February 28, 2021. 

 
B Effective March 01, 2021, Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor Thirty Six Thousand Two 

Hundred Dollars ($36,200.00) annually.  The rent shall be increased by Two Percent (2%) annually 
cumulative and compounded.   
 
 C. Not more than once every Three (3) years thereafter Lessor may redetermine the rent.  In 
the event that Lessor does redetermine the rent, Lessor shall notify Lessee of such change. 

Article 4.  AGREEMENT SUPPLEMENT. 
 

Nothing in this Supplemental Agreement shall be construed as amending or modifying the Basic 
Agreement unless specifically provided herein. 
 



 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Supplemental Agreement as of the day 
and year first written. 
 
UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY 
 
 

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 
 

 
 
By: ________________________________ 

 
 
By: _________________________________ 

Senior Manager - Real Estate Name: __________________________ 
Title: ___________________________ 

 
 
 
 
NOTE:   
 
 





CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 

OPERATING BUDGET EXPENDITURE INFORMATION 

 

 

 

 

 

FUND:   Stormwater Utility Fund 

     

AGENCY:   Public Works 

     

ACCOUNTING UNIT: 233010 

     

AVAILABLE: 61630 – Rent/Land, Buildings, Facilities $6,500 as of 

September 8, 2020 

     

STAFF CONTACT:  Gabe Johnson 

 

VENDOR NUMBER:  ___________________________________________ 

 

VENDOR NAME:  ___________________________________________ 

 

CONTINGENCY:  ___________________________________________ 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10381 Name: CCPD Board Members

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/9/2020 City Secretary

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Appointment/Reappointment of Crime Control Board Members

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cathy DiMaggio

Title
Appointment/Reappointment of Crime Control Board Members

Presenter
Cathy DiMaggio, City Secretary

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The following board members' terms expired 9-1-2020 and will need to be reappointed for a two-year term
ending 9/1/2022.

Greg Giessner
Mike Del Bosque
John Lopez
Jeff Wooldridge

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10343 Name: Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital
Improvement Projects Budget and authorizing the
city to participate in aerial spraying

Status:Type: Ordinance Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/28/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; and authorizing the City
Manager to enter into an interlocal agreement with Dallas County for aerial spraying for mosquitoes
for a one-year term

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20-10343 2021 Aerial Spraying xlsx.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Cindy Mendez

Title

Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; and authorizing the City
Manager to enter into an interlocal agreement with Dallas County for aerial spraying for mosquitoes for a one-
year term

Presenter

Cindy Mendez, Environmental Quality Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

This ordinance will allow the city to participate in aerial spraying in a timely manner if the Dallas County
Judge recommends spraying.

Financial Consideration

Funding for authorization for the City Manager to enter into an interlocal agreement with Dallas County for
aerial spraying for mosquitoes for a one year term, in the amount of $215,000, is available by approving an
ordinance transferring and appropriating from the unobligated fund balance in the Capital Reserve Capital
Projects Fund (402590) to WO #02109603 (FY21 Aerial Spraying for Mosquito Borne Disease).

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, THAT THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS BUDGET TRANSFER AND APPROPRIATE $215,000 FROM

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10343, Version: 1

THE UNOBLIGATED FUND BALANCE IN THE CAPITAL RESERVE CAPITAL PROJECTS
FUND (402590) TO WO #02109603 (FY21 AERIAL SPRAYING FOR MOSQUITO BORNE
DISEASE) AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY TO ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT WITH DALLAS COUNTY FOR AERIAL SPRAYING IN THE FY
2020/2021VECTOR SEASONS IF PROMULGATED BY THE DALLAS COUNTY JUDGE

WHEREAS,  the City of Grand Prairie has in the past and may have again this year West Nile Virus,
Zika, or other vector borne infection cases for which ground spraying is insufficient to
battle disease;

WHEREAS,  the vector index in Dallas County for vector borne infections could rise and  result in an
extreme outbreak of West Nile Virus, and;

WHEREAS, the Dallas County Judge may recommend that action be taken to initiate aerial spraying
activities to reduce the mosquito population which carries the disease, and;

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie does not possess adequate facilities to effectuate aerial spraying,
and;

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie has determined that extraordinary measures may be required to
alleviate the suffering of people and to protect or rehabilitate property.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. THAT THE Capital Improvement Projects Budget transfer and appropriate $215,000 from
the unobligated fund balance in the Capital Reserve Capital Project Fund (402590) to WO
#02109603 (FY21 Aerial Spraying for Mosquito Borne Disease).

SECTION 2.  THAT the City Council hereby authorizes the City Manager to enter into a contingent
aerial spraying contract in an amount not to exceed $215,000 with Dallas County.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE

Professional Services (61039) $0 $0 $215,000 $215,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

TOTAL $0 $0 $215,000 $215,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

402590/02109603

Aerial Spraying for Mosquito Borne Disease

$215,000.00



1+3

AMENDED

BUDGET

$215,000

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$0

$215,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10371 Name: Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital
Improvement Projects Budget; Street Maintenance
Sales Tax Program as outlined for Grand Prairie
streets, alleys, roadway resurfacing, pavement
markings. pavement leveling, professional services,
and engineeri

Status:Type: Ordinance Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Public Works

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; Street Maintenance
Sales Tax Program as outlined for Grand Prairie streets, alleys, roadway resurfacing, pavement
markings. pavement leveling, professional services, and engineering, utilizing approved price
agreements and service contracts

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 2021 SALES TAX STREET PROGRAM.pdf

CIP BUDGET SUMMARY FY21 SALES TAX.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Glenda C. Peterson, Street Operations Supervisor

Title

Ordinance appropriating funding in the Capital Improvement Projects Budget; Street Maintenance Sales Tax
Program as outlined for Grand Prairie streets, alleys, roadway resurfacing, pavement markings. pavement
leveling, professional services, and engineering, utilizing approved price agreements and service contracts

Presenter

Gabriel Johnson, Public Works Director

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

One of the primary missions of the Public Works Department, Street Maintenance Division, is to maintain the
City's streets in good condition to provide safe and comfortable riding surfaces. The total street system consists
of approximately 650 center lane miles of streets. However, the Street Maintenance Sales Tax program and
budgeted expenditures are targeted to residential roadways where maintenance can restore a roadway to a
higher standard and/or extend the useful life of the roadway or in limited instances a complete rebuild of the
residential street. The use of the 1/4 Cent Sales Tax for the street maintenance program is to fund the City's Hot
Mix Asphalt Overlay, Crack & Seal Coat Roadway Resurfacing, Asphalt Recycling, Concrete Curb/Gutter and
Panel Replacement, Pavement Leveling, Alley Improvement, Professional and Engineering Services.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10371, Version: 1

Prioritization of streets in this program is determined by customer complaints as well as City Council requests.
Please see the proposed program in the attachment.

As noted, the Sales Tax program targets residential streets. Arterial and Collectors (major roads) are generally
excluded from the Sales Tax Program in favor of a prioritization system determined by a pavement Condition
rating and Inventory Program developed by a consultant, which is used to assist in knowing where to spend
resources in the most cost-effective manner. This program determines how to extend the life of existing
pavement through targeted maintenance activities as well as determining when a complete rebuild of a roadway
is necessary. The goal is to keep the arterial and collectors with a PCI rating of 70 or above (rated on a scoring
system of 0-100). Funds for that program are budgeted separately in the Capital Improvements Program (CIP)
and the 2021 program is presented in a separate communication.

Financial Consideration

Funding for the Street Sales Tax projects is available by approving an ordinance transferring and appropriating
$10,440,129 from the unobligated fund balance in Street Sales Tax Maintenance Projects Fund (232010), WO
#02110501 (FY21 STMT Projects).

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,  THAT THE CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS BUDGET BY TRANSFER AND APPROPRIATE $10,440,129
FROM THE UNOBLIGATED FUND BALANCE IN THE STREET SALES TAX
MAINTENANCE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND (232010) TO WO #02110501 (FY21 STMT
PROJECTS)

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1.  THAT THE Capital Improvement Projects Budget transfer and appropriate $10,440,129
from the unobligated fund balance in the Street Sales Tax Maintenance Capital Projects Fund (232010)
TO WO #02110501 (FY21 STMT PROJECTS).

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



Proposed 2021 Sales Tax Program

STREETS

Curb & Gutter/ Asphalt Recycle San Antonio St SW 23rd St SW 19th St Clemson $600,000

Mill/Concrete Replacement Canadian Cir N Carrier Pkwy Austrian Rd Clemson $700,000

$1,300,000

Curb & Gutter/ Asphalt Recycle Bonham St NW 6th St N Carrier Pkwy Humphries $900,000

Concrete Replacement N Carrier Pkwy Hill St W Tarrant Rd Humphries $200,000

Concrete Replacement Jordan Dr NW 14th London Ln Humphries $400,000

$1,500,000

Concrete Replacement S Holiday Dr Wildflower Dr S Elm Dr Del Bosque $900,000

Mill/Concrete Replacement SW 3rd St W Phillips Ct Dicky Rd Del Bosque $600,000

$1,500,000

Mill/Concrete Replacement Pinoak Dr Robinson Rd W Crossland Blvd Swafford $1,500,000

Concrete Replacement Country Club Pl Country Club Cir Country Club Pl Swafford $200,000

$1,700,000

Concrete Replacement Oak Hollow Subdivision West of S GSW South of Bardin Lopez $500,000

Concrete Replacement Claremont Dr S Great Southwest Pkwy Endicott Dr Lopez $500,000

$1,000,000

Concrete Replacement Westchester Subdivisions East of S Carrier South of I -20 Wooldridge $500,000

Concrete Replacement Trailwood Subdivisions Robinson Rd Matthew Rd Wooldridge $500,000

$1,000,000

TOTAL $8,000,000
ALLEYS

Concrete Replacement 2020 Butterfield Trl Alley Matthew Rd Butterfield Trl Wooldridge $280,000

Concrete Replacement 1802 Wellington Alley Robinson Rd W Marshall Dr Swafford $130,000

Concrete Replacement 2422 Pecan Dr Alley Meadow Ln Meadow Ln Clemson $140,000

Concrete Replacement 802 Sonora Ct Alley Laredo Dr Laredo Dr Wooldridge $50,000

$600,000

Est FY 20 Sales Tax Projection $10,440,129

Contingency $500,000

Streets $8,000,000

Alley $600,000

Pavement Leveling $500,000

Roadway Striping $350,000

Roadway Surface Treatment $400,000

Engineering $90,129

$10,440,129



Fund/Activity Account:

Project Title:

Current Request:

1 2 3 2+3 1+3

ACCOUNT CURRENT AVAILABLE CURRENT REVISED AMENDED

DESCRIPTION BUDGET BALANCE REQUEST BALANCE BUDGET

Prof. Engineering (61041) $90,129 $90,129 $90,129

Streets, Road Maint. (63030) $8,000,000 $8,000,000 $8,000,000

Pavement Leveling (63031) $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Alley Repair/Maint. (63032) $600,000 $600,000 $600,000

Roadway Markings (63115) $350,000 $350,000 $350,000

Roadway Resurfacing (63215) $400,000 $400,000 $400,000

Contingency (65120) $500,000 $500,000 $500,000

TOTAL $0 $0 $10,440,129 $10,440,129 $10,440,129

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET SUMMARY

232010 / 02110501

FY 21 STMT PROJECTS

$10,440,129.00



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10319 Name: Unreasonable Acceleration / Prohibited Uses of a
MV in Parking Lots - Ordinance

Status:Type: Ordinance Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/21/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance amending Chapter 25, "Traffic", of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie by
adding new Section 25-6 "Unreasonable Acceleration" and Section 25-7 "Prohibited Uses of a Motor
Vehicle in a Parking Lot"; Providing a penalty; Providing a savings clause and a severability clause;
and providing an effective date upon passage and publication

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Ordinance amending Chapter 25, "Traffic", of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie by adding
new Section 25-6 "Unreasonable Acceleration" and Section 25-7 "Prohibited Uses of a Motor Vehicle in a
Parking Lot"; Providing a penalty; Providing a savings clause and a severability clause; and providing an
effective date upon passage and publication

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The Police Department continues to review and evaluate the various ordinances in the City of Grand Prairie
that provide for the safety and increased quality of life for all its citizens. The Department has found that the
safety of its citizens has been unreasonably placed in jeopardy due to the unsafe acceleration or other reckless
uses of motor vehicles on City streets, alleys, and parking lots. There is currently no law or ordinance in place
to allow for ticketing and fining of individuals who recklessly conduct themselves in this manner. An
ordinance prohibiting these particular reckless uses of motor vehicles in the City will help the Department
provide for safer streets through continuous education and enforcement.

Financial Consideration

None

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10319, Version: 1

Body

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 25, “TRAFFIC”, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF
THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS;  BY ADDING A NEW SECTION 25-6 "UNREASONABLE
ACCELERATION" AND SECTION 25-7 “PROHIBITED USES OF A MOTOR VEHICLE IN A
PARKING LOT”; PROVIDING A PENALTY; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE AND
PUBLICATION

WHEREAS, the City desires to protect the safety of patrons from unreasonable or unsafe acceleration or other
reckless uses of a motor vehicle in a street, alley, or parking lot and there is no law or ordinance in place to
allow for ticketing and fining for these actions.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That Chapter 25, “Traffic,” is hereby amended by adding a new Section 25-6 to read as follows:

“25-6. Unreasonable Acceleration.

(a) Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the meanings
ascribed to them in this subsection, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

For purposes of this section, the rate of acceleration is presumed to be unsafe or unreasonable if:

(1) The acceleration causes a tire or tires to spin such that there is a break in the traction between a tire
or tires and the street surface; and

(2) The acceleration is accomplished in such a manner as to cause:
a. A squealing or screeching sound by the tires; or
b. The throwing of sand or gravel by the tires of the vehicle; or
c. Any amount of smoke to be emitted; or
d. Residue on any portion of the roadway by any tire of the vehicle; or
e. Any portion of the vehicle to swerve or exit its lane of travel; or
f. Damage to any person or another vehicle or the property of another; or
g. All of the above.

(b) Offense. A person commits an offense if, while operating a motor vehicle, they accelerate the vehicle, by
any means at an unsafe or unreasonable rate of speed or in an unsafe manner as described in Subsection (a).

(c) Exception. It is a defense to prosecution under that, while operating a motor vehicle, a person accelerated
the vehicle by any means at an unsafe or unreasonable rate of speed or in an unsafe manner as described in
Subsection (a) if an emergency created the necessity for such operation.

(e) Evidence. The squealing or screeching sounds emitted by the tires, or the throwing of sand or gravel by the
tires, or both, shall constitute prima facie evidence of such unreasonable acceleration for purposes of this
chapter.”

SECTION 2. That Chapter 25, “Traffic,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, is
hereby amended by adding a new Section 25.7 to read as follows:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10319, Version: 1

“Section 25.7. Prohibited Uses of a Motor Vehicle in a Parking Lot.

(a) Offense. A person commits an offense if they, while operating a motor vehicle in a parking area:

(1) bring that motor vehicle to a sudden stop or rapidly accelerates said motor vehicle; or

(2) blow the horn of the vehicle in a manner calculated to disturb a person of ordinary sensibilities when
there is no reasonable necessity for the protection of a person or property; or

(3) hold a race or contest for speed with another motor vehicle or vehicles.”

SECTION 3. That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable in
accordance with Section 1-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

SECTION 4. That Chapter 25, “Traffic,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, as
amended, shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by this Ordinance.

SECTION 5. That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable and are governed by Section 1-4 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

SECTION 6. All ordinances or parts of ordinances not consistent or conflicting with the provisions of this
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  Provided that such repeal shall be only to the extent of such inconsistency and
in all other respects this Ordinance shall be cumulative of other ordinances regulating and governing the subject
matter covered in this Ordinance.

SECTION 7. That this Ordinance shall be and become effective immediately upon and after its passage and
publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ON THIS THE 1ST DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10374 Name: 2021 Authorized Positions

Status:Type: Ordinance Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 10864 to define the Police Department's authorized positions in
each classification for Fiscal Year 2021

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 10864 to define the Police Department's authorized positions in each
classification for Fiscal Year 2021

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The City of Grand Prairie has established a Police Department to provide the citizens of Grand Prairie a first
class public safety response to police emergencies and calls for service based on a Community Policing
philosophy.

Currently, the police department has 286 authorized Civil Service sworn positions consisting of two-hundred
and thirty-nine (239) Police Officers; thirty-two (32) Sergeants; nine (9) Lieutenants; two (2) Deputy Chiefs;
three (3) Assistant Chiefs, and one (1) Police Chief.

The Department will maintain the current level of staffing consisting of 286 authorized Civil Service sworn
positions, which will be allocated as two-hundred and thirty-nine (239) Police Officers; thirty-two (32)
Sergeants; nine (9) Lieutenants; two (2) Deputy Chiefs; three (3) Assistant Chiefs, and one (1) Police Chief.

Financial Consideration

No new positions in this budget year.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10374, Version: 1

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING ORDINANCE 10864
TO DEFINE THE NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED POSITIONS IN EACH CLASSIFICATION FOR
FISCAL YEAR 2021

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie has established a Police Department to provide the citizens of Grand
Prairie a first class public safety response to police emergencies and calls for service based on a Community
Policing philosophy; and

WHEREAS, the department currently has 286 authorized positions, consisting of 239 Police Officers, 32
Sergeants, 9 Lieutenants, 2 Deputy chiefs, 3 Assistant Chiefs, 1 Police Chief; and

WHEREAS, the continuation of this ordinance will be renewed annually during the budget process or as
needed; now therefore

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

Section 1. THAT the total authorized sworn police department positions for the fiscal year 2021 will remain
286, with 239 Police Officers, 32 Sergeants, 9 Lieutenants, 2 Deputy Chiefs, 3 Assistant Chiefs, and 1 Police
Chief.

Section 2. THAT this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage, approval and
publication and it is accordingly so ordained.

Section 3: THAT all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
15th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10369 Name: Breeding Ordinance

Status:Type: Agenda Item Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Animal Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance amending Chapter 5 "Animal Services," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand
Prairie, Texas, through the amendment of Sections 5-1 "Definitions," and 5-57 "Breeding of Cats and
Dogs" and the addition of Section 5-65 "Prohibited Sale of Cats or Dogs"; providing a Penalty Clause,
a Savings Clause and a Severability Clause; and providing an effective date of October 1, 2020 and
after publication

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lily Yap, Animal Services Manager

Title

Ordinance amending Chapter 5 "Animal Services," of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie,
Texas, through the amendment of Sections 5-1 "Definitions," and 5-57 "Breeding of Cats and Dogs" and the
addition of Section 5-65 "Prohibited Sale of Cats or Dogs"; providing a Penalty Clause, a Savings Clause and a
Severability Clause; and providing an effective date of October 1, 2020 and after publication

Presenter

Lily Yap, Animal Services Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

Section 5-57 of the Animal Services Chapter currently provides an offense related to unplanned breeding, but
provides no standards or expectations for planned breeding. This amendment updates some of the wording to
make the offense of unplanned breeding more clear.  It also establishes a threshold of planned breeding which
requires the breeder to obtain a permit.  Any person who breeds more than two litters or twelve cats or dogs in a
twelve month period will be required to obtain a permit as such breeding poses an increased risk of nuisance
and health and safety issues.  In addition, each animal which will be used for breeding must obtain a
registration certificate.  Registration certificates will not be issued unless a vet verifies it is safe for the animal
to be used for breeding.  The registration certificate must be renewed every year to ensure the continued health
of the animal.  Microchips will be required for animals which will be used for breeding to assist with the
identification of those animals.  This ordinance provides for oversight of Commercial Breeders by City of
Grand Prairie's Animal Services Department to reduce associated health, safety and welfare concerns. The

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10369, Version: 1

proposed permit and registration process will not involve a fee, but will place the responsibility on the
commercial breeder to ensure each animal being used for breeding is of proper health and pedigree.  Section 5-
1 adds definitions associated with the permitting and registration to the definitions currently provided in
Chapter 5.

Section 5-65 will be added to limit the methods of sale pertaining to dogs and cats.  These limitations will
promote accountability of breeders and traffic safety by prohibiting the sale of animals in places such as public
parking lots, the side of the street, and public right of ways.

Financial Consideration

None

Body

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5-ANIMAL SERVICES OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, THROUGH THE AMENDMENT OF
SECTIONS 5-1 “DEFINITIONS” AND 5-57 “BREEDING OF CATS AND DOG” AND THE
ADDITION OF SECTION 5-65 “PROHIBITED SALE OF CATS OR DOGS”; PROVIDING A
PENALTY CLAUSE, A SAVINGS CLAUSE AND A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE AND PUBLICATION

WHEREAS, the Code of Ordinances of the City provides for standards for the health, safety, and welfare of
animals; and

WHEREAS, the frequency with which cats or dogs in heat can become pregnant if exposed to the opposite sex
is high and can result in overpopulation

WHEREAS; overpopulation of cats or dogs can create a public nuisance and contribute to a lack of food or
other health and safety issues for the animals;

WHEREAS, animal breeding can pose danger to an animal if the animal is not of sufficient health;

WHEREAS, the ordinance modification is necessary to prevent overpopulation of cats and dogs and to protect
the health, safety and welfare of the animals being used for breeding and the general public;

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That Section 5-1 (Definitions) of Chapter 5, “Animal Services”, of the Code of Ordinances of the
City of Grand Prairie, Texas, is hereby amended by adding the following definitions:

“Commercial Breeder means a person who has been issued a Commercial Breeding Permit by the City of

Grand Prairie Animal Services.

Registered Breeding Animal means a female cat or dog which has been issued a registration certificate

authorizing the animal to be used for breeding by a Commercial Breeder. ”

SECTION 2. That Section 5-57 (Breeding of Cats or Dogs) of Chapter 5, “Animal Services”, of the Code of
Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, is hereby amended to read as follows:

“Section 5-57 - Breeding of Cats or Dogs

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10369, Version: 1

(a) Unplanned Breeding Prevention

(1) The owner of a female dog or female cat in heat commits an offense if he/she fails to confine
such animal in an anti-escape house, building, or enclosure in such a manner that the animal cannot
come into contact with another animal of the same species and opposite sex.  When a female cat or
dog is found to be pregnant, it is presumed the owner failed to confine the animal in accordance
with this provision. This provision does not apply to planned breeding.

(b) Commercial Breeding - Permit Required

(1) A person commits an offense if the person breeds cats or dogs to the extent that more than
twelve (12) cats, dogs, or combination thereof or two litters of cats, dogs, or combination thereof,
whichever is greater, are produced during any 12 consecutive month period without a Commercial
Breeding Permit issued by Grand Prairie Animal Services.

(2) It shall be an offense for a Commercial Breeder to breed or otherwise allow a female dog or
female cat in heat to come into contact with another animal of the same species and opposite sex
when said female is not an Registered Breeding Animal.  When female cat or dog which is owned
by a Commercial Breeder and not an Registered Breeding Animal is found to be pregnant, it is
presumed the Commercial Breeder violated this provision.

(3) An application for a Commercial Breeding Permit must be made on the form prescribed by the
Animal Services Manager and shall include, at a minimum, the following information:

a. Applicant’s name, telephone number, and address,

b. Address where any notices related to the permit are to be sent,

c.  Address of proposed location for breeding the dogs or cats,

d. A description of the species, breed, gender, age, and registration certificate number for
each female animal to be used for breeding,

e. A description of the species, breed, gender, and, if applicable, microchip number for each
female animal owned by the Commercial Breeder which will not be used for breeding,

f. A statement affirming that the applicant is familiar with the provisions of this chapter and
will maintain all animals in accordance with all applicable legal requirements

g. A statement affirming that, upon request by the department, the applicant will make the
animals, premises, equipment, and veterinary records available for inspection during
business hours,

h. A statement affirming the applicant will notify Grand Prairie Animal Services, as
required, of any additional female cats or dogs acquired during the term of the permit.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10369, Version: 1

(4) The Animal Services Manager shall not issue a Commercial Breeding Permit if:

a. operation of commercial breeding at the proposed location would violate established
zoning laws of the City of Grand Prairie,

b. the applicant or the applicant’s spouse has been found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to have cruelly treated an animal, used an animal for dog or cock fighting, or
been a spectator of dog or cock fighting, or

c. the applicant or the applicant’s spouse has been convicted of a violation of any provision
of this chapter on two (2) or more occasions within the past twelve months.

(5) Commercial Breeding permits should be issued within ten (10) business days of receipt of the
completed application including any supporting documentation required to be submitted.

(6) A permit issued under this section is issued to the individual applicant and is not transferable to
another person.  The permit shall be valid until revoked or surrendered.  Permits may be surrendered
providing written notification of the surrender to the Animal Services Manager.

(7) The Animal Services Manager may revoke a Commercial Breeding Permit in accordance with
this section upon providing the permit holder written notice via certified mail, return receipt
requested or electronic mail with delivery confirmation.

(8) A Commercial Breeder Permit may be revoked if,

a. the permit was issued in violation of this section;

b. the applicant or the applicant’s spouse has been found by a court of competent
jurisdiction to have cruelly treated an animal, used an animal for dog or cock fighting, or
been a spectator of dog or cock fighting, or

c. the applicant or the applicant’s spouse has been convicted of a violation of any provision
of this chapter on two (2) or more occasions within the past twelve months.

(9) Commercial Breeders acquiring a female cat or dog during the term of a permit are required to
notify Grand Prairie Animal Services of the acquisition by completing the form prescribed by the
Animal Services Manager.

(c) Planned Breeding -Registration Certificate Required

(1) Every female cat or dog to be used for breeding by a Commercial Breeder shall be microchipped
and registered as an Registered Breeding Animal prior to being used for breeding.

(2) The Registration Application shall be on the form prescribed by the Animal Services Manager
and, at a minimum, include:

a. The name of the animal,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10369, Version: 1

b. A description of the animal’s species, breed, gender, and age,

c. a signed, written letter of approval for breeding by a licensed veterinarian dated within
the last 90 days,

d. records of the animal’s microchip, including the unique microchip ID, and current rabies
vaccination, and

e. proof of registration with an approved national kennel club or license for breeding by
Texas Occupational Code

(3) A registration certificate authorizing the animal to be used for breeding should be issued within
(10) business days.

(4) The registration certificate shall authorize the animal to be used by a Commercial Breeder for
breeding for a period of one year from the date of issuance unless suspended or surrendered.  The
Commercial Breeder may notify Grand Prairie Animal Services in writing to surrender the
certificate.

(5) The registration certificate authorizing an animal to be used for breeding is automatically
suspended during any period in which a licensed veterinarian determines it is unsafe for the animal
to be used for breeding or the animal is subject to mandatory quarantine.

(d) Appealing Determination of Animal Services Manager

a. If the Animal Services Manager denies, fails to renew, revokes, or suspends any license, permit,
or other authorization provided in this section, the person holding such license, permit, or other
authorization may appeal the decision to the City Manager’s designee by filing a written appeal
with the Animal Services Manager within ten (10) business days of the notice being sent. The
Animal Services Manager shall forward the appeal and related documentation to the City
Manager’s designee.

b. The City Manager’s Designee shall hold a hearing within ten (10) business days of the appeal
being received and shall have five (5) business days after the conclusion of the hearing to render
a written decision. “

SECTION 3. That Section 5-65 (Prohibited Sale of Cats or Dogs) is hereby added  to Chapter 5, “Animal
Services”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and shall read as follows:

“ Section 5-65 - Prohibited Sale of Dogs or Cats

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person to sell, trade, barter, lease, rent, or give away, any animal on any
roadside, public right-of-way, commercial parking lot, park, or community center.

(b) It shall be unlawful for any manager, operator or property owner to allow the conduct described in
subsection (a) to occur on property owned or controlled by the manager, operator, or property owner.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 5 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10369, Version: 1

(c) This section shall not apply to a governmental entity or any tax-exempt non-profit organization
founded for the purpose of providing humane sanctuary or shelter for abandoned or unwanted animals
that have an active 501c3 nonprofit registration. “

SECTION 4. That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable in
accordance with Section 1-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

SECTION 5. That Chapter 5, “Animal Services”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie,
Texas, as amended, shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. That the terms and provisions of this Ordinance are severable and are governed by Section 1-4 of
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

SECTION 7. All ordinances or parts of ordinances not consistent or conflicting with the provisions of this
Ordinance are hereby repealed.  Provided that such repeal shall be only to the extent of such inconsistency and
in all other respects this Ordinance shall be cumulative of other ordinances regulating and governing the subject
matter covered in this Ordinance.

SECTION 8. That this Ordinance shall be and become effective October 1, 2020 and after publication.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 6 of 6

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10320 Name: ATF Violent Crimes Task Force MOU

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/21/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding / Interlocal
Agreement (MOU/ILA) with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) as it
relates to the Mid-Cities Violent Crime Task Force

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: MOU Grand Prairie Police Department GPPD July 22 2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into a Memorandum of Understanding / Interlocal Agreement
(MOU/ILA) with the Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) as it relates to the Mid-
Cities Violent Crime Task Force

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The City of Grand Prairie, situated in the center of the Dallas - Fort Worth Metroplex, remains a vitally
important collaborative partner in the regional effort to investigate and enforce local and federal crimes that
inherently lend themselves to the propagation of violent crimes. Law Enforcement, particularly criminal
investigations, often extends beyond the boundaries of the City limits. It is, therefore, important that local,
state, and federal agencies mutually cooperate to effectively serve and protect their respective constituents. The
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives has invited the Grand Prairie Police Department to join
this collaborative effort known as the Mid-Cities Violent Crime Task Force.

The primary purpose of this Task Force will be to perform activities and duties that include, but are not limited
to investigating; firearms related violent crimes, firearms trafficking, and conducting undercover operations
where appropriate to result in effective prosecution before the courts of the United States and the State of
Texas.

Vernon’s Texas Statues and Codes Annotated (VTCA), Local Government Code 791, The Texas Interlocal

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10320, Version: 1

Vernon’s Texas Statues and Codes Annotated (VTCA), Local Government Code 791, The Texas Interlocal
Cooperation Act, provides that any one or more local governmental entities may contract with each other for
the performance of governmental functions and for the joint use of facilities or services for police protection
and for the promotion and protection of the health and welfare of the inhabitants of this State and the mutual
benefit of the parties.

The Grand Prairie Police Department along with other local law enforcement agencies in the Dallas - Fort
Worth Metropolitan area will benefit from the collaborative effort with the ATF in investigating and resolving
violent criminal activities that occur within the area.

Financial Consideration

None

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF
UNDERSTANDING / INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT (MOU/ILA) WITH THE BUREAU OF
ALCOHOL, TOBACCO, FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES (ATF) AS IT RELATES TO THE MID-
CITIES VIOLENT CRIME TASK FORCE

WHEREAS, The Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) has invited the Grand Prairie
Police Department to participate and collaborate in the Mid-Cities Violent Crimes Task Force.

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie, which is centrally located within the Dallas - Fort Worth Metropolitan
area, wishes to participate in a Memorandum of Understanding / Interlocal Agreement (MOU/ILA) with the
Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) as it relates to the Mid-Cities Violent Crime Task
Force.

WHEREAS, the Vernon’s Texas Statues and Codes Annotated, Government Code, 791, the Texas Interlocal
Cooperation Act, provides for such an agreement between two or more local governmental agencies for the
joint use of facilities and services for police protection and the promotion and protection of the health and
welfare of the inhabitants of the State of Texas and the mutual benefit of both parties;

WHEREAS, the City is not responsible for any cost associated with this mutual access and benefit.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS, THAT

SECTION 1: the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, does hereby authorize the City Manager to
enter into a mutual Memorandum of Understanding / Interlocal Agreement (MOU/ILA) with the Bureau of
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) as it relates to the Mid-Cities Violent Crime Task Force.

SECTION 2: this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS
THIS 1st DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10320, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 1 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN 

THE BUREAU OF ALCOHOL, TOBACCO, FIREARMS AND EXPLOSIVES 

And 

THE GRAND PRARIE POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between the Bureau of 
Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) and the Grand Prairie Police Department 
(GPPD) as it relates to the Mid-Cities Violent Crime Task Force (herein referred to as the “Task 
Force”). 

AUTHORITIES 

Offenses investigated and enforced pursuant to this MOU are those falling within ATF’s 
jurisdiction, including 28 U.S.C. § 599A; 28 CFR Part 0, Subpart W; 18 U.S.C. §§ 921 et. seq.; 
26 U.S.C. §§ 5861 et. seq.; and 18 U.S.C. § 3051. 

PURPOSE 

The Task Force will perform the activities and duties described below: 

a. Investigate firearms related violent crime 
b. Gather and report intelligence data relating to trafficking in firearms 
c. Investigate firearms trafficking 
d. Conduct undercover operations where appropriate and engage in other traditional 
methods of investigation in order that the Task Force's activities will result in effective 
prosecution before the courts of the United States and the State of Texas. 

MEASUREMENT OF SUCCESS 

The success of this initiative will be measured by the participating agencies willingness to share 
certain information, (i.e. crime statistics) for the purpose of measuring the success of the task 
force as well as its performance. 

Core Functions: 

A. Firearms Criminal Possession and Use 
B. Criminal Groups and Gangs 
C. Illegal Firearms Trafficking 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 2 
 

Performance Goal Statement: 

A. Reduce the risk to public safety caused by criminal possession and use of firearms  
B. Reduce the risk to public safety caused by criminal organizations and gangs 
C. Reduce the risk to public safety caused by illegal firearms trafficking 

Strategic Objectives: 

A. Interdict and prevent the criminal use of firearms 
B. Identify, disrupt and dismantle violent gangs and criminal organizations emphasizing 

the use of state and local intelligence to identify the worst of the worst offenders 
C. Interdict and prevent illegal firearms trafficking 
D. Share technology such as NIBIN and E Trace 
E. Share intelligence with state and local law enforcement 

PHYSICAL LOCATION 

Officers/troopers/agents assigned to this Task Force by their employer shall be referred to as 
Special Deputies (SDs).  SDs will be assigned to the ATF Dallas Group II Field Office and will 
be located at the Grand Prairie Police Department. 

SUPERVISION AND CONTROL  

The day-to-day supervision and administrative control of SDs will be the mutual responsibility 
of the participants, with the ATF Special Agent in Charge or his/her designee having operational 
control over all operations related to this Task Force.   

Each SD shall remain subject to their respective agencies' policies, and shall report to their 
respective agencies regarding matters unrelated to this agreement/task force.  With regard to 
matters related to the Task Force, SDs will be subject to Federal law and Department of 
Justice (DOJ) and ATF orders, regulations and policy, including those related to standards 
of conduct, sexual harassment, equal opportunity issues and Federal disclosure laws. 

Failure to comply with this paragraph could result in a SD’s dismissal from the Task Force. 

PERSONNEL, RESOURCES AND SUPERVISION 

To accomplish the objectives of the Task Force, ATF will assign a minimum of one (1) agent 
from the Dallas Group II Field Office to the Task Force.  ATF will also, subject to the 
availability of funds, provide necessary funds and equipment to support the activities of the 
ATF Special Agents and officers assigned to the Task Force.  This support may include: office 
space, office supplies, travel funds, funds for the purchase of evidence and information, 
investigative equipment, training, and other support items. 

Each participating agency agrees to make available to their assigned task members any 
equipment ordinarily assigned for use by that agency.  In the event ATF supplies equipment 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 3 
 

(which may include vehicles, weapons or radios), SDs must abide by any applicable ATF 
property orders or policy, and may be required to enter into a separate agreement for their use. 

To accomplish the objectives of the Task Force, the GPPD agrees to detail a minimum of two (2) 
part-time SDs to the Task Force for a period of not less than two (2) years.  

All SDs shall qualify with their respective firearms by complying with ATF’s Firearms and 
Weapons Policy.   

SECURITY CLEARANCES  

All SDs will undergo a security clearance and background investigation, and ATF shall bear the 
costs associated with those investigations. SDs must not be the subject of any ongoing 
investigation by their department or any other law enforcement agency, and past behavior or 
punishment, disciplinary, punitive or otherwise, may disqualify one from eligibility to join the 
Task Force.  ATF has final authority as to the suitability of SDs for inclusion on the Task Force. 

DEPUTATIONS  

ATF, as the sponsoring Federal law enforcement agency, may request at its sole discretion that 
the participating agency’s SDs be deputized by the U.S. Marshals Service to extend their 
jurisdiction, to include applying for and executing Federal search and arrest warrants, and 
requesting and executing Federal grand jury subpoenas for records and evidence involving 
violations of Federal laws.  Such requests will be made on an individual basis as determined by 
ATF. 

The participating agencies agree that any Federal authority that may be conferred by a deputation 
is limited to activities supervised by ATF and will terminate when this MOU is terminated or 
when the deputized SDs leave the Task Force, or at the discretion of ATF. 

ASSIGNMENTS, REPORTS AND INFORMATION SHARING 

An ATF supervisor or designee will be empowered with designated oversight for investigative 
and personnel matters related to the Task Force and will be responsible for opening, monitoring, 
directing and closing Task Force investigations in accordance with ATF policy and the 
applicable United States Attorney General’s Guidelines. 

Assignments will be based on, but not limited to, experience, training and performance, in 
addition to the discretion of the ATF supervisor.   

All investigative reports will be prepared utilizing ATF’s investigative case management system, 
(N-Force) utilizing ATF case report numbers.  The participating agency will share investigative 
reports, findings, intelligence, etc., in furtherance of the mission of this agreement, to the fullest 
extent allowed by law.  For the purposes of uniformity, there will be no duplication of reports, 
but rather a single report prepared by a designated individual which can be duplicated as 
necessary.  Every effort should be made to document investigative activity on ATF Reports of 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 4 
 

Investigation (ROI), unless otherwise agreed to by ATF and the participating agency.  This 
section does not preclude the necessity of individual SDs to complete forms required by their 
employing agency.  

Information will be freely shared among the SDs and ATF personnel with the understanding that 
all investigative information will be kept strictly confidential and will only be used in furtherance 
of criminal investigations.  No information gathered during the course of the Task Force, to 
include informal communications between SDs and ATF personnel, may be disseminated to any 
third party, non-task force member by any task force member without the express permission of 
the ATF Special Agent in Charge or his/her designee. 

Any public requests for access to the records or any disclosures of information obtained by task 
force members during Task Force investigations will be handled in accordance with applicable 
statutes, regulations, and policies pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act and the Privacy 
Act and other applicable federal and/or state statutes and regulations. 

INVESTIGATIVE METHODS 

The parties agree to utilize Federal standards pertaining to evidence handling and electronic 
surveillance activities to the greatest extent possible.  However, in situations where state or local 
laws are more restrictive than comparable Federal law, investigative methods employed by state 
and local law enforcement agencies shall conform to those requirements, pending a decision as 
to a venue for prosecution. 

The use of other investigative methods (search warrants, interceptions of oral communications, 
etc.) and reporting procedures in connection therewith will be consistent with the policy and 
procedures of ATF.  All Task Force operations will be conducted and reviewed in accordance 
with applicable ATF and Department of Justice policy and guidelines.   

None of the parties to this MOU will knowingly seek investigations under this MOU that would 
cause a conflict with any ongoing investigation of an agency not party to this MOU.  It is 
incumbent upon each participating agency to notify its personnel regarding the Task Force’s 
areas of concern and jurisdiction.  All law enforcement actions will be coordinated and 
cooperatively carried out by all parties to this MOU. 

INFORMANTS 

ATF guidelines and policy regarding the operation of informants and cooperating witnesses will 
apply to all informants and cooperating witnesses directed by SDs. 

Informants developed by SDs may be registered as informants of their respective agencies for 
administrative purposes and handling.  The policies and procedures of the participating agency 
with regard to handling informants will apply to all informants that the participating agency 
registers.  In addition, it will be incumbent upon the registering participating agency to maintain 
a file with respect to the performance of all informants or witnesses it registers.  All information 
obtained from an informant and relevant to matters within the jurisdiction of this MOU will be 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 5 
 

shared with all parties to this MOU.  The registering agency will pay all reasonable and 
necessary informant expenses for each informant that a participating agency registers. 

DECONFLICTION 

Each participating agency agrees that the deconfliction process requires the sharing of certain 
operational information with the Task Force, which, if disclosed to unauthorized persons, could 
endanger law enforcement personnel and the public.  As a result of this concern, each 
participating agency agrees to adopt security measures set forth herein: 

a. Each participating agency will assign primary and secondary points of contact. 
b. Each participating agency agrees to keep its points of contact list updated. 

The points of contact for this Task Force are: 

ATF:  ATF Group Supervisor Chris Smith 

Participating Agency:   Grand Prairie Police Department Lt. Michael Fleming 

EVIDENCE 

Evidence shall be maintained by the lead agency having jurisdiction in the court system intended 
for prosecution.  Evidence generated from investigations initiated by a SD or ATF special agent 
intended for Federal prosecution will be placed in the ATF designated vault, using the 
procedures found in ATF orders. 

All firearms seized by a SD must be submitted for fingerprint analysis and for a National 
Integrated Ballistics Information Network (NIBIN) examination.  Once all analyses are 
completed, all firearms seized under Federal law shall be placed into the ATF designated vault 
for proper storage.  All firearms information/descriptions taken into ATF custody must be 
submitted to ATF’s National Tracing Center.  

JURISDICTION/PROSECUTIONS 

Cases will be reviewed by the ATF Special Agent in Charge or his/her designee in consultation 
with the participating agency and the United States Attorney’s Office and appropriate State’s 
attorney offices, to determine whether cases will be referred for prosecution to the U.S. 
Attorney’s Office or to the relevant State’s attorney’s office.  This determination will be based 
upon which level of prosecution will best serve the interests of justice and the greatest overall 
benefit to the public.  Any question that arises pertaining to prosecution will be resolved through 
discussion among the investigative agencies and prosecuting entities having an interest in the 
matter. 

In the event that a state or local matter is developed that is outside the jurisdiction of ATF or it is 
decided that a case will be prosecuted on the state or local level, ATF will provide all relevant 
information to state and local authorities, subject to Federal law.  Whether to continue 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 6 
 

investigation of state and local crimes is at the sole discretion of the state or local participating 
agency. 

USE OF FORCE 

All fulltime SDs will comply with ATF and the Department of Justice’s (DOJ’s) use of force 
policies, unless a SDs agency’s Use of Force policy is more restrictive, in which case the SD 
may use their respective agency’s use of force policy.  SDs must be briefed on ATF’s and DOJ’s 
use of force policy by an ATF official, and will be provided with a copy of such policy.   

MEDIA 

Media relations will be handled by ATF and the U.S. Attorney’s Office’s public information 
officers in coordination with each participating agency.  Information for press releases will be 
reviewed and mutually agreed upon by all participating agencies, who will take part in press 
conferences.  Assigned personnel will be informed not to give statements to the media 
concerning any ongoing investigation or prosecution under this MOU without the concurrence of 
the other participants and, when appropriate, the relevant prosecutor’s office.   

All personnel from the participating agencies shall strictly adhere to the requirements of Title 26, 
United States Code, § 6103.  Disclosure of tax return information and tax information acquired 
during the course of investigations involving National Firearms Act (NFA) firearms as defined in 
26 U.S.C., Chapter 53 shall not be made except as provided by law. 

SALARY/OVERTIME COMPENSATION  

During the period of the MOU, participating agencies will provide for the salary and 
employment benefits of their respective employees.  All participating agencies will retain control 
over their employees’ work hours, including the approval of overtime. 

ATF may have funds available to reimburse overtime to the State and Local SD’s agency, 
subject to the guidelines of the Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture Fund.  This funding would 
be available under the terms of a memorandum of agreement (MOA) established pursuant to the 
provisions of 28 U.S.C. section 524.  The participating agency agrees to abide by the applicable 
Federal law and policy with regard to the payment of overtime from the Department of Justice 
Asset Forfeiture Fund.  The participating agency must be recognized under State law as a law 
enforcement agency and their officers/ troopers/investigators as sworn law enforcement officers.  
If required or requested, the participating agency shall be responsible for demonstrating to the 
Department of Justice that its personnel are law enforcement officers for the purpose of overtime 
payment from the Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture Fund.  This MOU is not a funding 
document. 

In accordance with these provisions and any MOA on asset forfeiture, the ATF Special Agent in 
Charge or designee shall be responsible for certifying reimbursement requests for overtime 
expenses incurred as a result of this agreement. 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 7 
 

AUDIT INFORMATION 

Operations under this MOU are subject to audit by ATF, the Department of Justice’s Office of 
the Inspector General, the Government Accountability Office, and other Government-designated 
auditors.  Participating agencies agree to permit such audits and to maintain all records relating 
to Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture Fund payments for expenses either incurred during the 
course of this Task Force or for a period of not less than three (3) years and, if an audit is being 
conducted, until such time that the audit is officially completed, whichever is greater. 

FORFEITURES/SEIZURES  

All assets seized for administrative forfeiture will be seized and forfeited in compliance with the 
rules and regulations set forth by the U.S. Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture guidelines.  
When the size or composition of the item(s) seized make it impossible for ATF to store it, any of 
the participating agencies having the storage facilities to handle the seized property agree to store 
the property at no charge and to maintain the property in the same condition as when it was first 
taken into custody.  The agency storing said seized property agrees not to dispose of the property 
until authorized to do so by ATF.   

The MOU provides that proceeds from forfeitures will be shared, with sharing percentages based 
upon the U.S. Department of Justice Asset Forfeiture policies on equitable sharing of assets, such 
as determining the level of involvement by each participating agency.  Task Force assets seized 
through administrative forfeiture will be distributed in equitable amounts based upon the number 
of full-time persons committed by each participating agency.  Should it become impossible to 
separate the assets into equal shares, it will be the responsibility of all the participating agencies 
to come to an equitable decision.  If this process fails and an impasse results, ATF will become 
the final arbitrator of the distributive shares for the participating agencies. 

DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

In cases of overlapping jurisdiction, the participating agencies agree to work in concert to 
achieve the Task Force’s goals and objectives.  The parties to this MOU agree to attempt to 
resolve any disputes regarding jurisdiction, case assignments and workload at the lowest level 
possible. 

LIABILITY  

ATF acknowledges that the United States is liable for the wrongful or negligent acts or 
omissions of its officers and employees, including SDs, while on duty and acting within the 
scope of their federal employment, to the extent permitted by the Federal Tort Claims Act. 

Claims against the United States for injury or loss of property, personal injury, or death arising or 
resulting from the negligent or wrongful act or omission of any Federal employee while acting 
within the scope of his or her office or employment are governed by the Federal Tort Claims Act, 
28 U.S.C. sections 1346(b), 2672-2680 (unless the claim arises from a violation of the 



ATF JLEO Task Force MOU Page 8 
 

Constitution of the United States, or a violation of a statute of the United States under which 
other recovery is authorized). 

Except as otherwise provided, the parties agree to be solely responsible for the negligent or 
wrongful acts or omissions of their respective employees and will not seek financial 
contributions from the other for such acts or omissions.  Legal representation by the United 
States is determined by the United States Department of Justice on a case-by-case basis.  ATF 
cannot guarantee the United States will provide legal representation to any State or local law 
enforcement officer. 

Liability for any negligent or willful acts of any agent or officer undertaken outside the terms of 
this MOU will be the sole responsibility of the respective agent or officer and agency involved. 

DURATION  

This MOU shall remain in effect until it is terminated in writing (to include electronic mail and 
facsimile).  All participating agencies agree that no agency shall withdraw from the Task Force 
without providing ninety (90) days written notice to other participating agencies.  If any 
participating agency withdraws from the Task Force prior to its termination, the remaining 
participating agencies shall determine the distributive share of assets for the withdrawing agency, 
in accordance with Department of Justice guidelines and directives.   

The MOU shall be deemed terminated at the time all participating agencies withdraw and ATF 
elects not to replace such members, or in the event ATF unilaterally terminates the MOU upon 
90 days written notice to all the remaining participating agencies. 

MODIFICATIONS  

This agreement may be modified at any time by written consent of all participating agencies.  
Modifications shall have no force and effect unless such modifications are reduced to writing and 
signed by an authorized representative of each participating agency. 

SIGNATURES 
 
 
 
 
_______________________/___________  ___________________/_________ 
Daniel Scesney          Date  Jeffery C. Boshek     Date  
Chief       Special Agent in Charge, ATF  
Grand Prairie Police Department   Dallas Field Division 

07/28/2020



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10344 Name: TCAP PSA and Gexa CESA

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/30/2020 City Attorney

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement with the Texas
Coalition for Affordable Power ("TCAP") and a Commercial Electric Service Agreement with Gexa
Energy, and providing an effective date

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Mark Dempsey

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a Professional Service Agreement with the Texas Coalition
for Affordable Power ("TCAP") and a Commercial Electric Service Agreement with Gexa Energy, and
providing an effective date

Presenter

Mark Dempsey - Deputy City Attorney

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The City is a member of the Texas Coalition for Affordable Power (TCAP), which is made up of over 160

Texas cities that aggregate their electric power needs in order to use the increased size of their requirements to

obtain better pricing from suppliers for its members.  The City is currently in the third year of a five-year fixed

price contract for its electric power.  The contract expires on  December 31, 2022.

TCAP has traditionally gone to the market and negotiated with power suppliers to get the best deal possible for

its members, after which each individual city has signed the same power supply contract with the supplier for a

fixed number of years.  However, TCAP itself has not actually made any power purchases on behalf of the

member cities.  It has merely arranged the deal.

While TCAP will continue to provide an option for a fixed price contract, it is proposing a new approach to

purchasing power on behalf of cities after the current contract expires that it believes will provide lower rates to

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10344, Version: 1

its members.  If the City elects to participate, it will need to sign a professional services agreement with TCAP

that actually gives it the authority to make power purchases for the City.  It will also require the City to execute

a Commercial Electric Services Agreement with the power supplier - Gexa Energy.

TCAP refers to the new purchasing approach as the Strategic Hedging Program ("SHP"), under which it will

buy future supplies on or near a monthly basis, thereby eliminating the risk premiums suppliers add to long

term fixed rate electric contracts to account for future market uncertainty.  In short, the risk premium acts as

insurance for the supplier against the possibility that its costs increase in the future - and the members cities pay

that premium which is rolled into the fixed rate for the term of the contract.  TCAP's management, consultants,

and legal advisors believe that money can be saved by getting away from long-term fixed price contracts and

using a short-term market driven auction process.

In order to make purchases for the member cities under the Strategic Hedging Program, cities must grant TCAP

the authority to do so.  That authority is supplied through the Professional Services Agreement if approved by

Council.  In addition, a Commercial Electric Services Agreement with the City's retail electric provider, Gexa,

is necessary because Texas law requires a retail purchaser to purchase from a retail electric provider.  Those are

the documents which are the subject matter of this agenda item.

A significant feature of the SHP is that the City has the option, twice a year, to terminate participation in SHP

and convert to a fixed price contract.  If it appears that the market is destabilizing and SHP is no longer a viable

approach, TCAP will advise participating member cities well in advance to allow cities to return to a fixed price

contract.

Financial Consideration

NA

Body

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE TEXAS AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH the TEXAS
COALITION FOR AFFORDABLE POWER ("TCAP") AND A COMMERCIAL ELECTRIC
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GEXA ENERGY FOR POWER TO BE PROVIDED ON AND
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2023, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie is a member of Texas Coalition For Affordable Power, Inc. (“TCAP”), a
non-profit, political subdivision corporation of the State of Texas; and

WHEREAS, TCAP has previously arranged for the City to purchase power through Gexa Energy with a
contract set to expire December 31, 2022; and

WHEREAS, TCAP has designed a new procurement strategy that will involve TCAP initially committing to
purchase power two years in advance of delivery on behalf of its members who desire participation in a
Strategic Hedging Program (“SHP”) that will involve a series of monthly competitive auctions; and

WHEREAS, the Professional Services Agreement (“PSA”) with TCAP will specify the services and benefits to
members of TCAP and provide TCAP with specific authority to procure power in the wholesale market on
behalf of members who choose to participate in the SHP; and

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10344, Version: 1

WHEREAS, approval of the PSA is a necessary, but not sufficient, prerequisite to participation in the SHP; and

WHEREAS, the PSA is a relational contract that defines services provided by TCAP to members regardless of
whether a member decides to commit to the SHP; and

WHEREAS, the industry-standard retail contract is a Commercial Electric Service Agreement (“CESA”)
offered by a Retail Electric Provider (“REP”); and

WHEREAS, TCAP has negotiated modifications to the current CESA between the City and Gexa Energy to
reflect participation in the SHP; and

WHEREAS, the CESA that will facilitate participation in the SHP effective for power deliveries in and beyond
2023 will need to be approved and signed prior to October 1, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the City desires to participate in the SHP.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That the City Manager is authorized to execute a Professional Services Agreement with TCAP
and a Commercial Electric Services Agreement with Gexa Energy, and send the agreements to TCAP, 15455
Dallas Parkway, Ste 600, Addison, TX 75001.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10357 Name: CARES SCBA for EMS

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/3/2020 Fire

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution ratifying and authorizing the acceptance of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
Act (CARES) Funding and authorizing $211,860.04 to be expended for the purpose of purchasing
Public Safety Equipment (28 self-contained breathing apparatus); Approve the one time purchase for
the 28 SCBA's from Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. through a national interlocal with BuyBoard.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A- Sept 15.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Mike Joy, Senior Financial Analyst

Title
Resolution ratifying and authorizing the acceptance of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act

(CARES) Funding and authorizing $211,860.04 to be expended for the purpose of purchasing Public Safety

Equipment (28 self-contained breathing apparatus); Approve the one time purchase for the 28 SCBA's from

Municipal Emergency Services, Inc. through a national interlocal with BuyBoard.

Presenter
Robert Fite, Fire Chief

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
Dallas County Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) funds have been applied for and
are available to the City of Grand Prairie.  The City has been approved to receive CARES funds from Dallas
County.  CARES funds are for necessary expenditures due to the COVID19 Public Health Emergency which
were not accounted for in the City’s budget as of March 27, 2020.  The expenditures referenced in Exhibit “A”
are believed by staff to be necessary due to the Public Health Emergency and appear to qualify as an authorized
expenditure based upon the most recent guidance from the Department of Treasury.  Approval from Dallas
County has been sought and granted.  City staff is seeking authorization to accept the funding and expend it for
the purposes and amounts provided in Exhibit “A” for a total of $211,860.04.

This particular request is for emergency medical service initiatives to mitigate and respond to COVID19.
Specifically, the Grand Prairie Fire Department currently does not carry any self-contained breathing apparatus

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10357, Version: 1

(SCBA's) on their ambulances. The paramedics on these ambulances are the ones at highest risk for exposure to
any illness virus or bacteria, due to the close patient contact, enclosed working environment, and length of time
spent with patient. Even with full PPE, mask, gown, gloves and eye protection, these personnel are at high risk
due to medical procedures that cause aerosolization from the patient's airway, and work environment.
Aeroesolization is the most dangerous and contagious form of exposure to protect our personnel from. With the
addition of (2) SCBA's on each ambulance for the Grand Prairie Fire Department, we can fully protect each
paramedic from exposure to patients with any highly contagious disease, virus, or infection. Grand Prairie Fire
currently has 14 ambulances and would like to purchase a total of 28 SCBA's since each ambulance is staffed
with two paramedics.

BuyBoard contract# 603-20 was effective April 1, 2020 and set to expire March 31, 2021 with two possible one
-year renewals remaining.

Financial Consideration
There is no cash match requirement for this funding source

Body
RESOLUTION RATIFYING AND/OR AUTHORIZING THE ACCEPTANCE OF CORONAVIRUS

AID, RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT (CARES) FUNDING AND AUTHORIZING

$211,860.04 TO BE EXPENDED FOR THE PURPOSES OF PURCHASING SAFETY EQUIPMENT IN

RESPONSE TO COVID-19

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie has been allocated approximately $7,174,420 from Dallas County in
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) funding;

WHEREAS, this funding allows the City of Grand Prairie to obtain reimbursement or otherwise provides
funding for necessary expenditures due to the COVID19 Public Health Emergency which were not accounted
for in the City’s budget as of March 27, 2020;

WHEREAS, the items/expenditures outlined in Exhibit “A” are necessary due to the COVID19 Public Health
Emergency and were not accounted for in the City’s budget as of March 27, 2020;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. The City Manager or designee is hereby authorized to apply for and accept Dallas County
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES) funds for the amounts and purposes in Exhibit
“A” and entering into contract(s) to expend the funds. Said expenses must be incurred, in accordance with
federal CARES fund guidance, between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 2020

SECTION 2. This resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 15th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



EXHIBIT A – AUTHORIZED AND NECESSARY CARES FUND PROJECTS 

 

Item Amount Authorized Purpose(s) 

28 SCBA's to be distributed among 
14 ambulances (Fire Department) 

$211,860.04 
Respond directly to COVID and mitigate the spread of 
COVID-19 by meeting the health needs of paramedics 

Total Authorized $211,860.04  

 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10367 Name: Master Interlocal with the City of Celina

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Purchasing

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a master interlocal purchasing agreement
between the City of Grand Prairie and the City of Celina, TX

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 20-10367 Resolution form Celina

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Angi Mize

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a master interlocal purchasing agreement between the City
of Grand Prairie and the City of Celina, TX

Presenter

Bryce Davis, Purchasing Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, also known as the Inter-local Cooperation Contracts Act,
authorizes all local governments to contract with each other to perform governmental functions or services
including administrative functions normally associated with the operation of government such as purchasing of
necessary equipment, supplies and services.

The City of Celina, Texas and the City of Grand Prairie would like to enter into a master inter-local agreement
that would authorize each to utilize current active and future contracts awarded by the other entity.

The supplier for each contract shall bill the entity using the contract directly for all goods and services
purchased and each entity shall be responsible for payments and ensuring the supplier's compliance with all
conditions of the agreement.

Financial Consideration

None

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10367, Version: 1

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO EXECUTE A MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF
CELINA, TEXAS

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, approves the terms and conditions of the
Interlocal Purchasing Agreement between the City of Celina, Texas providing for a cooperative purchasing
program for goods and services; designating the Purchasing Manager or his designee, as the official
representative for the City of Grand Prairie; and

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, pursuant to the authority granted under Section 271.101 to
271.102 of the Local Government Code, desires to participate in the described purchasing program, and is of
the opinion that participation in this program will be highly beneficial to the taxpayers through anticipated
savings to be realized;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. THAT the Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City of Celina, Texas is found to be
acceptable and in the best interest of the City of Grand Prairie and its citizens and is hereby
approved.

SECTION 2. THAT the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement hereby approved on behalf of
the City and that the Purchasing Manager or his designee is hereby designated to act for the City
of Grand Prairie in all matters relating to Cooperative Purchasing Agreement including the
designation of specific contracts in which the City of Grand Prairie desires to participate.

SECTION 3. THAT this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A 

MASTER INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT WITH THE CITY OF CELINA, 

TEXAS 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, approves the terms and 

conditions of the Interlocal Purchasing Agreement between the City of Celina, Texas 

providing for a cooperative purchasing program for goods and services; designating the 

Purchasing Manager or his designee, as the official representative for the City of Grand 

Prairie; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, pursuant to the authority granted under 

Section 271.101 to 271.102 of the Local Government Code, desires to participate in the 

described purchasing program, and is of the opinion that participation in this program will 

be highly beneficial to the taxpayers through anticipated savings to be realized; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS 

 

SECTION 1: THAT the Cooperative Purchasing Agreement with the City of Celina, 

Texas is found to be acceptable and in the best interest of the City of Grand 

Prairie and its citizens and is hereby approved. 

 

SECTION 2: THAT the City Manager is authorized to execute the agreement hereby 

approved on behalf of the City and that the Purchasing Manager or his 

designee is hereby designated to act for the City of Grand Prairie in all 

matters relating to Cooperative Purchasing Agreement including the 

designation of specific contracts in which the City of Grand Prairie desires to 

participate. 

 

SECTION 3: THAT this resolution shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and 

approval. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND 

PRAIRIE, TEXAS THIS THE 15TH  DAY OF SEPTEMBER , 2020. 

 

ATTEST:       APPROVED: 

 

 

                    

Cathy DiMaggio, City Secretary Ron Jensen, Mayor 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

      

Megan Mahan, City Attorney 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10375 Name: Justice Assistance Grant (JAG)

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution in support of a Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application to the United States Department
of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Justice Assistance for $36,300 in total funding with an agreement for
$10,890 to be allocated to funding Dallas County projects and $1,778.70 to be allocated to the City of
Dallas for fiscal administration fees and expenditures leaving a net amount of $23,631.30 to the City
of Grand Prairie

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Resolution in support of a Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) application to the United States Department of
Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Justice Assistance for $36,300 in total funding with an agreement for $10,890 to be
allocated to funding Dallas County projects and $1,778.70 to be allocated to the City of Dallas for fiscal
administration fees and expenditures leaving a net amount of $23,631.30 to the City of Grand Prairie

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police, and Ryan Simpson, Support Services Division Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The City of Grand Prairie has received notification from the Department of Justice that the City of Dallas and
the Grand Prairie Police Department will receive $38,540.00 in Justice Assistance Grant funds for law
enforcement purposes. An eligibility requirement that must be met prior to the distribution of the grant funds is
a disparity test. The disparity test seeks to determine if the award of the grant will create an additional burden
on the entity charged with prosecuting "Part I Crimes." Part I Crimes are major crimes which include; murder,
rape, robbery, aggravated assault, burglary, theft and auto theft. Dallas County has indicated, in past awards,
that a disparity would exist and requested that the Texas Attorney General declare the awards as disparate thus
providing them with a share of the awarded grant funds. The Attorney General declared past awards as
disparate resulting in the Justice Assistance Grant allocating this year's award to be disparate as well.

In addition, this year, as last year, the Bureau of Justice Assistance will allow only one city within a disparate
county, namely Dallas County, to submit the Justice Assistance Grant application. The City of Dallas Fiscal
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10375, Version: 1

county, namely Dallas County, to submit the Justice Assistance Grant application. The City of Dallas Fiscal
Agent has agreed to submit the grant application and future progress reports for a "Fiscal Agent Grant
Administration Fee" assessed to each of the area participating cities, which are eligible in this year's grant
program. Of the $38,540.00 total allocation to the City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County will receive $11,562.00
and the City of Dallas will receive $1,888.46, leaving the City of Grand Prairie with a net total of $25,089.54 to
expend for law enforcement purposes.

Staff recommends this funding be used to purchase two all-terrain vehicles for the Lake Patrol Unit and rugged
laptop/tablet computers for the Special Weapons and Tactics (SWAT) Team.

The Public Safety, Health, and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on September 14, 2020 and
recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval.

Financial Consideration

There is no required cash or in-kind match from the City.

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A JUSTICE
ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) APPLICATION TO THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF
JUSTICE (DOJ) FOR $38,540 IN TOTAL FUNDING WITH AN AGREEMENT TO SHARE FUNDING
WITH DALLAS COUNTY AND THE CITY OF DALLAS

WHEREAS, the City is eligible to submit a grant application for the Justice Assistance Grant (JAG) program
from the United States Department of Justice, Bureau of Justice Assistance;

WHEREAS, the City will share $11,562.00 of its $38,540 in JAG funds with Dallas County;

WHEREAS, the City will share $1,888.46 of its $26,978.00 remaining JAG funds with the City of Dallas for
"Fiscal Agent Grant Administration Fee;"

WHEREAS, the City will agree to have the Bureau of Justice Assistance directly transfer $11,562.00 to Dallas
County and $1,888.46 to the City of Dallas from the $38,540 JAG funds allocated for the City of Grand Prairie.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, hereby supports an agreement to share
$11,562.00 of its $38,540 JAG funds for 2018 with Dallas County;

SECTION 2. the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, hereby supports an agreement to share
$1,888.46 of its $38,540 JAG funds for 2018 with the City of Dallas;

SECTION 3. this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15th DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10375, Version: 1

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10317 Name: 2021 STEP Grant

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:8/21/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement (STEP) grant from
the Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety belt, child safety seat,
speed, intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws in the amount of $317,105.87

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102  Salaries.pdf

2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to accept a Selective Traffic Enforcement (STEP) grant from the
Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) for the enforcement of safety belt, child safety seat, speed,
intersection traffic control, distracted driving and DWI laws in the amount of $317,105.87

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police, and Ryan Simpson, Support Services Division Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The results of special statewide traffic enforcement efforts in Texas and other states confirm that coordinated
programs, such as the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program (STEP), are highly effective in reducing traffic-
related fatalities, injuries and costs.

The Grand Prairie Police Department has participated in the Selective Traffic Enforcement Program for 30
years. The total grant money addresses primarily seatbelt, child safety seat, speeding, intersection traffic
control, and DWI laws.

From October 2019 through August 2020, the TxDOT STEP Grant has resulted in numerous grant-related
citations that included: speeding violations, seatbelt use violations, unrestrained child violations, and
intersection control devices violations. The total number of citations issued as part of the grant program from
October 2019 through September 2020 was approximately 6,209, which includes the above totals and non-

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10317, Version: 1

hazardous violations.

The Selective Traffic Enforcement Program benefits the citizens of Grand Prairie by increasing safety belt
compliance and reducing the number of crashes caused by excessive speed, disregarding traffic control devices,
and alcohol consumption.

The Public Safety, Health and Environmental Committee will fully review this item during the next
regularly scheduled meeting on September 14, 2020.

Financial Consideration

The grant period begins October 1, 2020, and ends September 30, 2021. It is anticipated the total cost for the
City during this period will amount to a cash match of $190,290.87. Funding will be allocated in the FY
2020/2021 General Fund budget. The Texas Department of Transportation will fund $126,815.00 to pay the
City for overtime salaries and benefits for enforcement efforts.  Project cost will total $317,105.87.

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A TEXAS
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION GRANT FOR SAFETY BELT, CHILD SAFETY SEAT,
SPEED, INTERSECTION TRAFFIC CONTROL, AND DWI ENFORCEMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF
317,105.87 TO BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND APPROVAL

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to participate in an intensified enforcement of safety
belt, child safety seat, speed, intersection traffic control and DWI laws;

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $190,290.87 to the Texas Department of Transportation;

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of Texas Department of Transportation funds, the City of Grand
Prairie assures that the funds will be returned to the Texas Department of Transportation in full;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION 1. the City Manager of the City of Grand Prairie is empowered to accept, reject, alter or
terminate this grant on behalf of the City Council;

SECTION 2. this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 1st DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744520&GUID=4170A89F-C7C9-45BC-BA57-96C8F0858254[9/11/2020 11:27:10 AM]

Embedded Secure Document
The file https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744520&GUID=4170A89F-C7C9-45BC-BA57-
96C8F0858254 is a secure document that has been embedded in this document. Double click the pushpin
to view.








City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2021


Page 1 of 1  2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102 Printed On: 8/4/2020





View.ashx.pdf



https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744522&GUID=15DBAB0C-A0FE-42BC-AB51-F50D19A0AC5C[9/11/2020 11:27:12 AM]

Embedded Secure Document
The file https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744522&GUID=15DBAB0C-A0FE-42BC-
AB51-F50D19A0AC5C is a secure document that has been embedded in this document. Double click the
pushpin to view.








City of Grand Prairie Police Department
STEP Comprehensive 2021


Page 1 of 1  2021-GrandPra-S-1YG-00102 Printed On: 8/4/2020





View.ashx.pdf



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10376 Name: Commercial Motor Vehicle Enforcement

Status:Type: Resolution Consent Agenda

File created: In control:9/4/2020 Police

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant from the U.S. Department of
Transportation, Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, for the Grand Prairie Police Department's
Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Unit to conduct commercial motor vehicle inspections, conduct
public awareness campaigns, in the amount of $401,122.38

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 2020 HP Grant Narrative - Signed.pdf

HP Grant 080120-093022.pdf

Copy of 2020 HP Grant Budget - REVISED.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Fred Bates, Jr.

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant from the U.S. Department of Transportation,
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration, for the Grand Prairie Police Department's Commercial Vehicle
Enforcement Unit to conduct commercial motor vehicle inspections, conduct public awareness campaigns, in
the amount of $401,122.38

Presenter

Daniel Scesney, Chief of Police

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The City of Grand Prairie covers 81.4 square miles, is the 5th largest city in the Metroplex in land mass, and is
situated in three counties (Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis). The City has a growing population of over 180,000
residents and provides emergency response service for two major Interstate Highways (I-20 and I-30), three
State Highways (SH 360, SH 180, and SH 161), US Hwy 287, and Spur Hwy 303. Grand Prairie is a central
and connecting City facilitating millions of large commercial vehicles each year. The City's industrial districts
house some of the largest distributors in the country. Approximately 30 percent of the City's property tax value
is industrial and commercial.

The mission of the Grand Prairie Police Department’s Commercial Vehicle Enforcement (CVE) Unit is to
enforce the laws of the State of Texas and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations to help ensure the safe
and efficient movement of commercial traffic traveling the highways and local streets within the City. Through
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10376, Version: 1

and efficient movement of commercial traffic traveling the highways and local streets within the City. Through
effective enforcement and interaction with the trucking industry and citizens, the police department's goal is to
reduce commercial vehicle crashes and the number of unsafe vehicles operating on the roadways.

The CVE Unit’s goal is to also promote detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle safety defects,
commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they become contributing
factors to crashes and hazardous materials incidents. This should thereby contribute to the reduction of
commercial vehicle crashes in the City. Due to the large volume of warehouse, industrial, and commercial
space in the City, the unit plans to address the growing Metroplex problem of Commercial Motor Vehicle thefts
and cargo thefts. The unit, in anticipation of proactively addressing cargo thefts, is applying for additional
funds in this grant for that purpose.

Staff recommends the consideration of a resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for a grant from the
U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) for the Grand
Prairie Police Department's Commercial Vehicle Enforcement Unit to conduct commercial motor vehicle
inspections, conduct public awareness campaigns in the amount of $401,122.38.

The Public Safety, Health, and Environmental Committee reviewed this item on September 14, 2020 and
recommended that it be forwarded to the City Council for approval.

Financial Consideration

The total project cost is $471,908.68. Requested FMCSA grant funds total $401,122.38. Grant matching
requirements total $70,786.30, of which $4,785.30 will be a cash match paid from the Commercial Vehicle
Enforcement Fund (AU 285510), and $66,001.00 will be in-kind services.

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, IN SUPPORT OF A U.S.
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION FEDERAL MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY
ADMINISTRATION FOR THE GRAND PRAIRIE POLICE DEPARTMENT'S COMMERCIAL
VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT UNIT TO CONDUCT COMMERCIAL MOTOR VEHICLE
INSPECTIONS, CONDUCT PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS IN THE AMOUNT OF $401,122.38

WHEREAS, the Grand Prairie Police Department wishes to apply for funding this opportunity to promote
detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies,
and unsafe motor carrier practices before they become contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials
incidents;

WHEREAS, the City will provide a cash match of $4,785.30 to the U.S. Department of Transportation Federal
Motor Carrier Safety Administration;

WHEREAS, the City will provide an in-kind match of $66,001.00 to the U.S. Department of Transportation
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration;

WHEREAS, in the event of loss or misuse of U.S. Department of Transportation Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration funds, the City of Grand Prairie assures that the funds will be returned to the U.S. Department
of Transportation Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS THAT:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10376, Version: 1

SECTION 1. the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, does hereby authorize the City Manager to
apply for a grant in the amount $401,122.38 to promote detection and correction of commercial motor vehicle
safety defects, commercial vehicle driver deficiencies, and unsafe motor carrier practices before they become
contributing factors to crashes and hazardous materials incidents.

SECTION 2. this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval in
accordance with the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie and it is accordingly so resolved.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,

ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™







































Agreement  

1. RECIPIENT NAME AND ADDRESS 
2. AGREEMENT NUMBER: 3. AMENDMENT NO.

4. PROJECT PERFORMANCE  PERIOD: FROM  09/01/2008           TO 

5. FEDERAL FUNDING PERIOD: FROM  09/01/2008           TO 

1A.   IRS/VENDOR NO. 
6. ACTION

1B.   DUNS NO. 

7. CFDA#:

9. PREVIOUS AGREEMENTS

10. THIS AGREEMENT

11.  TOTAL AGREEMENT

12. INCORPORATED ATTACHMENTS

13. STATUTORY AUTHORITY FOR GRANT/ COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT

14.  REMARKS

GRANTEE ACCEPTANCE AGENCY APPROVAL 

15. NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED GRANTEE OFFICIAL 17.

16. SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED GRANTEE OFFICIAL  16A.  DATE 18. 18A.  DATE 

AGENCY USE ONLY 

19. OBJECT CLASS CODE: 20. ORGANIZATION CODE:
21. ACCOUNTING CLASSIFICATION CODES

8. PROJECT TITLE

TITLE FEDERAL NON-FEDERAL TOTAL

See Award Conditions.

08/01/2020 09/30/2022

08/01/2020 09/30/2022

FMCSA Financial Assistance Agreement General Terms and Conditions, Recipient project narrative and indirect cost rate agreement (if applicable) are incorporated by reference
unless/except as noted below.

2020 401,122.000905710MHP

41000 M600000000

0

New
756000543
010597169

20.237

1525 Arkansas Ln
Grand Prairie, TX 75052-7401

FY2020 HP-CMV Grant Program

49 U.S.C. §§ 31102(l); 31104 (2016), as amended by the FAST Act, Pub. L. No. 114-94, §§ 5101(a) and (c) (2015), Further Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2020 Pub. L. No
116-94

Page 1

THIS AGREEMENT INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING ATTACHMENTS, INCORPORATED HEREIN AND MADE A PART HEREOF:

City of Grand Prairie

17X05720MHFM-MHP-0547-20-01-00
DOCUMENT NUMBER FUND BPACBY AMOUNT

Grant

0.00

401,122.00

401,122.00

0.00

70,782.00 471,904.00

0.00

70,782.00 471,904.00

Federal Motor Carrier Safety
Administration

NAME AND TITLE OF AUTHORIZED FMCSA OFFICIAL

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED FMCSA OFFICIAL

69A3602040565MHP0TX



Federal Financial Report Cycle
Reporting Period Start Date Reporting Period End Date Reporting Type Reporting Period Due Date

08/01/2020 09/30/2020 Quarterly 10/30/2020

10/01/2020 12/31/2020 Quarterly 01/30/2021

01/01/2021 03/31/2021 Quarterly 04/30/2021

04/01/2021 06/30/2021 Quarterly 07/30/2021

07/01/2021 09/30/2021 Quarterly 10/30/2021

10/01/2021 12/31/2021 Quarterly 01/30/2022

01/01/2022 03/31/2022 Quarterly 04/30/2022

04/01/2022 06/30/2022 Quarterly 07/30/2022

07/01/2022 09/30/2022 Final 12/29/2022


AWARD CONDITIONS

1. This Notice of Grant Award (NGA) is to award the Recipient with the total award amount authorized 
in Block 11 to implement the FY 2020 High Priority Grant Program.

The FMCSA approves the total project plan, line item budget and budget narrative as requested in the 
original application. The FY 2020 total recommended amount is $471,904 (Federal award = $401,122 
/ Recipient match = $70,782).

If the recipient is requesting indirect costs, the recipient may not request these costs for 
reimbursement until it has submitted a current approved indirect cost rate agreement to the FMCSA 
Division Office, and the GMO mailbox below:

FMCSAWSCGMOHelpDesk@dot.gov

The recipient and any sub-recipient must also comply with the applicable FMCSA general terms and 
conditions attached to this NGA. Failure to comply with the terms and conditions attached and any 
additional provisions directly reflected in this NGA may result in enforcement actions as outlined in 2 
CFR §§ 200.338 and 200.339

 

Project #4 Special Terms & Conditions: The Recipient agrees to conduct the appropriate NAS level 
of inspection (1-3) each time a CMV contact is made; Within 30 days of award provide FMCSA 
Division with an updated project narrative (Problem Statement, Objective, Activity Plan, Performance 
Measurement, and Monitoring) to include baseline data showing the violations and crashes in the 
areas as described in the Program Activity Plan; and Submit quarterly reports to include updated data 
reflecting the safety impact of the project.

City of Grand Prairie 69A3602040565MHP0TX

2 of 

 

 
 

RECIPIENT NAME:                      AGREEMENT NUMBER:

2



AWARD ATTACHMENTS

City of Grand Prairie 69A3602040565MHP0TX

Standard Term and Conditions1. 



FEDERAL MOTOR CARRIER SAFETY ADMINISTRATION 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AGREEMENT GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS  

Section 1. Grant Authority 

a. Contract Authority.

The Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration’s (FMCSA) authorizing legislation, The 
Fixing America 's Surface Transportation Act [FAST Act], Pub. L. No. 114-94, §5101 
(2015) granted FMCSA contract authority.  As codified in 49 U.S.C. §31104, the 
Secretary of Transportation 's approval of the grant funds made available imposes a 
contractual obligation upon the United States for payment of the Government 's share of 
costs in carrying out the grant objectives. 

b. Lapse in Appropriations and/or Authorization.

Except in limited circumstances, the absence of FMCSA appropriations and/or 
authorization prevents the continuation of Federal supervision and support to the 
performance of a grant.  I n the absence of such supervision or support, the Recipient may 
only continue to proceed with its work if (1) the performance of such grant is not 
incurring obligations from the lapsed appropriations; (2) if continued grant management 
supervision or support is not critical to the Recipient's continued performance of the 
work; (3) and FMCSA has approved the continuation of such work.  FMCSA will make 
such determinations in accordance with the Executive Office of the President, Office of 
Management and Budget, Memorandum "Planning for Agency Operations During a Lapse 
in Government Funding "(April 7, 2011), and any amendments or updated guidance 
thereto. 

Section 2. Effective Date. 

Recipient acknowledges that Federal funds are obligated on the effective date of the Grant 
Agreement.  The effective date is the date that the Grant Agreement contains the authorized 
signatures of both parties to this agreement.  Where the dates accompanying the signatures 
differ from party to party, the effective date of the Grant Agreement shall be the most recent of 
these dates. 

Section 3. Electronic Signatures. 

The Recipient understands that electronic signatures are binding.  An electronic signature to 
the Grant Agreement commits the Recipient to these Provisions and Assurances, as well as 
all requirements denoted in Section 4. 



Section 4. General Requirements. 

 

a. Obligation of Recipient to Comply. 

 
The Recipient understands that by signing the Grant Agreement, the Recipient is 
agreeing to carry out the approved project plan and the approved budget and to 
comply with all applicable Federal laws and requirements imposed by the FMCSA 
concerning special requirements of law, program requirements, and other 
administrative requirements. This includes, but is not limited to: (1) 49 U.S.C. 
chapters 311 and 313 (2016), as applicable and denoted in the Notice of Grant 
Agreement; (2) FAST Act, Pub. L. No. 114-94, §§ 5101 and 5104 (2015), as 
applicable and denoted in the Notice of Grant Agreement; (3) U.S. Department of 
Transportation (DOT) regulations; (4) the Uniform Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 C.F.R. part 200); and 
(5) the Federal Grant and Cooperative Agreement Act of 1977. 

 
For all Federal awards, compliance with statutory and national policy requirements 
also includes the provisions of the Federal Funding and Accountability 
Transparency Act (FFATA), which includes requirements on executive 
compensation, and also requirements implementing the Act for the non-Federal 
entity, codified at 2 C.F.R. part 25 and 2 C.F.R. part 170. See also statutory 
requirements for whistleblower protections at 10 U.S.C. §§ 2324 and 2409 and 41 
U.S.C. § § 4304, 4310, and 4712. 

 

b. Application of Federal, State, and Local Laws and Regulations. 
 

i. Federal Laws. 

The Recipient understands that Federal laws, regulations, policies, and related 
administrative practices applicable to this Agreement on the date the 
Agreement was executed may be modified from time to time. The Recipient 
agrees that the most recent of such Federal requirements will govern the 
administration of this Agreement at any particular time. Likewise, new Federal 
laws, regulations, policies and administrative practices may be established 
after the date the Agreement has been executed and may apply to this 
Agreement. To achieve compliance with changing Federal requirements, the 
Recipient agrees to include in all Subrecipient agreements and third-party 
contracts financed with FMCSA assistance, specific notice that Federal 
requirements may change and the changed requirements will apply to the 
Project as required. All limits or standards set forth in this Agreement to be 
observed in the performance of the Project are minimum requirements.   

 

ii. State or Territorial Law and Local Law. 

Except to the extent that a Federal statute or regulation preempts State or 
territorial law, nothing in this Agreement shall require the Recipient to observe 
or enforce compliance with any provision thereof, perform any other act, or do 
any other thing in contravention of any applicable State or territorial law; 



however, if any of the provisions of this Agreement violate any applicable State 
or territorial law, or if compliance with the provisions of this Agreement would 
require the Recipient to violate any applicable State or territorial law, the 
Recipient agrees to notify the FMCSA immediately in writing in order that 
FMCSA and the Recipient may make appropriate arrangements to proceed with 
the Project as soon as possible. 

 

c. Subrecipients. 

 
State Recipients shall follow State law and procedures when awarding and administering 
subawards to local and Indian tribal governments including 2 C.F.R. § 200.317. All other 
non-federal entities, including Subrecipients of a State, will follow 2 C.F.R. § 200.318, 
General procurement standards, through § 200.326, Contract provision, as well as the 
Standards for Financial and Program Management, at §§ 200.300 through 200.309. 
Subrecipient means a non-Federal entity that receives a subaward from a pass-through 
entity to carry out part of a Federal program; but does not include an individual that is a 
beneficiary of such program. A Subrecipient may also be a recipient of other Federal 
awards directly from a Federal awarding agency. 

 

d. Subawards. 

 
Subaward means an award provided by a pass-through entity to a Subrecipient for the 
Subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal award received by the pass-through entity. It 
does not include payments to a contractor or payments to an individual that is a 
beneficiary of a Federal program. A subaward may be provided through any form of legal 
agreement, including an agreement that the pass-through entity considers a contract. 

 

e. Pass-Through Entity. 

 
Pass-through entity means a non-Federal entity that provides a subaward to a 
Subrecipient to carry out part of a Federal program. All Pass-Through Entities must 
comply fully with 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.330, 200.331, 200.332, and 200.505. 

 

f. Prohibition Against Transferring An Award. 

 
The Recipient is prohibited from transferring or subrogating their rights and 
responsibilities of the grant program and funds associated with that grant to another 
entity. Subrogation is when a non-federal entity substitutes another entity, not awarded 
the subject grant by FMCSA, to a lawful claim, demand, or right, so that that entity 
succeeds to the rights of the other in relation to the debt or claim, and its rights, remedies, 
or fund access. The act of subawarding to a Subrecipient is not considered as the 
subrogation of the Recipient's award. 
 
 
 

 



Section 5. Internal Controls.  The Recipient must: 
 

a. Establish and maintain effective internal control over the Federal award that provides 
reasonable assurance that the non-Federal entity is managing the Federal award in 
compliance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the 
Federal award. These internal controls should be in compliance with guidance in 
"Standards for Internal Control in the Federal Government" issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States and the "Internal Control Integrated Framework," issued 
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission 
(COSO); 

 

b. Comply with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal 
awards; 

 
c. Evaluate and monitor the non-Federal entity's compliance with statute, regulations 

and the terms and conditions of Federal awards; 
 

d. Take prompt action when instances of noncompliance are identified including 
noncompliance identified in audit findings; and 

 
e. Take reasonable measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable information 

and other information the Federal awarding agency or pass-through entity designates 
as sensitive or the non-Federal entity considers sensitive consistent with applicable 
Federal, state and local laws regarding privacy and obligations of confidentiality. 

 

Section 6. Ethics. 
 

a. Written Code of Ethics. 

 

The Recipient agrees to maintain a written code or standards of ethical conduct that shall 
govern the performance of its officers, employees, board members, or agents engaged in 
the award and administration of contracts supported by Federal funds.  The code or 
standards shall provide that the Recipient's officers, employees, board members, or agents 
may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from 
present or potential contractors, Subrecipients, or regulated entities.  The Recipient may 
set minimum rules where the financial interest is not substantial or the gift is an 
unsolicited item of nominal intrinsic value.  As permitted by State or local law or 
regulations, such code or standards shall provide for penalties, sanctions, or other 
disciplinary actions for violations by the Recipient's officers, employees, board members, 
or agents, or by contractors or·Subrecipients or their agents. 

 

b. Personal Conflict of Interest. 

 

The Recipient's code or standards must provide that no employee, officer, board member, or 
agent of the Recipient may participate in the selection, award, or administration of a 
contract supported by Federal funds if a real or apparent conflict of interest would be 



involved. Such a conflict would arise when any of the parties set forth below has a financial 
or other interest in the firm selected for award: 

 
i. The employee, officer, board member, or agent; 
ii. Any member of his or her immediate family; 
iii. His or her partner; or 
iv. An organization that employs, is considering to employ, or is about to employ, 

any of the above. 
 

c. Organizational Conflicts of Interest. 

 

The Recipient's code or standards of conduct must include procedures for identifying and 
preventing real and apparent organizational conflicts of interests. An organizational 
conflict of interest exists when the nature of the work to be performed under a proposed 
third-party contract or subaward, may, without some restrictions on future activities, 
result in an unfair competitive advantage to the contractor or Subrecipient or impair the 
contractor’s or Subrecipient's objectivity in performing the contract work. 

 

Section 7.        Hatch Act. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. §§ 
1501-1508 and 7321-7326), which limit the political activities of state or local employees 
whose principal employment is in connection with programs financed in whole or in part by 
loans or grants made by the United States or a Federal agency. The Hatch Act specifically 
exempts employees of educational institutions, and the Hatch is not applicable to private, 
nonprofit organizations unless the statutes through which the nonprofit organizations derive 
their federal funding contain a provision stating that the recipient organizations are deemed to 
be state or local government agencies for purposes of the Hatch Act. On December 19, 2012, 
Congress passed the Hatch Act Modernization Act of 2012 (the Act). The Act became effective 
on January 27, 2013. Now, only state, D.C., or local government employees whose salaries are 
paid for entirely by federal funds are prohibited from running for partisan office. All other state, 
D.C., and local employees, even if they are otherwise covered by Hatch Act restrictions are free 
under the Hatch Act to run for partisan office. 
 

Section 8. Limitation on Use of Federal Funds for Lobbying for Grants in Excess of 

$100,000. 

 
By signing this agreement, the Recipient declares that it is in compliance with 31 U.S.C. § 
1352, which prohibits the use of federally appropriated funds to influence a Federal employee, 
officer, or Member of Congress in connection with the making or modification of any Federal 
grant, loan, contract, or cooperative agreement. Unless the payment of funds is otherwise 
reported to FMCSA, signing this agreement constitutes a declaration that no funds, including 
funds not federally appropriated, were used or agreed to be used to influence this grant. 
 
Recipients of subawards in excess of $100,000 must make the same declarations to the 
Recipient. With respect to the payment of funds not federally appropriated by the Recipient and 



Subrecipients, the Recipient must report to the FMCSA the name and address of each person 
paid or performing services for which payment is made, the amount paid, and the activity for 
which the person was paid. 
 

Section 9. Contracting (Federal Standards). 

 
The Recipient and Subrecipients agree to comply with the Procurement Standards requirements 
set forth at 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.317 through 200.326 inclusive, whichever may be applicable, and 
with applicable supplementary U.S. DOT or FMCSA directives or regulations.  If determined 
necessary for proper Project administration, FMCSA reserves the right to review the Recipient's 
technical specifications and requirements. 

 

Section 10. Notification Requirement. 

 
With respect to any procurement for goods and services (including construction services) 
having an aggregate value of $500,000 or more, the Recipient agrees to: 
 

a. Specify in any announcement of the awarding of the contract for such goods or services 
the amount of Federal funds that will be used to finance the acquisition; and 

 
b. Express the said amount as a percentage of the total costs of the planned acquisition. 

 

Section 11. Debarment and Suspension. 

 
The Recipient agrees to obtain certifications on debarment and suspension from its third-party 
contractors and Subrecipients and otherwise comply with U.S. DOT regulations, Government- 
wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and Government-wide Requirements for 
Drug-Free Workplace (Grants), 49 C.F.R. part 32. This action of certification shall take place 
for each federal year, regardless of prior certification completed for a Subrecipient or 
contractor. 
 

Section 12. Notification of Third Party Contract or Subaward Disputes or Breaches. 

 
The Recipient agrees to notify FMCSA of any current or prospective major dispute, breach, or 
litigation pertaining to any third-party contract or subaward. If the Recipient seeks to name 
FMCSA as a party to litigation for any reason, the Recipient agrees first to inform FMCSA 
before doing so. This provision applies to any type of litigation whatsoever, in any forum. 
 

Section 13. Participation by Small Business Concerns Owned and Controlled by Socially 

and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals. 

 
FMCSA encourages the Recipient to utilize small business concerns owned and controlled by 
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals (as that term is defined for other DOT 
agencies in 49 C.F.R. part 26) in carrying out the Project. 
 
 



Section 14. Records Retention. 

 

a. Requirement to Retain Records. 

 
During the course of the Project and for three years after the final Federal financial report is 
submitted (form SF-425), the Recipient agrees to retain intact and to provide any data, 
documents, reports, records, contracts, and supporting materials relating to the Project as 
FMCSA may require. Reporting and record-keeping requirements are set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 
200.333. 

 

b. Access to Recipient and Subrecipient Records. 

 
The Recipient, and related subrecipients, will give FMCSA, the Secretary of Transportation, 
the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized 
representatives, and, if appropriate the State, through any authorized representative, access 
to and the right to examine all records, books, papers or documents related to the award and 
will establish a proper accounting system in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
standards. Access requirements to records are set forth in 2 C.F.R. § 200.336. 

 

Section 15. Audit and Inspection. 

 

a. Inspector General Act of 1978. 

 
Under the Inspector General Act of 1978, as amended, 5 U.S.C. App. 3 § 1 et seq., an audit 
of the award may be conducted at any time. 

 

b. Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996. 

 
The Recipient agrees to undergo the required financial and compliance audits in accordance 
with the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 2 C.F.R. § 200.501. 

 

c. Other Audit Requirements. 

 
A Recipient that is: (a) a State, local government or Indian tribal government, an institution 
of higher education or nonprofit organization agrees to comply with the audit requirements 
of 2 C.F.R. § 200.501, and any revision or supplement thereto; (c) a private for-profit 
organization agrees to comply with the audit requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.501(h). 
 
It is imperative that Recipients submit required Single Audits within the time limits 
specified in the Circular. The Recipient agrees to submit the data collection form and copies 
of the reporting package required under the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 and 2 
C.F.R. § 200.501 to: 
 

The Federal Audit Clearinghouse Bureau of the Census 
1201 East 10 Street,  
Jefferson, IN 47132. 



 
The Recipient agrees to obtain any other audits required by FMCSA. Project closeout will 
not alter the Recipient's audit responsibilities. Audit costs for Project administration and 
management are allowable under this Project to the extent authorized by 2 C.F.R. § 200.501. 
 
The Recipient agrees to permit FMCSA, the Secretary of Transportation and the 
Comptroller General of the United States, or their authorized representatives, to inspect all 
Project work, materials, payrolls, and other data, and to audit the books, records, and 
accounts of the Recipient and its Subrecipients pertaining to the Project. The Recipient 
agrees to require each Subrecipient to permit the Secretary of Transportation and the 
Comptroller General of the United States, or their duly authorized representatives, to inspect 
all work, materials, payrolls, and other data and records involving that subaward, and to 
audit the books, records, and accounts involving that subaward as it affects the Project. 

 

Section 16. Responsibility for Reporting Fraudulent Activity, Waste, and Abuse. 

 
The Recipient understands that the Federal government shall pursue administrative, civil, or 
criminal action under a variety of statutes relating to fraud and making false statement or 
claims. 
 
The Recipient is required to contact the DOT, the Office of Inspector General (OIG), if the 
Recipient becomes aware of the existence (or apparent existence) of fraudulent activity, waste, 
or abuse. 
 
The OIG has authority within the DOT to conduct criminal investigations. The DOT OIG 
maintains a post office box and a toll-free hotline for receiving information from individuals 
concerning fraud, waste, or abuse under DOT grants and cooperative agreements. The hotline is 
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week at https://www.oig.dot.gov/Hotline. The identity of the 
caller is kept confidential, and callers are not required to give their names. 
 
Examples of fraud, waste, and abuse that should be reported include, but are not limited to, 
embezzlement, misuse, or misappropriation of grant funds or property, and false statements, 
whether by organizations or individuals. Other examples include, but not limited to, theft of 
grant funds for personal use; using funds for non-grant-related purposes; theft of federally 
owned property or property acquired or leased under a grant; charging inflated building rental 
fees for a building owned by the Recipient; submitting false financial reports; and submitting 
false financial data in bids submitted to the Recipient (for eventual payment under the grant). 
 

Section 17. Budget and Finance. 

 
The Recipient agrees to carry out Agreement activities and seek reimbursement in accordance 
with the Approved Project Budget after securing FMCSA written approval. The funding of 
items identified in the budget constitutes FMCSA 's authorization for the Recipient to incur 
these costs, if they are allowable, allocable, necessary, and reasonable. Furthermore, funds 
cannot be spent that violate any FMCSA policy or grants manual. Costs not specifically 
budgeted in this Agreement may be allowable if prior approval is not required and costs are 



incurred consistently with the applicable cost principles. 
 
Prior Approval means written permission provided by an FMCSA authorized official in 
advance of an act that would result in either (1) the obligation or expenditure of funds or (2) the 
performance or modification of an activity under the grant-supported project where such 
approval is required.  Prior approval must be obtained in writing from the designated Grants 
Management Officer or FMCSA authorized official for the grant involved.  Documentation of 
the approved budget on the Notice of Grant Award constitutes prior approval.  Prior approval 
applies for the performance of activities and expenditure of funds as described in the grant 
application, unless otherwise restricted by the terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 
In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.407 and § 200.308, the Recipient must obtain prior , written 
approval from FMCSA before making any revisions to the approved project budget and/or 
project plan: (1) extending the project period of the grant beyond the project period end date 
specified in the most recent revision of the Agreement; (2) that would require any transfer of 
funds between Standard Form (SF) 424A (direct-cost budget categories) cumulatively greater 
than ten percent of the total approved project budget; or (3) that require the addition of 
expenditures for items or services not approved in the original project plan. Examples include: 
increased cost of equipment purchased; subawarding, transferring or contracting out of any 
work under a Federal award not included in the original approved budget; or a first-time request 
to recover indirect costs. 
 
The Recipient agrees to submit a request for prior approval no less than 30 days prior to the 
expiration of the Agreement. The FMCSA will not process requests for prior approval received 
less than 30 days from the Agreement expiration date. Within 30 calendar days from the date of 
the Recipient's request for prior approval, FMCSA will review the request and notify the 
Recipient whether the request has been approved. If the revision is still under consideration at 
the end of 30 calendar days, FMCSA will inform the Recipient in writing of the date when the 
Recipient may expect the decision. 
 
The Recipient may, without prior approval from FMCSA, make any reasonable and necessary 
modification to the project budget if such deviations do not cumulatively exceed, or expect to 
exceed, ten percent of the total approved project amount and provided that such deviations only 
involve the transfer of funds between expenditure items, cost objectives or categories authorized 
by FMCSA in the currently approved budget. The Recipient agrees to notify FMCSA of this 
change. 
 
The Recipient agrees to establish and maintain for the Project either a separate set of accounts 
or accounts within the framework of an established accounting system, in a manner consistent 
with 2 C.F.R. § 200.302. Consistent with the provisions of 2 C.F.R.§ 200.305, the Recipient 
agrees to record in the Project Account, and deposit in a financial institution all Project 
payments received by it from FMCSA pursuant to this Agreement and all other funds provided 
for, accruing to, or otherwise received because the Project (Project Funds). The Recipient is 
encouraged to use financial institutions owned at least 50 percent by minority group members.  
 
All costs charged to the Project, including any approved services contributed by the Recipient 



or others, shall be supported by properly executed payroll documents, time and attendance 
records, invoices, contracts, or vouchers describing in detail the nature and propriety of the 
charges. All match expenditures shall be supported by appropriate records. The Recipient also 
agrees to maintain accurate records of all Program Income derived from Project 
implementation. The Recipient agrees that all checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, 
orders, or other financial documents pertaining in whole or in part to the Project shall be clearly 
identified, readily accessible, and, to the extent feasible, kept separate from documents not 
pertaining to the Project. 
 

Section 18. Payments. 

 

a. Request by the Recipient for Payment. 

 
The Recipient's request for payment of the Federal share of approved costs shall be made to 
FMCSA and will be acted upon by FMCSA as set forth in this section. Each payment made 
to the Recipient must be in compliance with Department of the Treasury regulations, “Rules 
and Procedures for Funds Transfers, 31 C.F.R. part 205.  To receive a Federal assistance 
payment, the Recipient must: 
 

i. Have demonstrated or certified that it has made a binding commitment of non-
Federal funds, if applicable, adequate when combined with Federal payments, 
to cover all costs to be incurred under the Project to date. A Recipient 
required by Federal statute or this Agreement to provide contributory 
matching funds or a cost share agrees: 

 
A. To refrain from requesting or obtaining Federal funds in excess of the 

amount justified by the contributory matching funds or cost share that has 
been provided; and 

 
B. To refrain from taking any action that would cause the proportion of 

Federal funds made available to the Project at any time to exceed the 
percentage authorized under this Agreement. The requirement for 
contributory matching funds or cost share may be temporarily waived only 
to the extent expressly provided in writing by FMCSA. 

 
ii. Have submitted to FMCSA all financial and progress reports required to date 

under this Agreement; 
 

iii. Have identified the source(s) of financial assistance provided under this 
Project, if applicable, from which the payment is to be derived; and 

 
iv. Have expended any earned Program Income before requesting any federal 

funds for reimbursement. 
 
 
 



b. Delphi eInvoicing System for DOT Financial Assistance Awardees. 

 
Subject to the requirements in 2 C.F.R. § 200.305, payments will be made after receipt of 
required FMC SA reporting forms and supporting documentation. Each payment request 
must be made electronically via the Delphi elnvoicing System. 

 
The following are the procedures for accessing and utilizing the Delphi elnvoicing 
System. 

 

i. Grant Recipient Requirements. 

 
A. Recipient must have internet access to register and submit payment 

requests through the Delphi elnvoicing system. 
 

B. Recipient must submit payment requests electronically and FMCSA must 
process payment requests electronically. 

 

ii. System User Requirements. 

 
A. Recipients should contact FMCSA to request access to the system.  The 

FMCSA will provide the Recipient's name and email address to the DOT 
Financial Management Office.  The DOT will then notify the Recipient 
to register for the system through an electronic invitation.  The Recipient 
must complete online training prior to DOT giving system access. 

 
B. The DOT will send the Recipient an email with an electronic form to 

verify the Recipient 's identity. The Recipient must complete the form, 
and present it to a Notary Public for verification.  The Recipient will 
return the notarized form to: 

 
DOT Enterprise Services Center 
FAA Accounts Payable, AMZ-1 00  
PO Box 25710  
Oklahoma City, OK 73125. 

 
C. The DOT will validate the form and email a user ID and password to the 

Recipient.  The Recipient should contact the FMCSA grants management 
office with changes to their system information. 

 
D. Note: Additional information, including access forms and training 

materials, can be found on the DOT elnvoicing website: 
https://www.transportation.gov/cfo/delphi-einvoicing-system  
 
 
 

 



E. Waivers. 
 
 

DOT Financial Management officials may, in highly limited circumstances 
and on a case by case basis, waive the requirement to register and use the 
electronic grant payment system. Waiver request forms can be obtained on 
the DOT elnvoicing website https://www.transportation.gov/cfo/delphi-
einvoicing-system or by contacting FMCSA.  
 
Recipients must explain why they are unable to use or access the internet to 
register and enter payment requests. 

 

c. Reimbursement Payment by FMCSA.  If the reimbursement method is used, the 

Recipient agrees to: 

 
i. Complete and submit Standard Form 3881, “Payment Information Form - 

ACH Payment Vendor Payment System,” to FAA-ESC; and 
 

ii. Complete and submit, on at least a quarterly basis, Standard Form 270, 
“Request for Advance or Reimbursement,” to FMCSA. 

 
iii. Possess and maintain a current DUNs number and entity registration with the 

System for Award Management (www.sam.gov). 
 

Upon receipt of a payment request and adequate accompanying information (invoices in 
accordance with applicable cost principles), FMCSA will authorize payment by direct 
deposit provided the Recipient: (i) is in compliance with its obligations under this 
Agreement, (ii) has satisfied FMCSA that it needs the requested Federal funds during 
the requisition period, and (iii) is making adequate and timely progress toward Project 
completion.  If all these circumstances are present, FMCSA may reimburse approved 
costs incurred by the Recipient up to the maxi mum amount of FMCSA's share of the 
total Project funding.  FMCSA will employ a payment term of 20 days.  The clock will 
start running for payment on receipt of the invoice by FMCSA's financial processor. 

 
d. Other Payment Information. 

 
The Recipient agrees to adhere to and impose on its Subrecipients all applicable foregoing 
"Payment by FMCSA" requirements of this Agreement. If the Recipient fails to adhere to 
the foregoing "Payment by FMCSA" requirements of this Agreement, FMCSA may revoke 
the portion of the Recipient's funds that has not been expended. 

 
e. Effect of Program Income, Refunds, and Audit Recoveries on Payment. 

 
In accordance with 2 C.F.R. § 200.305(b)(5) State, local government, nonprofit 
organizations and Indian tribunal Recipients and Subrecipients shall d isburse program 
income, rebates, refunds, contract settlements, audit recoveries and interest earned on 



such funds before requesting additional cash reimbursements. 
 

f. Reimbursable Costs.  
 

The Recipient's expenditures will be reimbursed only if they meet all requirements set forth 
below: 

 
i. Conform with the Project description and the approved Project Budget and all 

other terms of this Agreement; 
 

ii. Be necessary to accomplish the Project; 
 

iii. Be reasonable for the goods or services purchased; 
 

iv. Be actual net costs to the Recipient (i.e., the price paid minus any refunds, 
rebates, or other items of value received by the Recipient that have the effect of 
reducing the cost actually incurred); 

 
v. Be incurred (and be for work performed) after the Federal Funding Period start 

date of this Agreement, unless specific prior authorization from FMCSA to the 
contrary is received in writing (pre-award costs); 

 
vi. Unless permitted otherwise by Federal statute or regulation, conform with 

Federal guidelines or regulations and Federal cost principles as set forth below: 
 

A. For Recipients that are governmental organizations, institutions of higher 
education, private non-profit organizations, the cost principles of 2 C.F.R. § 
200, subpart E; and 

 
B. For Recipients that are for-profit organizations, the standards of the Federal 

Acquisition Regulations, 48 C.F.R. part 31.2, "Contracts with Commercial 
Organizations" apply. 

 
vii. Be satisfactorily documented; and 

 
viii. Be treated uniformly and consistently as non-Federal funds under accounting 

principles and procedures approved and prescribed by FMCSA for the 
Recipient, and those approved or prescribed by the Recipient for its 
Subrecipients and contractors. 

 

g. Indirect Costs. 

 
If indirect costs are included in the approved budget, the Recipient may not request these 
costs for reimbursement absent a current approved indirect cost rate agreement 
submitted to the FMCSA Division Office, and included as part of the official grant 
record. 



 
Indirect costs will not be reimbursed without documentation of an approved indirect cost 
rate from the Recipient's cognizant agency; however, a Recipient or Subrecipient that 
has never had a negotiated indirect cost rate may elect to charge a de minimis rate of 
10% of modified total direct costs (MTDC) which may be used indefinitely, without 
documentation. If chosen, this methodology once elected must be used consistently for 
all Federal awards until such time as a non-Federal entity chooses to negotiate for a rate, 
which the non-Federal entity may apply to do at any time 

 
As described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.403, factors affecting allowability of costs, costs must be 
consistently charged as either indirect or direct costs, but may not be double-charged or 
inconsistently charged as both. Except as provided above, if a Recipient intends to 
request reimbursement of indirect costs, the Recipient must submit the proper 
documentation before vouchers are submitted for reimbursement.  The Recipient must 
indicate in its budget that it will be seeking indirect costs, and a placeholder indirect cost 
rate will suffice until an approved rate can be determined. 

 
The Recipient must obtain prior approval through formal amendment in order to recover 
indirect costs at an approved rate higher than the place holder indirect cost rate if the 
cumulative amount of such transfer exceeds or is expected to exceed 10 percent of the 
total approved budget. 

 
The Recipient may not request additional grant funds to recover indirect costs that it 
cannot recover by shifting funding from direct costs to indirect costs. After this Grant 
Agreement has been signed, any request for changes to the indirect cost rate will require 
an amendment and must be approved by formal amendment if the change to the indirect 
cost rate is a new rate or would cause the cumulative amount of a budget transfer to 
exceed 10 percent of the total approved budget. 

 
The cognizant agency for indirect costs may allow for a one-time extension of the 
current indirect cost rate of up to four years without further negotiation of a federally 
approved indirect cost rate.  If the cognizant agency permits any one-time extension, the 
Recipient is locked in with that indirect cost rate until the end of the approved extension. 

 

h. Pre-Award Costs. A Recipient may be reimbursed for obligations incurred before 

the effective date of the award if: 
 

i. The Recipient receives prior written approval from the FMCSA before the 
effective date of the grant agreement; 

 
ii. The costs are necessary to conduct the project; and 

 
iii. The costs would be allowable under the grant, if awarded. 

 
 
 



If a specific expenditure would otherwise require prior approval before making the 
expenditure (i.e. pursuant to 2 C.F.R. § 200.407), then the Recipient must obtain 
FMCSA written approval before incurring the cost. 
 
Recipient understands that the incurrence of pre-award costs in anticipation of an award 
is taken at the Recipient's risk and imposes no obligation on FMCSA to make the award 
or to increase the amount of the approved budget if (1) there is no award subsequently 
made;(2) an award is made for less than anticipated and is inadequate to cover the pre-
award costs incurred; or (3) there are inadequate appropriations. 

 

i. Disallowed Costs. 

 
In determining the amount of Federal assistance FMCSA will provide, FMCSA will 
exclude: 

 
i. Any Project costs incurred by the Recipient before the effective date of this 

Agreement, or amendment or modification thereof, whichever is later, unless 
otherwise permitted by Federal Law or regulation, or unless an authorized 
representative of FMCSA states in writing to the contrary; 

 
ii. Any costs incurred by the Recipient that are not included in the latest approved 

Project Budget; and 
 

iii. Any costs attributable to goods or services received under a contract or other 
arrangement that is required to be, but has not been, concurred with or approved 
in writing by FMCSA. 

 
The Recipient agrees that reimbursement of any cost under the "Payment by FMCSA," 
part of this Agreement does not constitute a final FMCSA decision about the 
allowability of that cost and does not constitute a waiver of any violation by the 
Recipient of the terms of this Agreement. The Recipient understands that FMCSA will 
not make a final determination about the allowability of any cost until an audit of the 
Project has been completed.  If FMCSA determines that the Recipient is not entitled to 
receive any part of the Federal funds requested, FMCSA will notify the Recipient stating 
the reasons thereof.  Project closeout will not alter the Recipient's obligation to return 
any funds due to FMCSA as a result of later refunds, corrections, or other transactions. 
Nor will Project closeout alter FMCSA's right to disallow costs and recover funds based 
on a later audit or other review. Unless prohibited by law, 
 
FMCSA may offset any Federal assistance funds to be made available under this Project 
as needed to satisfy any outstanding monetary claims that the Federal Government may 
have against the Recipient. Exceptions pertaining to disallowed costs will be assessed 
based on their applicability, as set forth in the applicable Federal cost principals or other 
written Federal guidance. 
 

 



Section 19. Program Income. 

 
Recipient agrees to comply with the regulations relating to program income, located at 2 C.F.R. 
§§ 200.305(b)(5) and 200.307 for State, local government, Indian tribunal recipients, and non-
profit organizations, and their Subrecipients. 
 
Program income means gross income earned by the Recipient, Subrecipient, or contractor under 
a grant that is directly generated by a grant-supported activity or earned because of the award 
during the award period.  "During the grant period " is the time between the effective date of the 
award and the ending date of the award reflected in the final financial report. 
 
Program income includes, but is not limited to, user charges or user fees, income from fees for 
services performed, the use or rental of real or personal property acquired under federally- 
funded projects, the sale of commodities or items fabricated under an award, license fees and 
royalties on patents and copyrights, and interest on loans made with award funds. Interest 
earned on advances of Federal funds is not program income.  Except as otherwise provided in 
Federal awarding agency regulations or the terms and conditions of the award, program income 
does not include the receipt of principal on loans, rebates, credits, discounts, etc., or interest 
earned on any of them.  Per 2 C.F.R. § 200.307 (c), Governmental revenues, taxes, special 
assessments, levies, fines, and other such revenues raised by a non-Federal entity are not 
program income unless the revenues are specifically identified in the Federal award or Federal 
awarding agency regulations as program income. 
 
Recipients agree to use the Program income in accordance with 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.305(b)(5) 
200.307 for State, local government, nonprofit organizations and Indian tribunal recipients and 
subrecipients. 
 

Section 20. Reports. 

 

a. Performance Progress Reports. 

 
The Recipient will submit, at a minimum, quarterly performance progress reports and a 
final performance progress report at the completion of the award (within 90 days after) 
to the agency point of contact listed in the award document. Recipient must submit all 
performance progress report forms required by FMCSA. These reports will cover the 
period: January 1 -March 31, April 1-June 30, July 1- September 30, and October 1-
December 31. The Recipient shall furnish one (1) copy of a quarterly performance 
progress report to the district office and respective Grant Manager, on or before the 
thirtieth (30th) calendar day of the month following the end of the quarter being 
reported. Each quarterly report shall set forth concise statements concerning activities 
relevant to the Project, and shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 

 
i. An account of significant progress (findings, events, trends, etc.) made during 

the reporting period; 
 

ii. A description of any technical and/or cost problem(s) encountered or anticipated 



that will affect completion of the grant within the time and fiscal constraints as 
set forth in this Agreement, together with recommended solutions or corrective 
action plans (with dates) to such problems, or identification of specific action 
that is required by the FMCSA, or a statement that no problems were 
encountered; 

 
iii. An outline of work and activities planned for the next reporting period; and 

 
iv. A status update/resolution for all outstanding findings from program reviews 

and/or audits. 
 

b. Quarterly Financial Status Reports. 

 
The Recipient shall furnish one (1) copy of a quarterly financial status report to the 
division, and one (1) copy to the respective Grant Manager, on or before the thirtieth 
(30th) calendar day of the month following the end of the quarter being reported.  The 
Recipient shall use SF-425, Federal Financial Report, to report the status of funds for all 
non-construction projects or programs. If the Recipient's accounting records are not 
normally kept on an accrual basis, the Recipient shall not be required to convert its 
accounting system, but shall develop such accrual information through an analysis of the 
documentation on hand. The Recipient shall certify to the expenditure of its proposed 
cost share for the period being reported, in the "Remarks" block. 

 

Section 21. Non-Discrimination. 

 
The Recipient will comply with all Federal authorities relating to nondiscrimination.  These 
include, but are not limited to: 
 

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 Stat. 252), 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, or national origin, as 
implemented by 49 C.F.R . § 21.1 et seq. and 49 C.F.R. § 303; 

• Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324, et seq.), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of sex; 

• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (20 U.S.C. § 1681 et 
seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in education programs or 
activities, as implemented by 49 C.F.R. § 25.1 et seq.; 

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), which 
prohibits discrimination on the basis of age; 

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as 
amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disability and 49 C.F.R. part 
27; 

• Titles II and III of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit 
discrimination on the basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and 
private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing 
entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131 - 12189), as implemented by Department of Justice 
regulations at 28 C.F.R. parts 35 and 36, and Department of Transportation 



regulations at 49 C.F.R. parts 37 and 38; 

• The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (102 Stat. 28.), "which restore[d) the 
broad scope of coverage and to clarify the application of title IX of the Education 
Amendments of 1972, section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, and title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964."; 

• Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in 
Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations, which prohibits discrimination 
against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and activities with 
disproportionately high and adverse human health or environmental effects on 
minority and low-income populations; 

• Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited 
English Proficiency, and resulting Department of Transportation guidance, national 
origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency 
(LEP); 

• Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., 78 
Stat. 252), which prohibits discrimination in employment on basis of race, color, 
national origin, religion, or disability, as implemented by 29 C.F.R. § 1601.1, et seq. 

• The Recipient also agrees to comply with the FMCSA Standard Title VI/Non-
Discrimination Assurances (DOT Order No. 1050.2A). 

 

Section 22. Executive Order on Equal Opportunity Related to Contracts. 

 
The Recipient will comply with all Federal statutes and Executive Orders relating to Equal 
Employment Opportunity. 
 
The Recipient agrees to incorporate in all contracts having a value of over $10,000, the 
provisions requiring compliance with Executive Order 11246, as amended, and implementing 
regulations of the United States Department of Labor at 41 C.F.R. part 60, the provisions of 
which, other than the standard EEO clause and applicable goals for employment of minorities 
and women, may be incorporated by reference. 
 
The Recipient agrees to ensure that its contractors and subcontractors, regardless of tier, 
awarding contracts and/or issuing purchase orders for material, supplies, or equipment over 
$10,000 in value will incorporate the required EEO provisions in such contracts and purchase 
orders. 
 

Section 23. Employment Policies. 

 
The Recipient further agrees that its own employment policies and practices will be without 
discrimination based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability or age; and that it 
has an affirmative action plan (AAP) consistent with the Uniform Guidelines on Employee 
Selection Procedures, 29 C.F.R. § 1607, and the Affirmative Action Guidelines, 29 C.F.R. § 
1608. The applicant/Recipient shall provide the AAP to FMCSA for inspection or copy upon 
request. 
 
 



Section 24. Property. 

 

a. General. 

 

In general, title to equipment and supplies acquired by a Recipient with DOT funds vests 
in the Recipient upon acquisition, subject to the property management requirements of 2 
C.F.R. §§ 200.302(b)(4); 200.307(d); 200.310; 200.313; 200.316; and 200.344(4).  

 
A Recipient that is a State, local, or Indian tribal governments, institutions of higher 
education, and non-profits agrees to comply with the property management standards 
detailed in 2 C.F.R. §§ 200.312 and 200.313, including any amendments thereto, and 
with other applicable Federal regulations and directives.  A Recipient that is a for-profit 
entity agrees to comply with property management standards satisfactory to FMCSA. 

 

b. Use of Project Property. 

 
i. The State Recipient agrees to use Project property for the purpose for which it 

was acquired under the period of performance of the Grant. State Recipients 
acknowledge that the FMCSA may ensure that the purpose of the grant is being 
satisfied. State Recipients acknowledge that FMCSA may request a copy of the 
State statute and procedures in determining whether a State is in compliance with 
its own State procedures, and to assist the FMCSA in determining the 
allocability, reasonableness, and allowability of costs. 

 
ii. The Non-State Recipient agrees to use Project property for appropriate Project 

purposes (which may include joint development purposes that generate program 
income, both during and after the award period, beginning on the effective date, 
and used to support public transportation activities) for the duration of the useful 
life of that property, as required by FMCSA. Should the Recipient unreasonably 
delay or fail to use Project property during the useful life of that property, the 
Recipient agrees that it may be required to return the entire amount of the 
Federal assistance expended on that property. The Non-State Recipient further 
agrees to notify FMCSA immediately when any Project property is withdrawn 
from Project use or when any Project property is used in a manner substantially 
different from the representations the Recipient has made in its Application or in 
the Project Description for the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for 
the Project. 

 

c. Maintenance. 

 

The State Recipient agrees to maintain Project property in accordance with State law 
and procedures. 

 
The Non-State Recipient agrees to maintain Project property in good operating order, in 
compliance with any applicable Federal regulations or directives that may be issued. 

 



d. Records. 

 
The State Recipient agrees to maintain property records in accordance with State law 
and procedures. The Non-State Recipient agrees to keep satisfactory property records 
pertaining to the use of Project property, and submit to FMCSA upon request such 
information as may be required with this agreement. 

 

e. Incidental Use. 

 
Any incidental use of Project property will not exceed that permitted under applicable 
Federal laws, regulations, and directives. 

 

f. Encumbrance of Project Property. 

 
i. The State Recipient agrees to maintain satisfactory continuing control of Project 

property in accordance with State law and procedures. The State Recipient 
understands that an encumbrance of project property may not interfere with the 
purpose for which the equipment was purchased. 

 
ii. The Non-State Recipient agrees to maintain satisfactory continuing control of 

Project property as follows: 
 

A. Written Transactions. 

 
The Non-State Recipient agrees that it will not execute any transfer of title, 
lease, lien, pledge, mortgage, encumbrance, third-party contract, subaward, 
grant anticipation note, alienation, innovative finance arrangement (such as a 
cross border lease, leveraged lease, or otherwise), or any other obligation 
pertaining to Project property, that in any way would affect the continuing 
Federal interest in that Project property. 

 

B. Oral Transactions. 

 
The Non-State Recipient agrees that it will not obligate itself in any manner 
to any third-party with respect to Project property. 

 

C.  Other Actions. 

 
The Non-State Recipient agrees that it will not take any action adversely 
affecting the Federal interest in or impair the Recipient's continuing control 
of the use of Project property. 

 
D. The Non-State Recipient agrees that no use under this section will 

interference with the purpose for which the equipment was purchased. 
 
 



 

g. Transfer of Project Property. 

 
i. The State Recipient agrees to transfer Project property in accordance with State 

law and procedures.  
 

ii. The Non-State Recipient understands and agrees as follows: 
 

A. Transfers. 
 

The Non-State Recipient may transfer any Project property financed with 
Federal assistance authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 to a public body to 
be used for any public purpose with no further obligation to the Federal 
Government, provided the transfer is approved by the FMCSA Administrator 
and conforms with the requirements of 49 U.S.C. §§ 5334(h)(1) and (2). Any 
leasing or rental of equipment purchased by federal funds or state match/cost 
sharing, during the period of performance will considered program income 
and will be managed, expended, and reported per 2 C.F.R. § 200.307. 

 
B. Federal Government Direction. 

 
The Non-State Recipient agrees that the Federal Government may direct the 
disposition of, and even require the Recipient to transfer, title to any Project 
property financed with Federal assistance under the Grant Agreement or 
Cooperative Agreement. 

 

h. Leasing Project Property to Another Party. 

 
If the Non-State Recipient leases any Project property to another party, the Non- State 
Recipient agrees to retain ownership of the leased Project property, and assure that the 
lessee will use the Project property appropriately, either through a written lease between 
the Non-State Recipient and lessee, or another similar document. 

 
Upon request by FMCSA, the Non-State Recipient agrees to provide a copy of any 
relevant documents. Any leasing or rental of equipment purchased by federal funds or 
state match/cost sharing, during the period of performance will be considered program 
income and will be managed, expended, and reported per 2 C.F.R. § 200.307. 

 

i. Disposition of Project Property. 

 
i. The State Recipient may use its own disposition procedures, provided that those 

procedures comply with the laws of that State. 
 

ii. The Non-State Recipient agrees to dispose of Project property as follows: 
 
 



 
A. With prior FMCSA approval, the Non-State Recipient may sell, transfer, or 

lease Project property and use the proceeds to reduce the gross project cost 
of other eligible capital public transportation projects to the extent 
permitted by 49 U.S.C. §5334(h)(4). The Non-State Recipient also agrees 
that FMCSA may establish the useful life of Project property, and that it 
will use Project property continuously and appropriately throughout the 
useful life of that property. 

 
B. Project Property with Expired Useful Life.  When the useful life of Project 

property has expired, the Non-State Recipient agrees to comply with 
FMCSA's disposition requirements. 

 
C. Project Property Prematurely Withdrawn from Use.  For Project property 

withdrawn from appropriate use before its useful life has expired, the 
Recipient agrees as follows: 

 
D. Notification Requirement. The Non-State Recipient agrees to notify 

FMCSA immediately when any Project property is prematurely withdrawn 
from appropriate use, whether by planned withdrawal, misuse, or casualty 
loss. 

 
E. Calculating the Fair Market Value of Prematurely Withdrawn Project 

Property. The Non-State Recipient agrees that the Federal Government 
retains a Federal interest in the fair market value of Project property 
prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use.  The amount of the Federal 
interest in the Project property shall be determined by the ratio of the 
Federal assistance awarded for the property to the actual cost of the 
property.  The Non-State Recipient agrees that the fair market value of 
Project property prematurely withdrawn from use will be calculated as 
follows: 

 
1. Equipment and Supplies.  The Non-State Recipient agrees that 

the fair market value of Project equipment and supplies shall be 
calculated by straight-line depreciation of that property, based 
on the useful life of the equipment or supplies as established or 
approved by FMCSA.  Information on straight line depreciation 
may be found in the Internal Revenue Code. The fair market 
value of Project equipment and supplies shall be the value 
immediately before the occurrence prompting the withdrawal of 
the equipment or supplies from appropriate use. In the case of 
Project equipment or supplies lost or damaged by fire, casualty, 
or natural disaster, the fair market value shall be calculated on 
the basis of the condition of that equipment or supplies 
immediately before the fire, casualty, or natural disaster, 
irrespective of the extent of insurance coverage. 



 
2. Real Property. The Non-State Recipient agrees that the fair 

market value of real property shall be determined either by 
competent appraisal based on an appropriate date approved by 
the Federal Government, as provided by 49 C.F.R. part 24, or 
by straight line depreciation, whichever is greater. 

 
3. Exceptional Circumstances. The Non-State Recipient agrees 

that the Federal Government may require the use of another 
method to determine the fair market value of Project property. 
In unusual circumstances, the Non-State Recipient may request 
that another reasonable valuation method be used including, but 
not limited to, accelerated depreciation, comparable sales, or 
established market values. In determining whether to approve 
such a request, the Federal Government may consider any 
action taken, omission made, or unfortunate occurrence suffered 
by the Non-State Recipient with respect to the preservation of 
Project property withdrawn from appropriate use. 

 

j. Financial Obligations to the Federal Government. 

 
The Recipient agrees to remit to the Federal Government the Federal interest in the fair 
market value of any Project property prematurely withdrawn from appropriate use. In the 
case of fire, casualty, or natural disaster, the Recipient may fulfill its obligations to remit 
the Federal interest by either: 

 
Investing an amount equal to the remaining Federal interest in like-kind property that is 
eligible for assistance within the scope of the Project that provided Federal assistance for 
the Project property prematurely withdrawn from use; or 

 
Returning to the Federal Government an amount equal to the remaining Federal interest 
in the withdrawn Project property. 

 

k. Insurance Proceeds. 

 
If the Recipient receives insurance proceeds as a result of damage or destruction to the 
Project property, the Recipient agrees to: 

 
i. Apply those insurance proceeds to the cost of replacing the damaged or destroyed 

Project property taken out of service, or 
 

ii. Return to the Federal Government an amount equal to the remaining Federal 
interest in the damaged or destroyed Project property. 

 
 

 



l. Transportation of Hazardous Materials. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply with applicable requirements of U.S. Pipeline and 
Hazardous Materials Safety Administration regulations, "Shippers - General 
Requirements for Shipments and Packagings," 49 C.F.R. part 173, in connection with the 
transportation of any hazardous materials. 
 

m. Misused or Damaged Project Property. 

 
If any damage to Project property results from abuse or misuse occurring with the 
Recipient's knowledge and consent, the Recipient agrees to restore the Project property to 
its original condition or refund the value of the Federal interest in that property, as the 
Federal Government may require. 

 

n. Responsibilities after Project Closeout. 

 
The Recipient agrees that Project closeout by FMCSA will not change the Recipient's 
Project property management responsibilities as stated in these Grant Provisions and 
Assurances, and as may be set forth in subsequent Federal laws, regulations, and 
directives, except to the extent the Federal Government determines otherwise in writing. 

 

Section 25. Davis-Bacon Act Requirements. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis Bacon Act (40 
U.S.C. § 3145 and 18 U.S.C. § 874), and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act 
(40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq.) regarding labor standards for federally-assisted construction sub- 
agreements. 
 

Section 26. Environmental Requirements. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with environmental standards which may be 
prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of environmental quality control measures 
under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive Order (EO) 
11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in floodplains in accordance with EO 
11988; (e) assurance of project consistency with the approved State management program 
developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§ 1451 et seq.); (f) 
conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) 
of the Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq.); (g) protection of 
underground sources of drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended 
(P.L. 93-523); and, (h) protection of endangered species under the Endangered Species Act of 
1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205). 
 
 
 
 



Section 27. Government Rights (Unlimited). 

 
FMCSA shall have unlimited rights for the benefit of the Government in all other work 
developed in the performance of this Agreement, including the right to use same on any other 
Government work without additional cost to FMCSA. The rights to any inventions made by a 
Recipient under an FMCSA financial assistance award are determined by the Bayh-Dole Act, 
Pub. L. 96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. § 200, et seq., except as otherwise 
provided by law. 
 

a. Patent Rights. 

 
If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Recipient or any of its third-party 
contractors is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this 
Project, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the 
United States of America or any foreign country, the Recipient agrees to notify FMCSA 
immediately and provide a detailed report. The rights and responsibilities of the 
Recipient, third-party contractors and FMCSA with respect to such invention, 
improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal 
laws, regulations, policies, and any waiver thereof. 

 
If the Recipient secures a patent with respect to any invention, improvement, or 
discovery of the Recipient or any of its third-party contractors conceived or first actually 
reduced to practice in the course of or under this Project, the Recipient agrees to grant to 
FMCSA a royalty-free, non- exclusive, and irrevocable license to use and to authorize 
others to use the patented device or process for Federal Government purposes. 

 
The Recipient agrees to include the requirements of the "Patent Rights" section of this 
Agreement in its third-party contracts for planning, research, development, or 
demonstration under the Project. 

 

b. Data Rights. 
 

The term "subject data" used in this section means recorded information, whether or not 
copyrighted, that is developed, delivered, or specified to be delivered under this 
Agreement. The term includes graphic or pictorial delineations in media such as 
drawings or photographs; text in specifications or related performance or design-type 
documents; machine forms such as punched cards, magnetic tape, or computer memory 
printouts; and information retained in computer memory. Examples include, but are not 
limited to: computer software, engineering drawings and associated lists, specifications, 
standards, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and 
related information. The term does not include financial reports, cost analyses, and 
similar information incidental to Project administration.  The following restrictions apply 
to all subject data first produced in the performance of this Agreement: 

 
i. Except for its own internal use, the Recipient may neither publish or 

reproduce such data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may 



the Recipient authorize others to do so, without the written consent of 
FMCSA, until such time as FMCSA may have either released or approved 
the release of such data to the public. 

 
ii. As authorized by 2 C.F.R. § 200.315(b), FMCSA reserves a royalty-free, 

non-exclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, 
and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes: 

 
A. Any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, sub-grant, 

sub-agreement, or third-party contract, irrespective of whether or not 
a copyright has been obtained; and 

 
B. Any rights of copyright to which a Recipient, Subrecipient, or a third-

party contractor purchases ownership with Federal assistance. 
 

iii. When FMCSA provides assistance to a Recipient for a Project involving 
planning, research, or development of a system, program, document, 
enforcement concept, or any other activity provided for in the terms of this grant, 
it is generally FMCSA's intent to increase the body of knowledge, rather than to 
limit the benefits of the Project to those parties that have participated therein. 
Therefore, unless FMCSA determines otherwise, the Recipient understands and 
agrees that, in addition to the rights set forth in preceding portions of this section 
of this Agreement, FMCSA may make available to any FMCSA Recipient, 
Subrecipient, third-party contractor, or third-party subcontractor, either 
FMCSA's license in the copyright to the "subject data" derived under this 
Agreement or a copy of the "subject data" first produced under this Agreement. 
In the event that such a Project which is the subject of this Agreement is not 
completed, for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under that Project shall 
become subject data as defined herein and shall be delivered as FMCSA may 
direct. 

 
iv. Unless prohibited by State law, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, save and hold 

harmless FMCSA, its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of 
their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting 
from any willful or intentional violation by the Recipient of proprietary rights, 
copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, 
reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under this 
Agreement. The Recipient shall not be required to indemnify FMCSA for any 
such liability arising out of the wrongful acts of employees or agents of FMCSA. 

 
v. Nothing contained in this section on rights in data, shall imply a license to 

FMCSA under any patent or be construed as affecting the scope of any license or 
other right otherwise granted to FMCSA under any patent. 

 
vi. The requirements of this section of this Agreement do not apply to material 

furnished to the Recipient by FMCSA and incorporated in the work carried out 



under this Agreement, provided that such incorporated material is identified by 
the Recipient at the time of delivery of such work. 

 
vii. Unless FMCSA determines otherwise, the Recipient agrees to include the 

requirements of this section of this Agreement in its third-party contracts for 
planning, research, development, or demonstration under the Project. 

 

c. Acknowledgment or Support and Disclaimer. 

 

i. An acknowledgment of FMCSA support and a disclaimer must appear in any 
Recipient publication, whether copyrighted or not, based on or developed under 
the Agreement, in the following terms: 

 
"This material is based upon work supported by the Federal Motor Carrier Safety 
Administration under a grant/cooperative agreement/subaward, dated (fill-in 
appropriate identification of grant/cooperative agreement);” 

 
ii.  All Recipient publications must also contain the following: 

 
"Any opinions, findings, and conclusions or recommendations expressed this 
publication are those of the author(s) and do not necessarily reflect the view of 
the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration and/or the U.S. Department of 
Transportation." 

 
iii. The Recipient agrees to cause to be erected at the site of any construction, and 

maintain during construction, signs satisfactory to FMCSA identifying the 
Project and indicating that FMCSA is participating in the development of the 
Project. 

 

Section 28. Drug Free Workplace. 

 
By signing this agreement, the Recipient certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug-Free 
Workplace Act (41 U.S.C. §§ 701 et seq.) and implementing regulations (49 C.F.R. part 32), 
which require, in part, that Recipients prohibit drug use in the workplace, notify the FMCSA of 
employee convictions for violations of criminal drug laws occurring in the workplace, and take 
appropriate personnel action against a convicted employee or require the employee to 
participate in a drug abuse assistance program. 

 

Section 29. Background Screening. 

 
FMCSA reserves the right to perform individual background screening on key individuals of 
organizational units associated with the application at the effective date and at another interval 
thereafter for the life of the award. If in performance of a grant award requires Recipient 
organization personnel to have unsupervised physical access to a federally controlled facility for  
 
 



more than 180 days or access to a Federal information system, such personnel must undergo the 
personal identity verification credential process under Homeland Security Presidential Directive 
12. 
 

Section 30. Site Visits. 

 
FMCSA, through its authorized representatives, has the right, at all reasonable times, to make 
site visits to review Project accomplishments and management control systems and to provide 
such technical assistance as may be required. If any site visit is made by FMCSA on the 
premises of the Recipient, Subrecipient, or contractor under this Agreement, the Recipient shall 
provide and shall require its Subrecipients or contractors to provide, all reasonable facilities and 
assistance for the safety and convenience of FMCSA representatives in the performance of their 
duties. All site visits and evaluations shall be performed in such a manner as will not unduly 
delay work being conducted by the Recipient, Subrecipient, or subcontractor. 
 

Section 31. Liability.  
 
The Recipient acknowledges it is responsible for any act or omission of Recipient or 
Subrecipient, its officers, contractors, employees, or members, participants, agents, 
representatives, as appropriate, arising out of or in any way connected to activities authorized 
pursuant to this Agreement.   
 
The Recipient acknowledges that FMCSA is not responsible for any act or omission of 
Recipient or Subrecipient, its officers, contractors, employees, or members, participants, agents, 
representatives, as appropriate, arising out of or in any way connected to activities authorized 
pursuant to this Agreement. This provision shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 

 

Section 32. Right of FMCSA to Terminate Agreement. 

 

a. General Right to Suspend or Terminate Assistance Agreement. 

 
Upon written notice, the Recipient agrees that FMCSA may suspend or terminate all or 
part of the financial assistance provided herein if the Recipient has violated the terms of 
the Grant Agreement or these Provisions and Assurances, or if FMCSA determines that 
the purposes of the statute under which the Project is authorized would not be adequately 
served by continuation of Federal financial assistance for the Project.  Any failure to 
make reasonable progress on the Project or other violation of this Agreement that 
significantly endangers substantial performance of the Project shall provide sufficient 
grounds for FMCSA to terminate this Agreement. The Recipient agrees to give the 
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration at least 90 days' notice of its intention to 
terminate this agreement. 

 

b. Financial Obligations of the Government. 

 
In general, termination of any financial assistance under this Agreement will not 



invalidate obligations properly incurred by the Recipient and concurred by FMCSA 
before the termination date; to the extent those correctly accrued obligations cannot be 
cancelled. 

 
However, if FMCSA determines that the Recipient has willfully misused Federal 
assistance funds by failing to make adequate progress, failing to make reasonable use of 
the Project property, facilities, or equipment, or failing to adhere to the terms of this 
Agreement, meet required match/cost sharing or maintenance of effort (MOE) levels, 
FMCSA reserves the right to require the Recipient to refund the entire amount of 
FMCSA funds provided under this Agreement or any lesser amount as may be 
determined by FMCSA. 

 

c. De-obligation of Funds. 

 
FMCSA reserves the right to unilaterally de-obligate any remaining grant or cooperative 
agreement funds due to the time elapsed since the effective date, lack of payment 
vouchers from the Recipient, lack of plans to expend funds based on this grant, failure to 
provide quarterly progress reports, or other such determination made by FMCSA. If 
FMCSA takes action to deobligate funds, a grant amendment/modification must be in 
place. 

 

Section 33. Project Completion, Settlement, and Closeout. 

 

a. Project Completion. 

 

Within 90 days of the Project completion date or termination by FMCSA, the Recipient 
agrees to submit a final SF-425, Federal Financial Report, a certification or summary of 
Project expenses, and third-party au it reports, as applicable. 

 

b. Remittance of Excess Payments. 

 

If FMCSA has made payments to the Recipient in excess of the total amount of FMCSA 
Federal funding due to cover accumulated expenses, the Recipient agrees to promptly 
remit that excess and interest as may be required by the "Payment by FMCSA" section 
of this Attachment. 

 

c. Project Closeout. 

 

Project closeout, as defined in 2 C.F.R. § 200.16, occurs when all required Project work 
and all administrative procedures described in 2 C.F.R. § 200.343, as applicable, have 
been completed, and when FMCSA notifies the Recipient and forwards the final Federal 
assistance payment, or when FMCSA acknowledges the Recipient's remittance of the 
proper refund amount. Project closeout shall not invalidate any continuing obligations 
imposed by allowable, allocable, and reasonable costs on the Recipient by this 
Agreement that supports the project plan(s) or by the FMCSA's final notification or 
acknowledgment, if it occurs within the period of performance. 



 

Section 34. Severability. 

 
If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, all remaining provisions of this Agreement 
shall continue in full force and effect to the extent not inconsistent with such holding. 
 

Section 35. Entire Agreement and Amendments. 

 
This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. All prior discussions and 
understandings concerning such scope and subject matter are superseded by this Agreement. 
 
Any modification not specifically permitted by this agreement requires an Amendment. These 
modifications may be made only in writing, signed by each party's authorized representative, 
and specifically referred to as an Amendment to this Agreement. Electronic signatures are 
binding. However, retroactive modifications to the project plan(s) or any aspects of the budget 
will not be approved. 
 

Section 36. Use of Information Obtained. 

 
Information obtained under this agreement may only be used by the Recipient to accomplish the 
project plan under this agreement. 
 
Any information obtained or exchanged between FMCSA and the grant Recipient, to carry out 
each party 's responsibility under this agreement and project plan, shall not be released by the 
Recipient to any third-party without the written permission of FMCSA. 
 
Recipient shall ensure that all its employees authorized to access FMCSA data and information 
systems sign and submit information technology user agreements provided by FMCSA. 
 

Section 37. Miscellaneous Provisions. 

 

a. Prohibition on Human Trafficking. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with the provisions of Section 7104(g) 
of the Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000, 22 U.S.C. § 7104 as amended. 

 

b. Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 1968. 

 
The Recipient agrees to comply, as applicable, with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting components or potential 
components of the national wild and scenic rivers system. 

 

c. Fly America Act. 

 
The Recipient shall comply with the provisions of the Fly America Act, 49 U.S.C. § 
401 18. 



 

d. Criminal and Prohibited Activities. 

 
The Recipient will adhere to the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act, 31 U.S.C. § 
3801- 3812, which provides for the imposition of civil penalties against persons who 
make false, fictitious, or fraudulent claims to the Federal Government for money.  
Recipient will also adhere to the False Statements Act, 18 U.S.C. §§ 287 and 1001 
which provides that whoever makes or presents any false, fictitious or fraudulent 
statements, representation, or claims against the United States shall be subject to 
imprisonment of not more than 5 years and shall be subject to a fine in the amount 
provided by 18 U.S.C. § 287.  Recipient shall also adhere to the False Claims Act, 31 
U.S.C. § 3729, which provides that suits u nder this act can be brought by the 
Government or a person on behalf of the Government, for false claims under the 
Federal assistance programs.  Recipient shall also adhere to the Copeland "Anti- 
Kickback" Act, 18 U.S.C. § 874 and 40 U.S.C. § 3145, which prohibits a person or 
organization engaged in a federally supported project from enticing an employee 
working on the project from giving up a part of his compensation under an 
employment contract. 

 

Section 38. Laptop Encryption. 

 

All laptops used by Recipients, Subrecipients, and contractors in carrying out the Recipient 's 
project plan, which contain FMCSA-related data, including sensitive information and 
Personally Identifiable Information (PII), must be encrypted to the same standards utilized by 
FMCSA. The FMCSA encryptions standards prescribe whole disk encryption (FOE), which 
requires software or hardware to encrypt all data on a disk, including the partition tables, whole 
physical disk, master boot record, and available files. FMCSA requires that each Recipient who 
utilizes FMCSA sensitive information or PII complete installation of FOE on all laptop 
computers as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty (30) days from the execution of this 
agreement and prior to using the laptop to access FMCSA data systems or store FMCSA related 
data. 

 

Section 39. Adaptability to Climate Changes. 

 
If the grant is to be used to place equipment or temporary facilities, modify structures, or to alter 
existing infrastructure, the recipient is required to assess the ability for the equipment, 
modifications, or alterations to withstand current and future climatic conditions, including 
potential changes in climatic conditions. The recipient shall use the best-available peer reviewed 
studies and science to determine the potential climatic conditions the equipment, modifications 
or alterations may experience over the life-cycle of the equipment, modification or alteration 
funded by the grant. The recipient can rely on existing Federal Highway Administration 
suggestions or guidelines for placing infrastructure, or on other federally-issued guidance on 
assessing potential impacts of climate change. 
 
 
 



Section 40.         Commercial Vehicle Information Systems and Networks (CVISN) 

provisions.  

 
The following provisions apply where applicable. 
 

a. Compliance with the National ITS Architecture. 

 
The recipient will ensure that Innovative Technology Deployment (ITD) activities, such 
as hardware procurement, software and system development, infrastructure 
modifications, etc., are consistent with the National ITS and commercial motor vehicle 
information and systems architectures and available standards and promote 
interoperability and efficiency to the extent practicable and required by law. 

 

b. Interoperability. 

 
For implementing ITD capabilities, the recipient will complete interoperability tests and 
ensure architectural conformance throughout the life of the project. Perform pairwise and 
end-to-end tests to demonstrate conformance with the standards and interoperability, 
verify that interfaces between selected products/systems meet the applicable standards, 
verify dataflow and data usage among the products/systems. 

 

c. Independent Evaluation. 

 
The FMCSA may conduct an independent evaluation of the effectiveness of the project 
in achieving Federal and State program goals. The independent evaluation will be 
conducted using existing Federal resources. Participants of projects that are selected for 
independent evaluations shall cooperate with the independent evaluators and participate 
in evaluation planning and progress review meetings to ensure a mutually acceptable, 
successful implementation of the independent evaluation. The FMCSA may contract with 
one or more independent evaluation contractor(s) to evaluate the projects. 

 

d. Dedicated Short-Range Communications. 

 
If applicable, the State shall also require that its contractors only install Dedicated Short 
Range Communications (DSRC) equipment that is interoperable and compatible at layers 
1 and 2 of the Open Systems Interconnect Reference Model with equipment in operation 
on the North American Preclearance and Safety System and the Heavy Vehicle 
Electronic License Plate Inc.'s PrePass™ System deployments as well as the International 
Border Crossing Operational Tests, based upon on ASTM Draft 6, dated February 23, 
1996. 

 

Section 41. Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act. 

 
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006 (Public Law 109-
282) requires for each Federal award of $25,000 or more that OMB create a 
searchable, no cost, publicly accessible website(http://usaspending.gov/) that includes basic 



information about the recipient and the project being funded. The Government Funding 
Transparency Act of 2008 (Public Law 110-252) amended FFATA, requiring recipients to 
report certain information about themselves and their first tier Subrecipient awards obligated as 
of October 1, 2010. Prime grant recipients/awardees of new non-Recovery Act federally funded 
grants and cooperative agreements of $25,000 or more awarded on or after October 1, 2010 are 
subject to FFATA reporting, sub-award reporting requirements and executive compensation 
reporting requirements as outlined in the Office of Management and Budgets guidance issued 
August 27, 2010. The prime awardee is required to file a FFATA sub-award report by the end 
of the month following the month in which the prime recipient awards any sub-grant greater 
than or equal to $25,000. 

 

Section 42. Executive Order 13513. 

 
Executive Order 13513 (E.O. 13513) requires each Federal agency to encourage contractors, 
subcontractors, and grant and cooperative agreement recipients and subrecipients to adopt and 
enforce policies that ban text messaging while driving company-owned or -rented vehicles or 
Government Owned Vehicles, or while driving Personally Owned Vehicles when on official 
Government business or when performing any work for or on behalf of the Government. To 
further the requirement of encouraging such policies, the FMCSA encourages recipients to 
consider new rules and programs, reevaluate existing programs to prohibit text messaging while 
driving, and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach for employees about the risks 
associated with texting while driving. These initiatives should encourage voluntary compliance 
with the recipient agency's text messaging policy while off duty. For the purposes of these 
Grant Provisions and Assurances and pursuant to E.O. 13513, the following definitions apply: 
  

"Texting" or "Text Messaging" means reading from or entering data into any handheld 
or other electronic device, including for the purpose of SMS texting, e-mailing, instant 
messaging, obtaining navigational information, or engaging in any other form of 
electronic data retrieval or electronic data communication. 

 
"Driving" means operating a motor vehicle on an active roadway with the motor 
running, including while temporarily stationary because of traffic, a traffic light or stop 
sign, or otherwise. It does not include operating a motor vehicle with or without the 
motor running when one has pulled over to the side of, or off, an active roadway and has 
halted in a location where one can safely remain stationary. 

 

Section 43.   Certification. 

 
The Recipient certifies that the statements it made in the grant application are true and correct, 
and Recipient understands that any false statements made as part of these certifications can be 
prosecuted. 



Number 

of 

Personnel

Hours 

Per 

Detail

Number of 

Details

Total 

Number of 

Hours

Hourly 

Pay Rate
Fringe

Total Cost 

for Objective

15% In-Kind 

Match

Inspection & 

Enforcement
1 4 440 1760 $61.51 $14.73 $134,185.30 $20,127.79

Multi-Officer Team 

Enforcement
10 3 8 240 $61.51 $14.73 $18,297.99 $2,744.70

Administrative Time 80 $76.03 $18.21 $7,539.13 $1,130.87

$160,022.42 $24,003.36

`

Number 

of 

Personnel

Hours 

Per 

Detail

Number of 

Details

Total 

Number of 

Hours

Hourly 

Pay Rate
Fringe

Total Cost 

for Objective

15% In-Kind 

Match

Inspection and 

Enforcement Officers
2 5 120 1200 $61.51 $14.73 $91,489.97 $13,723.50

Administrative Time 40 $76.03 $18.21 $3,769.57 $565.44

$95,259.54 $14,288.93

Number 

of 

Personnel

Hours 

Per 

Detail

Number of 

Details

Total 

Number of 

Hours

Hourly 

Pay Rate
Fringe

Total Cost 

for Objective

15% In-Kind 

Match

Truck Route 

Safety/Compliance
1 5 440 2200 $61.51 $14.73 $167,731.62 $25,159.74

Operation Safe Driver 

(Education)
2 10 1 20 $61.51 $14.73 $1,524.83 $228.72

Operation Safe Driver 

(Enforcement)
2 4 8 64 $61.51 $14.73 $4,879.47 $731.92

Motor Carrier Safety 

Meetings
2 5 4 40 $61.51 $14.73 $3,049.67 $457.45

Administrative Time 80 $76.03 $18.21 $7,539.13 $1,130.87

$184,724.72 $27,708.71

Targeting Unsafe Driving of CMVs & Non-CMVs in High Risk Crash Corridors

Improve CMV Safety and Compliance with CMV Regulations

Total for Section Objectives

Total for Section Objectives

Total for Section Objectives

Education and Awareness Enforcement



Event

Members

hip and 

Fees

Travel
Lodging 

and Meals

Total Per 

Person

Total Cost 

for Objective

Less City 

Cash Match

CVSA Membership $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 $75.00

2020 CVSA Annual 

Conf
$550.00 $400.00 $1,288.00 $2,238.00 $4,476.00 $671.40

2021 CVSA 

Workshop
$550.00 $400.00 $1,648.00 $2,598.00 $5,196.00 $779.40

2021 CVSA Annual 

Conf
$600.00 $400.00 $1,288.00 $2,288.00 $4,576.00 $686.40

2022 CVSA 

Workshop
$550.00 $400.00 $1,648.00 $2,598.00 $5,196.00 $779.40

2022 CVSA Annual 

Conf
$600.00 $400.00 $1,288.00 $2,288.00 $4,576.00 $686.40

2021 COHMED $450.00 $100.00 $1,116.00 $1,666.00 $1,666.00 $249.90

2022 COHMED $450.00 $100.00 $1,116.00 $1,666.00 $1,666.00 $249.90

NARS Part A $0.00 $0.00 $675.00 $675.00 $1,350.00 $202.50

NARS Part B $0.00 $0.00 $675.00 $675.00 $1,350.00 $202.50

NARS Part C $0.00 $0.00 $675.00 $675.00 $1,350.00 $202.50

$31,902.00 $4,785.30

Total Cost 

for Objective

Less City 

Cash Match

Computer Software Licenses $0.00 $0.00

Inspection Equipment $0.00 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00

Total Cost Local Funds

$471,908.68

$66,001.00

$4,785.30

$70,786.30

15% check $70,786.30

85% check $401,122.38

2

2

2

1

2

2

2

Education and Awareness Training

Total for Section Objectives

Attendee's

1

2

2

1

Total Objective/Grant Cost For Program

Total In-Kind Match

Total Cash Match

Total Match

Equipment and Supplies - Not requested in Grant

Total for Section Objectives

Program Totals



Total Grant 

Funding

$114,057.50 $108,257.60 $25,927.70

$15,553.30 $14,762.40 $3,535.59

$6,408.26 $6,082.40 $1,456.73

$136,019.06

Total Grant 

Funding

$77,766.48 $73,812.00 $17,677.97

$3,204.13 $3,041.20 $728.37

$80,970.61

Total Grant 

Funding

$142,571.88 $135,322.00 $32,409.62

$1,296.11 $1,230.20 $294.63

$4,147.55 $3,936.64 $942.83

$2,592.22 $2,460.40 $589.27

$6,408.26 $6,082.40 $1,456.73

$157,016.01

Targeting Unsafe Driving of CMVs & Non-CMVs in High Risk Crash Corridors

Improve CMV Safety and Compliance with CMV Regulations

Education and Awareness Enforcement



Total Grant 

Funding
Travel Other

$425.00 $0.00 $500.00

$3,804.60 $3,376.00 $1,100.00

$4,416.60 $4,096.00 $1,100.00

$3,889.60 $3,376.00 $1,200.00

$4,416.60 $4,096.00 $1,100.00

$3,889.60 $3,376.00 $1,200.00

$1,416.10 $1,216.00 $450.00

$1,416.10 $1,216.00 $450.00

$1,147.50 $1,350.00 $0.00

$1,147.50 $1,350.00 $0.00

$1,147.50 $1,350.00 $0.00

$27,116.70

Total Grant 

Funding

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

Grant Funds

$401,122.38

$8,848.29 $17,696.58

$50,140.30 $100,280.60

Education and Awareness Training

Equipment and Supplies - Not requested in Grant

Program Totals



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10287 Name: SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan
- Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District
1)

Status:Type: Ordinance Planning and Zoning Cases to be Tabled

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council
District 1).  Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The
subject property is zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-
161) Overlay Corridor District. Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, the 4.188-acre property is generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard and
Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at 3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd.

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Monica Espinoza

Title

SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District 1).
Specific Use Permit and Site Plan for a Truck Stop with Gas Sales on 4.188 acres.  The subject property is
zoned Light Industrial (LI) District and is located within State Highway-161 (SH-161) Overlay Corridor
District. Situated in the J. Reed Survey, Abstract 1183, Grand Prairie, Dallas County, the 4.188-acre property is
generally located at the southeast corner of Trinity Boulevard and Roy Orr Boulevard, specifically addressed at
3109 & 3113 Roy Orr Blvd. (On August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a
vote of 9-0)

Presenter

Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action

Table

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 
 

 
 

 
 

REGULAR PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Chairperson Josh Spare, Vice-Chairperson Shawn Connor, 
Secretary Max Coleman, and Commissioners, Cheryl Smith, Julia Perez, Bill Moser, Eric Hedin, 
Warren Landrum, Clayton Fisher. 
     
COMMISSIONERS ABSENT:  
 
CITY STAFF PRESENT: Deputy City Manager Bill Crolley, Planning and Development Director, 
Rashad Jackson, Savannah Ware, Chief City Planner, Mark Dempsey, Deputy City Attorney, Brett 
Huntsman, Transportation Planner, Monica Espinoza, Executive Assistant. 
  
Chairperson Josh Spare called the meeting to order by Video Conference at 6:31 p.m. and 
Commissioner Moser gave the invocation, and Chairperson Spare led the pledge of allegiance to 
the US Flag, and the Texas Flag. 
 
Citizen Comments: None  
 
AGENDA ITEM: #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES: To approve the minutes of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting of August 10, 2020.  
  

CONSENT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA Item #2- P200801 - Preliminary Plat - Heritage 
Towne (City Council District 6).  Preliminary Plat for Heritage Towne, a single family 
residential development with 104 residential lots and 9 open space lots on 39.539 acres.  Tracts 
186713 and 186714, J Lawrence Survey, Abstract No.616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, 
Texas.  Zoned PD-399 and addressed as 2925 Davis Drive. 

Item #3 – P200802 - Final Plat - Mira Lagos East Commercial Addition, Lot 33, Block D (City 
Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 33, Block D out of 1 acre from the BBB & C RR 
Survey.  Tracts 2.7, and 4.1, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas 
County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of Lake 
Ridge Parkway and south of England. 
 
 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

2 
 

 
 

Item #4- P200803 - Final Plat - Lake Ridge - Grand Peninsula Addition, Lot 1, Block 1 (City 
Council District 4).  A Final Plat to create Lot 1, Block 1 out of 3.545 acres from the BBB & C 
RR Survey.  Tracts 2.3, and 3, BBB & C RR Survey, Abstract 1700, City of Grand Prairie, 
Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-365, Lake Ridge Parkway Overlay, generally located west of 
Lake Ridge Parkway and north of S. Grand. 
 
Item #5- P200401 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 4 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for 
Greenway Trails Phase 4, creating 131 residential lots and three non-residential lots on 62.129 
acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County, 
Texas.  Zoned PD-322 and generally located north of US-287, east of SH-360, and west of FM-
661. 

Item #6- P200402 - Final Plat - Greenway Trails Phase 5 (City Council District 6).  Final Plat for 
Greenway Trails Phase 5, creating 129 residential lots and six non-residential lots on 75.830 
acres out of the Joseph Lawrence Survey, Abstract No. 616, City of Grand Prairie, Ellis County.  
The subject property is zoned PD-322A and is generally located north of US-287, east of SH-
360, and west of FM-661. 

Item #7- S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an 
industrial contractor shop and office space on 3.705 acres 3.705 acre tract, Tarpley Holland 
Survey, Abstract No. 750, (R.E.S.Subdivision) City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas, 
zoned PD-371, generally located southeast Jefferson Street and S. Great South Parkway, and 
addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway. 

 
Vice Chairperson Connor moved to approve the minutes, cases P200801, P200802, P200803, 
P200401, P200402, and S200803. 
 
Motion:  Connor     
Second:   Moser                               
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #8 - SU200801/S200801 - Specific Use Permit/Site Plan - 
Race Trac - Roy Orr & Trinity (City Council District 1).   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and table case SU200801/S200801.   



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

3 
 

 
 

 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second: Connor                            
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez 
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING TABLE ITEM #9 - CP200801- Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City 
Council District 2).   
 
There being no further discussion on the case commissioner Moser moved to close the public 
hearing and table case CP200801.   
 
The action and vote recorded as follows:   
 
Motion:  Moser 
Second:  Smith                           
Ayes:  Spare, Moser, Landrum, Connor, Fisher, Smith, Coleman, Hedin, Perez  
Nays:  None 
Approved: 9-0 
Motion:  carried.  
 
 
 
 
Commissioner Moser moved to adjourn the meeting.  The meeting adjourned at 6:40 p.m. 
 
 
 
_______________________  
Joshua Spare, Chairperson  
 
 
 
ATTEST: 



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES, AUGUST 24, 2020 
 

4 
 

 
 

 
 
______________________  
Max Coleman, Secretary 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
An audio recording of this meeting is available on request at 972-237-8255. 
 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10281 Name: CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman

Status:Type: Agenda Item Planning and Zoning Cases to be Tabled

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the
Cottages at Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on
15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas
County, Texas, zoned PD-20, within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the
northwest corner of Dechman Dr and the IH-20 frontage road.
(On August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a vote of 9-0)

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
CP200801 - Concept Plan - Cottages at Dechman (City Council District 2).  Concept Plan for the Cottages at
Dechman, a multi-family development with a mixture of attached and detached units on 15.91 acres.  Tract 2 of
Leonidas O'Gwinn Survey, Abstract No. 1105, City of Grand Prairie, Dallas County, Texas, zoned PD-20,
within the IH-20 Corridor Overlay District, and generally located at the northwest corner of Dechman Dr and

the IH-20 frontage road.
(On August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission tabled this case by a vote of 9-0)

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Table

Analysis

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10284 Name: S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing

Status:Type: Agenda Item Planning and Zoning Items for Individual
Consideration

File created: In control:8/18/2020 Planning and Zoning Commission

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an industrial contractor
shop and office space on 3.705 acres.  Lot 2, Block A, R.E.S.Subdivision, City of Grand Prairie,
Tarrant County, Texas, zoned PD-371, and addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway. (On
August 24, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of this request by a
vote of 9-0).

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A Location Map

Exhibit B S200803 SP

S200803 Exhibit C Landscape Plan

Exhibit D S200803 Elev

PZ Draft Minutes 08-24-2020.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Monica Espinoza

Title
S200803 - Site Plan - Ashton Sawing (City Council District 1).  Site Plan for an industrial contractor shop and
office space on 3.705 acres.  Lot 2, Block A, R.E.S.Subdivision, City of Grand Prairie, Tarrant County, Texas,
zoned PD-371, and addressed as 415 S. Great Southwest Parkway. (On August 24, 2020, the Planning and
Zoning Commission recommended approval of this request by a vote of 9-0).

Presenter
Savannah Ware, AICP, Chief City Planner

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis

PURPOSE OF REQUEST:

The applicant intends to construct a 7,500-sq. ft. building on 3.705 acres. Site Plan approval by City Council is
required for any project involving commercial use. Development at this location requires City Council
approval of a Site Plan because the property is intended for industrial contractor warehouse and office use.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10284, Version: 1

The purpose of site plan approval is to ensure that development meets requirements in the Unified
Development Code (UDC), provides adequate circulation, and uses quality site planning techniques. The UDC
identifies criteria for evaluating proposed developments. Criteria include density and dimensional standards,
landscaping and screening requirements, and architectural design for special districts.

ADJACENT LAND USES:

The following table summarizes the zoning designation and existing use for the surrounding properties.

Table 1: Adjacent Zoning and Land Uses

Direction Zoning Existing Use

North PD-387 & CO Commercial/Retail Uses

South CO Motel/Hotel Uses

West CO Vacant

East PD-371 Open Storage Uses

PROPOSED USE CHARACTERISTICS AND FUNCTION:

The site will be accessible from Great Southwest Parkway. The access drive will provide both ingress/egress to
the proposed shop and office facility. The site includes a designated fire lane that loops around the building.
The 7,500 sq. ft. building includes a 5,500 sq. ft. shop/warehouse space and a 2,000 sq. ft. office space. The
site plan provides adequate employee and visitor parking spaces. Company vehicles will be parked overnight
on-site.

ZONING REQUIREMENTS:

Density and Dimensional Requirements

Development is subject to the LI standards in the UDC. The following table evaluates the density and
dimensional standards of the proposed development. The proposal meets the density and dimensional
requirements.

Table 2: Site Data Summary

Standard Required Provided Meets

Min. Lot Area (Sq. Ft.) 15,000 161,390 Yes

Min. Lot Width (Ft.) 100 333 Yes

Min. Lot Depth (Ft.) 150 411 Yes

Front Setback (Ft.) 25 80 Yes

Rear Setback (Ft.) 0 0 Yes

Max. Height (Ft.) 25 25 Yes

Max. Floor Area Ratio 1:1 0.04:1 Yes

Parking

The required number of parking spaces is calculated based on use. The following table shows the required
parking and provided parking.  The number of parking spaces exceeds what is required.

Table 3: Required Parking

Use Standard Required Provided

Office 1 Space/325 sq. ft. 7 36

Shop 1 Space/1,000 sq. ft. 6   6

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10284, Version: 1
Table 3: Required Parking

Use Standard Required Provided

Office 1 Space/325 sq. ft. 7 36

Shop 1 Space/1,000 sq. ft. 6   6

Landscape and Screening

The property is subject to landscape and screening requirements in Article 8 of the UDC. The table below
summarizes these requirements.  The proposal meets the landscape and screening requirements.

Table 4: Landscape & Screening Requirements

Standard Required Provided Meets

Area (Sq. Ft.) 3,200 35,372 Yes

Trees 7 13 Yes

Shrubs 64 113 Yes

Building Materials and Design

As reflected on the building exterior elevations, the building will consist of 54% metal panel and 26% masonry
exterior elements and roughly 4% glazing. The western elevation facing S. Great Southwest Parkway provides
for primarily masonry (thin-set) stone design with glass door store front and three windows. The four bay
doors are orientated in a north-south fashion but will not be primarily visible from the street.

VARIANCES:

The applicant is not requesting any variances.

RECOMMENDATION:

The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval by a vote of 9-0.
The Development Review Committee (DRC) recommends approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



Co
x S

t
W Main St

W Jefferson St

We Roberts St

S G
re

at
 So

ut
hw

es
t P

kw
y

Sherman St

Hines Av

Hospital Blvd

Pa
rk

wa
y D

r
Nw

 25
th

 St

E Abram St

CASE LOCATION MAP
Case Number S200803
Ashton Sawing ´

Development Services
(972) 237-8255
www.gptx.org

City of Grand Prairie

T161

§̈¦30

EXHIBIT A





12'' W 12'' W 12'' W 12'' W
2'' W

EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS EX-8'' SS

4'' SS

4'' SS
4'' SS

EX-6'' SS
EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX-6'' SS

EX
-6

'' S
S

5 TC

1
ESP2
ZEX

ZEX8

5 IJ7
BM

S

5 R
S

6 AS
R

Y3

R
Y6

6
ZEX

C
O1

C
O1

4
M

FG

3 R
Y

PM8

C
O1

C
E1

7
M

FG

1 C
E

54
D

BH

C
E1 C
E1C

E1C
E1

C
E1

1 C
O

1 C
O 1 C

O

X1

EXH
IBIT C



EXHIBIT D



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10259 Name: Ordinance Amending the FY 2019/2020 Operating
Budgets

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Budget

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance Amending the FY 2019/2020 Operating Budgets

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Kathleen C. Mercer

Title

Ordinance Amending the FY 2019/2020 Operating Budgets

Presenter

Kathleen C. Mercer, Director of Budget/Purchasing

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

As part of the Budget process projections (how the fiscal year will end) for the FY 2019/2020 Operating Funds
are reviewed by the City Manager and are presented to the City Council.  There are several funds that have
exceeded the approved appropriation budget and are now having to be approved for the incremental increase by
the City Council.

Financial Consideration

Funding for the incremental increases are available either from the fund balance or better than expected
revenues in each of the individual funds.  The detailed information for the total incremental increase of
$2,407,830 is provided in the ordinance.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, APPROVING THE BUDGET
SUBMITTED BY THE CITY MANAGER OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AS
REVISED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AMENDING THE CURRENT FY 2019/2020 OPERATING
BUDGETS REFLECTED IN SECTION 1 BELOW:

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10259, Version: 1

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS;

SECTION 1. THAT THE Operating Budgets for FY 2019/2020 submitted by the City Manager, and adjusted
by the Council, is hereby incrementally amended for the following funds:

OPERATING BUDGET  INCREMENTAL CHANGE
  Airport                                      121,219
  Cemetery                                        66,398
  Juvenile Case Manager                                        37,789
  Prairie Lights                                      340,343
  Water Wastewater                                   1,351,224
  Water Wastewater Debt Service                                      490,857

TOTAL INCREMENTAL CHANGE                                   2,407,830

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10257 Name: Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Budget

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

City Council9/1/2020 1

From
Kathleen C. Mercer

Title
Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets

Presenter
Kathleen C. Mercer, Director of Budget/Purchasing

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On August 13, 2020, the City Manager’s proposed budget was submitted to the City Council. The City Council
met to review the proposed budget at the workshop on August 21, 2020.

Financial Consideration
The combined FY 2020/2021 City Operating Budgets proposed total is $406,504,723. Significant changes and
issues included in the Proposed FY 2020/2021 Operating Budgets are summarized as follows:

GENERAL FUND RESOURCES $142,131,147
Taxable value increase of 4.5751% increase of $3,207,012
Increase in Proposed property tax rate from .457128 to .460638 (moved .00351 from Debt Service)
Increase in TIF Reimbursement, Interest & Delinquent Taxes of ($2,383,985)
Decrease in sales tax of ($196,012)
Decrease in franchise fee and other taxes of ($236,656)
Decrease in Charges for Services of ($699,381)
Decrease in licenses and permits of  ($262,705)
Decrease in fines/forfeits of ($1,523,373)
Increase in inter/intra governmental revenue $59,177
Increase in Indirect Cost of $379,156
Decrease in Miscellaneous Revenues ($7,706)

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $148,046,434
Proposed improvements in the General Fund include:
Civil Service Step
Frozen positions, reduced supplies, other charges and services and capital outlay
Proposed capital outlay in the General Fund totals $662,000 and includes vehicle replacements

WATER AND WASTEWATER FUND $85,741,139
An average increase of 4.5% to water and wastewater rates to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
Includes increase in water and wastewater purchase costs for anticipated growth and system demands.
Includes funding for capital outlay.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE FUND $34,314,433
Meets debt service requirements.
Decrease in Proposed property tax rate from .212870 to .209360 (moved .00351 from General Fund)

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND $20,405,279
Includes employee and retiree medical and prescription claims of $17,528,064

PARK VENUE FUND $18,431,391
Includes a transfer from the General fund of $6,560,077
Expenditures include: the Ruthe Jackson Center, Tony Shotwell Center, Uptown Theatre, Market Square and
The Summit.
Includes $1,500,000 transfer to the Park Capital Projects Fund.

SOLID WASTE FUND $15,370,647
Funding for the Landfill and Recycling Operations $12,033,969
Funding for the Auto-Related Business program $387,237
Funding for the Brush Crew program $780,210
Funding for the Keep Grand Prairie Beautiful program $398,408
Funding of $1,770,823 transfers to the various Solid Waste Funds

COMMUNITY POLICING FUND $12,776,353
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.
Includes 50 positions.

EPIC FUND $11,806,834
Includes Debt Service payment
Expenditures for new recreation center

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND $11,128,441
Expenditures include three full time positions.

STORM WATER UTILITY FUND $8,954,703
Includes $372,5000 for Storm Sewer Maintenance.
Includes $6,325,724 transfer to the Storm Water Utility Capital Projects Fund.

FLEET SERVICES FUND $6,762,793
Expenditures include vehicle maintenance.

WATER WASTEWATER DEBT SERVICE FUND $6,556,904
Includes Debt Service payment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND $4,526,452
Expenditures include premium payments for worker’s compensation, property and liability.

LAKE PARKS FUND $3,325,953
Expenditures include: Loyd and Lynn Creek Park Sites, the Lodge, the Cabins and the Camp Store.

GOLF FUND $3,176,252
Budget includes the operation of two City courses.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,897,470
Expenditures include capital outlay for various city departments.

SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,711,500
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

AIRPORT FUND $2,095,002
Budget includes the operation of a City owned municipal airport

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND $1,568,816
Includes Council directed funding.

PRAIRIE LIGHTS FUND $1,276,673
Funding for light show and operations.

FIRE STATE SUPPLEMENTAL $1,152,514
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

CEMETERY FUND $986,676
Expenditures to include increase in marker’s sales.

BASEBALL FUND $500,000
Expenditures for maintenance repairs.

CAPITAL LENDING AND RESERVE FUND $500,000
Expenditures for Economic Development.

EPIC CENTRAL FUND $333,000
Expenditures for City wide events.

CABLE OPERATIONS FUND $273,580
Includes operating cost for two full-time position.

TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVERSION FUND $244,864
Expenditures for a new start up program concerning teens.

US MARSHALS FUND $207,500
Expenditures for maintenance of building and grounds.

MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND $187,199
Expenditures to include software maintenance agreements and computer replacement.

MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING SECURITY FUND $185,296
Expenditures continue to include one full time City Marshall.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT FUND $42,125
Expenditures associated with implementation of program.

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDICIAL EFFICIENCY FUND $18,500
Expenditures include delinquent payment notifications

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10257, Version: 1

GENERAL FUND RESOURCES $142,131,147
Taxable value increase of 4.5751% increase of $3,207,012
Increase in Proposed property tax rate from .457128 to .460638 (moved .00351 from Debt Service)
Increase in TIF Reimbursement, Interest & Delinquent Taxes of ($2,383,985)
Decrease in sales tax of ($196,012)
Decrease in franchise fee and other taxes of ($236,656)
Decrease in Charges for Services of ($699,381)
Decrease in licenses and permits of  ($262,705)
Decrease in fines/forfeits of ($1,523,373)
Increase in inter/intra governmental revenue $59,177
Increase in Indirect Cost of $379,156
Decrease in Miscellaneous Revenues ($7,706)

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $148,046,434
Proposed improvements in the General Fund include:
Civil Service Step
Frozen positions, reduced supplies, other charges and services and capital outlay
Proposed capital outlay in the General Fund totals $662,000 and includes vehicle replacements

WATER AND WASTEWATER FUND $85,741,139
An average increase of 4.5% to water and wastewater rates to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
Includes increase in water and wastewater purchase costs for anticipated growth and system demands.
Includes funding for capital outlay.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE FUND $34,314,433
Meets debt service requirements.
Decrease in Proposed property tax rate from .212870 to .209360 (moved .00351 from General Fund)

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND $20,405,279
Includes employee and retiree medical and prescription claims of $17,528,064

PARK VENUE FUND $18,431,391
Includes a transfer from the General fund of $6,560,077
Expenditures include: the Ruthe Jackson Center, Tony Shotwell Center, Uptown Theatre, Market Square and
The Summit.
Includes $1,500,000 transfer to the Park Capital Projects Fund.

SOLID WASTE FUND $15,370,647
Funding for the Landfill and Recycling Operations $12,033,969
Funding for the Auto-Related Business program $387,237
Funding for the Brush Crew program $780,210
Funding for the Keep Grand Prairie Beautiful program $398,408
Funding of $1,770,823 transfers to the various Solid Waste Funds

COMMUNITY POLICING FUND $12,776,353
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.
Includes 50 positions.

EPIC FUND $11,806,834
Includes Debt Service payment
Expenditures for new recreation center

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND $11,128,441
Expenditures include three full time positions.

STORM WATER UTILITY FUND $8,954,703
Includes $372,5000 for Storm Sewer Maintenance.
Includes $6,325,724 transfer to the Storm Water Utility Capital Projects Fund.

FLEET SERVICES FUND $6,762,793
Expenditures include vehicle maintenance.

WATER WASTEWATER DEBT SERVICE FUND $6,556,904
Includes Debt Service payment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND $4,526,452
Expenditures include premium payments for worker’s compensation, property and liability.

LAKE PARKS FUND $3,325,953
Expenditures include: Loyd and Lynn Creek Park Sites, the Lodge, the Cabins and the Camp Store.

GOLF FUND $3,176,252
Budget includes the operation of two City courses.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,897,470
Expenditures include capital outlay for various city departments.

SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,711,500
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

AIRPORT FUND $2,095,002
Budget includes the operation of a City owned municipal airport

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND $1,568,816
Includes Council directed funding.

PRAIRIE LIGHTS FUND $1,276,673
Funding for light show and operations.

FIRE STATE SUPPLEMENTAL $1,152,514
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

CEMETERY FUND $986,676
Expenditures to include increase in marker’s sales.

BASEBALL FUND $500,000
Expenditures for maintenance repairs.

CAPITAL LENDING AND RESERVE FUND $500,000
Expenditures for Economic Development.

EPIC CENTRAL FUND $333,000
Expenditures for City wide events.

CABLE OPERATIONS FUND $273,580
Includes operating cost for two full-time position.

TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVERSION FUND $244,864
Expenditures for a new start up program concerning teens.

US MARSHALS FUND $207,500
Expenditures for maintenance of building and grounds.

MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND $187,199
Expenditures to include software maintenance agreements and computer replacement.

MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING SECURITY FUND $185,296
Expenditures continue to include one full time City Marshall.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT FUND $42,125
Expenditures associated with implementation of program.

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDICIAL EFFICIENCY FUND $18,500
Expenditures include delinquent payment notifications

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10257, Version: 1

GENERAL FUND RESOURCES $142,131,147
Taxable value increase of 4.5751% increase of $3,207,012
Increase in Proposed property tax rate from .457128 to .460638 (moved .00351 from Debt Service)
Increase in TIF Reimbursement, Interest & Delinquent Taxes of ($2,383,985)
Decrease in sales tax of ($196,012)
Decrease in franchise fee and other taxes of ($236,656)
Decrease in Charges for Services of ($699,381)
Decrease in licenses and permits of  ($262,705)
Decrease in fines/forfeits of ($1,523,373)
Increase in inter/intra governmental revenue $59,177
Increase in Indirect Cost of $379,156
Decrease in Miscellaneous Revenues ($7,706)

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $148,046,434
Proposed improvements in the General Fund include:
Civil Service Step
Frozen positions, reduced supplies, other charges and services and capital outlay
Proposed capital outlay in the General Fund totals $662,000 and includes vehicle replacements

WATER AND WASTEWATER FUND $85,741,139
An average increase of 4.5% to water and wastewater rates to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
Includes increase in water and wastewater purchase costs for anticipated growth and system demands.
Includes funding for capital outlay.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE FUND $34,314,433
Meets debt service requirements.
Decrease in Proposed property tax rate from .212870 to .209360 (moved .00351 from General Fund)

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND $20,405,279
Includes employee and retiree medical and prescription claims of $17,528,064

PARK VENUE FUND $18,431,391
Includes a transfer from the General fund of $6,560,077
Expenditures include: the Ruthe Jackson Center, Tony Shotwell Center, Uptown Theatre, Market Square and
The Summit.
Includes $1,500,000 transfer to the Park Capital Projects Fund.

SOLID WASTE FUND $15,370,647
Funding for the Landfill and Recycling Operations $12,033,969
Funding for the Auto-Related Business program $387,237
Funding for the Brush Crew program $780,210
Funding for the Keep Grand Prairie Beautiful program $398,408
Funding of $1,770,823 transfers to the various Solid Waste Funds

COMMUNITY POLICING FUND $12,776,353
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.
Includes 50 positions.

EPIC FUND $11,806,834
Includes Debt Service payment
Expenditures for new recreation center

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND $11,128,441
Expenditures include three full time positions.

STORM WATER UTILITY FUND $8,954,703
Includes $372,5000 for Storm Sewer Maintenance.
Includes $6,325,724 transfer to the Storm Water Utility Capital Projects Fund.

FLEET SERVICES FUND $6,762,793
Expenditures include vehicle maintenance.

WATER WASTEWATER DEBT SERVICE FUND $6,556,904
Includes Debt Service payment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND $4,526,452
Expenditures include premium payments for worker’s compensation, property and liability.

LAKE PARKS FUND $3,325,953
Expenditures include: Loyd and Lynn Creek Park Sites, the Lodge, the Cabins and the Camp Store.

GOLF FUND $3,176,252
Budget includes the operation of two City courses.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,897,470
Expenditures include capital outlay for various city departments.

SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,711,500
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

AIRPORT FUND $2,095,002
Budget includes the operation of a City owned municipal airport

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND $1,568,816
Includes Council directed funding.

PRAIRIE LIGHTS FUND $1,276,673
Funding for light show and operations.

FIRE STATE SUPPLEMENTAL $1,152,514
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

CEMETERY FUND $986,676
Expenditures to include increase in marker’s sales.

BASEBALL FUND $500,000
Expenditures for maintenance repairs.

CAPITAL LENDING AND RESERVE FUND $500,000
Expenditures for Economic Development.

EPIC CENTRAL FUND $333,000
Expenditures for City wide events.

CABLE OPERATIONS FUND $273,580
Includes operating cost for two full-time position.

TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVERSION FUND $244,864
Expenditures for a new start up program concerning teens.

US MARSHALS FUND $207,500
Expenditures for maintenance of building and grounds.

MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND $187,199
Expenditures to include software maintenance agreements and computer replacement.

MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING SECURITY FUND $185,296
Expenditures continue to include one full time City Marshall.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT FUND $42,125
Expenditures associated with implementation of program.

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDICIAL EFFICIENCY FUND $18,500
Expenditures include delinquent payment notifications

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10257, Version: 1

GENERAL FUND RESOURCES $142,131,147
Taxable value increase of 4.5751% increase of $3,207,012
Increase in Proposed property tax rate from .457128 to .460638 (moved .00351 from Debt Service)
Increase in TIF Reimbursement, Interest & Delinquent Taxes of ($2,383,985)
Decrease in sales tax of ($196,012)
Decrease in franchise fee and other taxes of ($236,656)
Decrease in Charges for Services of ($699,381)
Decrease in licenses and permits of  ($262,705)
Decrease in fines/forfeits of ($1,523,373)
Increase in inter/intra governmental revenue $59,177
Increase in Indirect Cost of $379,156
Decrease in Miscellaneous Revenues ($7,706)

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS $148,046,434
Proposed improvements in the General Fund include:
Civil Service Step
Frozen positions, reduced supplies, other charges and services and capital outlay
Proposed capital outlay in the General Fund totals $662,000 and includes vehicle replacements

WATER AND WASTEWATER FUND $85,741,139
An average increase of 4.5% to water and wastewater rates to residential, commercial and industrial customers.
Includes increase in water and wastewater purchase costs for anticipated growth and system demands.
Includes funding for capital outlay.

GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT SERVICE FUND $34,314,433
Meets debt service requirements.
Decrease in Proposed property tax rate from .212870 to .209360 (moved .00351 from General Fund)

EMPLOYEE INSURANCE FUND $20,405,279
Includes employee and retiree medical and prescription claims of $17,528,064

PARK VENUE FUND $18,431,391
Includes a transfer from the General fund of $6,560,077
Expenditures include: the Ruthe Jackson Center, Tony Shotwell Center, Uptown Theatre, Market Square and
The Summit.
Includes $1,500,000 transfer to the Park Capital Projects Fund.

SOLID WASTE FUND $15,370,647
Funding for the Landfill and Recycling Operations $12,033,969
Funding for the Auto-Related Business program $387,237
Funding for the Brush Crew program $780,210
Funding for the Keep Grand Prairie Beautiful program $398,408
Funding of $1,770,823 transfers to the various Solid Waste Funds

COMMUNITY POLICING FUND $12,776,353
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.
Includes 50 positions.

EPIC FUND $11,806,834
Includes Debt Service payment
Expenditures for new recreation center

POOLED INVESTMENT FUND $11,128,441
Expenditures include three full time positions.

STORM WATER UTILITY FUND $8,954,703
Includes $372,5000 for Storm Sewer Maintenance.
Includes $6,325,724 transfer to the Storm Water Utility Capital Projects Fund.

FLEET SERVICES FUND $6,762,793
Expenditures include vehicle maintenance.

WATER WASTEWATER DEBT SERVICE FUND $6,556,904
Includes Debt Service payment.

RISK MANAGEMENT FUND $4,526,452
Expenditures include premium payments for worker’s compensation, property and liability.

LAKE PARKS FUND $3,325,953
Expenditures include: Loyd and Lynn Creek Park Sites, the Lodge, the Cabins and the Camp Store.

GOLF FUND $3,176,252
Budget includes the operation of two City courses.

EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,897,470
Expenditures include capital outlay for various city departments.

SOLID WASTE EQUIPMENT ACQUISITION FUND $2,711,500
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

AIRPORT FUND $2,095,002
Budget includes the operation of a City owned municipal airport

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND $1,568,816
Includes Council directed funding.

PRAIRIE LIGHTS FUND $1,276,673
Funding for light show and operations.

FIRE STATE SUPPLEMENTAL $1,152,514
Expenditures to include capital outlay items.

CEMETERY FUND $986,676
Expenditures to include increase in marker’s sales.

BASEBALL FUND $500,000
Expenditures for maintenance repairs.

CAPITAL LENDING AND RESERVE FUND $500,000
Expenditures for Economic Development.

EPIC CENTRAL FUND $333,000
Expenditures for City wide events.

CABLE OPERATIONS FUND $273,580
Includes operating cost for two full-time position.

TRUANCY PREVENTION AND DIVERSION FUND $244,864
Expenditures for a new start up program concerning teens.

US MARSHALS FUND $207,500
Expenditures for maintenance of building and grounds.

MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND $187,199
Expenditures to include software maintenance agreements and computer replacement.

MUNICIPAL COURT BUILDING SECURITY FUND $185,296
Expenditures continue to include one full time City Marshall.

COMMERCIAL VEHICLE ENFORCEMENT FUND $42,125
Expenditures associated with implementation of program.

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDICIAL EFFICIENCY FUND $18,500
Expenditures include delinquent payment notifications

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS ADOPTING THE BUDGET
SUBMITTED BY THE CITY MANAGER, AS REVISED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, AND ADOPTING
IT AS THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR
BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2020

WHEREAS, the City Manager of the City of Grand Prairie has prepared a budget covering the
operations of the City of Grand Prairie for the FY 2020/2021 and has filed this budget with the City
Secretary of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas; and

WHEREAS, the notice was given of the public hearings on the budget as required by law and fifteen (15)
days have elapsed from the date of filing of this budget; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has reviewed the budget and directed the modifications when necessary;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE TI ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS;

SECTION 1. That the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie hereby adopts and approves the budget
as prepared and assembled by the City Manager of the City of Grand Prairie, and filed with the City
Secretary and as levied by this City Council; and the same shall be the budget of the City of Grand
Prairie for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2020 and ending September 30, 2021; and taxes shall be
levied with reference to this budget and appropriations and expenditures governed thereby as follows:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10257, Version: 1

GENERAL FUND  APPROPRIATION
Audit Services 400,182
Budget and Research 385,960
Building & Construction Mgmt. 198,135
City Council 253,198
City Manager 1,662,847
Community Revitalization 281,751
Economic Development 545,635
Environmental Services 3,694,232
Facility Services 2,908,017
Finance 1,876,418
Fire 35,480,195
Human Resources 1,070,773
Information Technology 6,088,798
Judiciary 489,650
Legal Services 1,505,019
Library 2,824,239
Marketing 311,921
Municipal Court 4,736,965
Non-Departmental 17,265,180
Planning & Development 5,590,053
Police 51,457,929
Public Works 7,155,352
Purchasing 515,724
Transportation Services 1,348,261

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 148,046,434

OTHER FUNDS  APPROPRIATION
  Water/Wastewater 85,741,139
  GO Debt 34,314,433
  Employee Insurance 20,405,279
  Park Venue 18,431,391
  Solid Waste 15,370,647
  Community Policing 12,776,353
  EPIC 11,806,834
  Pooled Investments 11,128,441
  Storm Water Utility 8,954,703
  Fleet Services 6,762,793
  Water/Wastewater Debt Service 6,556,904
  Risk 4,526,452
  Lake Parks 3,325,953
  Golf 3,176,252
  Equipment Acquisition 2,897,470
  Solid Waste Equipment Acquisition 2,711,500
  Airport 2,095,002
  Hotel/Motel Tax 1,568,816
  Prairie Lights 1,276,673
  Fire State Supplemental 1,152,514
  Cemetery 986,676
  Baseball 500,000
  Capital Lending and Reserve 500,000
  EPIC Central 333,000
  Cable 273,580
  Municipal Court Truancy 244,864
  US Marshals Service Agreement 207,500
  Municipal Court Technology 187,199
  Municipal Court Building Security 185,296
  Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 42,125
  Municipal Court Judicial Efficiency 18,500

TOTAL 258,458,289

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 5 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10257, Version: 1

GENERAL FUND  APPROPRIATION
Audit Services 400,182
Budget and Research 385,960
Building & Construction Mgmt. 198,135
City Council 253,198
City Manager 1,662,847
Community Revitalization 281,751
Economic Development 545,635
Environmental Services 3,694,232
Facility Services 2,908,017
Finance 1,876,418
Fire 35,480,195
Human Resources 1,070,773
Information Technology 6,088,798
Judiciary 489,650
Legal Services 1,505,019
Library 2,824,239
Marketing 311,921
Municipal Court 4,736,965
Non-Departmental 17,265,180
Planning & Development 5,590,053
Police 51,457,929
Public Works 7,155,352
Purchasing 515,724
Transportation Services 1,348,261

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 148,046,434

OTHER FUNDS  APPROPRIATION
  Water/Wastewater 85,741,139
  GO Debt 34,314,433
  Employee Insurance 20,405,279
  Park Venue 18,431,391
  Solid Waste 15,370,647
  Community Policing 12,776,353
  EPIC 11,806,834
  Pooled Investments 11,128,441
  Storm Water Utility 8,954,703
  Fleet Services 6,762,793
  Water/Wastewater Debt Service 6,556,904
  Risk 4,526,452
  Lake Parks 3,325,953
  Golf 3,176,252
  Equipment Acquisition 2,897,470
  Solid Waste Equipment Acquisition 2,711,500
  Airport 2,095,002
  Hotel/Motel Tax 1,568,816
  Prairie Lights 1,276,673
  Fire State Supplemental 1,152,514
  Cemetery 986,676
  Baseball 500,000
  Capital Lending and Reserve 500,000
  EPIC Central 333,000
  Cable 273,580
  Municipal Court Truancy 244,864
  US Marshals Service Agreement 207,500
  Municipal Court Technology 187,199
  Municipal Court Building Security 185,296
  Commercial Vehicle Enforcement 42,125
  Municipal Court Judicial Efficiency 18,500

TOTAL 258,458,289

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 6 of 6

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10258 Name: Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement
Projects Budgets

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Budget

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

City Council9/1/2020 1

From
Kathleen C. Mercer

Title
Adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets

Presenter
Kathleen C. Mercer, Director of Budget/Purchasing

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
On August 13, 2020 the City Manager’s proposed budget was submitted to the City Council. The City Council
met to discuss the proposed budget at the workshop on August 21, 2020.

Financial Consideration
The FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets proposed total is $50,053,324. Detail by fund for
the Proposed FY 2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects Budgets are summarized as follows:

Proposed Appropriations : $50,053,324
 Airport 100,000
 Capital Reserve 3,320,400
 Fire 3,452,388
 IT 1,230,101
 Lake 250,000
 Library 60,739
 Municipal Facilities 5,593,016
 Parks 765,000
 Storm Water 5,229,500
 Streets 12,733,680
 Solid Waste 200,000
 Water 14,479,000
 Wastewater 2,639,500

Funding sources:
  Cash/Other resources    27,766,380
  Certificates of Obligation    21,849,945
  Cost of Issuance         436,999

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10258, Version: 1

Proposed Appropriations : $50,053,324
 Airport 100,000
 Capital Reserve 3,320,400
 Fire 3,452,388
 IT 1,230,101
 Lake 250,000
 Library 60,739
 Municipal Facilities 5,593,016
 Parks 765,000
 Storm Water 5,229,500
 Streets 12,733,680
 Solid Waste 200,000
 Water 14,479,000
 Wastewater 2,639,500

Funding sources:
  Cash/Other resources    27,766,380
  Certificates of Obligation    21,849,945
  Cost of Issuance         436,999

Body
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ADOPTING THE FY 2020/2021
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS BUDGET SUBMITTED BY THE CITY MANAGER OF
THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS IN THE AMOUNT OF $50,053,324 WITH THE DETAIL
BELOW BY FUND

WHEREAS, the City Managers of the City of Grand Prairie has prepared a budget providing the capital
improvements project development for the City in FY 2020/2021; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has revised the budget and has directed certain modifications be made;
and

WHEREAS, the appropriation for each project is based on an estimate of the cost even though the actual
contract bid will vary.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS;

SECTION 1. THAT the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie hereby adopts the FY 2020/2021
Capital Improvement Projects Budget as prepared and assembled by the City Manager of Grand Prairie
is approved as follows:

 Airport Capital Projects Fund           100,000
 Capital Reserve Projects Fund        3,320,400
 Fire Capital Projects Fund        3,452,388
 IT Capital Projects Fund        1,230,101
 Lake Capital Projects Fund           250,000
 Library Capital Projects Fund             60,739
 Municipal Facilities Projects Fund        5,593,016
 Parks Capital Projects Fund           765,000
 Storm Water Utility Capital Projects Fund        5,229,500
 Streets Capital Projects Fund      12,733,680
 Solid Waste Capital Projects Fund           200,000
 Water Capital Projects Fund      14,479,000
 Wastewater Capital Projects Fund        2,639,500

TOTAL CIP APPROPRIATIONS      50,053,324

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10258, Version: 1

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10260 Name: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to
negotiate and acquire right-of-way for the FY
2020/2021 Capital Improvement Projects

Status:Type: Resolution Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Budget

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and acquire right-of-way for the FY 2020/2021
Capital Improvement Projects

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Kathleen C. Mercer

Title

Resolution authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and acquire right-of-way for the FY 2020/2021 Capital
Improvement Projects

Presenter

Kathleen C. Mercer, Director of Budget/Purchasing

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

As part of the Budget process for the Capital Improvement Projects, there is often a necessity for drainage
improvements, acquisition of land, rights-of-way, easement for streets, water and wastewater improvements.

Financial Consideration

As approved by Council for acquisition for the Capital Improvement Projects.

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, DETERMINING THE
NECESSITY FOR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, ACQUISITION OF LAND, RIGHTS-OF-
WAY AND EASEMENTS FOR STREETS, WATER AND WASTEWATER IMPROVEMENTS;
AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE TO BEGIN
NEGOTIATIONS FOR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS, ACQUISITION OF LAND, RIGHTS-
OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS FOR SAID STREETS, WATER AND WASTEWATER
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10260, Version: 1

OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS FOR SAID STREETS, WATER AND WASTEWATER
IMPROVEMENTS; AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE TO
MAKE RELOCATION PAYMENTS TO ELIGIBLE OCCUPANTS OF PROPERTY
ACQUIRED FOR STATE OR FEDERALLY FUNDED PROJECTS, AS REQUIRED;
AUTHORIZING THE INSTITUTION OF CONDEMNATION PROCEEDINGS; TO BECOME
EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND APPROVAL

WHEREAS, there are located within the City of Grand Prairie, Texas certain streets, drainage facilities, water
and wastewater lines (see section 2) which are in need of replacements or improvements; and

WHEREAS, the City of Grand Prairie, Texas in order to carry out said projects, must acquire land, rights-of-
way and easements for said replacements and improvements,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT IT is hereby determined to be in the best interests of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas and
its inhabitants to improve or drainage facilities, replace the streets, water and wastewater lines; and in order to
carry out said replacements and improvements, it is necessary to acquire land, rights-of-way and easements
from adjoining property owners.

SECTION 2. THAT THE City Manager and his staff are hereby authorized and directed to negotiate for and
acquire the property necessary for the following:

STORM DRAINAGE PROJECTS FUND
Johnson Creek Channel Repairs
Cottonwood and Fish Creek Stream Stability Improvements - Phase II
EPIC Central Boardwalk Repairs
High School Drive Erosion Repairs
Cross Creek Circle Storm Drain and Slope Repairs
Miscellaneous Drainage Projects
Storm Drain Outfall Repairs
Kaylie Erosion Repairs
Miscellaneous Erosion Projects
Bar Ditch Improvements
Dickey Road Storm Drain Improvements West of SW 3rd St
Miscellaneous Engineering Projects
Concrete Channel Repair
CIP Sampsell Road

STREET PROJECTS FUND
FY21 Street Assessment Implementation
Wildlife Parkway
Camp Wisdom West of Carrier to 1382 (Dallas County)
Sidewalks
Intersection Improvements
City Bridges
Traffic Signal /Engineering
Deceleration Lane at I-20 Frontage Road at Cardinal Health
Intersection Improvements at various locations
Seal Coat
SW 5th Paving and Parking Improvements
Dechman Street from Westchester to Bardin
Traffic Signal Improvements

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 3

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10260, Version: 1

Miscellaneous Engineering Projects
Miscellaneous  Transportation Projects
Duncan Perry Bridge at Johnson Creek
School Flashers
Handicap Ramps
UPS for Traffic Signals
Street Light Improvements
Speed Tables

WATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
2N - 2.0 MG Robinson Road EST and 12 MGD Pump Station
Water Main Replacements (Various Districts)
Utility Cuts
Wildlife Parkway
Dickey Road West of SW 3rd St East (Indian Hills)
Beltline Facility Improvements
Water Lines for I-30 Service Roads Phase I and II
Vault Replacement
AMI Meter Maintenance
Miscellaneous. Engineering Projects

WASTEWATER CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
3-3 12-inch gravity line in Small St. from NE 11th St. to Belt Line Rd.
Infiltration/Inflow (Various Districts)
Wastewater Main Replacement Project (Various Dist.)
3-4 12-inch gravity line from Skyway Dr. To Arkansas Lane
South Skyway Drive and Arkansas Lane
Dickey Road West of SW 3rd St East (Indian Hills)
Upsize to 21" north of Pioneer to address Central Park surcharging
Engineering Projects

SECTION 3. THAT THE City Manager and his staff are hereby authorized as negotiators for the City to offer to the property
owners any amount up to, but not exceeding, the value of the tract or parcel of land that has been determined by appraisals of the
same.

SECTION 4. THAT THE City Manager and his staff are hereby authorized to make relocation payments to eligible occupants of
property acquired for State or Federally funded projects requiring same in accordance with the Federal Uniform Relocation Assistance
and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as amended.

SECTION 5. THAT IF negotiations for the purchase of the property referred to herein are unsuccessful, the City may institute condemnation
proceedings to acquire said property.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ON THIS THE 15TH
DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 3

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10261 Name: Resolution Accepting the FY 2022/2025 Capital
Improvements Plan

Status:Type: Resolution Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Budget

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Resolution Accepting the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 2021 Proposed CIP Final

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Kathleen C. Mercer

Title

Resolution Accepting the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan

Presenter

Kathleen C. Mercer, Director of Budget/Purchasing

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

As part of the Capital Improvement Projects Budget process, the City Council accepts the FY 2022/2025
Capital Improvements Plan (Exhibit A) and approves of this document as a planning tool to prepare for future
bond sales and/or bond elections.

It is understood that acceptance of the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan does not obligate Future City
Councils to specifically approve the anticipated projects or bond sales or election amount, but rather the
Document will serve as a tool to assist the City and private sector in planning for the City’s infrastructure
development.

Financial Consideration

None

Body

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ACCEPTING THE FY
2022/2025 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS PLAN AND APPROVING THE DOCUMENT AS A
PLANNING TOOL FOR FUTURE BOND SALES AND/OR ELECTIONS; TO BECOME
EFFECTIVE UPON ITS PASSAGE AND APPROVAL

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10261, Version: 1

WHEREAS, the City Council desires a plan to develop and implement a well-planned Capital Improvements
Plan (CIP) to coordinate these needed public investments; therefore

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS;

SECTION 1. THAT THE City Council accepts the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan (Exhibit A)
and approve this document as a planning tool to prepare for future bond sales and/or bond elections.

SECTION 2. THAT IT is understood that acceptance of the FY 2022/2025 Capital Improvements Plan does
not obligate Future City Councils to specifically approve the anticipated projects or bond sales or election
amount, but rather the Document will serve as a tool to assist the City and private sector in planning for the
City’s infrastructure development.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
FY21 RAMP Projects Grant 50/50 Split with TxDOT 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 250,000
FY21 Security Upgrades 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000
Design Box & T-hangars (2) rows with taxi lanes and concrete perimeter road ext. 14,690 14,690
Construct box hangars (2) rows with taxi lanes & concrete perimeter road ext. + Rwy joint rehab 228,360 228,360
Total Requests $100,000 $100,000 $64,690 $278,360 $100,000 $643,050

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 8,181 100,181 92,181 119,491 92,181 412,215
Gas Revenue Estimate 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 90,000 450,000
Repayment plan for projects reimbursable per FAA - Capital Lending (48,000) (48,000) (48,000) (48,000) (48,000) (240,000)
Repayment plan for wind damage April of 2019 - Risk Fund 0 (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (68,844) (368,844)
Transfer from Airport Operating Fund 150,000 150,000 150,000 309,050 126,844 885,894
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $200,181 $192,181 $184,181 $370,541 $192,181 $1,139,265
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (100,181) (92,181) (119,491) (92,181) (92,181)

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED MUNICIPAL AIRPORT PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
0

Enclosure For Wave Pool 4,500,000 4,500,000

Total Requests $0 $0 $0 $4,500,000 $0 $4,500,000
RESOURCES

Cash Balance 1,297,179 1,297,179 1,297,179 1,297,179 0 5,188,716
Transfer from EPIC 0 0 0 3,202,821 0 3,202,821
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $1,297,179 $1,297,179 $1,297,179 $4,500,000 $0 $8,391,537
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (1,297,179) (1,297,179) (1,297,179) 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED EPIC PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond

Total Requests $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
RESOURCES

Cash Balance 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfer in from EPIC Operating Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED EPIC CENTRAL PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
FIRE STATIONS

Fire Station Storage and Hazardous Materials Response 1,500,000 1,500,000
Fire Station #6 Updating 1,000,000 1,000,000
EOC 3,000,000 3,000,000

FIRE EQUIPMENT (LARGE)
FY21 Truck/Quint Replacement T1 1,500,000 1,500,000 3,000,000
FY21 Ambulance Replacement 385,200 396,756 817,317 420,561 2,019,834
Engine Replacement 817,926 842,463 1,660,389
Brush Truck and Battalion 1 replacement 275,000 275,000
FY21 FIRE COI 67,188 44,294 33,196 43,911 60,000 248,588
Total Requests $3,452,388 $2,258,976 $1,692,976 $2,239,472 $3,060,000 $12,703,811

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 25,808 0 0 0 0 25,808
CO's Bond Sale 3,359,392 2,214,682 1,659,780 2,195,561 3,000,000 12,429,415
Cost of Issuance 67,188 44,294 33,196 43,911 60,000 248,588
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $3,452,388 $2,258,976 $1,692,976 $2,239,472 $3,060,000 $12,703,811
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED FIRE PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
APPLICATION SERVICES

FY21 Asset Works (Fleet) and Imaging Software 91,032 91,032

INFRASTRUCTURE SERVICES
FY21 Fiber Infrastructure - 10 Qty UPS 22,450 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 422,450

SUPPORT SERVICES
FY21 Computer hardware Replace Old Cisco UCS with Dell VXRail 300,000 300,000
FY21 Public Safety 206,585 206,585
FY21 Radio Replacement Program 200,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 1,400,000
FY21 Computer and Equipment Refresh  200,000 225,000 225,000 225,000 225,000 1,100,000
FY21 Cyber Security 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 375,000
FY21 GIS - ESRI ArcGIS Portal Users, ArcGIS Insights 11,658 11,658
ERP System 110,000 6,215,000 6,325,000
FY21 IT COI 13,376 131,300 7,000 7,000 7,000 165,676
Total Requests $1,230,101 $7,046,300 $707,000 $707,000 $707,000 $10,397,401

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 197,911 0 0 0 0 197,911
CO's Bond Sale - IT 668,814 6,565,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 8,283,814
Cost of Issuance 13,376 131,300 7,000 7,000 7,000 165,676
Transfer from General Fund 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000
Transfer from Water Wastewater Fund 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 750,000
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $1,230,101 $7,046,300 $707,000 $707,000 $707,000 $10,397,401
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED IT PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
Fuel Island Upgrade - Lyod Park 250,000 250,000
Sewer & Electrical Design & Install - Loyd 2,400,000 2,400,000
FY20 Miscellaneous Lake Park Projects 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 600,000
Wi-Fi - Loyd 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 400,000
Lodge and Rec Development at West Lynn Creek 2,500,000 2,500,000
Ceilo Retro World 750,000 750,000
Glamping Themed Grounds 400,000 400,000
Lynn Creek/Prairie Lights Pavilion 300,000 300,000
Two - 2 Bedroom Cabins - Loyd (By The Lodge) 200,000 200,000
New 2 Bedroom Tree House - Loyd 200,000 200,000
Lynn Creek Parking/Road Improvements 200,000 200,000
Dog Beach - Lynn Creek 150,000 150,000
Day Use Shelters - Loyd Park 150,000 150,000
Loyd Entry Sign 150,000 150,000
Lynn Creek Bridge Replacement 100,000 100,000
Group Pavilion - Lynn Creek 100,000 100,000
Group Pavilion - Loyd Park 100,000 100,000
West Lynn Creek Master Plan 85,000 85,000
Britton Park Electrical Renovations 30,000 30,000
FY21 LAKE COI 0 97,728 0 0 216,600 314,328
Total Requests $250,000 $2,747,728 $250,000 $250,000 $5,881,600 $9,379,328

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 6,805 6,805 0 0 0 13,610
Cost of Issuance 0 97,728 0 0 216,600 314,328
Revenue Bond Sale 0 2,443,195 0 0 5,415,000 7,858,195
Transfer from Fleet Services Fund - Fuel Island 250,000 0 0 0 0 250,000
Transfer from Lake Operating Fund 0 200,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 950,000
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $256,805 $2,747,728 $250,000 $250,000 $5,881,600 $9,386,133
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (6,805) 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED LAKE PARK PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
Makerspace for Main Library 60,000 60,000
Replace Integrated Library System MOVED TO '22 0 250,000 250,000
Build Branch Library in Lake Area 5,000,000 5,000,000
FY21 LIBR COI 739 5,000 100,000 105,739
Total Requests $60,739 $255,000 $0 $0 $5,100,000 $5,415,739

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 23,072 0 0 0 0 23,072
CO's Bond Sale - LIBR 36,928 250,000 0 0 5,000,000 5,286,928
Cost of Issuance 739 5,000 0 0 100,000 105,739
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $60,739 $255,000 $0 $0 $5,100,000 $5,415,739
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED LIBRARY PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
BUILDING INFRASTRUCTURE

FY21 Building Infrastructure 260,000 260,000 260,000 260,000 260,000 1,300,000
FY21 Dalworth Rec Center HVAC 250,000 250,000
FY21 HVAC Replacement including controls 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000
FY21 Roof Repair/Replacement Program 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000
City Hall Roof 900,000 900,000
Shotwell Roof 800,000 800,000
Service Center 300,000 300,000

CITY HALL CAMPUS
Municipal Complex Phase III - Phase IV 4,000,000 1,000,000 5,000,000
Generator and Monitoring City Hall East 700,000 700,000

OFF CAMPUS BUILDINGS
FY21 Fire Stations (2-9)Building Repairs & Updating 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 375,000
Women's Building and Floor Replacement 52,000 52,000
FY21 Fire Systems/Panel Repairs/Upgrades 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 250,000
Facilities Maintenance/Prairie Lakes Golf Maintenance Area 6,050,000 6,050,000
Park Maintenance Skyline Drive 3,850,000 3,850,000

MISCELLANEOUS
Video Board Messages City-Wide 325,000 325,000
Gateway Landscaping - PARKS 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 625,000
Municipal Building Irrigation - PARKS 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 250,000
FY21 MFAC COI 106,016 17,200 77,200 17,200 229,200 446,816
Total Requests $5,593,016 $877,200 $3,937,200 $877,200 $11,689,200 $22,973,816

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 186,189 0 0 0 0 186,189
CO's Bond Sale - MFAC 5,300,811 860,000 3,860,000 860,000 11,460,000 22,340,811
Cost of Issuance CO's 106,016 17,200 77,200 17,200 229,200 446,816
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $5,593,016 $877,200 $3,937,200 $877,200 $11,689,200 $22,973,816
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED MUNICIPAL FACILITY PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
FY21 Park Infrastructure Improvements 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,250,000
Fitness Equipment Replacements 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000 220,000
Irrigation System Repairs 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 200,000

Tangle Ridge
FY21 Landscape & Ground Enhancement 20,000 94,000 94,000 94,000 94,000 396,000
Maintenance and Replacement Equipment 328,000 80,000 35,000 35,000 478,000

Prairie Lakes
FY21 Landscape & Ground Enhancement 20,000 175,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 420,000
Maintenance and Replacement Equipment 75,000 80,000 35,000 35,000 225,000

FUTURE PROJECTS
Hill St Park Master Plan and Phase I Improvements 50,000 150,000 200,000
Park Security 50,000 50,000 50,000 150,000
Parks - Hardscape Improvements 50,000 50,000 100,000
Trash Container/Picnic Table Replacement 50,000 50,000
Pavilion and Restroom Renovation - Parks 50,000 50,000
Parking Lot Re- Striping & Improvements - Parks 100,000 100,000 100,000 50,000 350,000
Prairie Lakes Irrigation Systems Replacement (3 Phases) 150,000 150,000 150,000 461,000 911,000
Concrete Cart Path Enhancements/Replacement - Prairie Lakes 200,000 200,000 200,000 600,000
Prairie Lakes - Pond Dredge 5 Blue / 5 Red 120,000 120,000
Park Signage Replacement/Upgrades 75,000 75,000 150,000
Park Reforestation 25,000 25,000 50,000
Tangle Ridge Fuel Island 150,000 150,000
Turner Park - Base Construction 12,163,975 12,163,975
Turner Park Full Build Out - Add Alternate 15,562,638 15,562,638
Trail System Improvements (Fish Creek to EPIC Central to Lake, Lone Star Extension) 4,000,000 4,000,000
South Sector Sports Center (baseball, soccer, softball) - Land Acquisition 1,500,000 1,500,000
Athletic Field Conversion - Turf 1,000,000 1,000,000
Disc Golf Course 500,000 500,000
Driving Range Lighting - Prairie Lakes 500,000 500,000
Asian Themed Park (TPWD Grant/City Match) 500,000 500,000
Shade Structures at Mike Lewis Park 250,000 250,000
LBJ Park - Phase II (Shelter, Trail, Playground) 250,000 250,000

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED PARKS PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED PARKS PROJECTS

Sycamore Playground - moved to 2024 225,000 225,000
Summit Landscape / Ground Enhancements 150,000 150,000
Pond Dredging Turner & Tyre Park 100,000 100,000
Basketball Court Enhancements 50,000 50,000
Driving Range Shade Canopy 30,000 30,000
FY21 PARK COI 0 0 0 0 667,732 667,732
Total Requests $290,000 $1,727,000 $1,604,000 $1,344,000 $38,554,345 $43,519,345

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 655,735 1,615,735 888,735 284,735 0 3,444,940
CO's Bond Sale - PARK 0 0 0 0 33,386,613 33,386,613
Cost of Issuance 0 0 0 0 667,732 667,732
Transfer from Operating Fund - PVEN 1,250,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,059,265 4,500,000 8,809,265
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $1,905,735 $2,615,735 $1,888,735 $1,344,000 $38,554,345 $46,308,550
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (1,615,735) (888,735) (284,735) 0 0



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED PARKS PROJECTS

UPKEEP/MAINTENANCE PROJECTS
Uptown HVAC & Controls 150,000 150,000
Summit AC Controls 150,000 150,000
Uptown Roof Repairs 125,000 125,000
Uptown Wall Reseal 50,000 50,000
RJC Renovations (Main Lobby, Ceiling Tiles, Vernon Jackson Room, Carpeting, Fixtures 225,000 275,000 500,000
TSLC - Game Room & RR Remodel 150,000 150,000
Uptown Lobby/Black Box Furniture/Fixtures 50,000 50,000
Summit Lobby Furniture/Locker Improvements 50,000 50,000
Summit - Lighting & AV Improvements 50,000 50,000
Summit Dechtron Replacement 275,000 275,000
Total Requests $475,000 $525,000 $275,000 $0 $275,000 $1,550,000

RESOURCES
Cash balance for Park Up-Keep/Maintenance 952,601 727,601 452,601 427,601 677,601 3,238,005
Transfer from Operating Fund - PVEN 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 275,000 1,275,000
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $1,202,601 $977,601 $702,601 $677,601 $952,601 $4,513,005
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (727,601) (452,601) (427,601) (677,601) (677,601)



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
0
0

Total Requests $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
RESOURCES

Cash Balance 10,515 0 0 0 0 10,515
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $10,515 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,515
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (10,515) 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
 CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED POLICE PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
MAJOR STORM PROJECTS

Johnson Creek Channel Repairs 900,000 900,000
Cottonwood and Fish Creek Stream Stability Improvements - Phase II 750,000 750,000
EPIC Central Boardwalk Repairs 575,000 575,000
High School Drive Erosion Repairs 500,000 500,000
Cross Creek Circle Storm Drain and Slope Repairs 500,000 500,000
Generator for Dorchester Levee (TxDEM Grant 25% Match) 200,000 200,000
Kaylie Erosion Repairs 200,000 200,000
Rain and Stream Gage Installations 157,500 157,500
Concrete Lined Channel Evaluation and Prioritization Study 150,000 150,000
Stormwater Modeling Annual Update 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 125,000 625,000
CIP CRS Recertification 120,000 120,000
Low water Crossing Gates SW 3rd 97,000 97,000
CIP Sampsell Road 85,000 85,000
NCTCOG Cost Share for CDC Model Update 50,000 50,000
Tarrant Road at Arbor Creek ($2.94M Total All Funds) 1,350,000 1,350,000
Briarhill Erosion Permanent Solution 750,000 750,000
Dechman Street from Westchaster to Bardin ($1.21M Total All Funds) 245,700 245,700
Shady Grove from Beltline to East of Roy Orr ($25.8M Total All Funds) 4,773,194 4,773,194
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. K to Fountain Parkway) ($5.91M Total All Funds) 1,517,499 1,517,499
GSW Pkwy from Ave H to J ($6.04M Total All Funds) 1,367,538 1,367,538
Oakdale - Roy Orr to 161 (Freese & Nichols) ($5.09M Total All Funds) 751,221 751,221
Great Southwest Parkway (I-20 to Lakeridge) ($10.45M Total All Funds) 531,836 531,836
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. J to Ave. K) Includes Bridge ($8.54M Total All Funds) 378,342 378,342

MISCELLANEOUS DRAINAGE PROJECTS
FY21 Misc. Drainage Projects 250,000 800,000 800,000 800,000 86,388 2,736,388
FY21 Storm Drain Outfall Repairs 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000
FY21 Miscellaneous Erosion Projects 150,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,150,000
FY21 Bar Ditch Improvements 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 750,000
FY21 Misc. Engineering Projects 100,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 140,000 660,000
FY21 Concrete Channel Repair 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 500,000
FY21 Developer Participation 50,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 2,050,000
FY21 Annual Study for Outfall Rehabs 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 100,000
FY21 Master Plan Study Updates 0 550,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 790,000
Total Requests $5,429,500 $5,180,700 $2,365,000 $2,365,000 $10,971,018 $26,311,218

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 901,776 1,798,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 2,999,776
Transfer from Storm Water Utility Fund 6,325,724 3,482,700 2,365,000 2,365,000 10,971,018 25,509,442
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $7,227,500 $5,280,700 $2,465,000 $2,465,000 $11,071,018 $28,509,218
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (1,798,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000) (100,000)

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED STORM DRAINAGE PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
MAJOR STREET/TRANSPORTATION PROJECTS

FY21 Street Assessment Implementation 3,850,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000 19,850,000
Wildlife Parkway 3,627,500 3,627,500 7,255,000
Camp Wisdom West of Carrier to 1382 (Dallas County) 1,675,000 1,675,000
City Bridges 350,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 550,000 2,550,000
Deceleration Lane at I-20 Frontage Road at Cardinal Health 200,000  200,000
Intersection Improvements at various locations 200,000 1,000,000 1,200,000
SW 5th Paving and Parking Improvements 150,000 2,000,000 2,150,000
Dechman Street from Westchester to Bardin ($1.21M Total All Funds) 136,500 693,000 829,500
Duncan Perry Bridge at Johnson Creek (TxDOT Participation) 30,000 225,000 255,000
Tarrant Road at Arbor Creek ($3.03M Total All Funds) 1,340,000 1,340,000
Carrier Parkway Improvements (Phase 2 from SH 161 to Roy Orr) ($3.06M Total All Funds) 1,081,500 1,757,438 2,838,938
Carrier Parkway Improvements (Phase 3 From Roy Orr to SH360) ($2.69M Total All Funds) 378,525 2,206,260 2,584,785
Wildlife Parkway and Hunter Ferrell Landscaping from SH 161 East to Bear Creek 1,626,000 1,626,000
Reconstruction of Arterial and Collectors 748,318,509 748,318,509
Lakeridge Parkway @ Joe Pool Lake 45,469,007 45,469,007
Shady Grove from Beltline to East of Roy Orr ($25.8M Total All Funds) 16,098,682 16,098,682
Great Southwest Parkway (I-20 to Lakeridge) ($10.45M Total All Funds) 9,814,013 9,814,013
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. J to Ave. K) Includes Bridge ($8.54M Total All Funds) 8,039,935 8,039,935
GSW North of Post & Paddock Street Rehab 5,732,524 5,732,524
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. K to Fountain Parkway) ($5.91M Total All Funds) 4,318,688 4,318,688
Oakdale - Roy Orr to 161 (Freese & Nichols) ($5.09M Total All Funds) 4,301,364 4,301,364
GSW Pkwy from Ave H to J ($6.04M Total All Funds) 3,653,711 3,653,711
Rock Island Rd. Bridge at Bear Creek (with Dallas County) 3,595,988 3,595,988
Pavement Widening along GSW Parkway under I-20 (FY 2018: Design & ROW) 2,628,910 2,628,910
Fish Creek Bike/Pedestrian Path (Dist. 6) 1,496,389 1,496,389
Arbor Creek 1,405,950 1,405,950
Great Southwest Pkwy at Arkansas Intersection Improvements (Dist. 4) 675,938 675,938
2341 N. Carrier Pkwy Sidewalk 173,040 173,040

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED STREET PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED STREET PROJECTS

Annual Miscellaneous Projects
FY21 Sidewalks 800,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,800,000
FY21 Intersection Improvements 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 500,000 2,500,000
FY21 Traffic Signal /Engineering 300,000 300,000 300,000 900,000
FY21 Seal Coat 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,000,000
FY21 Guard Rails 150,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 950,000
FY21 Traffic Signal Improvements 125,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000 725,000
FY21 Misc. Engineering Projects 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 425,000
FY21 MICS.  Transportation Projects 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 200,000
FY21 School Flashers 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 125,000
FY21 Handicap Ramps 20,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 120,000
FY21 UPS for Traffic Signals 10,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 35,000 150,000
FY21 Street Light Improvements 5,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 40,000 165,000
FY 21 Speed Tables 5,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 105,000
FY21 Developer Participation 250,000 250,000 500,000
FY21 Survey Work 0 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 120,000
FY21 STRT COI 249,680 350,011 260,894 138,100 17,258,553 18,257,237
Total Requests $12,733,680 $17,850,536 $13,305,592 $7,043,100 $880,186,200 $931,119,107

RESOURCES
CO's Street 12,484,000 17,500,525 13,044,698 6,905,000 862,927,647 912,861,870
Cost of Issuance 249,680 350,011 260,894 138,100 17,258,553 18,257,237
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $12,733,680 $17,850,536 $13,305,592 $7,043,100 $880,186,200 $931,119,107
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
0

Concrete Recycling 200,000 200,000 200,000 600,000
Total Requests $200,000 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 $600,000

RESOURCES
Cash Balance 29,177 0 0 0 0 29,177
Transfer from Solid Waste Operating Fund 170,823 0 200,000 0 200,000 570,823
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $200,000 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 $600,000
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED SOLID WASTE PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
2N - 2.0 MG Robinson Road EST and 12 MGD Pump Station 10,500,000 5,500,000 16,000,000
FY21 Water Main Replacements (Various Districts) - ADDED FY22 AND FY23 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5,000,000
FY21 Utility Cuts 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5,000,000
Wildlife Parkway 497,500 497,500
Dickey Road West of SW 3rd St East (Indian Hills)  ($672K Total all Funds) 451,500 451,500
FY21 Beltline Facility Improvements 400,000 300,000 700,000
Water Lines for I-30 Service Roads Phase I and II 250,000 40,000 400,000 40,000 400,000 1,130,000
FY21 Vault Replacement 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 250,000 1,250,000
FY21 AMI Meter Maintenance 100,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 900,000
FY21 Consultant Support on Water Master Plan (All Districts) 25,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 425,000
FY21 Misc. Engineering Projects 5,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 85,000
FY21 Selection of new HTE Replacement - FY21 Purchase/Implementation HTE Replacement 2,900,000 2,900,000
Purchase additional capacity from DWU (additional 2.0 MGD) 2,000,000 2,000,000 4,000,000
8N - 48-inch Supply Line to Parallel Existing 60-inch Supply Line from Terminal Storage Tanks 400,000 26,000,000 26,400,000
Duncan Perry Bridge at Johnson Creek (TxDOT Participation) Utility Relocations 250,000 250,000
Tarrant Road at Arbor Creek ($3.03M Total All Funds) 231,000 231,000
10N - 8/12-inch I-30 Frontage Road Water Lines 225,000 1,875,000 2,100,000
Dechman Street from Westchester to Bardin ($1.21M Total All Funds) 132,300 132,300
Resident Representative Services for CIP Projects 300,000 300,000
Purchase Additional Capacity from TRWD for Midlothian Supply (additional 2.0 MGD) 2,000,000 2,000,000
9N - Arlington 4.0 MGD PS and 1.5 MG GST and 20/24-inch Howell/Sherman/GSW Water Lines 12,000,000 12,000,000
2S - 775 North 1.0 MG Elevated Storage Tank 10,700,000 10,700,000
6S - 16/24-inch Old Fort Worth Road/Buffalo Hills Water Line 7,800,000 7,800,000
4S - 18-inch Northwest 775 Pressure Plane Water Lines 5,600,000 5,600,000
5S - 12/16-inch North Central 775 Pressure Plane Water Lines 5,600,000 5,600,000
11N - 24-inch Duncan Perry/Egyptian Way Water Line 4,600,000 4,600,000
8S - Midlothian 2.0 MGD PS and 1.0 MG GST 4,500,000 4,500,000
5N - 24-inch Corn Valley/E. Warrior Road and 16-inch S. Carrier Pkwy Water Lines 4,450,000 4,450,000
7S - 12-inch North 775 Pressure Plane Water Line 3,600,000 3,600,000
3S - 12/16-inch East 775 Pressure Plane Water Lines 3,400,000 3,400,000
12N - 12-inch Highway 161 Frontage Road Water Line 3,200,000 3,200,000
4N - 24-inch Great Southwest Pkwy/N. Carrier Pkwy Water Line 2,300,000 2,300,000
Shady Grove from Beltline to East of Roy Orr (CCD1) ($25.8M Total All Funds) 902,295 902,295
GSW Pkwy from Ave H to J ($6.04M Total All Funds) 485,333 485,333
Great Southwest Parkway (I-20 to Lakeridge) ($10.45M Total All Funds) 77,671 77,671
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. J to Ave. K) Includes Bridge ($8.54M Total All Funds) 47,084 47,084
Cost of Issuance 0 115,646 156,240 99,960 1,975,487 2,347,333
Total Requests $14,479,000 $9,163,946 $10,801,240 $6,709,960 $100,207,871 $141,362,017

RESOURCES
Transfer from Water Wastewater Operating Fund 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,500,000 50,500,000
Transfer to Wastewater CIP Fund (2,639,500) (7,750,000) (8,183,000) (9,404,000) (12,057,985) (40,034,485)
Transfer in from Pooled Investments - Interest Earnings 6,200,000 0 0 0 0 6,200,000
Revenue Bond Sale 0 5,782,300 7,812,000 4,998,000 98,774,368 117,366,668
Cost of Issuance 0 115,646 156,240 99,960 1,975,487 2,347,333
Repayment of Peninsula PID (3218) for 25 years 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 16,000 80,000
Impact Fee Revenue 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 5,000,000
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $14,576,500 $9,163,946 $10,801,240 $6,709,960 $100,207,871 $141,459,517
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (97,500) 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED WATER PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED CIP
DESCRIPTION 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
3-3 12-inch gravity line in Small St. from NE 11th St. to Belt Line Rd. 602,000 602,000
FY21 Infiltration/Inflow (Various Districts) 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,500,000
FY21 Wastewater Main Replacement Project (Various Dist.) 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 4,500,000
3-4 12-inch gravity line from Skyway Dr. To Arkansas Ln. 462,000 462,000
South Skyway Drive and Arkansas Lane 280,000 280,000
Dickey Road West of SW 3rd St East (Indian Hills)  ($672K Total all Funds) 120,500 120,500
Upsize to 21" north of Pioneer to address Central Park surcharging (RPS Tech Memo 8/1/2018) 100,000 655,000 755,000
Consultant Support Wastewater Master Plan and TRA Issues 50,000 600,000 100,000 100,000 100,000 950,000
FY21 Misc. Engineering Projects 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 125,000
FY21 WWMP - Priority Overflow Projects (Construction) 2,500,000 2,500,000 5,000,000
1-9 SSES Evaluation for TRA Basin 3.0W MOVED UP FROM FY22 1,115,000 1,000,000 2,115,000
FY21 WWMP 2019 Projects (TWDB participation) 500,000 500,000 500,000 1,500,000
Duncan Perry Bridge at Johnson Creek (TxDOT Participation) Utility Relocations 250,000 250,000
Tarrant Road at Arbor Creek ($3.03M Total All Funds) 105,000 105,000
3-5 South Sector Additional Gravity Mains PUSHED OUT TO FY23 1,750,000 2,500,000 3,008,000 7,258,000
1-10 SSES Evaluation for TRA Basin 5.0J 1,413,000 1,000,000 2,413,000
El Paso SW 23rd to Holland (Dist. 4) 480,000 480,000
Sheridan Ave A to Hardy (Dist. 3) 440,000 440,000
Heatherbrook to Corn Valley (Dist. 6) 250,000 250,000
4-2 10-inch gravity line in Gifford St. to Grand Lakes Blvd. and I-30 225,000 1,279,000 1,504,000
Shady Grove from Beltline to East of Roy Orr ($25.8M Total All Funds)  3,785,250 3,785,250
4-3 10-inch gravity line in 109th St. from Avenue N to Avenue K East 782,000 782,000
4-4 10- and 12-inch gravity line in SE 11th St. from E Pacific Ave. to Small St. 687,000 687,000
Upsize to 21" north of Pioneer to address Central Park surcharging 655,000 655,000
GSW Pkwy from Ave H to J ($6.04M Total All Funds)  463,574 463,574
Great Southwest Parkway (Ave. J to Ave. K) Includes Bridge ($8.54M Total All Funds)  52,161 52,161
Total Requests $2,639,500 $7,750,000 $8,183,000 $9,404,000 $12,057,985 $40,034,485

RESOURCES
Transfer from Water CIP 2,639,500 7,750,000 8,183,000 9,404,000 12,057,985 40,034,485
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $2,639,500 $7,750,000 $8,183,000 $9,404,000 $12,057,985 $40,034,485
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short 0 0 0 0 0

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

PROPOSED WASTEWATER PROJECTS



PROJECT PROPOSED
2021

One-Time Capital Items
FY21 Environmental Services 75,000
FY21 Fire 98,400
FY21 Legal 37,000
FY21 Marketing 36,000
FY21 Purschasing 24,000
FY21 Streets 50,000
FY21 ECO DEV Projects 3,000,000

Total Requests $3,320,400
RESOURCES

Transfer in from Pooled Investment - ECO DEV Projects 3,000,000
Transfer in from the General Fund 3,700,000
Loan to the Epic Capital Projects Fund 200,000
GRAND TOTAL RESOURCES $6,900,000
Ending Fund Balance (Over)/Short (3,579,600)

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET

PROPOSED CAPITAL RESERVE PROJECTS



PROPOSED CIP
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 TOTAL

and beyond
CO's Bond Sale - FIRE 3,359,392 2,214,682 1,659,780 2,195,561 3,000,000 12,429,415
Cost of Issuance - FIRE 67,188 44,294 33,196 43,911 60,000 248,588

CO's Bond Sale - IT 668,814 6,565,000 350,000 350,000 350,000 8,283,814
Cost of Issuance - IT 13,376 131,300 7,000 7,000 7,000 165,676

CO's Bond Sale - LIBR 36,928 250,000 0 0 5,000,000 5,286,928
Cost of Issuance - LIBR 739 5,000 0 0 100,000 105,739

CO's Bond Sale - MFAC 5,300,811 860,000 3,860,000 860,000 11,460,000 22,340,811
Cost of Issuance - MFAC 106,016 17,200 77,200 17,200 229,200 446,816

CO's Bond Sale - STRT 12,484,000 17,500,525 13,044,698 6,905,000 862,927,647 912,861,870
Cost of Issuance - STRT 249,680 350,011 260,894 138,100 17,258,553 18,257,237

TOTAL PROPERTY TAX BACKED $22,286,944 $27,938,011 $19,292,768 $10,516,772 $900,392,400 $980,426,895
AVAILABLE BOND CAPACITY $24,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 $30,000,000 TBD

Surplus/(Shortage) $1,713,056 $2,061,989 $10,707,232 $19,483,228
Lake Revenue Bonds 0 2,540,923 0 0 5,631,600 8,172,523
Park Revenue Bonds 0 0 0 0 34,054,345 34,054,345
Water/Wastewater Revenue Bonds 0 5,897,946 7,968,240 5,097,960 100,749,855 119,714,001

TOTAL REVENUE BONDS $0 $8,438,869 $7,968,240 $5,097,960 $140,435,801 $161,940,869

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CAPITAL PROJECTS BUDGET AND CAPITAL PROJECTS PLAN

5 YEAR SPENDING PLAN



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10346 Name: Public hearing on tax rate

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/1/2020 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Public hearing seeking citizen comments on proposed tax rate of $0.669998 per $100 assessed
valuation in accordance with the Texas Property Tax Code

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: City of Grand Prairie Notice_of_Tax_Rate.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Becky L. Brooks, CFO

Title
Public hearing seeking citizen comments on proposed tax rate of $0.669998 per $100 assessed valuation in
accordance with the Texas Property Tax Code

Presenter
Brady Olsen, Treasury and Debt Manager

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
In accordance with Truth-In-Taxation Law, taxpayers have the opportunity to express their views on the
proposed tax rate.  Section 26.05(d) of the law requires a taxing unit to hold a public hearing and publish notice
before adopting a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the voter-approval rate or the no-new-revenue tax rate.
Based on the certified appraisal information provided by Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis Central Appraisal Districts,
the taxable assessed valuation calculates a no-new-revenue tax rate of $0.692571 per $100 assessed valuation.
The proposed tax rate is $0.669998/$100 assessed valuation and does not exceed the no-new-revenue tax rate.
Despite this, we would like to open up a public hearing in order to be as transparent as possible.

At the regular city council meeting on August 18, 2019, a public hearing was proposed for the September 15,
2020 regular city council meeting.  This action complies with state law. The final vote on the tax rate will occur
in conjunction with budget adoption on September 15th.

Financial Consideration
The City's FY 2020/2021 proposed budget includes a proposed tax rate of $0.669998/$100 assessed valuation.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



 

1016.1.13 

Unencumbered Fund Balances 

The following estimated balances will be left in the taxing unit's accounts at the end of the fiscal year. These balances are not encumbered by corresponding   

debt obligation.  

Type of Fund Balance 

Current Year Debt Service 

The unit plans to pay the following amounts for long-term debts that are secured by property taxes. These amounts will be paid from upcoming property tax   
revenues (or additional sales tax revenues, if applicable).  
 

Description of Debt 

Debt service 

Principal or Contract   

Payment to be Paid from  

Property Taxes  

30,760,000 

Interest to be Paid from   

Property Taxes  

13,589,397 

Other Amounts to be   

Paid  

60,000 

Total Payment 

44,409,397 

Total required for 2020 debt service 
- Amount (if any) paid from funds listed in unencumbered funds 
- Amount (if any) paid from other resources 
- Excess collections last year 
= Total to be paid from taxes in 2020 
collect only   102.18% of its taxes in 2020 
=Total debt levy 

44,409,397 
0 

12,706,733 
298,584 

31,404,080 
-670,003 

30,734,077 

NOTICE ABOUT 2020 TAX RATES 
Property Tax Rates in City of Grand Prairie  

This notice concerns the 2020 property tax rates for City of Grand Prairie.  This notice provides information about two tax rates.  The no-new-revenue tax   

rate would impose the same amount of taxes as last year if you compare properties taxed in both years.  The voter-approval tax rate is the highest tax rate a   
taxing unit can adopt without holding an election.  In each case, these rates are calculated by dividing the total amount of taxes by the current taxable value   

with adjustments as required by state law.  The rates are given per $100 of property value.  

 

This year's no-new-revenue tax rate: $0.692571  

 This year's voter-approval tax rate: $0.691916  

This notice contains a summary of the no-new-revenue and voter-approval calculations as certified by John R. Ames   

Tax Assessor Collector, on August 11, 2020 .  

  

To see the full calculations, please visit www.dallascounty.org for a copy of the Tax Rate Calculation   

Worksheets.  



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10347 Name: 2020 TAX RATE

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/1/2020 City Council

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance adopting and levying the ad valorem tax for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/2021 at a rate of
$.669998 per $100 of assessed value on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the city on
January 1, 2020, not exempt by law; providing revenues for payment of current municipal expenses
for interest and sinking fund on outstanding City of Grand Prairie debt; providing for enforcement of
collections; providing for a severability clause; and providing an effective date

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: City of Grand Prairie Adoption_of_Tax_Rate_Steps.pdf

City of Grand Prairie Notice_of_Tax_Rate.pdf

signed TNT.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Brady Olsen

Title

Ordinance adopting and levying the ad valorem tax for the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020/2021 at a rate of $.669998
per $100 of assessed value on all taxable property within the corporate limits of the city on January 1, 2020, not
exempt by law; providing revenues for payment of current municipal expenses for interest and sinking fund on
outstanding City of Grand Prairie debt; providing for enforcement of collections; providing for a severability
clause; and providing an effective date

Presenter

Brady Olsen, Treasury and Debt Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The proposed rate of $0.669998 per $100 valuation significantly funds the FY 2020/2021 balanced budget, and
it has not changed from the current rate.  This year's proposed tax rate does not exceed the no-new-revenue rate.
The vote on the ordinance, resolution, or order setting the tax rate must be a record vote.  A motion to adopt the
ordinance does not require any specific language.

Financial Consideration

Property taxes will be allocated to the General Fund and Debt Service (I&S) Fund based on their respective
components of $0.460638 and $0.209360 per $100 valuation.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10347, Version: 1

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ADOPTING AND LEVYING
THE AD VALOREM TAX OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS FOR THE FISCAL
YEAR 2020/2021, ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF
THE CITY ON JANUARY 1, 2020, NOT EXEMPT BY LAW; PROVIDING REVENUES FOR
PAYMENT OF CURRENT MUNICIPAL EXPENSES, AND FOR DEBT SERVICE ON
OUTSTANDING CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE DEBT; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS,  the City Council deems it in the public interest to adopt a tax rate for the Fiscal Year
2020/2021;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1.  THAT by authority of the Charter of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and the Laws of the
State of Texas, there is hereby levied for the FY 2020/2021, on all taxable property situated within the
corporate limits of the City of Grand Prairie on January 1, 2020, and not exempt by the constitution and
laws of the State of Texas or municipal ordinance, a tax of  $0.669998 on each $100 assessed value of all
taxable property.

SECTION 2.  THAT of the total tax, $0.460638 of each $100 of assessed value shall be distributed to the
General Fund of the City to fund maintenance and operation expenditures of the City.

This tax rate will not raise more taxes for maintenance and operations than last year's tax
rate.

SECTION 3.  THAT of the total tax, $0.209360 of each $100 of assessed value shall be distributed to pay
the City's debt service as provided by Section 26.04(e)(3) of the Texas Property Tax Code.

SECTION 4.  THAT ad valorem taxes levied by this ordinance shall be due and payable on October 1,
2020 and shall be come delinquent on February 1, 2021.

SECTION 5.  THAT for enforcement of the collection of taxes hereby levied, the City of Grand Prairie
shall have available all right and remedies provided by law.

SECTION 6.  THAT if any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or word in this
ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or circumstance is held invalid by any court or
competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this
ordinance and the City Council of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, hereby declares it would have
enacted such remaining portions despite any such invalidity.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™



1005.1.0

Section 26.05(b) of Property Tax Code Steps Required for 
Adoption of Tax Rate

Entity Name: City of Grand Prairie                                                                    Date: 08/13/2020 06:02PM 

Language Required in the Motion Setting This Year's Tax Rate: 

This year's proposed tax rate does not exceed the effective tax rate. A motion to adopt the ordinace, resolution, or order setting the tax rate does not 
require the language about "tax increase" as stated in 26.05(b) of Property Tax Code.

Statement Required in the Ordinance, Resolution, or Order Setting This Year's Tax Rate: 

This year's levy to fund maintenance and operations expenditures does not exceed last year's maintenance and operations tax levy. The ordinance, 
resolution, or order setting this year's tax rate does not require the statements about "tax increase" as specified in 26.05(b) of Property Tax Code.

Statement That Must be Posted on the Home Page of Any Internet Website Operated by the Taxing Unit: 

This years levy to fund maintenance and operations expenditures does not exceed last years maintenance and operations tax levy. A statement about 
"tax increase" as specified by 26.05(b) of Property Tax Code is not required to be included on the home page of any Internet website operated by City 
of Grand Prairie



















City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10348 Name: 2020 Tax Roll

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/1/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance approving the 2020 tax roll resulting in a tax levy in the amount of $109,630,740 based on
the Certified Appraisal Rolls approved by the Dallas,Tarrant, and Ellis County Appraisal Districts

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: 2020 City of Grand Prairie Signed Certified ESTIMATE.pdf

038_julycert.pdf

GRAND-PRAIRIE-CERTIFICATION-LETTER-ESTIMATE.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Brady Olsen

Title

Ordinance approving the 2020 tax roll resulting in a tax levy in the amount of $109,630,740 based on the
Certified Appraisal Rolls approved by the Dallas,Tarrant, and Ellis County Appraisal Districts

Presenter

Brady Olsen, Treasury and Debt Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

The approval of the tax roll is an annual process required by the Texas Property Tax Code.  The tax roll is
calculated by taking the 2020 certified appraisal rolls and applying the fiscal year (FY) 2020/2021 adopted tax
rate. We are using certified estimates for this calculation. We anticipate the actual tax levy to be higher.

Financial Consideration

The approval of the tax rolls will enable the City to begin the annual tax collection process performed by the
Dallas County Tax Assessor/Collector.  The tax roll is also a funding basis included in the Proposed FY
2020/2021 Operating Budget.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, APPROVING THE 2020 TAX
ROLL; AND, PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 2

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10348, Version: 1

WHEREAS,  the proposed budget for FY 2020/2021 has been considered by the City Council; and,

WHEREAS,  it is necessary to fund the budget; and

WHEREAS,  certified appraisal rolls have been received from the Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis County
Appraisal Districts.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1.  The City Council hereby approves the 2020 tax roll of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas
which will result in a tax levy of $109,630,740 based on the Certified Appraisal Rolls as approved by the
Dallas, Tarrant, and Ellis County Appraisal Districts;

SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage and approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
SEPTEMBER 15, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 2

powered by Legistar™





  

 

 

 

I
s
p

 

 

A

N

 

 

 

 

 

 

N

A
I

 

E

I
t

 

 

_

J

 

                     

,  Jeff  Law,  C
swear that th
property tax

 

APPRAISED V

Number of A

NET TAXABL

Appraised  V
ncompletes

ESTIMATED 

ncluding sug
three) and In

___________

eff Law, Chi

                     

2500 Ha

Appraisa

Chief  Appra
he attached
able by the 

VALUE (Con

Accounts:     

Absolute 

Cases bef

Incomple

Partial Ex

In Proces

 

LE VALUE      

Value  minus
, minus Part

NET TAXABL

ggested valu
n Process acc

__________

ef Appraiser

                     

andley Ederv

CIT

al Roll Info

2020

iser  for  the
 is that port
above name

siders Value

35,943 

Exemptions

fore ARB – A

etes 

xemptions 

s 

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 

s  Absolute 
tial Exemptio

LE VALUE     

ues to be use
counts (see 

___________

r 

   Jeff Law,

Tarrant A
ville Road ‐ F

Y OF GRA

rmation V

0 Certified

e  Tarrant  Ap
ion of the ap
ed entity and

e Caps)      ‐ ‐

s 

Appraised Va

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

Exemption 
ons, minus t

 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

ed for pendi
page four).

____ 

 Chief Appr

Appraisal Dis
Fort Worth, T

1 

AND PRA
 

Valuation S

Property I

ppraisal  Dist
ppraisal roll 
d constitutes

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

alue

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

amount,  m
he In Proces

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

ng ARB acco

 
raiser 

strict 
Texas 76118

IRIE   038

Summary a

Informatio

trict,  to  the
for the Tarr
s their Certif

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ 

$ 265

$ 549

$ 613

$ 1,1

$ 0 

 ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

minus  Case
ss accounts e

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐

ounts (see p

8 ‐ 817.284.0

8 

as of 7/21/

on 

best  of my
rant Apprais
fied Apprais

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐> $  1

5,396,791 

9,751,569 

3,799,181 

103,201,227 

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ > $   

es  before  A
equals the N

‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐ ‐> $  8

age two), In

0024 

/2020 

y  ability  do 
sal District w
al Roll. 

10,184,012,7

 

7,651,863,9

ARB  amoun
Net Taxable V

8,273,486,85

completes (

solemnly 
which lists 

753 

985 

t,  minus 
Value.   

57 

(see page 



  

 

 

 

S
p
r

 

T
r

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                     

Section  25.0
properties u
roll certificat

The values b
represented

                     

2500 Ha

Appraisa

01  (c)  of  the
nder protes
tion. 

below are fr
 on page 1 o

Est

This v

                     

andley Ederv

CIT

al Roll Info

2020 Ap

e  State  Prop
t with the A

om the ARB
of this repor

Total app

Net taxa

timated min

value should

   Jeff Law,

Tarrant A
ville Road ‐ F

Y OF GRA

rmation V

ppraisal Re

perty  Tax  co
Appraisal Rev

B roll and ar
rt. 

$   5

raised value

$   5

able value o

$   3

nimum taxab

d be added t

 Chief Appr

Appraisal Dis
Fort Worth, T

2 

AND PRA
 

Valuation S

eview Boar

ode  directs  t
view Board a

e not includ

549,751,569

e of properti

 

510,667,974

of properties

 

357,467,582

ble value for

o the net ta

 
raiser 

strict 
Texas 76118

IRIE   038

Summary a

rd Informa

the  Chief  A
and pending

ded in the to

9 

ies under pr

4 

s under prot

2 

r the same p

axable value

8 ‐ 817.284.0

8 

as of 7/21/

ation 

Appraiser  to 
g disposition

otals by the 

rotest. 

test. 

properties.  

e on page on

0024 

/2020 

prepare  a 
n at the time

Chief Appra

 

ne. 

list  of  all 
e of value 

aiser and 



  

 

 

 

S
p

 

T
C

 

T
A

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                     

Section  26.0
properties th

The values b
Chief Apprai

The value of
Appraisal Re

                     

2500 Ha

Appraisa

01(d)  of  the 
hat are not o

below are fr
iser and rep

f incomplete
eview Board

Net t

Est

This v

                     

andley Ederv

CIT

al Roll Info

2020 I

State  Prop
on the appra

rom the inco
resented on

e properties
d. 

Total ap

taxable valu

timated min

value should

   Jeff Law,

Tarrant A
ville Road ‐ F

Y OF GRA

rmation V

ncomplete

erty  Tax  Co
aisal roll and

omplete pro
n page 1 of t

s are subjec

$ 6

ppraised valu

$ 3

e of propert

$ 2

nimum taxab

d be added t

 Chief Appr

Appraisal Dis
Fort Worth, T

3 

AND PRA
 

Valuation S

e Property

ode  directs  t
 not include

operty listin
this report. 

ct to change

13,799,181

ue of incom

 

77,364,700

ties under o

 

64,155,290

ble value for

to the net ta

 
raiser 

strict 
Texas 76118

IRIE   038

Summary a

y Informat

the  Chief  A
ed on the AR

g and are n

e and are als

plete prope

of incomplet

r the same p

axable value

8 ‐ 817.284.0

8 

as of 7/21/

ion 

ppraiser  to 
RB roll. 

not included

so subject t

erties 

te properties

properties.  

e on page on

0024 

/2020 

prepare  a  l

 in the tota

to appeal be

s.   

 

ne 

list  of  all 

ls by the 

efore the 



  

 

 

 

 

T
A

 

 

 

                     

The  values 
Appraiser an

                     

2500 Ha

Appraisa

below  are  f
nd represent

This v

                     

andley Ederv

CIT

al Roll Info

2020 

from  In  Pro
ted on page

Total ap

Estimated n

value should

   Jeff Law,

Tarrant A
ville Road ‐ F

Y OF GRA

rmation V

In Process

ocess  prope
e 1 of this re

ppraised val

net taxable 

d be added t

 Chief Appr

Appraisal Dis
Fort Worth, T

4 

AND PRA
 

Valuation S

s Property 

rties  and  ar
port.  

$ 0 

lue of In Pro

 

$ 0 

value of In P

o the net ta

 
raiser 

strict 
Texas 76118

IRIE   038

Summary a

Informatio

re  not  inclu

ocess proper

Process prop

axable value

8 ‐ 817.284.0

8 

as of 7/21/

on 

uded  in  the 

rties 

perties.   

e on page on

0024 

/2020 

totals  by  t

ne. 

the  Chief 



Tarrant Appraisal District
CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE 038

Totals for Roll Instance 000 - July Roll
2020

Value Detail Market Appraised Counts Taxable

Real Estate Residential 4,104,446,636 4,052,238,790 16,042 3,541,238,499

Real Estate Commercial 3,538,573,738 3,538,573,738 1,501 3,278,879,123

Real Estate Industrial 210,791,834 210,791,834 56 207,304,860

Personal Property Commercial 1,730,957,667 1,730,957,667 2,596 1,116,337,136

Personal Property Industrial 640,869,900 640,869,900 107 386,267,867

Mineral Lease Properties 10,537,070 10,537,070 15,598 9,825,420

Agricultural Properties 30,369,643 43,754 43 43,754

Total Value 10,266,546,488 10,184,012,753 35,943 8,539,896,659

Pending Detail Market Appraised Counts Taxable

Cases Before ARB 563,153,877 549,751,569 1,176 510,667,974

Incomplete Accounts 613,799,181 613,799,181 571 377,364,700

In Process Accounts 0 0 0 0

Certified Value 9,089,593,430 9,020,462,003 34,196 7,651,863,985

7/19/2020 1:39:58 PM Page 177 of 511



Exemption Detail Market Exempt Counts Appraised

Absolute Public 157,283,041 157,278,082 490 157,283,041

Absolute Charitable 7,154,945 7,154,945 16 7,154,945

Absolute Miscellaneous 2 2 2 2

Absolute Religious & Private Schools 101,089,711 100,963,762 37 101,089,711

Indigent Housing 0 0 0 0

Nominal Value 437,910 437,910 5,998 437,910

Disabled Vet 10-29% 19,824,119 335,000 67 19,666,987

Disabled Vet 30-49% 20,505,653 510,000 68 20,351,481

Disabled Vet 50-69% 31,637,822 1,014,300 102 31,516,364

Disabled Vet 70-99% 126,839,158 4,794,666 401 125,683,592

Disabled Vet 100% 118,427,070 98,316,780 338 117,911,421

Surviving Spouse Disabled Vet 100% 2,288,431 1,766,503 8 2,229,448

Donated Disabled Vet 0 0 0 0

Surviving Spouse Donated Disabled Vet 0 0 0 0

Surviving Spouse KIA Armed Service Member 400,602 400,602 1 400,602

Transfer Base Value for SS Disable Vet 0 0 0 0

Inventory 963,897,210 593,907,497 82 963,897,210

Homestead State Mandated-General 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Over 65 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person 
Over 65

0 0 0 0

Homestead Local Option-General 2,840,741,340 278,187,953 10,394 2,791,409,033

Homestead Local Option-Over 65 492,904,473 87,158,726 1,988 477,026,916

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person 45,774,552 5,142,898 178 44,749,164

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person 
Over 65

12,845,277 2,415,201 55 12,478,598

Solar & Wind Powered Devices 656,937 2 2 656,937

Pollution control 120,685,615 1,806,299 2 120,685,615

Community Housing Development 0 0 0 0

Abatements 16,206,850 6,167,901 2 16,206,850

Historic Sites 0 0 0 0

Foreign Trade Zone 76,518,914 3,647,180 1 76,518,914

Misc Personal Property (Vehicles, etc.) 30,928,057 16,738,286 22 30,928,057

Surviving Spouse of First Responder KLD 453,523 453,523 1 453,523

Transfer Base Value SS KIA Armed Service 
Member

0 0 0 0

Transfer Base Value SS of First Responder 
KLD

0 0 0 0

Property Damaged by Disaster 0 0 0 0

Total Exemptions 1,368,598,018 20,255

7/19/2020 1:39:58 PM Page 178 of 511



Deferrals Market Deferred Counts Appraised

Ag Deferrals 19,830,095 19,799,120 35 30,975

Scenic Deferrals 0 0 0 0

Public Access Airports 0 0 0 0

Other Deferrals 0 0 0 0

Total Deferrals 19,830,095 19,799,120 35 30,975

7/19/2020 1:39:58 PM Page 179 of 511



New Exemptions Market Exempt Counts Appraised

Absolute Public 24,132 19,173 1 24,132

Absolute Charitable 0 0 0 0

Absolute Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0

Absolute Religious & Private Schools 0 0 0 0

Indigent Housing 0 0 0 0

Nominal Value 0 0 0 0

Disabled Vet 10-29% 957,257 15,000 3 957,257

Disabled Vet 30-49% 3,212,115 67,500 9 3,212,115

Disabled Vet 50-69% 3,319,957 110,000 11 3,313,496

Disabled Vet 70-99% 14,594,512 540,000 45 14,548,257

Disabled Vet 100% 8,392,280 6,593,408 23 8,392,280

Surviving Spouse Disabled Vet 100% 0 0 0 0

Donated Disabled Vet 0 0 0 0

Surviving Spouse Donated Disabled Vet 0 0 0 0

Surviving Spouse KIA Armed Service Member 0 0 0 0

Transfer Base Value for SS Disable Vet 0 0 0 0

Inventory 55,030,205 3,404,214 7 55,030,205

Homestead State Mandated-General 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Over 65 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person 0 0 0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person 
Over 65

0 0 0 0

Homestead Local Option-General 60,875,398 6,031,507 190 60,875,398

Homestead Local Option-Over 65 19,245,647 3,177,000 72 18,860,318

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person 423,640 57,900 2 423,640

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person 
Over 65

12,845,277 810,201 55 12,478,598

Solar & Wind Powered Devices 0 0 0 0

Pollution control 0 0 0 0

Community Housing Development 0 0 0 0

Abatements 0 0 0 0

Historic Sites 0 0 0 0

Foreign Trade Zone 0 0 0 0

Misc Personal Property (Vehicles, etc.) 0 0 0 0

Surviving Spouse of First Responder KLD 0 0 0 0

Transfer Base Value SS KIA Armed Service 
Member

0 0 0 0

Transfer Base Value SS of First Responder 
KLD

0 0 0 0

Property Damaged by Disaster 0 0 0 0

Total New Exemptions 20,825,903 418

7/19/2020 1:39:58 PM Page 180 of 511



New Construction Market New Value Counts Taxable

All Real Estate 187,573,257 122,674,190 203 171,679,737

New business in new improvement 0 0 0 0

Total New Construction 187,573,257 122,674,190 203 171,679,737

New Construction in Residential 73,215,292 44,975,799 192 64,408,747

New Construction in Commercial 114,357,965 77,698,391 11 107,270,990

Market Appraised Counts Taxable

Annexation 0 0 0 0

Deannexation 0 0 0 0

Tax Ceiling Market Taxable Counts Ceiling Amount

Over 65 492,904,473 323,380,457 1,988 1,637,154.00

Disable Person 46,581,024 30,496,953 181 167,994.00

Disabled Person Over 65 12,845,277 7,932,618 55 41,275.00

Total Ceilings 552,330,774 361,810,028 2,224 1,846,423.00

New Over 65 Ceilings 25,326,309 0 93 0.00

New Disabled Person Ceilings 1,319,372 0 5 0.00

New Disabled Person Over 65 Ceilings 0 0 0 0

Capped Accounts Market Cap Loss Counts Appraised

Cap Total 646,114,086 49,332,307 2,954 596,781,779

New Cap this Year 20,089,053 1,625,947 81 18,463,106

All Exemptions by Group Market Exempt Counts Appraised

Residential 2,849,214,169 483,061,296 10,490 2,799,881,862

Commercial 879,757,548 664,127,887 499 879,757,548

Industrial 458,263,707 220,698,005 30 458,263,707

Mineral Lease 710,830 710,830 6,038 710,830

Agricultural 0 0 0 0

Exemption Total 1,368,598,018 17,057

Market Exempt Counts Appraised

Prorated Absolute 529,314 398,406 2 529,314

Multi-Prorated Absolute 0 0 1 24,132

Current Taxable Counts Appraised

Value Loss - 25.25(d) 0 0 0

Average Market Average Appraised Counts Average Taxable

Averages for Value Single Family 266,208 262,768 14,297 229,045

7/19/2020 1:39:58 PM Page 181 of 511



Entity Exemptions Report
2020 000 - JULY ROLL

038  CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 1 of 3
7/19/2020 4:15:48 PM

Exemption Type Certified 
Loss Count ARB Loss Count Incomplete 

Loss Count Total
Loss Count

Abatements $6,167,901 2 $2,538,886 1 $0 0 $8,706,787 3

Absolute Charitable $7,154,945 16 $0 0 $4,345,513 1 $11,500,458 17

Absolute Miscellaneous $2 2 $0 0 $2,107,521 1 $2,107,523 3

Absolute Public $157,278,082 490 $0 0 $11,046 2 $157,289,128 492

Absolute Religious & Private Schools $100,963,762 37 $0 0 $0 0 $100,963,762 37

Community Housing Development $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Disabled Vet 100% $98,316,780 338 $0 0 $0 0 $98,316,780 338

Disabled Vet 10-29% $335,000 67 $35,000 7 $0 0 $370,000 74

Disabled Vet 30-49% $510,000 68 $45,000 6 $0 0 $555,000 74

Disabled Vet 50-69% $1,014,300 102 $50,000 5 $0 0 $1,064,300 107

Disabled Vet 70-99% $4,794,666 401 $156,000 13 $0 0 $4,950,666 414

Donated Disabled Vet $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Foreign Trade Zone $3,647,180 1 $0 0 $80,000,000 1 $83,647,180 2

Historic Sites $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person $5,142,898 178 $272,100 10 $0 0 $5,414,998 188

Homestead Local Option-Disabled Person Over 65 $2,415,201 55 $0 0 $0 0 $2,415,201 55

Homestead Local Option-General $278,187,953 10,394 $22,611,794 806 $0 0 $300,799,747 11,200

Homestead Local Option-Over 65 $87,158,726 1,988 $4,724,100 107 $0 0 $91,882,826 2,095

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Disabled Person Over 65 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Homestead State Mandated-General $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Homestead State Mandated-Over 65 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Indigent Housing $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Inventory $593,907,497 82 $8,578,973 9 $140,547,545 50 $743,034,015 141

Misc Personal Property (Vehicles, etc.) $16,738,286 22 $0 0 $8,890,127 15 $25,628,413 37

Nominal Value $437,910 5,998 $820 3 $2,540 7 $441,270 6,008

Pollution control $1,806,299 2 $25,921 1 $460,434 6 $2,292,654 9

Property Damaged by Disaster $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Solar & Wind Powered Devices $2 2 $1 1 $69,755 2 $69,758 5

Surviving Spouse Disabled Vet 100% $1,766,503 8 $0 0 $0 0 $1,766,503 8

Surviving Spouse Donated Disabled Vet $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0



Entity Exemptions Report
2020 000 - JULY ROLL

038  CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 2 of 3
7/19/2020 4:15:48 PM

Exemption Type Certified 
Loss Count ARB Loss Count Incomplete 

Loss Count Total
Loss Count

Surviving Spouse KIA Armed Service Member $400,602 1 $0 0 $0 0 $400,602 1

Surviving Spouse of First Responder KLD $453,523 1 $0 0 $0 0 $453,523 1

Transfer Base Value for SS Disable Vet $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Transfer Base Value SS KIA Armed Service Member $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Transfer Base Value SS of First Responder KLD $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Subtotals ==> $1,368,598,018 20,255 $39,038,595 969 $236,434,481 85 $1,644,071,094 21,309



Entity Exemptions Report
2020 000 - JULY ROLL

038  CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 3 of 3
7/19/2020 4:15:48 PM

Total Appraised * $10,184,012,753
Absolute Exempt $265,396,791
Cases Before ARB $549,751,569
Incompletes $613,799,181
Partial Exemptions $1,103,201,227

Calculated Net Taxable Value $7,651,863,985

Total # of Accounts * 35,943

*  Only includes totals from Agricultural Properties, Mineral Lease Properties, Personal Property Commercial, Personal Property 
Industrial, Real Estate Commercial, Real Estate Industrial, and Real Estate Residential.

Entity Totals

Exemption Type Certified 
Loss Count ARB Loss Count Incomplete 

Loss Count Total
Loss Count

Prorated Absolute (included in above Absolute categories) $398,406 2 $0 0 $0 0 $398,406 2

Deferral Type Certified 
Loss Count ARB Loss Count Incomplete 

Loss Count Total
Loss Count

Ag Deferrals $19,799,120 35 $10,526,769 8 $0 0 $30,325,889 43

Scenic Deferrals $0 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0 0

Subtotals ==> $19,799,120 35 $10,526,769 8 $0 0 $30,325,889 43

In Process $0



Current Use Code Report - Certified
Entity: 038 CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 1 of 4
7/19/2020 6:43:51 PM

G
r
o

Category Roll Status # of Accts Market Value Appraised Value Taxable Value Ag Acreage Ag Deferred New Const. 
Value

A -- "Residential SingleFamily" ARB 987 $276,669,065 $273,793,526 $245,945,351 0.0000 $0 $7,720,211
A -- "Residential SingleFamily" Certified 14,290 $3,804,081,655 $3,754,893,824 $3,274,663,290 0.0000 $0 $44,724,356
A -- "Residential SingleFamily" Incomplete 1 $94,950 $94,950 $94,950 0.0000 $0 $0

A -- "Residential SingleFamily" Totals: 15,278 $4,080,845,670 $4,028,782,300 $3,520,703,591 0.0000 $0 $52,444,567

B -- "MultiFamily Residential" ARB 1 $113,706 $113,706 $113,706 0.0000 $0 $0
B -- "MultiFamily Residential" Certified 40 $3,607,128 $3,558,441 $3,475,965 0.0000 $0 $0

B -- "MultiFamily Residential" Totals: 41 $3,720,834 $3,672,147 $3,589,671 0.0000 $0 $0

BC -- "MultiFamily Commercial" ARB 1 $2,218,529 $2,218,529 $2,218,529 0.0000 $0 $823,125
BC -- "MultiFamily Commercial" Certified 59 $1,188,209,757 $1,188,209,757 $1,188,209,757 0.0000 $0 $62,755,565

BC -- "MultiFamily Commercial" Totals: 60 $1,190,428,286 $1,190,428,286 $1,190,428,286 0.0000 $0 $63,578,690

C1 -- "Vacant Land  Residential" ARB 8 $519,381 $519,381 $519,381 0.0000 $0 $0
C1 -- "Vacant Land  Residential" Certified 435 $7,299,921 $7,204,132 $7,135,185 0.0000 $0 $0
C1 -- "Vacant Land  Residential" Incomplete 1 $46,410 $46,410 $46,410 0.0000 $0 $0

C1 -- "Vacant Land  Residential" Totals: 444 $7,865,712 $7,769,923 $7,700,976 0.0000 $0 $0

C1C -- "Vacant Land  Commercial" ARB 23 $8,643,981 $8,643,981 $8,643,981 0.0000 $0 $0
C1C -- "Vacant Land  Commercial" Certified 222 $40,423,258 $40,423,258 $40,423,258 0.0000 $0 $0

C1C -- "Vacant Land  Commercial" Totals: 245 $49,067,239 $49,067,239 $49,067,239 0.0000 $0 $0

C2C -- 
"CommercialLandWithImprovementValue" ARB 1 $74,659 $74,659 $74,659 0.0000 $0 $0

C2C -- 
"CommercialLandWithImprovementValue" Certified 52 $4,405,618 $4,405,618 $4,395,618 0.0000 $0 $0

C2C -- "CommercialLandWithImprovementValue" Totals: 53 $4,480,277 $4,480,277 $4,470,277 0.0000 $0 $0

D1 -- "Qualified Open Space Land" ARB 8 $10,539,548 $12,779 $12,779 116.6403 $10,526,769 $0
D1 -- "Qualified Open Space Land" Certified 35 $19,830,095 $30,975 $30,975 323.2142 $19,799,120 $0

D1 -- "Qualified Open Space Land" Totals: 43 $30,369,643 $43,754 $43,754 439.8545 $30,325,889 $0

E -- "Rural Land (No Ag) and Improvements 
Residential" ARB 3 $804,703 $804,703 $713,883 0.0000 $0 $0

E -- "Rural Land (No Ag) and Improvements 
Residential" Certified 4 $1,315,965 $1,315,965 $1,228,037 0.0000 $0 $0

E -- "Rural Land (No Ag) and Improvements Residential" Totals: 7 $2,120,668 $2,120,668 $1,941,920 0.0000 $0 $0

This report contains All Excluding Absolutes

Process Code: 220          Table Group Name: 000 - July Roll



Current Use Code Report - Certified
Entity: 038 CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 2 of 4
7/19/2020 6:43:51 PM

G
r
o

Category Roll Status # of Accts Market Value Appraised Value Taxable Value Ag Acreage Ag Deferred New Const. 
Value

F1 -- "Commercial" ARB 38 $99,471,766 $99,471,766 $96,932,880 0.0000 $0 $2,193,784
F1 -- "Commercial" Certified 713 $1,936,080,966 $1,936,080,966 $1,933,736,135 0.0000 $0 $10,375,122
F1 -- "Commercial" Incomplete 1 $1,850,000 $1,850,000 $1,850,000 0.0000 $0 $0

F1 -- "Commercial" Totals: 752 $2,037,402,732 $2,037,402,732 $2,032,519,015 0.0000 $0 $12,568,906

F1C -- "VarX Billboards" Certified 1 $776,056 $776,056 $776,056 0.0000 $0 $0
F1C -- "VarX Billboards" Incomplete 3 $783,682 $783,682 $783,682 0.0000 $0 $0

F1C -- "VarX Billboards" Totals: 4 $1,559,738 $1,559,738 $1,559,738 0.0000 $0 $0

F2 -- "Industrial" ARB 1 $1,680,000 $1,680,000 $1,680,000 0.0000 $0 $0
F2 -- "Industrial" Certified 54 $205,624,860 $205,624,860 $205,624,860 0.0000 $0 $0

F2 -- "Industrial" Totals: 55 $207,304,860 $207,304,860 $207,304,860 0.0000 $0 $0

G1 -- "Oil, Gas and Mineral Reserve" ARB 23 $37,460 $37,460 $36,640 0.0000 $0 $0
G1 -- "Oil, Gas and Mineral Reserve" Certified 15,488 $10,210,340 $10,210,340 $9,788,780 0.0000 $0 $0

G1 -- "Oil, Gas and Mineral Reserve" Totals: 15,511 $10,247,800 $10,247,800 $9,825,420 0.0000 $0 $0

J2 -- "Commercial Utility Gas Companies" Certified 4 $42,584 $42,584 $42,584 0.0000 $0 $0

J2 -- "Commercial Utility Gas Companies" Totals: 4 $42,584 $42,584 $42,584 0.0000 $0 $0

J2C -- "VarX Utility Gas Companies" Incomplete 1 $6,331,750 $6,331,750 $6,331,750 0.0000 $0 $0

J2C -- "VarX Utility Gas Companies" Totals: 1 $6,331,750 $6,331,750 $6,331,750 0.0000 $0 $0

J3 -- "Commercial Utility Electric Companies" Certified 11 $651,851 $651,851 $651,851 0.0000 $0 $0

J3 -- "Commercial Utility Electric Companies" Totals: 11 $651,851 $651,851 $651,851 0.0000 $0 $0

J3C -- "VarX Utility Electric Companies" Certified 1 $46,413,720 $46,413,720 $46,413,720 0.0000 $0 $0

J3C -- "VarX Utility Electric Companies" Totals: 1 $46,413,720 $46,413,720 $46,413,720 0.0000 $0 $0

J4 -- "Commercial Utility Telephone 
Companies" Certified 2 $1,568,963 $1,568,963 $1,568,963 0.0000 $0 $0

J4 -- "Commercial Utility Telephone Companies" Totals: 2 $1,568,963 $1,568,963 $1,568,963 0.0000 $0 $0

J4C -- "VarX Utility Telephone Companies" ARB 3 $327,724 $327,724 $327,724 0.0000 $0 $0
J4C -- "VarX Utility Telephone Companies" Certified 15 $17,088,240 $17,088,240 $17,088,240 0.0000 $0 $0
J4C -- "VarX Utility Telephone Companies" Incomplete 16 $11,436,317 $11,436,317 $11,436,317 0.0000 $0 $0

J4C -- "VarX Utility Telephone Companies" Totals: 34 $28,852,281 $28,852,281 $28,852,281 0.0000 $0 $0

This report contains All Excluding Absolutes

Process Code: 220          Table Group Name: 000 - July Roll



Current Use Code Report - Certified
Entity: 038 CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 3 of 4
7/19/2020 6:43:51 PM

G
r
o

Category Roll Status # of Accts Market Value Appraised Value Taxable Value Ag Acreage Ag Deferred New Const. 
Value

J4P -- "Personal Property Utility Telephone 
Companies" Certified 1 $20,588 $20,588 $20,588 0.0000 $0 $0

J4P -- "Personal Property Utility Telephone 
Companies" Incomplete 2 $77,797 $77,797 $77,797 0.0000 $0 $0

J4P -- "Personal Property Utility Telephone Companies" Totals: 3 $98,385 $98,385 $98,385 0.0000 $0 $0

J5C -- "VarX Utility Railroads" Certified 1 $5,160,819 $5,160,819 $5,160,819 0.0000 $0 $0

J5C -- "VarX Utility Railroads" Totals: 1 $5,160,819 $5,160,819 $5,160,819 0.0000 $0 $0

J6C -- "VarX Utility Pipelines" Incomplete 1 $3,871,750 $3,871,750 $3,871,750 0.0000 $0 $0

J6C -- "VarX Utility Pipelines" Totals: 1 $3,871,750 $3,871,750 $3,871,750 0.0000 $0 $0

J7C -- "VarX Utility Cable Companies" Certified 1 $80,303 $80,303 $80,303 0.0000 $0 $0
J7C -- "VarX Utility Cable Companies" Incomplete 1 $1,866 $1,866 $1,866 0.0000 $0 $0

J7C -- "VarX Utility Cable Companies" Totals: 2 $82,169 $82,169 $82,169 0.0000 $0 $0

J8C -- "VarX Utility Other" Incomplete 1 $675,320 $675,320 $675,320 0.0000 $0 $0

J8C -- "VarX Utility Other" Totals: 1 $675,320 $675,320 $675,320 0.0000 $0 $0

L1 -- "Personal Property Tangible 
Commercial" ARB 66 $119,917,559 $119,917,559 $117,282,856 0.0000 $0 $0

L1 -- "Personal Property Tangible 
Commercial" Certified 1,670 $913,141,442 $913,141,442 $526,078,723 0.0000 $0 $0

L1 -- "Personal Property Tangible 
Commercial" Incomplete 314 $460,324,899 $460,324,899 $269,617,626 0.0000 $0 $0

L1 -- "Personal Property Tangible 
Commercial" InProcess 1 $0 $0 $0 0.0000 $0 $0

L1 -- "Personal Property Tangible Commercial" Totals: 2,051 $1,493,383,900 $1,493,383,900 $912,979,205 0.0000 $0 $0

L1C -- "VarX Commercial" ARB 7 $7,749,434 $7,749,434 $7,749,434 0.0000 $0 $0
L1C -- "VarX Commercial" Certified 200 $69,826,812 $69,826,812 $54,168,745 0.0000 $0 $0
L1C -- "VarX Commercial" Incomplete 203 $24,492,685 $24,492,685 $16,816,039 0.0000 $0 $0

L1C -- "VarX Commercial" Totals: 410 $102,068,931 $102,068,931 $78,734,218 0.0000 $0 $0

L2 -- "Personal Property Tangible Industrial" ARB 6 $34,386,362 $34,386,362 $28,416,171 0.0000 $0 $0
L2 -- "Personal Property Tangible Industrial" Certified 80 $509,690,863 $509,690,863 $292,479,832 0.0000 $0 $0
L2 -- "Personal Property Tangible Industrial" Incomplete 21 $96,792,675 $96,792,675 $65,371,864 0.0000 $0 $0

L2 -- "Personal Property Tangible Industrial" Totals: 107 $640,869,900 $640,869,900 $386,267,867 0.0000 $0 $0

This report contains All Excluding Absolutes

Process Code: 220          Table Group Name: 000 - July Roll



Current Use Code Report - Certified
Entity: 038 CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE

Page 4 of 4
7/19/2020 6:43:51 PM

G
r
o

Category Roll Status # of Accts Market Value Appraised Value Taxable Value Ag Acreage Ag Deferred New Const. 
Value

M1 -- "Mobile Home" Certified 33 $119,667 $119,667 $103,398 0.0000 $0 $0

M1 -- "Mobile Home" Totals: 33 $119,667 $119,667 $103,398 0.0000 $0 $0

M2 -- "Personal Property Aircraft" Certified 1 $30,000 $30,000 $30,000 0.0000 $0 $0
M2 -- "Personal Property Aircraft" Incomplete 1 $555,000 $555,000 $389,329 0.0000 $0 $0

M2 -- "Personal Property Aircraft" Totals: 2 $585,000 $585,000 $419,329 0.0000 $0 $0

O -- "Residential Inventory" Certified 165 $7,198,943 $7,198,943 $7,198,943 0.0000 $0 $251,443

O -- "Residential Inventory" Totals: 165 $7,198,943 $7,198,943 $7,198,943 0.0000 $0 $251,443

S -- "Personal Property Special Inventory" Certified 36 $31,165,317 $31,165,317 $31,158,452 0.0000 $0 $0

S -- "Personal Property Special Inventory" Totals: 36 $31,165,317 $31,165,317 $31,158,452 0.0000 $0 $0

ARB Totals: 1,176 $563,153,877 $549,751,569 $510,667,974 116.6403 $10,526,769 $10,737,120

Certified Totals: 33,614 $8,824,065,731 $8,754,934,304 $7,651,733,077 323.2142 $19,799,120 $118,106,486

Incomplete Totals: 567 $607,335,101 $607,335,101 $377,364,700 0.0000 $0 $0

In Process Totals: 1 $0 $0 $0 0.0000 $0 $0

Report Totals: 35,358 $9,994,554,709 $9,912,020,974 $8,539,765,751 439.8545 $30,325,889 $128,843,606

This report contains All Excluding Absolutes

Process Code: 220          Table Group Name: 000 - July Roll



Entities Residential Graph Report 7/19/2020 
3:32:51 PM

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE         2020

Total Parcel Counts: 14,297 Average 
Market:

262,768 Average 
NTV:

229,045



Office of Executive Director/Chief Appraiser 
2949 N. Stemmons Freeway  Dallas, Texas  75247-6195  (214) 631-0520 

Web Site: www.dallascad.org 

 

Dallas Central Appraisal District 

Dallas CAD Taxing Units: 

Under the new provisions of Senate Bill 2 we are providing you with your entity’s “Certified Estimate of 

Value”. This is not the Certified Roll, but an estimate of value as of July 17, 2020. Due to the Covid-19 

pandemic, Notices of Appraised Value mailings were delayed to May 15th and May 29th. The response after 

these mailings was a record number of protests numbering slightly over 177,000, an increase of 20,000+ 

over last year. In accordance with Senate Bill 2, if the roll is not certified by July 25th, the appraisal district 

must provide each taxing unit with a “Certified Estimate of Value”. The values you are now receiving meet 

the requirements of the new law. You have received a Certified Estimate of Value for those accounts whose 

value has been determined for 2020. The letter states the final market and taxable values of those accounts. 

Also shown on the letter are the DCAD market and taxable values of those accounts that were still in dispute 

as of July 17, 2020 and the market and taxable values as estimated by the taxpayer. In previous years we 

have estimated the taxpayer’s value at 70% of the DCAD value. This year in light of the pandemic, the 

record number of protests and large number of protests still in dispute, we have estimated the taxpayer’s 

values at 50% of the DCAD values. 

You also have in your portal a full set of all reports and documents that are normally produced at 

certification, if you choose to use them. 

Certification of the appraisal roll will take place this year on August 20, 2020. In accordance with 

Section 41.12, Tax Code, the DCAD Board of Directors passed a resolution allowing us to certify the 2020 

appraisal roll no later than August 30, 2020 with a maximum of 10.00% of value still in dispute. The 

appraisal roll you will receive will meet those requirements. 

We anticipate thousands of accounts will be still be in dispute as of August 20, 2020. Those will be resolved 

during the Fall on each month’s Supplemental Appraisal Rolls. 

We appreciate your patience and understanding during the unusual year we are experiencing. 

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Cheryl Jordan or myself. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

W. Kenneth Nolan 

Executive/Director/Chief Appraiser 

 



DALLAS CENTRAL APPRAISAL DISTRICT

CERTIFIED ESTIMATE OF VALUE

Year: 2020

Jurisdiction: City of GRAND PRAIRIE

In accordance with the requirements of the Texas Property Tax Code, Chapter 26, Section 26.01, paragraph (a-1), the 

following values are hereby estimated:

Market Value Taxable Value

*Total Value of New Construction in Certified Market Value above

I, W. Kenneth Nolan, Executive Director/Chief Appraiser of the Dallas Central Appraisal District, do hereby 

esimate the aforementioned values and totals to the taxing jurisdiction indicated above, in accordance with the 

requirements of the laws of the State of Texas on this 27th day of July, 2020 .

Dallas Central Appraisal District

W. Kenneth Nolan

Executive Director/Chief Appraiser

Market Value of all Real & Business Personal Property

Before Qualified Exemptions*

Taxable Value of all Real & Business Personal 

Property

In accordance with the requirements of the Texas Property Tax Code, Chapter 26, Section 26.01, the following values 

are hereby estimated as disputed values and are not included in the above totals:

Values under protest as determined by

the Appraisal District**

Values under protest as claimed by property

owner or estimated by Appraisal District in 

event property owner's claim is upheld

Freeport Estimated Loss

Estimated Net Taxable

**Value of Disputed New Construction in Protested Market Value Above

$9,343,649,840

$6,945,344,435

$2,250,405,524 $2,160,227,695

$1,173,728,192 $1,144,415,713

$14,320,139

$102,634,492

$177,129,572

$1,130,095,574

2949 N Stemmons Fwy, Dallas, TX 75247-6195    (214) 631-0520



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10351 Name: Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance,
Chapter 26, "Utilities and Services" relating to FY
16-17
Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance,
Chapter 26, "Utilities and Services" relating to FY
13-14 fees for water and wastewater services.
fees for wat

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:9/2/2020 Public Works

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance, Chapter 26, "Utilities and Services" relating to fees for
water and wastewater services

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Cora Snyder

Title

Ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance, Chapter 26, "Utilities and Services" relating to fees for water and
wastewater services

Presenter

Gabe Johnson, Public Works Director

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

A cost of Service Study has been conducted which determined the required water and wastewater rates
necessary to continue to provide such services to the community in compliance with federal and state
regulations as well as community standards. The rates represent a revenue increase of 4.76% with the increases
generally distributed equally across all customer and rate classes.

On August 12, 2020 the Finance and Government Committee reviewed the rate proposal and recommended the
rate changes set forth below, as did the City Council at its August 21, 2020 budget workshop.

Financial Consideration

The rate changes contained in this ordinance are expected to generate $3,429,211 in additional revenues for the

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10351, Version: 1

FY 2020/2021 Water Wastewater Fund.

Body

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26, “UTILITIES AND SERVICES” OF THE
CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS BY
CHANGING VARIOUS SECTIONS OF ARTICLES II AND III THEREOF, RELATING
TO CHARGES FOR WATER AND WASTEWATER; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AND TO BECOME EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2020

WHEREAS, the water and wastewater systems of the City are supported by revenues from an enterprise fund
dedicated to support of these utility systems and;

WHEREAS, a cost of service study has been conducted to determine costs and necessary rates to be charged in
order to continue to provide water and wastewater services as required and;

WHEREAS, the City Council Finance and Government Committee has reviewed the proposed rates, concurs
with, and recommends the rates set forth herein and;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT Article II, Chapter 26 of the Code of Ordinances, Section 26-23, Section 26-24, Section 26-
25, Section 26-29 and Section 26-30, and that Article III, Chapter 26 of the Code of Ordinances, Section 26-32 and
Section 26-33 are amended to read as follows, changing the charges for provision of municipal utility services as set
out herein which are to become effective October 1, 2020.

"Sec. 26-23. - Water rates.
A. Monthly charges. The water rates to be charged and collected by the city from all customers obtaining service
from the waterworks system of the city shall be and are hereby fixed as follows:

Quantity Classification Rate

Per 1,000 gallons, total usage 3,000 gallons or less Residential $0.12

Per 1,000 gallons, if total usage more than 3,000 gallons,

up to and including 20,000 gallons Residential $4.42

Per 1,000 gallons, all quantities over 20,000 gallons Residential $7.93

Per 1,000 gallons Commercial $4.92

Per 1,000 gallons Industrial $4.92

Per 1,000 gallons Governmental $4.14

Monthly Base Charges (per Meter Size)

⅝˝ or ¾˝  $ 16.23

1˝  $ 20.88

1¼˝  $ 24.97

1½˝  $ 27.11

2˝  $ 44.65

3˝  $138.43

4˝  $171.61

6˝  $257.29

8˝  $358.09

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10351, Version: 1

10˝  $373.62

12˝  $393.12

B. Additional units. A minimum fixed charge per month for water services furnished shall be made for the first
water connection made to quarters upon any premises and a unit charge of two dollars and thirty-five cents ($2.35)
per month shall be made for each additional unit on such premises. The Director of Public Works shall determine
whether additional units exist on any premises.

Sec. 26-24. - Billing; delinquency; service restoration charges.
A. Water meters shall be read monthly and the consumer billed in writing or electronically, showing the amount of
water consumed and the charges due by the consumer thereon; and such bill shall be due and payable within twenty-
one (21) days from the rendition thereof. Such billing shall be deemed sufficient when sent to the last known address
of the consumer. If such bills are not paid within thirty-five (35) days after the date of mailing thereof, water service
shall be discontinued as to such nonpaying consumer and shall not be renewed until the full amount of said bill has
been paid. In addition, further collection efforts will incur the following schedule of fees at the time the account is
identified for each step in the collections process. Said service fees shall be:

$ 20.00 Final notice tag
$ 40.00 Turned off for non-payment
$ 50.00 Locked after turned off for non-payment
$ 75.00 Meter pulled or plugged after locked and turned off for non-payment
$ 40.00 Damaged/Broken Lock or Plug
$100.00 Unauthorized jumper connections, plus estimated usage
$ 30.00 Return trip charge
$ 50.00 After-hours service
$150.00 Tamper Fee, plus cost of applicable replacement parts

Should the water bill duly owing is paid by a check or electronic debit which does not clear the bank upon which it
is drawn in a normal manner, a charge of twenty-five dollars ($25.00) shall be paid at the time said check is
redeemed. If the check is not redeemed in the specified time, and the water is disconnected, the above service charge
schedule shall apply.

B. If payment is not received and processed within five (5) days of the due date, a late fee shall be assessed and
applied to the bill.  The late fee shall be 10.0% of all current charges, excluding tax and charitable contributions.

Cross reference-Meter reinstallation charge after removal for commission of offense, § 26-2.

Sec. 26-25. - Water service rates at building construction sites (not taken through a fire hydrant).
Until such time that a water meter may be installed to accurately measure all water usage at any construction site,
the builder or developer shall pay the following charge per month or part thereof, based on the square footage of
construction per structure. Charges begin thirty (30) days from the date taps fees are paid and billed each month
until the permanent meter is installed.

Square Feet Amount

Less than 2,500 $   55.50

2,500 to 7,499 $  111.02

7,500 to 19,999 $  266.43

20,000 to 49,999 $  799.33

50,000 to 99,999 $1,376.64

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10351, Version: 1

Over 100,000 $2,053.91

Sec. 26-29. - Raw water rates.
Untreated water taken from the city's contracted water rights in Joe Pool Lake shall be metered by a meter approved
by the director of public works or designee and charged at nine dollars and twenty-seven cents ($9.27) per one
thousand (1,000) gallons and a monthly administration fee of one hundred thirty-eight dollars and forty-three cents
($138.43).

Sec. 26-30. - Water taken from fire hydrants.
Water taken from the city's fire hydrants, other than that used by the various municipal departments for authorized
purposes such as firefighting, street cleaning and system flushing, shall be metered by an approved meter obtained
from the public works department, possessing a City of Grand Prairie logo and backflow prevention device. A
refundable deposit of two thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500) shall be charged. Water taken from fire hydrants
shall be charged at a rate of nine dollars and twenty-seven cents ($9.27) per one thousand (1,000) gallons and a
monthly administration fee of one hundred thirty-eight dollars and forty-three cents ($138.43).

Sec. 26-32. - Wastewater Rates.
A. Monthly charges. The wastewater service rates to be charged and collected by the city from all customers
obtaining services from the wastewater system of the city shall be and are hereby fixed as follows:

Quantity Classification Rate

Per 1,000 gallons Residential $4.51

Per 1,000 gallons Commercial $5.83

Per 1,000 gallons Industrial $5.83

Per 1,000 gallons Government $4.84

Monthly Base Charges (per Meter Size)

⅝˝ or ¾˝ $ 14.76

1˝ $ 15.98

1¼˝ $ 18.63

1½˝ $ 19.43

2˝ $ 23.16

3˝ $ 34.30

4˝ $ 45.54

6˝ $ 70.66

8˝ $ 99.96

10˝ $127.98

12˝ $143.38

(1) Residential: Gallons of wastewater shall be based on average water usage during the months of November,
December, January and February of each fiscal year (cold months' usage). To be eligible, there must be water
consumption equal to or greater than 1,000 gallons of water for a minimum of 3 (three) months. For those with
water consumption for all four (4) months, the highest usage month may be dropped for the purpose of computing
the winter average. All other residential accounts, including customers moving within the city will be billed at eighty
per cent (80%) of their current water consumption until a cold weather months' average is established. Those
persons who reside in single-family residences shall be charged for a maximum of 12,000 gallons until a cold
weather month's average is established. Wastewater billing shall be based on the lower of the current month's usage
or cold months' average usage.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10351, Version: 1

(2) Commercial/Industrial/Governmental: Gallons of wastewater shall be billed based at eighty per cent (80%) of
water consumption, unless the Director of Public Works determines that a condition exists that would cause
wastewater discharges to be unusually high. In such cases, the director may require that a wastewater meter be
installed at the customer's expense. Said meter shall be installed pursuant to plans and specifications approved by
the Director of Public Works, be installed in an approved location, be calibrated annually with a copy of the results
provided to the City and have a totalization device. The calibration shall be witnessed by a representative of the
Director of Public Works. If a meter which measures the wastewater ceases to function properly, the volume shall be
determined by immediately reverting to reading the water meter and using that volume for determination of sewage
volume. If the Director finds that it is not practicable to measure the quantity of sewage by the aforesaid meters, he
shall determine the quantity of the sewage in any manner or method he may find practicable in order to arrive at the
percentage of water entering the sanitary sewer system of the City to determine the sewer service charge.

(3) Additional units: A minimum fixed charge per month for wastewater services furnished shall be made for the
first water connection made to quarters upon any premises and a unit charge of three dollars and eleven cents ($3.11)
per month shall be made for each additional unit on such premises. The Director of Public Works shall determine
whether additional units exist on any premises.

(4) When city does not supply water: The charges set forth above are based upon the amount of water used as
measured by a single meter in increments of one thousand (1,000) gallons. Where the water is furnished to single-
family residential customers by a source other than the city, the monthly charge for wastewater service shall be a flat
rate of forty one dollars and eighty-two cents ($41.82) or estimated otherwise by adding to the base wastewater
charge an amount determined by multiplying the number of persons per household by the average gallons per capita
per day for water use inside the home (as calculated annually by the utility) times 30.42 days divided by 1,000 times
the current wastewater charge per 1,000 gallons. All other customer classes connected to the sanitary sewer who
have a source of water supply must have a meter approved and tested by the public works department on that source
of water supply, and the volume charge as set forth hereinbefore, shall be based on the sum of the volumes delivered
by all sources of supply. In order to utilize the alternate methodology to estimate the flat rate, the customer must
furnish the number of persons in the household and update such upon request by the City.

B. Reserved.

C. Reserved.

D. Outside city: The rates to be charged for sewer service to all persons, firms or corporations by the city at
locations outside the city limits of said city shall be negotiated under a separate contract.

Cross reference-Industrial waste charges, § 26-57.

Sec. 26-33. - Billing; delinquency.
A. The provisions of Article II, Section 26-24 shall apply to wastewater charges as well.

Cross reference-authority to disconnect service, § 26-61."

SECTION 2. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any reason
held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and
independent provision and such holding shall not affect validity of the remaining portions thereof.

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. That this ordinance shall be effective on October 1, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 5 of 6

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10351, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, ON
THIS THE 15th DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 6 of 6

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10262 Name: Fairway Bend PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Fairway Bend PID (City Council District 1)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Fairway Bend PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-FB.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members FBPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Fairway Bend PID (City Council District 1)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Fairway Bend PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $16,831. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer $1,015
to the PID, and $19,925 will be funded via an assessment of $0.19 per $100 on appraised real property within
the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget
will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID
Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10262, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.19 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $16,831, which includes a reimbursement of $1,015 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 3 (FAIRWAY BEND), ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR
SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER
OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on August 19, 1997, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3463, duly passed on August 19, 1997, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 3 (Fairway Bend PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 3; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 3, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

Section 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of this

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10262, Version: 1

City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

Section 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 3 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.19 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 3 in accordance with the records of the Tarrant Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2020, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental

and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10262, Version: 1

official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,

in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 3

Fairway Bend
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.19 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $10,486,607 0.19$           19,925$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 10,000$        14,109$       18,416$      22,926$    27,638$       

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 19,925$        20,124$       20,325$      20,528$    20,734$       

City Contribution 49780 1,015           1,015           1,015          1,015        1,015           

TOTAL INCOME 20,940$        21,139$       21,340$      21,543$    21,749$       

Amount Available 30,940$        35,247$       39,756$      44,469$    49,386$       

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Decorations 60132 200$            200$            200$           200$         200$            

Beautification 60490 2,000           2,000           2,000          2,000        2,000           

Wall Maintenance 60776 1,200           1,200           1,200          1,200        1,200           

Mowing Contractor 61225 13,200          13,200         13,200        13,200      13,200         

Collection Service ($2.95/Acct) 61380 121              121              121             121           121              

Misc. 61485 -               -               -              -           -              

Postage 61520 -               -               -              -           -              

Electric Power 62030 -               -               -              -           -              

Water Utility 62035 -               -               -              -           -              

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 -               -               -              -           -              

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 -               -               -              -           -              

Property Insurance Premium 64080 85                85                85               85             85               

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 25                25                25               25             25               

Fencing 68061 -               -               -              -           -              

Lighting 68637 -               -               -              -           -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 16,831          16,831$       16,831$      16,831$    16,831$       

Ending Balance** 14,109$        18,416$       22,926$      27,638$    32,555$       

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$200,000 380$            

$225,000 428$            Avg. Property Value: 255,771$     

$250,000 475$            Avg. Property Assessment: 486$            

$275,000 523$            No. of Properties: 41               

$300,000 570$            

$325,000 618$            

** Future fence replacements $70,000 (estimated)

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Fairway Bend 3213\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-FB.xlsm FB-Approved



Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 3 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Michael Ferris - President 

 

Toni Cotti - Vice President 

 

Cheryl Blasdel  

 

David Lugenbeel 

 

Michael Beard  

 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10263 Name: Parkview PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Parkview PID (City Council District 1)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Parkview PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-PV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members PVPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Parkview PID (City Council District 1)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Parkview PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $98,076. This will be funded with the use of fund
balance, $115,000, by the City, which will transfer $415 to the PID, by the Parkview Townhome HOA, which
will transfer approximately $7,700 to the PID, and $83,729 will be funded via an assessment of $0.215 per
$100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds provide for annual maintenance within the PID
boundaries. The proposed budget will provide for the basic maintenance and improvements. The recommended
PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10263, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.215 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $98,076, which includes a reimbursement of $415 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 12 (PARKVIEW), ACCEPTING
THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING
THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on September 20, 2005, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 7288, duly passed on September 20, 2005, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 12 (Parkview PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 12; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 12, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10263, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 12 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.215 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 12 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District and the Tarrant Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10263, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 12

Parkview
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.215 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $38,943,778 0.215$         83,729$       

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 115,000$       108,768$     109,474$     110,080$    110,548$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 83,729$         84,566$       85,412$       86,266$      87,129$       

Developer Participation/Projects 46110 7,700             7,700           7,700           7,700          7,700           

City Contribution 49780 415                415              415              415             415              

TOTAL INCOME 91,844$         92,681$       93,527$       94,381$      95,244$       

Amount Available 206,844$       201,450$     203,001$     204,461$    205,791$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 100$              100$            100$            100$           100$            

Beautification 60490 6,000             6,000           6,000           6,000          6,000           

Wall Maintenance 60776 25,000           18,000         18,000         18,000        18,000         

Mowing Contractor 61225 35,460           35,460         35,460         35,460        35,460         

Collection Service 61380 631                631              631              631             631              

Misc. 61485 25                  25                25                25               25                

Admin./Management 61510 7,140             7,140           7,140           7,140          7,140           

Postage 61520 120                120              120              120             120              

Electric Power 62030 2,000             2,100           2,205           2,315          2,431           

Water Utility 62035 16,000           16,800         17,640         18,522        19,448         

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 3,500             3,500           3,500           3,500          3,500           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 1,500             1,500           1,500           1,500          1,500           

Property Insurance Premium 64080 400                400              400              400             400              

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 200                200              200              200             200              

Other Improvement 68020 -                 -               -               -              -               

-                 -               -               -              -               

TOTAL EXPENSES 98,076$         91,976$       92,921$       93,913$      94,955$       

Ending Balance 108,768$       109,474$     110,080$     110,548$    110,836$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 $323

$175,000 $376 Avg. Property Value: 172,318$     

$200,000 $430 Avg. Property Assessment: 370$            

$225,000 $484 No. of Properties:

$250,000 $538  Dallas County 177              

$275,000 $591 Tarrant County: 49                

$300,000 $645 Total 226              

$325,000 $699

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Parkview 3222\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-PV.xlsm PV



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 12 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

  

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Dave Mars - President  

 

Edward Cherry - Vice President 

 

Monica Moore - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10264 Name: Southwest Village PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Southwest Village PID (City Council District 1).
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate
b. Adoption of the Southwest Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-SWV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members SVPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Southwest Village PID (City Council District 1).
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate
b. Adoption of the Southwest Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $66,664. This will be funded with the use of fund
balance, $31,000, and $52,828 will be funded via an assessment of $0.19 per $100 of appraised real property
value within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The
proposed budget will provide for the basic maintenance and improvements. The recommended PID Advisory
Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10264, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.19 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID.  The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $66,664.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND
CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY;
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 14, ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN,
SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF
THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2006, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 7373, duly passed on March 21, 2006, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 14 (Southwest Village PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 14; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 14, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10264, Version: 1

the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 14 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.19 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 14 in accordance with the records of the Tarrant Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2020, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10264, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 14

Southwest Village
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.19 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $27,804,009 0.19$           52,828$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 31,000$         17,164$       26,156$      35,682$      45,747$       

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 52,828$         53,356$       53,889$      54,428$      54,973$       

TOTAL INCOME 52,828$         53,356$       53,889$      54,428$      54,973$       

Amount Available 83,828$         70,520$       80,046$      90,110$      100,719$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 20$                20$              20$             20$             20$              

Decorations 60132 800                800              800             800             800              

Beautification 60490 4,500             4,500           4,500          4,500          4,500           

Wall Maintenance 60776 2,000             2,000           2,000          2,000          2,000           

Mowing Contractor 61225 14,148           14,148         14,148        14,148        14,148         

Collection Service ($2.95/Acct) 61380 372                372              372             372             372              

Misc. 61485 700                700              700             700             700              

Admin./Management 61510 9,984             9,984           9,984          9,984          9,984           

Postage 61520 20                  20                20               20               20                

Electric Power 62030 400                400              400             400             400              

Water Utility 62035 7,000             7,000           7,000          7,000          7,000           

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 3,500             3,500           3,500          3,500          3,500           

Playground/Picnic Area Maintenance 63135 2,800             500              500             500             500              

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 200                200              200             200             200              

Property Insurance Premium 64080 70                  70                70               70               70                

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 150                150              150             150             150              

Fencing 68061 20,000           -               -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 66,664$         44,364$       44,364$      44,364$      44,364$       

Ending Balance* 17,164$         26,156$       35,682$      45,747$      56,355$       

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $190

$125,000 $238 Avg. Property Value: 220,667$     

$150,000 $285 Avg. Property Assessment: 419$            

$175,000 $333 No. of Properties: 126              

$200,000 $380

$225,000 $428

*Future wall replacement

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Southwest Village 3224\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-SWV.xlsm SWV



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 14 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Patricia White Wren – President 

 

Nina Cooper - Vice President 

 

Michael Tunnell - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10265 Name: Whispering Oaks PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Whispering Oaks PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Whispering Oaks PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WO.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WOPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Whispering Oaks PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Whispering Oaks PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year service
plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has updated the five-year
service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $11,228. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer
$574 to the PID, and $13,063 will be funded via an assessment of $475 per developed lot and $237.50 per undeveloped
lot for all real property within the PID. Excess funds will be carried forward each year in fund balance as the PID saves
for the future replacement of the fence. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries.
The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The recommended
PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10265, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $475 per developed lot and $237.50 per undeveloped lot for all real
property within the PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $11,228, which includes a reimbursement of
$574 for right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2 (WHISPERING OAKS), ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR
SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS
OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE
PLAN

WHEREAS, on October 17, 1995, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3373, duly passed on October 17, 1995, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 2 (Whispering Oaks PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 2; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 2, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10265, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 2 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $475 per developed lot and $237.50 per undeveloped lot for all real
properties within Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 2 in accordance with the records of the Dallas
Central Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11.  THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental

and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public.  Any member of the City Council or any City

official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,

in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10265, Version: 1

all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2

Whispering Oaks
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Fixed Rate Assessment of $475 per improved lot and $237.50 per unimproved lot

within the district.

INCOME:

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 9,800$           12,208$         15,616$        18,025$       14,433$       

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 13,063$         13,063$         13,063$        13,063$       13,063$       

City Contribution 49780 574                574                574               574              574              

TOTAL INCOME 13,637$         13,637$         13,637$        13,637$       13,637$       

Amount Available 23,437$         25,845$         29,253$        31,661$       28,069$       

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beautification 60490 1,700$           700$              1,700$          700$            1,700$         

Wall Maintenance** 60776 -                 -                 -                7,000           -              

Security Cameras 61165 -                 -                 -                -              -              

Mowing Contractor 61225 5,520             5,520             5,520            5,520           5,520           

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 77                  77                  77                 77                77                

Misc. 61485 50                  50                  50                 50                50                

Admin./Management 61510 -                 -                 -                -              -              

Postage 61520 12                  12                  12                 12                12                

Electric Power 62030 160                160                160               160              160              

Water Utility 62035 600                600                600               600              600              

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 400                400                400               400              400              

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 -                 -                 -                -              -              

Property Insurance Premium 64080 45                  45                  45                 45                45                

Liability Insurance Premium* 64090 2,664             2,664             2,664            2,664           2,664           

Fencing 68601 -                 -                 -                -              -              

Landscaping 68250 -                 -                 -                -              -              

Irrigation System -                 -                 -                -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 11,228$         10,228$         11,228$        17,228$       11,228$       

Ending Balance*** 12,208$         15,616$         18,025$        14,433$       16,841$       

Avg. Property Value: 268,876$     

Improved lots are based at $475 per year. Avg. Property Assessment: 467$            

Unimproved lots are based at $237.50 per year. No. of Properties: 28                

*Includes Officers/Directors Liability & Supplemental  Property/General Liability

**Fence staining

***Future fence replacement

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Whispering Oaks 3212\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WO.xlsm WO



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 2 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Andy Nelson – President  

 

Kyle Kinslow - Vice President 

 

Jana Munoz – Secretary/Treasure 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10266 Name: Brookfield PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Brookfield PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate
b. Adoption of the Brookfield PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan Brookfield-FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members BRPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Brookfield PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate
b. Adoption of the Brookfield PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $40,375. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer $2,430
to the PID, and $43,346 will be funded via an assessment of $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value
within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed
budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year.

The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10266, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $40,375, which includes a reimbursement of $2,430 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 4 (BROOKFIELD), ACCEPTING
THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING
THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on February 20, 2001, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3722, duly passed on February 20, 2001, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 4 (Brookfield PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 4; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 4, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10266, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 4 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 4 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10266, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 4

Brookfield
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $39,405,170 0.11$           43,346$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 142,000$      147,401$     156,235$    165,507$  175,221$  

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 43,346$        43,779$       44,217$      44,659$    45,106$    

City Contribution 49780 2,430            2,430           2,430          2,430        2,430        

TOTAL INCOME 45,776$        46,209$       46,647$      47,089$    47,536$    

Amount Available 187,776$      193,610$     202,882$    212,596$  222,757$  

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 420$             420$            420$           420$         420$         

Beautification 60490 3,000            3,000           3,000          3,000        3,000        

Wall Maintenance 60776 5,000            5,000           5,000          5,000        5,000        

Professional Engineering Svcs* 61041 3,000            -               -              -            -            

Mowing Contractor 61225 12,332          12,332         12,332        12,332      12,332      

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 473               473              473             473           473           

Admin./Management 61510 9,600            9,600           9,600          9,600        9,600        

Electric Power 62030 500               500              500             500           500           

Water Utility 62035 4,200            4,200           4,200          4,200        4,200        

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 1,500            1,500           1,500          1,500        1,500        

Property Insurance Premium 64080 250               250              250             250           250           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 100               100              100             100           100           

-               -               -              -            -            

TOTAL EXPENSES 40,375$        37,375$       37,375$      37,375$    37,375$    

Ending Balance 147,401$      156,235$     165,507$    175,221$  185,382$  

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 165$             

$175,000 193$             Avg. Property Value: 229,100$  

$200,000 220$             Avg. Property Assessment: 252$         

$225,000 248$             No. of Properties: 172           

$250,000 275$             

*Reserve study

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Brookfield 3214\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan Brookfield-FY21.xlsm BR



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 4 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Dennis Hale – President 

 

Elizabeth Duenas – Vice President 

 

Carmelita Loyd – Secretary/Treasurer 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10267 Name: Silverado Springs PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Silverado Springs PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Silverado Springs PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-SS.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members SSPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Silverado Springs PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Silverado Springs PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $69,311. This will be funded by the City, which will
transfer $342 to the PID, with the use of fund balance, $34,000, and $43,715 will be funded via an assessment
of $0.15 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds provide for annual maintenance
within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will provide for the basic maintenance and improvements.
The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10267, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.15 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $69,311, which includes a reimbursement of $342 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND
CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY;
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 10 (SILVERADO SPRINGS), ACCEPTING THE FIVE
YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE
PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2004, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 4005, duly passed on July 20, 2004, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 10 (Silverado Springs PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 10; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 10, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10267, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 10 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.15 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 10 in accordance with the records of the Tarrant Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10267, Version: 1

all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 10

Silverado Springs
Proposed Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.15 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $29,143,252 0.15$           43,715$    

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 34,000$        8,746$         8,929$      9,553$      10,624$    

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 43,715$        44,152$       44,594$    45,039$    45,490$    

City Contribution 49780 342              342              342           342           342           

TOTAL INCOME 44,057$        44,494$       44,936$    45,381$    45,832$    

Amount Available 78,057$        53,240$       53,864$    54,935$    56,456$    

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Decorations 60132 250$            250$            250$         250$         250$         

Beautification 60490 500              500              500           500           500           

Wall Maintenance 60776 50,000          25,000         25,000      25,000      25,000      

Mowing Contractor 61225 13,307          13,307         13,307      13,307      13,307      

Collection Service ($2.95/Acct) 61380 354              354              354           354           354           

Misc. 61485 250              250              250           250           250           

Admin./Management 61510 -               -               -           -           -           

Postage 61520 100              100              100           100           100           

Electric Power 62030 250              250              250           250           250           

Water Utility 62035 2,750           2,750           2,750        2,750        2,750        

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 500              500              500           500           500           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 550              550              550           550           550           

Property Insurance Premium 63147 400              400              400           400           400           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 100              100              100           100           100           

Fencing 68061 -               -               -           -           -           

Architect'L/Engineering Servcs 68240 -               -               -           -           -           

Landscaping 68250 -               -               -           -           -           

TOTAL EXPENSES 69,311$        44,311$       44,311$    44,311$    44,311$    

Ending Balance 8,746$          8,929$         9,553$      10,624$    12,145$    

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $150

$150,000 $225 Avg. Property Value: 242,860$  

$200,000 $300 Avg. Property Assessment: 364$         

$250,000 $375 No. of Properties: 120           

$300,000 $450

$350,000 $525



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 10 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Michael R. Smith - President 

 

Carla Ojeda - Vice President 

 

Evelyn Najera - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10268 Name: Country Club Park PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Country Club Park PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Country Club Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-CCP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members CCPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Country Club Park PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Country Club Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $123,496; $108,520 will be funded via an assessment of $0.085 per
$100 on appraised real property within the PID and via fund balance of $277,000. The funds provide for annual
maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will provide for the basic maintenance and
improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is
attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10268, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.085 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $123,496.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 13 (COUNTRY CLUB PARK),
ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND
AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on March 21, 2006, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 7374, duly passed on March 21, 2006, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 13 (Country Club Park PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 13; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 13, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10268, Version: 1

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 13 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 13 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10268, Version: 1

ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 13

Country Club Park
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $127,670,020 0.085$         108,520$    

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 277,000$        262,024$     257,232$    262,617$      278,172$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 108,520$        109,605$     110,701$    111,808$      112,926$     

TOTAL INCOME 108,520$        109,605$     110,701$    111,808$      112,926$     

Amount Available 385,520$        371,629$     367,933$    374,425$      391,098$     
 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 1,000$            1,020$         1,040$        1,061$          1,082$         

Decorations 60132 5,000              5,100           5,202          5,306            5,412           

Beautification 60490 16,000            16,320         16,646        16,979          17,319         

Wall Maintenance 60776 5,000              5,100           5,202          5,306            5,412           

Security 61165 10,000            10,200         10,404        10,612          10,824         

Mowing Contractor 61225 18,000            18,000         18,000        18,000          18,000         

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 1,546              1,546           1,546          1,546            1,546           

Misc. 61485 100                 100              100             100               100              

Fees/Administration 61510 7,800              7,800           7,800          7,800            7,800           

Electric Power 62030 1,000              1,020           1,040          1,061            1,082           

Water Utility 62035 4,500              4,590           4,682          4,775            4,871           

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 2,000              2,040           2,081          2,122            2,165           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 1,000              1,000           1,000          1,000            1,000           

Property Insurance Premium 64080 350                 357              364             371               379              

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 200                 204              208             212               216              

Landscaping 68250 50,000            40,000         30,000        20,000          10,000         

Signs 68390 -                  -               -              -                -               

Irrigation System 68635 -                  -               -              -                10,000         

-                  -               -              -                -               

TOTAL EXPENSES 123,496          114,397       105,316      96,253          97,209         

Ending Balance* 262,024$        257,232$     262,617$    278,172$      293,889$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 85$                 

$150,000 128$               Avg. Property Value: 227,171$     

$200,000 170$               Avg. Property Assessment: 193$            

$250,000 213$               No. of Properties: 562              

$300,000 255$               

$350,000 298$               

$400,000 340$               

$450,000 383$               

$500,000 425$               

*Future wall replacement

C:\Users\lharriss\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\K2TLUTSO\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-CCP.xlsm CCP



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 13 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Richard Caskey -- President    

      

Betty Hasty -- Vice President 

 

Anita Tannenbaum -- Secretary/Treasurer  

 

Karen Blackwell   

 

Anthony Blackstone  

 

Lincoln Dean 

 

Vacant 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10269 Name: Lone Star Meadows PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Lone Star Meadows PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Lone Star Meadows PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan FY21 LSM.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members LSPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Lone Star Meadows PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Lone Star Meadows PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $53,441.  This will be funded by the City, which will

transfer $694 to the PID, and $90,201 will be funded via an assessment rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised

real property value within the PID.  The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID

boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10269, Version: 1

year.  The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.085 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $53,441, which includes a reimbursement of $694 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND
CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY;
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 16 (LONE STAR MEADOWS), ACCEPTING THE FIVE
YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE
PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2010, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. RES 4462-2010, duly passed on September 21, 2010, this City Council
established Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 16 (Lone Star Meadows PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 16; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 16, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10269, Version: 1

this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 16 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 16 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10269, Version: 1

in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 16

Lone Star Meadows
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate* Revenue

Appraised Value $106,118,760 0.085$            90,201$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 211,000$        248,454$        286,560$    325,315$  364,714$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 90,201$          91,103$          92,014$      92,934$    93,863$       

City Contribution 49780 694                 694                 694             694           694              

TOTAL INCOME 90,895$          91,797$          92,708$      93,628$    94,557$       

Amount Available 301,895$        340,251$        379,268$    418,943$  459,272$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 100$               100$               100$           100$         100$            

Decorations 60132 750                 750                 750             750           750              

Beautification 60490 10,000            10,000            10,000        10,000      10,000         

Wall Maintenance 60776 10,000            10,000            10,000        10,000      10,000         

Mowing Contractor 61225 13,671            13,671            13,671        13,671      13,671         

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 1,235              1,235              1,235          1,235        1,235           

Miscellaneous Services 61485 50                   50                   50                50             50                

Fees/Administration 61510 6,600              6,600              6,600          6,600        6,600           

Postage 61520 260                 260                 260             260           260              

Electric Power 62030 -                  -                  -              -            -               

Water Utility 62035 5,000              5,250              5,513          5,788        6,078           

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 5,000              5,000              5,000          5,000        5,000           

Roadway Markings/Signs Maint 63115 300                 300                 300             300           300              

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 -                  -                  -              -            -               

Property Insurance Premium 64080 350                 350                 350             350           350              

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 125                 125                 125             125           125              

Fencing 68061 -                  -                  -              -            -               

TOTAL EXPENSES 53,441            53,691            53,953        54,229      54,518         

Ending Balance* 248,454$        286,560$        325,315$    364,714$  404,754$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 128$               

$200,000 170$               Avg. Property Value: 236,345$     

$225,000 191$               Avg. Property Assessment: 201$            

$250,000 213$               No. of Properties: 449              

$275,000 234$               

$300,000 255$               

*Future brick wall replacement in 3-8 years--estimated cost $210,000-$782,000 depending on design. 

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Lone Star Meadows 3226\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan FY21 LSM.xlsm LSM 0.085



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 16 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Mike Hernandez – President    

 

Isam Tabani - Vice President  

 

Johnnie Durham – Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 

Jose Ayerdis - Alternate 

 

Carol Tolley – Alternate 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10270 Name: Berkshire Park PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Berkshire Park PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Berkshire Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-Berkshire..pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members BKPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Berkshire Park PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Berkshire Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $56,430.  This will be funded by the City, which will

transfer $1,164 to the PID, via fund balance of $12,000, and $47,426 will be funded via an assessment rate of

$0.15 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID.  The funds generated provide for annual

maintenance within the PID boundaries.  The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10270, Version: 1

attached.

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.15 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $56,430, which includes a reimbursement of $1,164 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND
CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY;
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17 (BERKSHIRE PARK), ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR
SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER
OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on May 21, 2019, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 5018-2019, duly passed on May 21, 2019, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 17 (Berkshire Park PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 17; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 17, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10270, Version: 1

this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 17 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.15 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 17 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10270, Version: 1

in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 17

Berkshire Park
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.15 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $31,617,290 0.15$           47,426$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) Number 12,000$         4,160$         17,295$      30,409$       19,006$        

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 47,426$         47,900$       48,379$      48,863$       49,352$        

City Contribution 49780 1,164             1,164           1,164          1,164           1,164            

TOTAL INCOME 48,590$         49,064$       49,543$      50,027$       50,516$        

Amount Available 60,590$         53,225$       66,838$      80,436$       69,522$        

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 100$              100$            100$           100$            100$             

Decorations 60132 500                500              1,000          1,000           1,000            

Beautification* 60490 10,000           10,000         10,000        10,000         10,000          

Wall Maintenance** 60776 30,000           10,000         10,000        5,000           5,000            

Mowing Contractor 61225 11,000           11,000         11,000        11,000         11,000          

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 380                380              380             380              380               

Misc. 61485 1,000             500              500             500              500               

Postage 61520 100                100              100             100              100               

Electric Power 62030 200                200              200             200              200               

Water Utility 62035 1,600             1,600           1,600          1,600           1,600            

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 1,000             1,000           1,000          1,000           1,000            

Roadway Markings/Signs Maint*** 63115 -                 -               -              30,000         -                

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 250                250              250             250              250               

Property Insurance Premium 64080 200                200              200             200              200               

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 100                100              100             100              100               

-                 -               -              -              -                

TOTAL EXPENSES 56,430$         35,930$       36,430$      61,430$       31,430$        

Ending Balance 4,160$           17,295$       30,409$      19,006$       38,092$        

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 225$              

$200,000 300$              Avg. Property Value: 229,111$      

$250,000 375$              Avg. Property Assessment: 344$             

$300,000 450$              No. of Properties: 138               

$350,000 525$              

$400,000 600$              

*Includes flowerbed renovations

**Brick wall repairs

***Wrought iron street signs



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 17 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Carlos Jackson 

 

Jeffery Myers 

 

Sunil Shrestha 

 

Wendy Washington Pondexter 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10271 Name: Walingford Village PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Walingford Village PID (City Council District 3)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Walingford Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WVPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Walingford Village PID (City Council District 3)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Walingford Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $49,032. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer $855 to
the PID, with the use of fund balance, $25,000, and $38,095 will be funded by an assessment of $0.085 per
$100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance
within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from
the previous year.  The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10271, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.085 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $49,032, which includes a reimbursement of $855 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND
CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY;
MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED
IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 6 (WALINGFORD VILLAGE), ACCEPTING THE FIVE
YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE
PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on September 2, 2003, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2722, duly passed on September 2, 2003, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 6 (Walingford Village PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 6; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 6, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10271, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 6 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 6 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10271, Version: 1

all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 6

Walingford ViIlage
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $44,817,700 0.085$           38,095$        

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 25,000$         14,918$         22,717$        30,900$      39,472$      

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 38,095$         38,476$         38,861$        39,249$      39,642$      

City Contribution 49780 855                855                855               855             855             

TOTAL INCOME 38,950$         39,331$         39,716$        40,104$      40,497$      

Amount Available 63,950$         54,249$         62,432$        71,004$      79,969$      

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 100$              100$              100$             100$           100$           

Decorations 60132 -                 -                -                -              -              

Beautification* 60490 17,000           5,000             5,000            5,000          5,000          

Wall Maintenance 60776 1,000             1,000             1,000            1,000          1,000          

Mowing Contractor 61225 10,348           10,348           10,348          10,348        10,348        

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 624                624                624               624             624             

Misc. 61485 25                  25                 25                 25               25               

Admin./Management 61510 5,400             5,400             5,400            5,400          5,400          

Postage 61520 300                300                300               300             300             

Electric Power 62030 350                350                350               350             350             

Water Utility 62035 1,800             1,800             1,800            1,800          1,800          

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 1,000             1,000             1,000            1,000          1,000          

Decorative Lighting Maintenance** 63146 6,000             500                500               500             500             

Property Insurance Premium 63147 85                  85                 85                 85               85               

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 5,000             5,000             5,000            5,000          5,000          

Architect'L/Engineering Servcs 68240 -                 -                -                -              -              

Landscaping 68250 -                 -                -                -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 49,032$         31,532$         31,532$        31,532$      31,532$      

Ending Balance 14,918$         22,717$         30,900$        39,472$      48,437$      

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $85

$125,000 $106 Avg. Property Value: 197,435$    

$150,000 $128 Avg. Property Assessment: 168$           

$175,000 $149 No. of Properties: 227             

$200,000 $170

$225,000 $191

$250,000 $213

*Flowerbed installation

**Monument lighting installation

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Walingford Village 3216\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WV.xlsm WV



 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 6 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Bill Elliott - President 

 

Steven Bradfield - Vice President 

 

Lori Butler - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

Cornelia Miller 

 

Kenda Stacy 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10272 Name: Monterrey Park PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Monterrey Park PID (City Council District 3)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Monterrey Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-MP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members MPPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Monterrey Park PID (City Council District 3)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Monterrey Park PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $38,015. This will be funded via an assessment of
$45,800 with an assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds
generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the
basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board
membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10272, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $38,015.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 (MONTERREY PARK),
ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND
AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on August 24, 2004, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 4014, duly passed on August 24, 2004, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 11 (Monterrey Park PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 11; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 11, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10272, Version: 1

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 11 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 11 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10272, Version: 1

ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 11

Monterrey Park
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $41,636,460 0.11$           45,800$      

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 127,000$       134,786$     137,029$    139,735$    142,909$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 45,800$         46,258$       46,721$      47,188$      47,660$       

TOTAL INCOME 45,800$         46,258$       46,721$      47,188$      47,660$       

Amount Available 172,800$       181,044$     183,750$    186,923$    190,569$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 20$                20$              20$             20$             20$              

Decorations 60132 7,228             7,228           7,228          7,228          7,228           

Beautification 60490 6,000             12,000         12,000        12,000        12,000         

Wall Maintenance 60776 3,000             3,000           3,000          3,000          3,000           

Mowing Contractor 61225 7,361             7,361           7,361          7,361          7,361           

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 556                556              556             556             556              

Misc. 61485 500                500              500             500             500              

Postage 61520 350                350              350             350             350              

Electric Power 62030 400                400              400             400             400              

Water Utility 62035 3,000             3,000           3,000          3,000          3,000           

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 2,000             2,000           2,000          2,000          2,000           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 2,500             2,500           2,500          2,500          2,500           

Property Insurance Premium 64080 200                200              200             200             200              

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 4,900             4,900           4,900          4,900          4,900           

-                 -               -              -              -               

TOTAL EXPENSES 38,015$         44,015$       44,015$      44,015$      44,015$       

Ending Balance* 134,786$       137,029$     139,735$    142,909$    146,554$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 $165

$175,000 $193 Avg. Property Value: 206,121$     

$200,000 $220 Avg. Property Assessment: 227$            

$225,000 $248 No. of Properties: 202              

$250,000 $275

$275,000 $303

$300,000 $330

*Brick wall repairs

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Monterrey Park 3221\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-MP.xlsm MP



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 11 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

Nicole Schmiedeskamp – President 

 

Sylvia Gomez - Vice President 

 

Bethany James – Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10273 Name: Forum Estates PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Forum Estates PID (City Council District 4)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Forum Estates PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-FR.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members FRPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Forum Estates PID (City Council District 4)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Forum Estates PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $337,554. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer
$21,283 to the PID, by the Cimmaron Estates HOA, which will transfer approximately $3,000 to the PID, and
$467,293 will be funded via an assessment of $0.12 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID.
The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will
continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10273, Version: 1

The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.12 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $337,554, which includes a reimbursement of $21,283 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 5 (FORUM ESTATES),
ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND
AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on September 18, 2001, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3775, duly passed on September 18, 2001, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 5 (Forum Estates PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 5; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 5, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10273, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 5 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.12 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 5 in accordance with the records of the Tarrant Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10273, Version: 1

all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 5

Forum Estates
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.12 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $389,410,838 0.12$           467,293$    

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 672,000$       826,022$     982,617$    1,146,182$  1,311,864$  

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 467,293$       471,966$     476,686$    481,452$     486,267$     

Devlpr Particip/Projects* 46110 3,000             3,000           3,000          3,000           3,000           

City Contribution 49780 21,283           21,283         21,283        21,283         21,283         

TOTAL INCOME 491,576$       496,249$     500,969$    505,735$     510,550$     

Amount Available 1,163,576$    1,322,271$  1,483,586$  1,651,917$  1,822,414$  

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 100$              100$            100$           100$            100$            

Decorations 60132 17,500           17,500         17,500        17,500         17,500         

Beautification 60490 50,000           50,000         50,000        50,000         50,000         

Wall Maintenance 60776 15,000           15,000         15,000        15,000         15,000         

Mowing Contractor 61225 101,647         101,647       101,647      101,647       101,647       

Website 61315 350                350              350             350              350              

Collection Service ($2.95/Acct) 61380 4,257             4,257           4,257          4,257           4,257           

Misc. 61485 2,000             2,000           2,000          2,000           2,000           

Admin./Management 61510 10,800           10,800         10,800        10,800         10,800         

Postage 61520 100                100              100             100              100              

Electric Power 62030 2,800             2,800           2,800          2,800           2,800           

Water Utility 62035 28,000           28,000         28,000        28,000         28,000         

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 11,000           11,000         11,000        11,000         11,000         

Roadway Markings/Signs Maint 63115 2,100             2,100           2,100          2,100           2,100           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 4,600             4,600           4,600          4,600           4,600           

Property Insurance Premium 64080 1,200             1,200           1,200          1,200           1,200           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 3,000             3,000           3,000          3,000           3,000           

Fencing** 68061 -                 -               -              -              -              

Row/Easement Title Purchase 68091 -                 -               -              -              -              

Int. Exp. Bonds 91070 13,100           10,200         7,950          5,600           2,000           

Princpl. Pmts. Bonds 95015 70,000           75,000         75,000        80,000         80,000         

TOTAL EXPENSES 337,554$       339,654$     337,404$    340,054$     336,454$     

Ending Balance 826,022$       982,617$     1,146,182$  1,311,864$  1,485,960$  

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$50,000 60$                

$100,000 120$              Avg. Property Value: 269,862$     

$150,000 180$              Avg. Property Assessment: 324$            

$200,000 240$              No. of Properties: 1,443           

$250,000 300$              

$300,000 360$              

$350,000 420$              

*Reimbursement for additional holiday decorations.

**Fence replacements



 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 5 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Bobbie Rapp   

 

Chandra Charles 

 

Joe Tarrant 

 

John Sittmann 

 

Shawn Connor 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10274 Name: Westchester PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Westchester PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Westchester PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WC.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members WCPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Westchester PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Westchester PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $1,201,452. This will be funded with the use of fund
balance, $592,000, by the City, which will transfer $33,500 to the PID, and $1,089,188 will be funded via an
assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds generated provide
for annual maintenance and improvements within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the
basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10274, Version: 1

membership for 2021 is attached.

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID.  The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $1,201,452, which includes a reimbursement of $33,500
for right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND
EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH THE GRAND PRAIRIE
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 (WESTCHESTER), ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR
SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER
OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE
SERVICE PLAN.

WHEREAS, on January 16, 1991, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 2722, duly passed on January 16, 1991, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 1 (Westchester PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 1; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 1, which by
Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make
recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of
funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as
Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10274, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from
the landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 1 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 1 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021 shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due.
A delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11.  THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental

and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public.  Any member of the City Council or any City

official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10274, Version: 1

in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from

all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 1

Westchester
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 2% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $990,171,230 0.11$           1,089,188$  

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 592,000$         513,236$     499,881$     505,201$     521,972$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 1,089,188$      1,110,972$  1,133,191$  1,155,855$  1,178,972$  

City Contribution 49780 33,500            33,500         33,500         33,500         33,500         

TOTAL INCOME 1,122,688$      1,144,472$  1,166,691$  1,189,355$  1,212,472$  

Amount Available 1,714,688$      1,657,708$  1,666,572$  1,694,556$  1,734,444$  

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 1,800$            1,800$         1,800$         1,800$         1,800$         

Decorations 60132 30,000            30,000         30,000         30,000         30,000         

Beautification* 60490 145,000          145,000       145,000       145,000       145,000       

Wall Maintenance** 60776 50,000            50,000         50,000         50,000         50,000         

Professional Engineering Services 61041 12,000            12,000         12,000         12,000         12,000         

Mowing Contractor 61225 266,005          266,005       266,005       266,005       266,005       

Tree Services 61226 75,000            75,000         75,000         75,000         75,000         

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 9,097              9,097           9,097           9,097           9,097           

Misc. 61485 1,000              1,000           1,000           1,000           1,000           

Admin./Management 61510 27,000            27,000         27,000         27,000         27,000         

Postage 61520 50                   50                50                50                50                

Electric Power 62030 6,000              6,300           6,615           6,946           7,293           

Water Utility 62035 115,000          120,750       126,788       133,127       139,783       

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 45,000            45,000         41,850         46,035         50,639         

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 12,000            12,000         12,000         12,000         12,000         

Property Insurance Premium 64080 4,000              4,200           4,410           4,631           4,862           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 2,500              2,625           2,756           2,894           3,039           

Fencing** 68061 350,000          350,000       350,000       350,000       350,000       

Construction*** 68540 50,000            -              -              -              -              

-                  -              -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,201,452$      1,157,827$  1,161,371$  1,172,584$  1,184,568$  

Ending Balance 513,236$         499,881$     505,201$     521,972$     549,876$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $110 Avg. Property Value: 299,326$     

$150,000 $165 Avg. Property Assessment: 329$            

$200,000 $220 No. of Properties: 3,308           

$250,000 $275

$300,000 $330

$350,000 $385

$400,000 $440

$450,000 $495

**Retaining wall and concrete wall repairs/replacements

***Entry monument signs: Polo/Robinson, Carrier/Camp Wisdom

*Selected bed rehab; entrance enhancements; Blue Park replant; replace/add trees/plantings; mow tall grass to tree line

in wildflower area; seeding of wildflower area; Longhorn greenspace enhancement: benches, tables, waste recpt; play

creatures; repair art murals

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Westchester 3211\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-WC.xlsm Westchester



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 1 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Gary La Gray – President 

 

Dave Lester – Vice President 

 

Robert De Los Santos – Secretary/Treasurer  

 

Rodney Anderson – Board Member   

 

Stretch Rideaux – Board Member 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10275 Name: High Hawk PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: High Hawk PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the High Hawk PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-HH.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members HHPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

High Hawk PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the High Hawk PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $801,642. This will be funded with the use of fund
balance, $700,000, by the City, which will transfer $2,310 to the PID, and $404,883 will be funded via an
assessment of $0.20 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds provide for annual
maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will provide the basic maintenance and
improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is
attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10275, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.20 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $801,642, which includes a reimbursement of $2,310 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9 (HIGH HAWK), ACCEPTING
THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING
THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on July 20, 2004, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 4004, duly passed on July 20, 2004, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 9 (High Hawk); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 9; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 9, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10275, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 9 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.20 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 9 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District and the Tarrant Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any fact required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10275, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 9

High Hawk
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.20 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $202,441,509 0.20$           404,883$     

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 700,000$        305,551$     283,667$     261,798$    244,906$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 404,883$        408,932$     413,021$     417,151$    421,323$     

City Contribution 49780 2,310             2,310           2,310           2,310          2,310           

TOTAL INCOME 407,193$        411,242$     415,331$     419,461$    423,633$     

Amount Available 1,107,193$     716,793$     698,999$     681,260$    668,539$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 275$              275$            275$            275$           275$            

Decorations 60132 15,000           15,000         15,000         15,000        15,000         

Public Relations 60160 10,000           10,000         10,000         10,000        10,000         

Beautification
1

60490 120,000         30,000         30,000         30,000        30,000         

Graffiti Cleanup 60775 1,000             1,000           1,000           1,000          1,000           

Wall Maintenance 60776 30,000           30,000         30,000         30,000        30,000         

Professional Engineering Svc
2

61041 2,500             -               2,500           -              2,500           

Security 61165 40,000           40,000         40,000         40,000        40,000         

Mowing Contractor 61225 75,295           75,295         75,295         75,295        75,295         

Tree Services 61226 20,000           20,000         20,000         20,000        20,000         

Collection Service 61380 1,855             1,855           1,855           1,855          1,855           

Misc. 61485 500                500              500              500             500              

Admin./Management 61510 13,200           13,200         13,200         13,200        13,200         

Postage 61520 1,500             1,500           1,500           1,500          1,500           

Security Camera Operating Expense61560 1,500             1,500           1,500           1,500          1,500           

Electric Power 62030 8,000             8,400           8,820           9,261          9,724           

Water Utility 62035 22,000           23,100         24,255         25,468        26,741         

Bldgs & Grounds Maintenance 63010 8,500             8,500           8,500           8,500          8,500           

Pond Maintenance-Aquatic 63038 4,500             4,500           4,500           4,500          4,500           

Pond Maintenance-Equipment 63039 5,000             5,000           5,000           5,000          5,000           

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 20,000           12,000         12,000         12,000        12,000         

Roadway Markings/Signs Maint 63115 2,000             -               -              -              -              

Playgrounds/Picnic Areas Maint 63135 5,000             5,000           5,000           5,000          5,000           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 30,000           10,000         10,000         10,000        10,000         

Restroom Maintenance 63190 5,000             5,000           5,000           5,000          5,000           

Property Insurance Premium 64080 1,500             1,500           1,500           1,500          1,500           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 10,000           10,000         10,000         10,000        10,000         

Fencing
3

68061 247,517         -               -              -              -              

Construction Miscellaneous
4

68151 100,000         100,000       100,000       100,000      100,000       

-                 -               -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 801,642$        433,125$     437,200$     436,354$    440,590$     

Ending Balance
5

305,551$        283,667$     261,798$     244,906$    227,948$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 200$              

$200,000 400$              Avg. Property Value: 314,839$     

$300,000 600$              Avg. Property Assessment: 630$            

$400,000 800$              

$500,000 1,000$           No. of Properties:

1 Includes tree replacements & landscape design  Dallas County 208              

2 Reserve study (wall repairs/replacements) Tarrant County: 435              

3 Lake Ridge wall Total 643              

4 Common area improvements

5 Future Projects TBD

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID High Hawk 3219\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-HH.xlsx HH



 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 9 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Branden Mair – President 

 

Stephan Booker - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

 Derrick Jones - Board Member 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10276 Name: Lake Parks PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Lake Parks PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Lake Parks PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-LP.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members LPPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Lake Parks PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Lake Parks PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The estimated expenditures for the 2021 fiscal year are $536,728. This will be funded by the City, which will
transfer $12,179 to the PID, with the use of fund balance, $168,000, and $380,902 will be funded by an
assessment of $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds generated provide for
annual maintenance within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and
improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is
attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10276, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.11 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $536,728, which includes a reimbursement of $12,179 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the city, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 7 (LAKE PARKS), ACCEPTING
THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING
THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on November 18, 2003, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 3961, duly passed on November 18, 2003, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 7 (Lake Parks PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 7; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 7, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10276, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 7 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 7 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District and the Tarrant Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10276, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 7

Lake Parks
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.11 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $346,274,969 0.11$           380,902$     

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 168,000$         24,353$       51,666$       79,833$      108,744$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 380,902$         384,711$     388,559$     392,444$    396,369$     

City Contribution 49780 12,179             12,179         12,179         12,179        12,179         

TOTAL INCOME 393,081$         396,890$     400,738$     404,623$    408,548$     

Amount Available 561,081$         421,244$     452,404$     484,456$    517,291$     

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 1,000$             1,000$         1,000$         1,000$        1,000$         

Decorations 60132 28,000             28,000         28,000         28,000        28,000         

Beautification 60490 85,000             85,000         85,000         85,000        85,000         

Wall Maintenance 60776 5,000               5,000           5,000           5,000          5,000           

Mowing Contractor 61225 112,204           112,204       112,204       112,204      112,204       

Collection Service 61380 3,674               3,674           3,674           3,674          3,674           

Misc. 61485 1,400               1,400           1,400           1,400          1,400           

Admin./Management 61510 18,900             18,900         18,900         18,900        18,900         

Postage 61520 50                    50                50                50               50                

Electric Power 62030 16,000             16,800         17,640         18,522        19,448         

Water Utility 62035 41,000             43,050         45,203         47,463        49,836         

Pond/Canal Maintenance-Aquatic 63038 16,000             16,000         16,000         16,000        16,000         

Pond/Canal Maintenance-Equip 63039 10,000             10,000         10,000         10,000        10,000         

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 12,000             12,000         12,000         12,000        12,000         

Playground/Picnic Area Maintenance63135 4,500               4,500           4,500           4,500          4,500           

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 10,000             10,000         10,000         10,000        10,000         

Property Insurance Premium 64080 800                  800              800              800             800              

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 1,200               1,200           1,200           1,200          1,200           

Fencing 68061 -                  -               -               -              -               

Lighting 68637 20,000             -               -               -              -               

Construction Miscellaneous* 68151 150,000           -               -               -              -               

Construction 68540 -                  -               -               -              -               

TOTAL EXPENSES 536,728$         369,578$     372,571$     375,713$    379,012$     

Ending Balance 24,353$           51,666$       79,833$       108,744$    138,279$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $110

$150,000 $165 Avg. Property Value: 271,588$     

$200,000 $220 Avg. Property Assessment: 299$            

$250,000 $275 No. of Properties:

$300,000 $330  Dallas County 438              

$350,000 $385 Tarrant County: 837              

$400,000 $440 Total 1,275           

$450,000 $495

*Pond trail improvements

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Lake Parks 3217\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-LP.xlsm LP



 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 7 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

David Baker - President 

 

Tommy Land - Vice President 

 

VanDella Menifee - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

William Lawrence - Board Member 

 

James R. Wills, III - Board Member 

 

Rich Van - Board Member 

 

Jerry Mathews - Board Member 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10277 Name: Peninsula PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Peninsula PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Peninsula PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A PNPID Budget Peninsula FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Peninsula PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Peninsula PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Advisory Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $2,407,507. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer
$81,830 to the PID, by the Lakeshore Village HOA, which will transfer approximately $5,000 to the PID, via
fund balance of $742,574, and $1,758,771 will be funded via an assessment of $0.12 per $100 of appraised real
property value within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance within the PID boundaries.
The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The
recommended PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10277, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.12 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $2,407,507, which includes a reimbursement of $81,830
for right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the city, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 8 (PENINSULA), ACCEPTING
THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND AUTHORIZING
THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN ACTS IN
CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on September 21, 2004, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 4025, duly passed on September 21, 2004, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 8 (Peninsula PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 8; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 8, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10277, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 8 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.12 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 8 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central Appraisal
District and the Tarrant Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10277, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 8 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Joshua Spare - President  

 

Ken Self - Vice President  

 

Roy Davis - Secretary/Treasurer 

 

Andrea Kinloch – Board Member 

 

Vacant – Board Member 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10278 Name: Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-OHSV.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board List-OHSV PID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID (City Council Districts 4 and 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $444,250. This will be funded by the use of fund balance, $618,000,
by the City, which will transfer $10,261 to the PID, and $376,616 will be funded via an assessment rate of
$0.085 per $100 of appraised real property value within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual
maintenance and improvements within the PID boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic
maintenance and improvements from the previous year. The recommended PID Advisory Board membership
for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10278, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.085 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $444,250, which includes a reimbursement of $10,261 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 15 (OAK HOLLOW/SHEFFIELD
VILLAGE), ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE,
AND AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on August 8, 2006, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 7450, duly passed on August 8, 2006, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 15 (Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 15; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 15, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10278, Version: 1

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 15 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 15 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District and the Tarrant Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10278, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 15

Oak Hollow/Sheffield Village
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.085 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $443,077,474 0.085$         376,616$    

Description Account 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Beginning Balance (Estimated) 618,000$         560,627$     584,020$    611,217$    642,255$     

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 376,616$         380,382$     384,186$    388,028$    391,908$     

Trsf In/Parks Venue (3170) 49780 10,261             10,261         10,261        10,261        10,261         

TOTAL INCOME 386,877$         390,643$     394,447$    398,289$    402,169$     

Amount Available 1,004,877$      951,270$     978,467$    1,009,505$  1,044,424$  

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 160$                160$            160$           160$           160$            

Decorations 60132 20,000             20,000         20,000        20,000        20,000         

Beautification 60490 10,000             10,000         10,000        10,000        10,000         

Graffiti Cleanup 60775 500                  500              500             500             500              

Wall Maintenance 60776 35,000             35,000         35,000        35,000        35,000         

Security  61165 1,000               1,000           1,000          1,000          1,000           

Mowing Contractor 61225 100,000           100,000       100,000      100,000      100,000       

Tree Services 61226 50,000             50,000         50,000        50,000        50,000         

Collection Service** 61380 6,490               6,490           6,490          6,490          6,490           

Misc. 61485 2,000               2,000           2,000          2,000          2,000           

Admin./Management 61510 20,000             20,000         20,000        20,000        20,000         

Postage 61520 200                  200              200             200             200              

Banners 61601 20,000             7,000           7,000          7,000          7,000           

Electric Power 62030 1,500               1,500           1,500          1,500          1,500           

Water Utility 62035 15,000             15,000         15,000        15,000        15,000         

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 25,000             25,000         25,000        25,000        25,000         

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 15,500             1,500           1,500          1,500          1,500           

Property Insurance Premium 63147 1,300               1,300           1,300          1,300          1,300           

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 600                  600              600             600             600              

Surveillance Pole Camera 68013 50,000             -               -              -              -              

Landscaping* 68250 70,000             70,000         70,000        70,000        70,000         

Irrigation Systems 68635 -                   -               -              -              -              

-                   -               -              -              -              

TOTAL EXPENSES 444,250$         367,250$     367,250$    367,250$    367,250$     

Ending Balance 560,627$         584,020$     611,217$    642,255$    677,174$     

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 $85

$150,000 $128 Avg. Property Value: 200,397$     

$200,000 $170 Avg. Property Assessment: 170$            

$250,000 $213 No. of Properties:

$300,000 $255  Dallas County 162              

Tarrant County: 2,049           

*Landscape Installation Total 2,211           

**Dallas County:  $2.75/Acct; Tarrant County:  $2.95/Acct

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Oak Hollow-Sheffield Village 3225\2021\Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-OHSV.xlsm OHSV



Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 15 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Karla Weaver – President 

 

Ramon Montoya - Vice President 

 

Cory Walden - Board Member 

 

Joseph Moreno - Board Member  

 

Raul Leal - Board Member 

 

Naomi Alanis - Board Member 

 

Vacant – Board Member 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10279 Name: Crescent Heights PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Crescent Heights PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Crescent Heights PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Budget 5yr service plan-FY21-Crescent Heights..pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members CHPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Crescent Heights PID (City Council District 2)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Crescent Heights PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $1,262. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer $909 to
the PID, and $914 will be funded via an assessment rate of $0.16 per $100 of appraised real property value
within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance and improvements within the PID
boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements. The recommended
PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10279, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.16 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $1,262, which includes a reimbursement of $909 for right
of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation General
Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 18 (CRESCENT HEIGHTS),
ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND
AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on April 21, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 5078-2020, duly passed on April 21, 2020, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 18 (Crescent Heights PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 18; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 18, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10279, Version: 1

landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 18 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.16 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 18 in accordance with the records of the Dallas Central
Appraisal District shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10279, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 18

Crescent Heights
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.16 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $570,950 0.16$             914$           

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Estimated No. of Improved Properties -                 40                  80               89                89                 

Estimated No. of Unimproved Properties 1                    49                  9                 -              -                

Beginning Balance (Estimated) -$               561$              2,849$        3,916$         6,392$          

Description Acct. No.

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 914$              17,889$         31,778$      35,212$       35,564$        

City Contribution 49780 909                909                909             909              909               

TOTAL INCOME 1,823$           18,798$         32,687$      36,121$       36,473$        

Amount Available 1,823$           19,359$         35,536$      40,037$       42,865$        

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 -$               -$               100$           100$            100$             

Decorations 60132 -                 -                 1,000          1,000           1,000            

Beautification 60490 -                 1,000             1,000          3,000           3,000            

Wall Maintenance 60776 -                 1,000             1,000          1,000           1,000            

Mowing Contractor 61225 909                11,000           11,000        11,000         11,000          

Collection Service ($2.75/Acct) 61380 3                    110                220             245              245               

Misc. 61485 -                 -                 500             500              500               

Postage 61520 -                 -                 100             100              100               

Electric Power 62030 -                 200                200             200              200               

Water Utility 62035 -                 1,600             1,600          1,600           1,600            

Streets,Roads,Highway Maint.* 63030 -                 -                 12,300        12,300         12,300          

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 -                 1,000             1,000          1,000           1,000            

Roadway Markings/Signs Maint 63115 -                 -                 1,000          1,000           1,000            

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 -                 250                250             250              250               

Property Insurance Premium 64080 100                100                100             100              100               

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 250                250                250             250              250               

-                 -                 -              -              -                

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,262$           16,510$         31,620$      33,645$       33,645$        

Ending Balance 561$              2,849$           3,916$        6,392$         9,220$          

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$150,000 240$              

$200,000 320$              Avg. Property Value: 240,000$      

$250,000 400$              Avg. Unimproved Property Value: 30,000$        

$300,000 480$              Avg. Impr. Property Assessment: 384$             

$350,000 560$              No. of Properties (at completion): 89                 

$400,000 640$              

*The estimated cost to reconstruct ½ of the roadway along the property lines with 8" of concrete paving would be 

approximately $350,000; an annual maintenance cost would be 10% of that or $35,000 per year.  

The estimated cost to reconstruct ½ of the roadway along the property lines with 6" of concrete paving would be 

approximately $123,000; an annual maintenance cost would be 10% of that or $12,300 per year.  



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 18 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Yigal Lelah  

 

Cynthia Olivia 

 

Ronny Arbov 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10280 Name: Greenway Trails PID - Service Plan

Status:Type: Ordinance Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:8/17/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Greenway Trails PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Greenway Trails PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: Exhibit A-Greenway Trails - Budget FY21.pdf

Exhibit B-2021 Board Members GTPID.pdf

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From

Lee Harriss

Title

Greenway Trails PID (City Council District 6)
a. Public Hearing - Service Plan - Assessment Roll and Rate;
b. Adoption of the Greenway Trails PID 5-year Service Plan;
c. Ordinance approving the assessment roll and rate;
d. PID Board Membership

Presenter

Lee Harriss, Special District Administrator

Recommend Action

Approve

Analysis

Chapter 372 of the Local Government Code requires the City to annually review and approve the PID five-year
service plan and adopt an assessment rate for annual assessments within the PID. The Advisory Board has
updated the five-year service plan which outlines the maintenance and improvements planned for each year.

The PID budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $6,423. This will be funded by the City, which will transfer $1,178
to the PID, and $6,025 will be funded via an assessment rate of $0.20 per $100 of appraised real property value
within the PID. The funds generated provide for annual maintenance and improvements within the PID
boundaries. The proposed budget will continue the basic maintenance and improvements. The recommended
PID Advisory Board membership for 2021 is attached.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10280, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

The recommended assessment rate for the PID is $0.20 per $100 of appraised real property value within the
PID. The estimated budget for the 2021 fiscal year is $6,423, which includes a reimbursement of $1,178 for
right of way maintenance, which would otherwise be performed by the City, from the Parks and Recreation
General Fund MMDC.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, RATIFYING AND CONFIRMING
ACTIONS HERETOFORE TAKEN BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE,
TEXAS, AND THE OFFICERS AND EMPLOYEES OF SAID CITY; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS ORDERED IN CONNECTION WITH
THE GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 19 (GREENWAY TRAILS),
ACCEPTING THE FIVE YEAR SERVICE PLAN, SETTING THE ASSESSMENT RATE, AND
AUTHORIZING THE PROPER OFFICIALS OF THE CITY TO DO AND PERFORM CERTAIN
ACTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICE PLAN

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any property
proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person or
through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to contest
the establishment of the Public Improvement District, and

WHEREAS, by Resolution No. 5081-2020, duly passed on May 19, 2020, this City Council established Grand
Prairie Public Improvement District No. 19 (Greenway Trails PID); and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, a public hearing was held and all persons owning or claiming any
property proposed to be assessed or any interest therein were given an opportunity to be heard, either in person
or through an agent or attorney, and all were given an opportunity to testify before the City Council and to
contest the assessments proposed to be made on account of the amount thereof or because or of any inaccuracy,
irregularity, invalidity or insufficiency of the proceedings or contract with reference thereto, or to such
improvements on accounts of any matter or thing in the discretion of this governing body; and

WHEREAS, on September 15, 2020, this Council should close the public hearing and levy assessments against
property and the owners thereof in the recommended amounts in the Public Improvement District No. 19; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has established the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 19, which by

Statute, allows for the establishment of an Advisory Board (attached as Exhibit B) to oversee and make

recommendations to the City Council regarding planning, operations, setting assessments and disbursement of

funds generated by the assessments, and

WHEREAS, it is now appropriate for this City Council to adopt the Five Year Service Plan (attached as

Exhibit A) and set the assessment rate,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. THAT all actions heretofore taken by the City Council and by City officials at the direction of
this City Council in connections with the improvement district are hereby ratified and confirmed.

SECTION 2. THAT the benefits to accrue to the property assessed and to the owners of such property, from the
landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10280, Version: 1

landscape maintenance and improvements identified within the Five Year Service Plan, adopted by the City
Council, and herewith to be funded from the assessments, exceed the amount which has been assessed.

SECTION 3. THAT the City Manager and City Secretary or their designated representatives are hereby
authorized and directed to carry out the terms and provisions of this ordinance; and that all prerequisites to the
fixing of the assessments against the property within the Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 19 and
the fixing of the personal liability of the owner or owners thereof have been performed in due time, form and
manner as required by law, and no additional proof shall be required in any court.

SECTION 4. THAT an assessment rate of $0.20 per $100 of appraised value on all real properties within the
Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 19 in accordance with the records of the Ellis Appraisal District
shall be levied.

SECTION 5. THAT the method of payment of the assessment shall be in a single lump sum payment upon
receipt of the assessment notice, which is due October 1, 2020, and becomes delinquent on February 1, 2021,
with the following interest rates: February 2021, 6%; March 2021, 7%; April 2021, 8%; May 2021, 9%; June
2021, 10%; and July 2021, 12%. Any assessment remaining unpaid on July 1, 2021, shall accrue an additional
penalty for collection costs. The penalty shall be 20% of the amount of assessment, penalty, and interest due. A
delinquent assessment accrues interest increasing at the rate of 1% for each additional month or portion of a
month the assessment remain unpaid.

SECTION 6. THAT a lien shall be established against each affected property within the district on the date the
assessment is due, and shall not be released until the assessment is paid in full. This lien is superior to all other
liens and claims except liens or claims for the state, county, school district, or city ad valorem taxes.

SECTION 7. THAT the Chief Financial Officer or his/her designee is authorized to review and approve the
expenditures recommended by the Public Improvement District Advisory Board for goods and services
procured by the District.

SECTION 8. THAT the public importance of this measure and the fact that it is to the best interest of the City
and its inhabitants to provide for the acceptance of said improvements and to provide for the immediate
preservation of the public business, property, health and safety of the City and creates an emergency requiring
this ordinance to be passed on the date of introduction.

SECTION 9. THAT this ordinance shall be and is hereby declared to be cumulative of all other ordinances of
the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, and this ordinance shall not operate to repeal or affect any other ordinance
except insofar as the provisions thereof might be inconsistent or in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance, in which event such conflicting provisions, if any, in such other ordinance or ordinances are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 10. THAT if any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason
held unconstitutional, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

SECTION 11. THAT all of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental
and for the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City
official or employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas,
in the discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable; and he is hereby relieved from
all liability as a result of any action required or permitted in the discharge of his said duties.

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10280, Version: 1

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS,
ON THIS THE 15TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



GRAND PRAIRIE PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 19

Greenway Trails
Five Year Service Plan 2021 - 2025 BUDGET

Income based on Assessment Rate of $0.20 per $100 of appraised value.

Service Plan projects a 1% increase in assessed value per year.

INCOME: Value Assess Rate Revenue

Appraised Value $3,012,650 0.20$            6,025$                   

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Estimated No. of Homes Built by Year -                  117               108                        131                   131               

Estimated Total No. of Improved Properties -                  117               225                        356                   487               

Estimated No. of Unimproved Properties 1                     491               383                        252                   121               

Total No. of Properties 1                     608               608                        608                   608               

Beginning Balance (Estimated) -$                780$             6,195$                   9,869$              7,289$          

Description Acct. No.

P.I.D. Assessment 42620 6,025$            121,180$      188,140$               269,360$          350,580$      

City Contribution 49780 1,178              1,178            1,178                     1,178                1,178            

TOTAL INCOME 7,203$            122,358$      189,318$               270,538$          351,758$      

Amount Available 7,203$            123,138$      195,513$               280,407$          359,047$      

 

EXPENSES:

Description 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Office Supplies 60020 -$                -$              600$                      600$                 600$             

Decorations 60132 -                  -                5,000                     15,000              15,000          

Beautification 60490 -                  500               10,000                   10,000              45,000          

Graffiti Cleanup 60775 -                  -                1,000                     1,000                1,000            

Wall Maintenance 60776 -                  1,000            1,000                     2,000                5,000            

Mowing Contractor 61225 5,000              65,000          75,000                   75,000              75,000          

Tree Services 61226 -                  -                -                         10,000              40,000          

Collection Service ($2.95/Acct) 61380 3                     1,794            1,794                     1,794                1,794            

Misc. 61485 -                  500               500                        10,000              10,000          

Admin./Management 61510 -                  18,000          18,000                   18,000              18,000          

Postage 61520 -                  -                -                         600                   600               

Electric Power 62030 -                  7,000            8,000                     8,000                8,000            

Water Utility 62035 -                  20,000          22,000                   55,125              57,881          

Bldgs & Grounds Maintenance 63010 -                  -                5,000                     20,000              25,000          

Pond Maintenance-Aquatic 63038 -                  -                16,000                   16,000              16,000          

Pond Maintenance-Equipment 63039 -                  -                10,000                   10,000              10,000          

Irrigation System Maint. 63065 -                  1,000            2,000                     10,000              10,000          

Playgrounds/Picnic Areas Maint 63135 -                  -                1,000                     1,000                1,000            

Decorative Lighting Maintenance 63146 -                  500               2,000                     2,000                2,000            

Property Insurance Premium 64080 1,400              1,400            1,400                     1,500                1,500            

Liability Insurance Premium 64090 20                   250               350                        500                   650               

Water Well Maintenance -                  -                5,000                     5,000                5,000            

Fencing -                  -                -                         -                    -                

TOTAL EXPENSES 6,423$            116,944$      185,644$               273,119$          349,025$      

Ending Balance 780$               6,195$          9,869$                   7,289$              10,022$        

Avg. Annual Assessment by Home Value:

Value         Yrly Assmnt.

$100,000 200$               Avg. Property Value: 350,000$      

$200,000 400$               Avg. Unimproved Property Value:40,000$        

$300,000 600$               Avg. Imp. Property Assessment: 700$             

$400,000 800$               Avg. Unimp. Property Assessment: 80$               

$500,000 1,000$            No. of Properties: 608               

C:\Users\lharriss\Documents\PID Greenway Trails 3229\2021\Exhibit A-Greenway Trails - Budget FY21.xlsx HH



 

 

 

 

 

Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No. 19 

 

Advisory Board Members 

 

2020-2021 Fiscal Year 

 

 

-------------------------------------------------- 

 

Justin Bosworth 

 

Katie Sabin 

 

Benjamin Clark 

 

--------------------------------------------------- 

 

 

 



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10306 Name: Solid Waste Ordinance - Republic Rate Increase
Request

Status:Type: Ordinance Second Reading

File created: In control:8/20/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, amending
Chapter 26, Utilities and Services,” of the Code of Ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas by
amendment of Article VI, “Garbage Collection and Disposal,” Sections 26-113 Residential Fees, 26-
115 Commercial Fees, and 26-117 Hauling By Individual; permit; making this amendment cumulative;
repealing all ordinances in conflict herewith; providing a savings clause, severability clause, and a
penalty clause; and providing for an effective, after publication, of October 1, 2020

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

City Council9/1/2020 1

From

Patricia D. B. Redfearn

Title

Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, amending Chapter
26, Utilities and Services,” of the Code of Ordinance of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas by amendment of
Article VI, “Garbage Collection and Disposal,” Sections 26-113 Residential Fees, 26-115 Commercial Fees,
and 26-117 Hauling By Individual; permit; making this amendment cumulative; repealing all ordinances in
conflict herewith; providing a savings clause, severability clause, and a penalty clause; and providing for an
effective, after publication, of October 1, 2020

Presenter

Patricia D. B. Redfearn, Ph.D., Solid Waste and Recycling Manager

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

Since 1962, the company currently doing business as Republic Services of Arlington has provided solid waste
collection services for the City of Grand Prairie.  The current franchise agreement between Republic Services
and the City permits Republic Services to request fee increases. For FY2021, Republic Services is requesting
an increase to the “per household/ per month” rate of $0.22.  Republic is also requesting to increase the
industrial disposal rate to $37.65, the industrial haul rate to $154.50 per haul and the industrial delivery fee to
$71.00.  This ordinance change will make these new rates effective October 1, 2020, after the second reading
and approval.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

Financial Consideration

There will be no impact on the City’s budget, the rate is a pass through.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING CHAPTER 26,
"UTILITIES AND SERVICES" OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS, BY THE AMENDMENT OF ARTICLE VI, "GARBAGE COLLECTION AND
DISPOSAL," SECTIONS 26-113 RESIDENTIAL FEES, 26-115 COMMERCIAL FEES, AND 26-117
HAULING BY INDIVIDUAL; PERMIT; MAKING THIS AMENDMENT CUMULATIVE;
REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE,
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SAVINGS CLAUSE, SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE, AND A PENALTY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE, AFTER
PUBLICATION, OF OCTOBER 1, 2020

WHEREAS, the City has an interest in protecting public health through the proper collection and
disposal of solid waste;

WHEREAS, the City has the authority to regulate residential and commercial solid waste collection
rates;

WHEREAS, Republic Services has requested an increase in certain fees;

WHEREAS, increases to residential services and certain roll-off or compactor commercial services are
reasonable and within the market range;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1. That Chapter 26, Article VI, “Garbage Collection and Disposal”  Sections 26-113, 26-115, and 26
-117 are hereby amended to read as follows:

Sec. 26-113. - Residential fees.

(a) The collection and removal of garbage and trash in disposable containers from premises used for residential
purposes shall be made two (2) times per week (and collection of recyclables shall be made one (1) time each
week). The fair and reasonable charge for such service is hereby determined to be sixteen dollars and fifty-
seven cents ($16.57) per residential unit for each calendar month, and the charges shall accrue for each month
or portion thereof during which the service is available and provided to the customer. Eligible for a one-dollar
($1.00) discount are water account customers aged sixty-five (65) and older with the account in the senior
citizen's
name and certified by ad valorem tax exemption, and permanently disabled customers eligible for
transportation with city services for the disabled with the account in the disabled citizen's name. When a
customer has an active water bill account with the city, the charges shall be due and payable simultaneously
with charges for water service.

Residential curbside services franchise collection rate……$7.67

(b) Non-senior citizen residents and certified senior and disabled citizens with an active account who opted out
of the recycling program prior to July 31, 2000 shall be charged a fee of fourteen dollars and fifty-seven cents

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

($14.57) per residential unit for each calendar month, and the charges shall accrue for each month or portion
thereof during which the service is available and provided to the customer. When a customer has an active
water bill account with the city, the charges shall be due and payable simultaneously with charges for water
service.

(c) A person who fails to pay residential solid waste fees shall be subject to the termination of collective
service. Additionally, the failure to pay fees shall be an offense subject to the enforcement provisions contained
in section 26-123.

Sec. 26-115. - Commercial fees.

(a) Charges-Commercial Cart Service. Commercial cart service is available to small commercial customers
whose service address is located on Main Street or Jefferson Street. The fair and reasonable monthly charges
for small commercial rolling carts are determined to be as follows:

Number of rolling carts emptied twice per week (maximum 2):
One cart $29.19
Two carts $39.41
 (b) Charges Commercial Bag Service. Commercial bag service is available to small commercial customers
who do not qualify for commercial cart service. Fair and reasonable charges for commercial bag service are
hereby determined to be twenty-four dollars and nineteen cents ($24.19) for the first cubic yard or portion
thereof and twelve dollars and twenty-eight cents ($12.28) for each additional cubic yard per month.

(c) Charges-Commercial-type containers. As an alternative to the collection methods and charges provided in
subsection (a) above, commercial, institutional and industrial customers may dispose of garbage and trash by
means of approved commercial-type containers. Additionally, multifamily residential complexes may employ
commercial-type containers for garbage and trash collection in the same manner as commercial, institutional
and industrial customers. For the purposes of this section only, town homes organized as nonprofit homeowner
associations and consisting of a minimum of four hundred (400) dwelling units may be considered multifamily
residential complexes when such nonprofit status has been verified by the city attorney and the finance director
upon submittal by the nonprofit homeowners association of a full financial disclosure statement showing
detailed revenues and expenses to demonstrate the nonprofit status of the association. "Town homes" means
two (2) or more adjoining single-family attached dwellings in which there is a separate, real property interest in
each dwelling unit and the common areas are owned by the nonprofit homeowners association or by each
dwelling unit
owner through an undivided interest in common with all other dwelling unit owners.

(d) The fair and reasonable charges for commercial service are determined to be as following:
All charges provided are monthly charges unless specified otherwise.

Two (2) cubic yards-Dumps per week:

1 $ 80.64
2 $ 124.33
3 $ 171.15
4 $ 196.52
5 $ 274.00
6 $ 356.10
Extra $ 23.18

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

Four (4) cubic yards:
1 $ 124.33
2 $ 184.30
3 $ 253.41
4 $ 324.11
5 $ 396.36
6 $ 517.60
Extra $ 32.57

Eight (8) cubic yards:
1 $ 184.30
2 $ 310.36
3 $ 381.23
4 $ 495.07
5 $ 625.68
6 $ 791.62
Extra $ 54.44

Front loader packers:
Four (4) cubic yards:
1 $ 161.72
2 $ 323.42
3 $ 483.62
4 $ 649.94
5 $ 810.14
6 $ 971.85
Extra $ 35.28

Six (6) cubic yards:
1 $ 241.79
2 $ 485.20
3 $ 730.04
4 $ 971.85
5 $ 1,215.25
6 $ 1,458.57
Extra $ 53.02

Eight (8) cubic yards:
1 $ 319.91
2 $ 642.96
3 $ 961.36
4 $ 1,283.42
5 $ 1,605.92
6 $ 1,924.34
Extra $ 74.38

Roll-offs:
Twenty (20) cubic yards, roll-off:

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month $ 139.66

Thirty (30) cubic yards, roll-off (open top):
Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month $ 175.61

Thirty (30) cubic yards, roll-off (closed top):
Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month $ 298.06

Thirty (30) cubic yards-Compactor:
Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month Variable

Forty (40) cubic yards, roll-off (open top):
Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month $ 215.43

Forty-two (42) cubic yards-Compactor:
Per pickup $ 154.50
Lease charge, per month Variable

Additional charges:

Container with casters, per month $ 4.61
Container inside fence/container-pickup $ 1.53
Additional Yardage Fee $ 14.62 per yard for overflowing dumpster
South of I-20 Charge - Front loaders $ 15.29 per month
South of I-20 Roll-off $ 16.21 per trip
Placement or Relocation Fee $ 67.29
Obstruction Charge - Front load- Equal to extra dump fee for customers’ container
Obstruction Charge - Roll Off $ 71.63

Containers that have been burned:

Yards Fee Yards Fee

2 $67.04 30 $229.39

4 $88.74 40 40 $310.45

8 $113.17

20 $155.95

(e) Obstruction charge. The charge for an extra pickup will be assessed to all commercial accounts that have
obstructions in front of containers on the day of pickup that result in return-trips, and also the same charge shall
apply for containers being picked up for past due
billings.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 5 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

(f) Placement charge-Commercial-type containers. There shall be a charge of seventy-one dollars ($71.00) for
the original placement of a container and such charges shall apply if the container must be removed and
replaced as result of nonpayment of the customer's bill.

(g) Deposit. There shall be a customer deposit for service in the amount of one (1) month's bill for service as
determined by the agreement between customer and collector to provide service pursuant to this chapter.

(h) Landfill fees. Landfill fees for roll-off containers shall be thirty-seven dollars and sixty-five cents ($37.65)
per ton, unless modified by a contract with the city.

(i) Refund policy. Household and commercial customers who have been charged by the City of Grand Prairie
for the incorrect collection services rate may be credited for up to six (6) months of overcharges. The credit
given will be the difference between the correct month rate and monthly rate actually charged and paid,
multiplied by the number of months involved to a maximum of six (6) months. No credit will be given for
overcharges that are more than twelve (12) months old.

Sec. 26-117. - Hauling by individual; permit.

(a) Permit required: This article shall not be construed to prohibit any person from disposing of such person's
own garbage, trash or refuse from within the city or to prohibit any such person from utilizing the landfill
facilities maintained by the city; provided, however, that before engaging in such activity, any such person shall
make application to the city for a permit to do so; and, provided further, however, that such permit shall not be
necessary in order for any regular customer of the city garbage department or its garbage disposal
contractor/franchisee to dispose of such person's own garbage in order to expedite or facilitate the maintenance
and the cleanliness of such person’s own premises.  Such permit, if issued, shall be effective from January 31 to
January 31, and each permit issued after that date will be prorated for the balance of the year.

(b) Conditions of issuance: Such permit shall not be issued unless:

(1) Fee: The applicant thereof pays a fee commensurate with the amount that would be charged for one (1)
month's garbage collection service for the amount of garbage or rubbish proposed to be hauled or disposed of
by the applicant as based on the charges hereinafter set out. The determination of the amount of the garbage to
be hauled by the applicant shall be stated on the application, and shall be subject to the approval and/or revision
upon inspection by the local regulatory authority at any time during the time such permit shall be in force.

(2) Insurance: The applicant has in force and effect a policy of public liability insurance, with the city named as
coinsured, in an amount of not less than twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) for injury to one (1) person,
twenty thousand dollars ($20,000.00) for injuries in any one (1) accident, and property damage insurance in an
amount of not less than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) for injuries or damages to any person arising from the
use by applicant of the aforesaid dump ground facilities. The applicant shall furnish a certificate evidencing
such insurance coverage, which shall provide that it shall not be cancelled except on ten (10) days'
notice in writing to the city.

(3) Hold harmless and indemnify: The applicant shall sign an agreement to save and hold the city harmless
from any and all claims, demands, causes of action or suits which may arise out of his operation of hauling his
own garbage, trash and debris and shall indemnify the city for any loss which it may suffer from its activities
hereunder, and it shall be no defense to this indemnity to
contend or plead that the fault is that of the city, its agents or employees.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 6 of 7

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10306, Version: 1

(c) Independent school district exception: Any independent school district located within the city which wishes
to haul its own garbage shall comply with all conditions and requirements of this section and the city's
ordinance related to the use of its landfill except for subsection (b)(2) requiring the provision of insurance.

(d) Cancellation: Any permit issued under the terms hereof shall be cancelled by the solid waste manager upon
violation by the holder thereof of any of the terms of this section or of any other section of this Code relating to
the hauling of garbage and trash.

SECTION 2. That if any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this ordinance is for any
reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such shall be deemed a separate,
distinct, and independent provision and such holding shall not affect validity of the remaining portions thereof.

SECTION 3. That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 4. All of the regulations provided in this ordinance are hereby declared to be governmental and for
the health, safety and welfare of the general public. Any member of the City Council or any City official or
employee charged with the enforcement of this ordinance, acting for the City of Grand Prairie, Texas, in the
discharge of his duties, shall not thereby render himself personally liable, and he is hereby relieved from all
personal liability for damage that may accrue to person or property as a result of any act required or permitted
in the discharge of said duties.

SECTION 5. That Chapter 26, “Utilities and Services,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie,
Texas, as amended shall be and remain in full force and effect save and except as amended by this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. That a violation of any provision of this Ordinance shall be a misdemeanor punishable in
accordance with Section 1-8 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Grand Prairie, Texas.

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall be effective, after publication, on October 1, 2020.

FIRST READING OF THE ORDINANCE IS PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, SEPTEMBER 1, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 7 of 7

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10237 Name: Republic Services Rate Increase Request

Status:Type: Ordinance Second Reading

File created: In control:8/4/2020 Environmental Services

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance modifying the solid waste collection franchise
agreement with Republic Waste Services of Texas Ltd., dba Republic Services of Arlington to include
a $0.22 rate increase to residential service, per household, per month, and an increase to industrial
charges limited to increasing the roll-off and packer delivery fee to $71.00, increasing the roll-off and
packer haul rate to $154.50, and increasing the roll-off and packer disposal rate to $37.65

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments:

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

City Council9/1/2020 1

From

Patricia D. B. Redfearn, Ph.D

Title

Second and final reading and adoption of an ordinance modifying the solid waste collection franchise
agreement with Republic Waste Services of Texas Ltd., dba Republic Services of Arlington to include a $0.22
rate increase to residential service, per household, per month, and an increase to industrial charges limited to
increasing the roll-off and packer delivery fee to $71.00, increasing the roll-off and packer haul rate to $154.50,
and increasing the roll-off and packer disposal rate to $37.65

Presenter

Patricia D. B. Redfearn, Ph.D

Recommended Action

Approve

Analysis

Since 1962, the company, currently doing business as Republic Services of Arlington has provided solid waste
collection services for the City of Grand Prairie.  The current franchise agreement between Republic Waste
Services and the City allows a once-per-year request for a rate increase provided that it can be justified by the
Director of Finance.  The proposed franchise agreement modification will allow for a $0.22 increase to the cost
of residential collection service, per household, per month, and an increase to industrial charges limited to an
increase in the roll-off and packer delivery fee to $71.00, an increase to the roll-off and packer haul rate to
$154.50, and an increase to the roll-off and packer disposal rate to $37.65, while leaving all other commercial
charges unchanged.

Financial Consideration

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10237, Version: 1

Funding for the increase for residential solid waste customers is in the FY 2020/2021 Proposed Solid Waste
Operating Fund Budget.

Body

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS, AMENDING THE SOLID
WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY
OF GRAND PRAIRIE (CITY) AND REPUBLIC WASTE SERVICES OF TEXAS LTD., DBA
REPUBLIC SERVICES OF ARLINGTON (FRANCHISEE) TO ALLOW A RATE INCREASE
OF $0.22 TO THE RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE RATE, PER HOUSEHOLD, PER MONTH,
AND AN INCREASE TO INDUSTRIAL CHARGES LIMITED TO INCREASING THE ROLL-
OFF AND PACKER DELIVERY FEE TO $71.00, INCREASING THE ROLL-OFF AND
PACKER HAUL RATE TO $154.50, AND INCREASING THE ROLL-OFF AND PACKER
DISPOSAL RATE TO $37.65, WHILE LEAVING ALL OTHER COMMERCIAL CHARGES
UNCHANGED; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the CITY entered into a ten year franchise agreement with Republic Waste Services of
Texas LTD on October 17, 2018;

WHEREAS,  the FRANCHISEE submitted a rate increase request to provide Solid Waste collection
and disposal within the CITY;

WHEREAS,  the CITY has determined that the proposed rate increase submitted by the
FRANCHISEE is in the best interest of the CITY; and

WHEREAS,  it is necessary for the CITY to promote, preserve and protect the public health of its
citizens;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS:

SECTION 1.
 That Attachment A of the solid waste and disposal franchise agreement entered into between the City of
Grand Prairie and Republic Waste Services of Texas LTD on October 17, 2018 shall be amended to read
as follows:

"SOLID WASTE AND DISPOSAL FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF
GRAND PRAIRIE, TEXAS AND REPUBLIC WASTE SERVICES OF TEXAS, LTD., DBA REPUBLIC
SERVICES OF ARLINGTON

ATTACHMENT A - RATE SHEET
EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 1, 2020

Residential Rates

Service type Rate
Residential Curbside Services Franchise Collection  Rate   $  7.67
Commercial Hand Collect Trash  Franchisee Collection Rate         $  9.87 per billable unit

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 2 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10237, Version: 1

Commercial Hand Collect Recycle Franchisee Collection Rate                  $  2.90 per billable unit
Commercial Cart Collection Rate - One Cart                                              $29.19
Commercial Cart Collection Rate - Two Carts                                            $39.41

Collector Disposal Rate   $30.00 per ton

COMMERCIAL FRONT-LOAD RATES

SIZE 1XWK 2XWK 3XWK 4XWK 5XWK 6XWK EXTRA

2 YD $    80.64 $  124.33 $  171.15 $    196.52 $    274.00 $    356.10 $    23.18

4 YD $  124.33 $  184.30 $  253.41 $    324.11 $    396.36 $    517.60 $    32.57

8 YD $  184.30 $  310.36 $  381.23 $    495.07 $    625.68 $    791.62 $    54.44

4 YD PKR $  161.72 $  323.42 $  483.62 $    649.94 $    810.14 $    971.85 $    35.28

6 YD PKR $  241.79 $  485.20 $  730.04 $    971.85 $ 1,215.25 $ 1,458.57 $    53.02

8 YD PKR $  319.91 $  642.96 $ 961.36 $ 1,283.42 $ 1,605.92 $ 1,924.34 $    74.38

LANDFILL FEE PER TON - $37.30

COMMERCIAL ROLL OFF
RATES

SIZE TYPE LEASE RATE HAUL RATE

20 YD OPEN TOP  $          139.66  $         154.50

30 YD OPEN TOP  $          175.61  $         154.50

30 YD CLOSED TOP  $          298.06  $         154.50

40 YD OPEN TOP  $          215.43  $         154.50

30 YD COMPACTOR VARIABLE  $         154.50

40 YD COMPACTOR VARIABLE  $         154.50

LANDFILL FEE PER TON
- $37.65

OTHER CHARGES

Containers with casters  $           4.61 Per month

Containers inside fence  $           1.53 Per pick-up per container

Additional yardage fee  $         14.62 Per yard for overloaded dumpsters

South of I-20 charge Front Load $         15.29 Per month

South of I-20 charge Roll Off $         16.21 Per trip

Placement or Relocation fee  $         71.00

Obstruction Charge - Front LoadEqual to extra dump fee for
customer's container size

Obstruction Charge - Roll Off $         71.63

Deposit Equal to one month's service
plus taxes

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 3 of 4

powered by Legistar™



File #: 20-10237, Version: 1

BURNED CONTAINER FEES

2 YARD  $         67.04

4 YARD  $         88.74

8 YARD  $       113.17

20 YARD  $       155.95

30 YARD  $       229.39

40 YARD  $       310.45

Late Fee:  1.75% of outstanding balance."

SECTION 2.

That this ordinance shall become effective on October 1, 2020.

FIRST READING PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GRAND
PRAIRIE, TEXAS, SEPTEMBER 8, 2020.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 4 of 4

powered by Legistar™



City Hall
300 W. Main Street

Grand Prairie, Texas
City of Grand Prairie

Legislation Details (With Text)

File #:  Version: 120-10117 Name: CCPD Public Hearing budget
public hearing budget

Status:Type: Agenda Item Items for Individual Consideration

File created: In control:6/26/2020 Finance

On agenda: Final action:9/15/2020

Title: Public Hearing and adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD)
Budget

Sponsors:

Indexes:

Code sections:

Attachments: CCPD 2020-21 Budget

Action ByDate Action ResultVer.

From
Cathy DiMaggio

Title
Public Hearing and adoption of the FY 2020/2021 Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) Budget

Presenter
Jim Swafford, President, Crime Control and Prevention District Board, and Ryan Simpson, Treasurer, Crime
Control and Prevention District Board

Recommended Action
Approve

Analysis
The Crime Control and Prevention District board has held two public hearings and adopted the FY20-21 CCPD
budget on September 15, 2020.  The Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 363, Crime Control and
Prevention Districts, requires the governing body of the political subdivision that created the district to hold a
public hearing on the proposed CCPD budget and adopt the budget.

Financial Consideration
The proposed budget for FY 2020/2021 is attached for your review.

City of Grand Prairie Printed on 9/11/2020Page 1 of 1

powered by Legistar™



1 2 3 4 5 6 7
2018/2019 2019/2020 2019/2020 2019/2020 2020/2021 A vs. P Appr vs.
ACTUAL APPR/MOD AS OF 06.17.20 PROJECTION PROPOSED % Prop $

1 Beginning Resources $15,086,729 11,487,381  11,487,381    11,487,381        8,632,329        -25% ($2,855,052)
2 REVENUES
3   Sales Tax Receipts $8,757,427 $8,503,963 $5,891,933 8,744,660          8,486,406        0% ($17,557)
4   Misc. Revenue 19,871 0 0 0 0 0% 0
7   SRO Reimbursement 174,337 399,395 98,110 197,286             197,286           -51% (202,109)

10
11 TOTAL REVENUES $8,951,635 $8,903,358 $5,990,043 $8,941,946 $8,683,692 -2% ($219,666)
12
13   Reserve for Debt Service 629,877         701,102 701,102 701,102             739,040           5% $37,938
14   Reserve For Future Building Repairs 250,000 0 0 0 0 0% 0
15   Reserve for Encumbrance 219,268         1,268,632 1,268,632 1,268,632 0 -100% 0
17
18 TOTAL RESOURCES $25,137,509 $22,360,473 $19,447,158 22,399,061        18,055,061 -19% ($4,305,412)
19
20 EXPENDITURES
21   Personnel Services (48) $4,297,899 $5,496,842 $3,082,289 $4,684,236 $5,583,760 2% $86,918
23   2 SROs 0 184,776 107,786 184,776 180,279           -2% (4,497)
24   Supplies 7,648 82,654 25,612 37,910               87,043             5% 4,389
25   Other Charges and Services 191,858 435,558 276,119 386,971             399,365           -8% (36,193)
26   Interest Expense 347,862 700,082 0 700,082             475,906           -32% (224,176)
27   Principal Payment 4,650,000 5,085,000 0 5,085,000          5,550,000        9% 465,000
29   Reserve for Encumbrances 1,268,632 0 0 0 0 0% 0
31
32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $10,763,899 $11,984,912 $3,491,806 $11,078,975 $12,276,353 2% $291,441
33
34   One-Time Equipment 1,689,653      1,447,990 1,422,011 1,448,717          0 -100% (1,447,990)
35   Building Repairs 295,474         300,000 200,097 300,000             300,000 0% 0
36   Transfer to Equipment Acq Fund 200,000         200,000 133,333 200,000             200,000 0% 0
37
38 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $12,949,026 $13,932,902 $5,247,247 $13,027,692 $12,776,353 -8% ($1,156,549)
39
41   Reserve For Debt Service 701,102         739,040 739,040 739,040             739,040           
43
44 Ending Resources $11,487,381 $7,688,531 $13,460,871 $8,632,329 $4,539,668
45
46 Operating Imbalance (1,592,996) (1,812,922) 3,766,869 (868,397) (3,592,661)
47
48 55 Day Fund Balance 1,621,957 1,805,946 526,163 1,669,435 1,849,861
49 Difference 9,865,424 5,882,585 12,934,708 6,962,894          2,689,807        

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CRIME TAX FUND SUMMARY

2020/2021

P. 11



CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CRIME TAX FUND SUMMARY

2020/2021
55
56 SIGNIFICANT BUDGET CHANGES: 13,932,902      
57 Personal Services:  Change in salaries and wages 1,314
58 Personal Services:  Step 61,058
59 Personal Services:  change in health insurance (23,600)
60 Personal Services:  change in worker's comp 43,649
61 Supplies: change in miscellaneous supplies 4,389
62 Services and Other Charges:  added property & liability charge to this fund (based on FTE's) 104,993
63 Services and Other Charges: decrease in IT reimbursement (33,565)
64 Services and Other Charges: Supplementals FY20 (35,235)
65 Change in total Debt Payment 240,824
66 One-Time:  FY19 Encumbrance Roll (1,268,632)
67 One-Time:  FY20 Supplementals (251,744)
68 TOTAL 12,776,353      0
69 Positions: 50 Full-Time

P. 12



1 2 3 4 5 6 7
2018/2019 2019/2020 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024 2024/2025
ACTUAL PROJECTION PROPOSED FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST FORECAST

1 Beginning Resources $15,086,729 $11,487,381 $8,632,329 $4,539,668 $2,311,738 $466,989 ($1,422,385)
2 REVENUES
3   Sales Tax Receipts (covers Operating) $4,378,714 $4,372,330 $4,243,203 $4,370,499 $4,501,614 $4,636,662 $4,775,762
4   Sales Tax Receipts (covers Debt Payment) 4,378,714 4,372,330 4,243,203 4,370,499 0 0 0
5   Misc. Revenue 19,871 0 0 0 0 0 0

7
Positions 1Sgt/4Officers but 2 of the Officers Vacant; 
FY20 and forward 5 Positions 1Sgt/4 Officers) 174,337 0 0 314,441 314,667 314,893 315,119

8 SRO Reimbursement 2 Officers in FY20 0 197,286 197,286 103,626 108,360 113,325 118,533
9

10 TOTAL REVENUES $8,951,635 $8,941,946 $8,683,692 $9,159,065 $4,924,641 $5,064,880 $5,209,414
11
12   Reserve for Debt Service 629,877 701,102 739,040 679,237 0 0 0
13   Reserve For Future Building Repairs 250,000 0 0 0 0 0 0
14   Reserve for Encumbrance 219,268 1,268,632 0 0 0 0 0
16
17 TOTAL RESOURCES $25,137,509 $22,399,061 $18,055,061 $14,377,970 $7,236,379 $5,531,869 $3,787,028
18
19 EXPENDITURES (assumptions include step increases FY20-FY24)
20   Personnel Services (39 in FY18 and 48 in FY19) $4,297,899 $4,684,236 $5,583,760 $5,847,702 $5,964,116 $6,080,196 $6,172,283
22   2 SROs 0 184,776 180,279 207,252 216,720 226,650 237,065
23   Supplies 7,648 37,910 87,043 95,747 105,322 115,854 127,440
24   Other Charges and Services 191,858 386,971 399,365 439,302 483,232 531,555 584,710
25 Sub-total 4,497,405 5,293,893 6,250,447 6,590,002 6,769,389 6,954,255 7,121,498
27   Interest Expense 347,862 700,082 475,906 231,230 0 0 0
28   Principal Payment 4,650,000 5,085,000 5,550,000 5,245,000 0 0 0
30   Reserve for Encumbrances 1,268,632 0 0 0 0 0 0
31
32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES $10,763,899 $11,078,975 $12,276,353 $12,066,232 $6,769,389 $6,954,255 $7,121,498
33
34   One-Time Capital Outlay 1,689,653 1,448,717 0 0 0 0 0
35   Building Repairs 295,474 300,000 300,000 0 0 0 0
36   Transfer to Equipment Acquisition Fund 200,000 200,000 200,000 0 0 0 0
37
38 TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS $12,949,026 $13,027,692 $12,776,353 $12,066,232 $6,769,389 $6,954,255 $7,121,498
39
42   Reserve for Debt Service 701,102 739,040 739,040          0 0 0 0
44
45 Ending Resources $11,487,381 $8,632,329 $4,539,668 $2,311,738 $466,989 ($1,422,385) ($3,334,469)
46
47 Operating Imbalance Operating (5,971,710) (5,240,727) (7,835,864) (7,498,447) (1,849,709) (1,894,566) (1,917,518)
48 Operating Imbalance Debt Service (619,149) (1,412,752) (1,782,703) (1,655,407) (5,476,230) 0 0
49 Operating & Debt Service Imbalance (1,592,996) (868,397) (3,592,661) (2,907,167) (1,844,749) (1,889,375) (1,912,084)
50
51 55 day fund balance req. 1,621,957 1,669,435 1,849,861 1,818,199 1,020,045 1,047,901 1,073,102
52 Difference 9,865,424 6,962,894 2,689,807 493,539 (553,056) (2,470,287) (4,407,572)

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CRIME TAX 5 YEAR PROJECTION

FORECAST
Crime Tax Growth Rate 3%

P. 13



YEAR PRINCIPAL INTEREST* TOTAL

9/30/21 5,550,000.00 475,905.28 6,025,905.28
9/30/22 5,245,000.00 231,229.57 5,476,229.57

Total 10,795,000.00 707,134.85 11,502,134.85

* Variable interest rate debt resets semiannually; amounts shown are estimates

CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
CRIME CONTROL DISTRICT DEBT

P. 14


	legistar.com
	Meeting Agenda
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10328
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10326
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10355
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10255
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10337
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10377
	Minutes - Final
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10358
	20-10358 - 20148 - CC EXHIBIT.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10323
	20-10323 - FIS 2021 DC Ground Mosquito.doc
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10324
	20-10324 - TRA 2021 FIS.doc
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10321
	20-10321 - DC 2021.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10338
	20-10338 - 20-10338 - LA BANDA LLC BRIDGE REP CIO BUDGET SUMM.xlsx
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771042&GUID=275E2426-3F53-407F-96CA-30A55BA29500
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10342
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762869&GUID=D8DBF05B-75B9-41A1-8387-FDF5EBD57C16
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10345
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760617&GUID=9A01E4C3-B813-4D3C-BA8D-86C93B63C82F
	20-10345 - 20-10345 - Capital Projects Budget Summary
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10350
	20-10350 - 20-10350 Landfill
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10352
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771099&GUID=423621D3-C451-4360-8EE8-074C2D7D13CA
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10353
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771100&GUID=47261E15-9FEA-4778-B685-551B2EF0DCF4
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771101&GUID=8C1EF67E-E408-4FBB-97F9-96A53CC0D95B
	CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10354
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10356
	20-10356 - WO 615.60.xlsx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10359
	20-10359 - W.O. 618.122.xlsx
	Date
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10373
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771589&GUID=9B5227A8-EFAE-49D8-830F-FEFBD4FBA178
	Article 4.  AGREEMENT SUPPLEMENT.

	20-10373 - 20-10373 Expenditure Form
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10381
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10343
	20-10343 - 20-10343 2021 Aerial Spraying xlsx.xlsx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10371
	20-10371 - 2021 SALES TAX STREET PROGRAM.xlsx
	20-10371 - CIP BUDGET SUMMARY FY21 SALES TAX.xlsx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10319
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10374
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10369
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10320
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744174&GUID=3EE22549-7867-4780-8608-05D83363144F
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10344
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10357
	20-10357 - Exhibit A- Sept 15.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10367
	20-10367 - 20-10367 Resolution form Celina
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10375
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10317
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744520&GUID=4170A89F-C7C9-45BC-BA57-96C8F0858254
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8744522&GUID=15DBAB0C-A0FE-42BC-AB51-F50D19A0AC5C
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10376
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771108&GUID=0F4D1A69-47C6-4223-8E41-C1EC82FE0CCD
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8771111&GUID=81220CE5-3306-4ED4-92B4-6E3B2B15846C
	20-10376 - Copy of 2020 HP Grant Budget - REVISED.xlsx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10287
	Microsoft Word - 08-24-2020.docx
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10281
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10284
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8734482&GUID=00F5C787-FA25-4DC3-9086-6E4D34E0352E
	EROSION CONTROL DETAILS (4)
	L1.01
	N:\20-1017.00 Ashton Grand Prairie\05 CAD\A3series A3.1 (1)
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10259
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10257
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10258
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10260
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10261
	2021 Proposed CIP Final.xls
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10346
	Notice_of_Effective_Tax_Rate_1016_City_of_Grand_Prairie_202008130600pmCZKGRxvF.rtf
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10347
	Adoption_of_Tax_Rate_Steps_1005_City_of_Grand_Prairie_202008130602pm.pdf
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760375&GUID=4DEC2EFA-DFAE-4B63-A9D6-E67143BB21CF
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10348
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760377&GUID=89626527-D29C-43A0-929C-0F4AC0181BA0
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760379&GUID=B0FB3918-4105-4263-BF16-D7C25107C0B0
	038 2020 JULY LETTER
	038 2020 July Totals
	038_Exemptions
	038 CITY OF GRAND PRAIRIE_UseCode_All Excluding Absolutes
	038_Res_A_Graph

	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760380&GUID=918F3054-2129-4601-B96C-30BCEBADE36E
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10351
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10262
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760687&GUID=6F227FC8-1ECC-4988-87E8-71DDA6CE540D
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10263
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760697&GUID=E64C7E25-7E2B-47EF-B830-451F7FB2BCAF
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10264
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760689&GUID=58FE8DBE-9499-4875-A049-970945012EFB
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10265
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762836&GUID=168D7401-B4D9-41AC-99A6-580E7329ECBB
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10266
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762827&GUID=F31A75D5-8ED7-478F-AC52-502F669048E9
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10267
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762829&GUID=B3231A25-7B3A-4F57-96AA-D34BCC5A7632
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10268
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762866&GUID=97B10EAD-81EB-4471-B837-EE53DB7B32C9
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10269
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762867&GUID=410ECE50-F8B7-4B61-8248-E18731A362E8
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10270
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762830&GUID=FE93AE08-2405-4549-B815-9158C904731A
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10271
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762838&GUID=718D727B-E2FD-451E-9B3F-FA78ECB3FC39
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10272
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762832&GUID=6BBCF201-3E20-4EEC-AB4F-B7C4D4989E10
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10273
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762834&GUID=615E0667-A621-42CD-96EE-868AD0B5BF08
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10274
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8766491&GUID=328B7506-A9E2-4526-AD56-127528327B5F
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10275
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8766484&GUID=BE539302-C1AF-4E40-AB24-289EDC41D0A3
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10276
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8766486&GUID=31C00ED8-C423-4ED9-BD41-9CAB3117E0B4
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10277
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10278
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8766489&GUID=882D1A00-7794-4E85-9AB3-0864796DF091
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10279
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8766488&GUID=EC0EBDE6-4473-4E1B-87B3-95BA5E88CB0E
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10280
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8760693&GUID=3C833016-5128-412C-8F27-B65FBA7E3F58
	Grand Prairie Public Improvement District No
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10306
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10237
	Legislation Details (With Text) - 20-10117
	https://grandprairie.legistar.com/View.ashx?M=F&ID=8762914&GUID=93247580-1498-4290-94D3-F2A4C7606349




